
W$LFCREEK 
-,,NUCLEAR OPERATING CORPORATION 

Ron Benham 
Manager Nuclear and Regulatory Affairs 

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
ATTN: Document Control Desk 
Washington, DC 20555 

May 14, 2019 

RA 19-0057 

Subject: Docket No. 50-482: Transmittal of 2018 Annual Financial Reports 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Wolf Creek Nuclear Operating Corporation (WCNOC) is transmitting one copy each of the 
enclosed 2018 annual reports, including financial statements, for its owners: Kansas Gas and 
Electric Company (KGE), a wholly-owned direct subsidiary of Westar Energy, Inc. and indirect 
subsidiary of Evergy, Inc.; Kansas City Power & Light Company (KCPL), a wholly-owned direct 
subsidiary of Evergy, Inc.; and Kansas Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (KEPCo). This 
information is being submitted in accordance with 10 CFR 50.71(b). 

This letter contains no commitments. If you have any questions concerning this matter, please 
contact me at (620) 364-4204. 

Sincerely, 

RDB/rlt 

Enclosures: I Evergy Connected by Purpose 2018 Annual Report 
II Kansas Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. 2018 Annual Report 

cc: S. A. Morris (NRC), w/e 
B. K. Singal (NRC), w/e 
N. H. Taylor (NRC), w/e 
Senior Resident Inspector (NRC), w/e 

P.O. Box 411 / Burlington, KS 66839 / Phone: (620) 364-8831 
An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/HC/VET 

------, 
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Evergy believes that by connecting 
people and purpose, sustainable 
change can be created. 
We're charting a new course, connected by purpose to those we serve -
our employees, customers, shareholders and communities. Our destination 
is to become the best energy company. We'll get there by living our core 
values of safety, integrity, ownership and adaptability. 

Selected Financial Data 
Year Ended December 31 2018''1 2017 2016 2015 

(Dollars In millions except per share amounts) I EVERGY, INC. 

Operating revenues $ 4,276 ! $ 2.,571 $ 2,562 $ 2,459 

Net income $ 546 I $ 
' 

337 $ 361 $ 302 

Netincome attributable to Evergy, Inc. $ 536 1 
$ 324 $ 347 $ 292 

Basic earnings per common share $ 2.50 $ 2.27 $ 2.43 $ 2.11 

Diluted earnings per common share $ 2.50 $ 2.27 $ 2.43 $ 2.09 

Total assets at year end $ 25,598 $ 11,624 $ 11,487 $ 10,706 

Total long-term obligations at year end'n $ 7,472 $ 3,846 $ 3,699 $ 3,379 

Cash dividends per common .share $ 1.735 $ 1.60 $ 1.52 $ 1.44 

WESTAR ENERGY 

Operating revenues $ 2,615 $ 2,571 $ 2,562 $ 2,459 

Net income $ 349 $ 337 $ 361 $ 302 

Net income attributable to Westar Energy, Inc. $ 339 f $ 324 $ 347 $ 292 

Total assets at year end $ 11,817 $ U,624 $ 11,487 $ 10,706 

Total long-term obligations at year end'" $ 3,817 $ 3,846 $ 3,699 $ 3,379 

KCP&L 

Operating revenues $ 1,a23 r $ 1,891 $ 1,875 $ 1,714 

Net income $ 163 i $ 180 $ 225 $ 153 

Total assets at year end $ i $ 8,124 $ 8,058 $ 7,815 •. ,2, I 
Total long-term obligations at year end•b; $ 2,532 $ 2,582 $ 2,565 $ 2,563 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

'' On June 4. 2018, Evergy completed tnernergers contemplated by the Amended Merger Agreement. The results of Great Plains Energy's direct subsidiaries nave been included 
in Evergy·s resufls from the date of the closing of the rnelger and thereafter. KCP&L amounts are not included 1n consolidated Evergy for 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014. 

·•· 1nciudes. loog-term debt, current rnatunties of long-term debt, capital leases, tong-term debt of VIEs and current matu@es of long-term debt ofVIEs. 

2014 

2,602 

322 

313 

2.40 

2.35 

10,289 

3,433 

1.40 

2,602 

322 

313 

10,289 

3,433 

1,731 

162 

7,495 

2,297 



i. 

To Our Shareholders, 
Nearly three years ago we started 
a journey to position our company 
for success in a changing industry. 
The road to merging Great Plains 
Energy and Westar Energy took 
a few unexpected turns and was 
longer than originally anticipated, 
but it has delivered us right where 
we expected: Evergy is poised 
to be one of the leading energy 
providers in the nation. 

The purpose we've laid out -
to empower a better future - is 
resonating with those we serve and 
we find ourselves connected by 
purpose with. our employees, 
customers and investors. 

To empower their better future, 
employees want a great place to work; 
customers want affordable, reliable, 
clean energy and innovative energy 
solutions; and you - our shareholders 
who have trusted us with your 
investments - want a consistent 
return on those dollars. Being connected 
by these shared purposes led us 

· to create a business model that we 

BILLION 
MARKET CAPITALIZATION 

Market cap as of 12/31 /18. 

believe can fulfill those futures 
through merger synergies, financial 
strength, sustainable business 
practices and a focus on people. 

Merger Synergies 

The combination of Westar Energy 
and Great Plains Energy to form 
Evergy created a $15 billion company. 
We are an investor-owned, vertically
integrated electric utility. With 1.6 
million customers across Kansas and 
Missouri and $14 billion in rate base 
our larger size makes us stronger a~d 
better able to withstand the changing 
landscape of our industry. 

The anticipated savings this merger 
created are coming to fruition. We 
achieved our 2018 targeted gross 
merger savings during the first seven 
months following the transaction 
close. Thanks to efficiencies we've 
found, we've already returned $60 
million in bill credits to customers 
and expect to continue issuing 
periodic bill credits as additional 
savings are realized. 

3Q18 4Q18 

QUARTERLY DIVIDEND 

Our strong balance 
sheet combined with 
expected earnings 
and dividend growth 
provides an attractive 
total shareholder 
return profile. 

2018 Evergy Annual Report 



Creating a shared 
purpose among our 
stakeholders goes 
beyond a more 
efficient combined 
company. We also 
have a responsibility 
toward the greater 
good of our 
communities. 

2 2018 Evergy Annual Report 

We successfully navigated four 
rate reviews for our various service 
areas and have entered a several
year period of rate stability for 
our customers after a decade of 
environmental and infrastructure 
improvements. Additionally, we 
invested more than $1 billion 
across the service territory to 
ensure the continued reliable 
service our customers expect 

Financial Strength 

The successful execution of 
our merger efficiencies plan has 
allowed us to hit our financial targets. 
We grew our dividend with the 
announcement of an increase last 
fall to an indicated annual rate 
of $1.90 per share. 

We successfully executed our capital 
allocation plan, including the launch 
of our share repurchase program. 
By the end of 2018, we retired more 
than 16 million shares, which is 
a good start to tackling our total 
60 million share buyback target 
by mid-2020. 

STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE 

6/ 4 6/ 30 7/31 8/ 31 

We're targeting competitive earnings 
per share growth and an attractive 
dividend yield while undertaking a 
base rate stay-out period With these 
measures in place, we're able to 
target attractive total shareholder 
return , while having minimal price 
impact on the customers we're 
fortunate to serve. We continue 
to hear great feedback from many 
of you - our investors - about both 
our current outcomes and our 
future plans 

Sustainable Business Practices 

Creating a shared purpose among 
our stakeholders goes beyond 
a more effic ient combined company 
and financial model, though. We 
also have a responsibility toward 
the greater good of our communities. 
We're delivering clean, safe, reliable 
energy for today and in the future 
by embracing alternative energy 
sources to generate more power 
with less impact to the environment 
and choosing technologies that 
balance emission reductions 
with costs. 

• EVRG • JTY NDEX • S&P 500 

9/ 30 10/ 31 11 / 31 12/31 
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Nothing is more important than the safety of our people and 
our communities. We value safety at all times and in all situations. 
It's everyone's responsibility . 

·---- ----



Through a dedication 
to diversity and inclusion, 
we are building a culture 
that fosters engagement 
and excellence. 

4 2018 Evergy Annual Report 

And this isn't a new strategy for us. 
We've been making investments 
toward a lower carbon energy future 
for more than a decade and we've 
made great progress. By the end of 
2020, we plan to have retired 2,200 
megawatts of fossil generation and 
grown our available wind portfolio to 
3,800 megawatts. Kansas now ranks 
third in the nation for wind generation 
as a percent of total generation. 

We've reduced carbon emissions 
by 36 percent in comparison to 2005 
levels and expect that by the end 
of 2020, carbon dioxide will be down 
over 40 percent, sulfur dioxide will 
be down 98 percent and nitrogen 
oxide will be down 87 percent. 

We've made so much progress that 
emission-free sources, including 
renewables and nuclear energy, 
now provide nearly half of our retail 
customers' energy needs. With a 
track record like that and more to 
come, we're truiy embracing a new 
direction in our industry. 

Focus on People 

Evergy has a promising future and 
that future can only be fully realized 
through a focus on people. Of all the 
achievements I've noted here, I'm 
most proud that it has all been 
achieved with no involuntary 
layoffs due to the merger. 

We've asked our people to imagine 
a different path for our business -
no small task when our old business 
models served us well for many 
decades - and they've delivered on 
every count. They've not limited 
themselves to past practices, but 
rather are innovating new ways of 
doing things to move us forward. 
That they're doing so safely, ethically 
and with a sense of pride speaks 
well of our shared commitment to 
our core values of safety, integrity, 
adaptability and ownership. 

Our employees have demonstrated 
a tremendous commitment to 
the customers, investors and 
communities we serve. Because 
of them, I'm confident we'll continue 
to execute on our purpose-driven 
strategies to empower a better future. 

Thank you again for entrusting 
us with your investment. We 
look forward to enhancing that 
confidence in the coming year. 

Terry Bassham 

President and Chief Executive Officer 



~ntegr~ty Integrity and honesty are the foundation of all 
we do. We respect each other, those we serve and 
the environment. 
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7,100 
INDUSTRIAL CUSTOMERS 

189,000 
COMMERCIAL CUSTOMERS 

Merger savings 
and efficiencies 
on track 

BILLION 
IN RATE BASE 

Estimated rate base based on ordered 
and settled rate cases. 
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We are always accountable for our actions 
and continuously work to improve performance. 
We're connected to our customers and the 
communities we serve. 

MILLION 
RESIDENTIAL£ 
CUSTOMERS n 

13700.·· 
MILES OF 

TRANSMISSION 
LINES 

. Customers have already received 
more than $60 MILLION in bill 
credits from merger savings. 



$5.5 MILLION 
IN PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT 

$107 MILLION $1.2million 
EMPLOYEE 

a.a GIVING 
.. PROGRAM 

SUPPLIER DIVERSITY. For more 
than 30 years, our supplier diversity 
initiative has connected us with 
minority, women, veteran-owned 
and service-disabled veteran-owned 
small businesses. In 2018, we 
spent more than $107 million 
with diverse suppliers. 

25000 
EM~LOYEE 
VOLUNTEER HOURS 

~+ 
YEARS 
ACTIVE 
SUPPLIER 
DIVERSITY 
INITIATIVE 'illt1 

250 community 
boards with Evergy 
representatives 

2018 Evergy Annual Report 7 
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Evergy is committed to delivering clean, reliable 
energy. We're adopting new technologies that let 
our customers manage their electricity in ways that 
work for them. We are empowering a better future. 

EQUIVALENT NUMBER OF HOMES POWERED BY 
ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAM SAVINGS 

3,517 
MEGAWATTS OF 
RENEWABLE POWER 

10,000 
ELECTRIC CARS 

POWERED IN 
MISSOURI & KANSAS 

Our Clean Charge 
Network consists 
of more than 1,000 
dual-port electric 
vehicle charging 
stations 

11,566 
MEGAWATTS 
OF OWNED POWER GENERATION 

Renewables include both owned and purchase power agreements as of 12/31 /18. Additionally, we expect total renewables will be over 3,SOOMW by 2020. 

8 2018 Evergy Annual Report 
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UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C.: 20549 

FORMlO-K 

[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITlES 
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year endei:l December 31, 2018 

or 

[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SEq.JRITIES 
. EXCHANGEACTOF 1934 . 

Commission 
File Number · 

001-38515 

001-03523 · . 

000-51873 

For the transition period from ___ to __ _ 

'' ,,evergy 
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter, 

state of incorporation, address of principal 
executive offices and telephone number 

EVERGY, INC. 

(a Missouri.~orporation) 

1200 Main Street 
Kansas City, Missouri 64105 

(816) 556-2200 

WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

(a Kansas Corporation). 
· 818 S~uth Kansas Avenue 

Topeka, Kansas 66612 

(785) 575-6300 

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT .COMPANY 
· (a Missouri Corporation) 

: 1200 Main Street 

Kansas City, Missouri 64105 

(816) 556-2200 

· I.R.S. Employer 
Identification Number 

82-2733395 

,I 

48-0290150 

44-0308720 

.Each of the following classes or series of securities registered pursuant to Se~tion· 12(6) of the Act is r~gistered on the 
New York Stock Exchange: . . , . 

Registrant 
Evergy, In'c. 

Title of each class 
Common Stock, without par·value 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Westi;ir Energy, Inc. Common Stock $0.01 par value and Kansas 
City Power & Light Company Common Stock without par value. · 



Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. 

Evergy, Inc. Yes [R] No D 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City P_ower & Light Company 

Yes D 

Yes D 

No 

No 

_Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. 

Evergy, Inc. Yes D No IB] 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City Power & Light Company 

Yes D 

Yes D 

No IB] 

No IB] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrrint (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or.15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was 
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. 

Evergy, Inc. Yes IB] No D 

_Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City Power & Light Company 

Yes IB] 

Yes IB] :' 

No D 

No D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File.required to be 
submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for 
such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). 

Evergy, Inc. 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City Power & Light Company 

Yes IBJ 

Yes IBJ 

Yes IBJ 

No D 

'No· D 

No D 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this 
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best ofregistrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or 
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to the Form 10-K. 

Evergy, Inc. 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City Power & Light Company 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a 
smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," 
"accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule _12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 

Large Smaller Emerging 
Accelerated Accelerated Non-accelerated Reporting Growth 

Filer Filer Filer Company Company 

Evergy, Inc. IBJ D D D D ~ 

Westar Energy, Inc. D D IBJ D D 

Kansas City Power & Light Company D D IBJ D D 
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition 
period for complying with any new or revised· financial accounting standards provided pursuantto Section 13(a) of the 
Exchange Act. · 

Evergy, Inc. 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City Power & Light Company 

D 

D 

D 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). 

Evergy, Inc. Yes D No IRl 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Kansas City Power & Light Company 

Yes D 

Yes D 

No 

No 
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The aggregate hlarket value ofthe voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates ofEvergy, Inc. (based 
on the closing price of its common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on June 30, 2018) was approximately 
$15,236,578,926. All of the common equity ofWestar Energy, Inc. and Kansas City Power & Light Company is held 
by Evergy, Inc. 

On February 15, 2019, Evergy, Inc. had 254,630,033 shares ofcommon stock outstanding. 

On February 15, 2019, Westar Energy, Inc. and Kansas City Power & Light Company each had one share of common 
stock outstanding and held by Evergy, Inc. 

Westar Energy, Inc. and Kansas City Power & Light Company meet the conditions set forth in General 
Instruction (l)(l)(a) and (b) of Form 10-K arid are therefore filing this Form 10-K with the reduced disclosure 
format. 

Documents Incorporated by Reference 

Portions of the 2019 annual meeting proxy statement ofEvergy, Inc. to be filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission are incorporated by reference in Part III of this report. 

This ·combined annual report on Form 10-K is provided by the following registrants: Evergy, Inc. (Evergy), Westar 
Energy, Inc. (Westar Energy) and Kansas City Power & Light.Company (KCP&L) (collectively, the Evergy 
Companies). Information relating to any individual registrant is filed by such registrant solely on its own behalf. 
Each registrant makes no representation as to information relating exclusively to the other registrants. 

\ ' . 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING CERTAIN .FO~WARD-LOQKING INFORMATION 
Statements made in this report that.are not based on historical facts are forward-looking, may involve risks and 
uncertainties, and are intended to be as of the date when made. Forward-looking statements include, but are not 
limited to, statements relating to the expec;ted financial and operational benefits of the merger of Great Plains 

. Energy Incorporated (Great Plains Energy) and Westar Energy that resulted in the creation of Evergy' (including cost 
savings, operational efficiencies and the impact of the merger on earnings per share), cost estimates. of capital 
projects, dividend growth, share repurchases, balance sheet and credit ratings, rebates to customers, the outcome of 
regulatory and legal proceedings, employee issues and other matters affecting future operations. 

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Evergy 
Companies are providing a number of important factors that coul4 cause actual results to differ materially from the 
provided forward-looking information. These important factors include: future economic conditions and any 
related impact on sales, prices and costs; prices and availability of ¢lectricity in wholesale markets; market 
perception of the energy industry and the Evergy Companies;. changes in business strategy or operations; the impact , 
of unpredictable federal, state and iocal political, legislative,judicial and regulatory actions or developments, 
including deregulation, re-regulation and restructuring of the electric utility industry; decisions ofregulators 
regarding rates that Westar Energy and KCP&L (or other regulated subsidiaries ofEvergy) can charge for 
electricity; changes in applicable laws, regulations, rules., principles or practices, or the interpretations thereof, 
governing tax, accounting and environmental matters, including air and water quality and waste management and 
disposal; changes in the energy trading markets in which the Evergy Companies participate, including retroactive· 
repricing of transactions by regional transmission organizations and independent system operators; the impact of 
climate ~hange, including reduc.ed demand for coal-based energy because of actual or perceived climate impa9ts. 
and the development of alternate energy sources; financial market conditions. and performance, including changes 
in interest rates and credit spreads and in availability and cost of capital and the effects on derivati~es and hedges,, 
nuclear decommissioning trust and pension plan assets and costs; impairments oflong-lived assets or goodwill; . 
credit ratings; inflation rates; effectiveness of risk management policies and procedures and the ability of 
counterparties to satisfy t~eir contractual commitments; impact of terrorist acts, including cyber te:rrorism; ability to 
carry out marketing and sales plans; weather conditions, including weather-related damage and the impact on sales, 
prices and costs; cost, availability, qual1ty and timely provision of equipment, suppli~s, labor. and fuel; the inherent · 
uncertainties in estimating the effects ofwy~ther, economic conditions, climate change and other factors on 
customer consumption and financial results; ability to achieve generation.goals and the occurrence and duration of 
planned and unplanned generation outages; delays in the anticipated in-service dates and cost increases of 
generation, transmission, distribution or other projects; the Evergy Companies' abiiity to successfully manage their 
transmission and distribution development plans and transmission joint ventures; the inherent risks associated with 
the ownership and operation of a nuclear facility, including environmental, health, safety, ·regulatory an.d financial .. 
'risks; workforce risks, including increased costs of retirement, health care and other benefits; the possibility that the 
expected value creation from the merger will not be realized,or will not be realized within the expected-time 
period; difficulties related to the integration of the two companies; disruption from the. merger 1:Ilakihg it more 
difficult to maintain relationships with customers, employees, regulators or suppliers; the diversion of management 
time; and. other risks and uncertainties. 

This list of factors is not all-inclusive because it is not possible to predict all factors. Part I, Item lA, Risk Factors 
included in this report should be carefully read for further understanding of potential risks for .the Evergy 
Companies. Other sections of this report and other periodic reports filed by the Evergy Companies with the 
Secmjties and Exchange Commission {SEC) should also be read for more information regarding risk factors. Each 
forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of the particular statement. The Evergy Companies undertake 
no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result ·of new information, 
future events or otherwise; · 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

The following is a glossary of frequently used abbreviations or acronyms that are found throughout this report .. 
- - . . 

. . .. " 
Abbreviation or Acronym 

AEP 
AFUDC 

I . 
Amended Merger 

Agreement 

AMT 
ARO 
ASC 
ASR 
ASU 
CCRs 
CAA 
CO2 
COLI 
CPP 
CWA 
:QOE 
EIRR 
EPA 
EPS 
ERISA 
Evergy 

J • 

Erergy Board 

Evergy Companies , 

Exchang_e Act 
FASB 

· FERC 
FMBs 

GAAP. 

GHG 

GMO 

GPETHC 

Great Plains Energy 
KCC 

KCP&L 

KDHE 

KGE 

King Energy 

kWh' 

· Definition 

American Electric Power Company, Jnc. 
Allowance for Funds Used During ·constru~tion 
Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, d~tedas of July 9, 2017, · __ · 

by and among Great Plains Energy, Westar Energy, Monarch Energy Holding, 
Inc. and King Energy, Inc . 

. Alternative Minimum Ta~ 
Asset Retirement Obligation 
Accounting Standards Codification 
Accelerated share repurchase 
Accounting Standards Update 
Coal combustion residuals. 
Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 
Carbon dioxide 
Corporate-:owned life insurance 
Clean Power Plan 
Clean Water Act 

. Department of Energy 
Environmental Improvement Revenue Refunding 
Environmental Protection Agency 
Earnings per common share · , 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended 
Evergy, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries 

· Evergy Board of Directors 

Evergy, Westar Energy, and KCP&L, collectively, which are individual 
registrants within the Evergy consoliµated group · 

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as -amended 
Financial Accounting Standards Board , 
The'Federal Energy Regulatory Co~ission 
First mortgage bonds 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

Greenhouse gas 

KCP&L Greater Missouri Operations Company, a wholiy-owned subsidiary of 
Evergy · 

· GPE Transmission: Holding Company LLC, a wholly-o~ed sub~idiary of Evergy 

Great Plains Energy Incorporated 
State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas 

'Kansas City Power & Light Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary ofEvergy, 
and its consolidated subsidiaries . 

Kansas Department of Health & Environment 

Kansas Gas and Electric Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Westar Energy· 

King Energy, lnc., a wholly-owned subsidiary ofEvergy 

Kilowatt hour 

4 



Abbreviation or Acronym 

LTISA 
MEEIA 
MMBtu 
Monarch Energy 
MPSC 
MW 
MWh 
NAAQs 
NAV 
N02 
NRC 
PISA 
PM 
Prairie Wind 
RSU 
RTO 
SEC 
S02 
SPP 
TCJA 
TCR 
TFR 
Transource 
WACC 
VIE 
Westar Energy 

WUN 
Wolf Creek 
WOTUS 

Definition 

Long-Term Incentive and Share Award plan 
Missouri Energy Efficiency Investment Act 
Millions of British thermal units 
Monarch Energy Holding, Inc. 
Public Service Commission of the State of Missouri 
Megawatt 
Megawatt hour 
National Ambient Air Quality Standards . 
Net Asset Value 
Nitrogen dioxide 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Plant-in service accounting 
Particulate matter 
Prairie Wind Transmission, LLC, 50% owned by Westar Energy 
Restricted share unit 
Regional transmission organization 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
Sulfur dioxide 
Southwest Power Pool, Inc. 
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 
Transmissi.on Congestion Rights 
Transmission formula rate 
Transource Energy, LLC and its subsidiaries, 13.5% owned by GPETHC 
Weighted average cost of capital 
Variable inte.test entity 
Westar Energy, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Evergy, and its consolidated 

subsidiaries 

Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation 
· Wolf Creek Generating Station, 

Waters of the United States 
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I 

PARTI 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

General 
Evergy, Inc., Westar Energy, Inc. and Kansas City Power & Light Company are separate registrants filing this 
combined annual report on Form 10-K. The terms "Evergy," "Westar Energy," "KCP&L" and "Evergy Companies" 
are used throughout this report. "Evergy" refers to Evergy, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise 
indicated. "Westar Energy" refers to Westar Energy, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise 
indicated. "KCP&L" refers to Kansas.City Power & Light Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, unfess 
otherwise indicated. ,iEvergy Companies" refers to Evergy, Westar Energy, and KCP&L, collectively, which are 
individual registrants within the Evergy consolidated group. 

Information in other Items of this report as to which reference is made in this Item 1 is hereby incorporated by 
reference in this Item 1. The use of terms such as "see" or."refer to" shall be·deemed to incorporate into this Item 1 
t):ie infofD)ation t9 which such reference is made'. · 

EVERGY, INC. 

Evergy is a public utility holding company incorporated in 2017 and headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri. 
Evergy operates primarily through the following wholly-owned direct subsidiaries: . · 

~ Westar Energy is an integrated, regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers in the state of 
Kansas: Westar Energy has one active wholly-owned subsidiary with significant operations, Kansas Gas . . I 

and Electric Company (KGB) . 

. • KCP&L is an integrated, regulated electric utility that provides 'electricity to customers primarily in the 
st~tes of Missouri and Kansas. · · 

• KCP&L Greater Missouri Operations Company (GMO) is an integrated, regulated electric utility that 
provides electricity to customers in the state of Missouri. 

• GPE Transmission I:Iolding Company, LLC (GPETHC) owns 13.5% ofTransource Energy, LLC 
(Transource) with the remaining 86.5% o~ned by AEP Transmission Holding Company, LLC, a subsidiary 
of American Electric Power Company, Inc. (AEP). Transource is focused on the development of 
competitive electric transmission projects. GPETHC accounts for its investment inTransource under the 
equity method . 

. Westar Energy also owns a 50% interest in Prairie Wind Transmission, LLC (Prairie Wind), which is a joint venture 
between Westar Energy and affiliates of AEP and Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company. Prairie Wind owns a 108-
mile, 345 kV double-circuit transmission line that provides transmission service in the Southwest Power Pool, Inc. 
(SPP).· Westar Energy accounts for its investment in Prairie Wind under the equity method. 

Evergy assesses financial performance and allocates resources on a consolidated basis (i.e., operates in one 
' ' 

segment). Evergy serves approximately 1,588,300 customers located in Kansas and Missouri. Customers include 
approximately 1,392,500 _residences, 188,700 commercial firms and 7,100 industrials, municipalities and other 
electric utilities. Evergy is significantly impacted by seasonality with approximately one-third of its retail revenues 
recorded in the third quarter. 
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The·table below summarizes the percentage ofEvergy's revenues by customer classification. 

·2018 

[Res1.clential + • :''. • ·--· , __ .. •. • • ·- -•· _ _ • • • _ 37% 
Commercial 32% 

Wholesale 10% 

2017 
32% 

28% 

12% 

2016 
33% 

29% 

12% 

Other ·. 2% 1% 1% 
[:Total . '> ·: / . . . \.: } , . ,:]' '., • .. ·:· \-· .-.,.-.. -,-:l-,O-O_o/c_o_--------,-----.·-1o_o_o/c-.o,-·•....,....-,----.:-)1""".o_o_o/c.,..o·-'. .. ..,.... __, 

The table below summarizes the percentage of Evergy's retail electricity sales by customer class. 

2018 2017 2016 

Residential 37% 32% 33% 

Industrial J 22% 30% 28% 
I Total · · .. · ·. · · ... ··· · · ·. , · ·· .·· · ·. •·· . ·. ·. :100% 100%. • :YOO% ' 'l 

Merger Qf Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy 
Eyergy was incorporated in 2017 as Monarch Energy Holding, Inc. (Monarch Energy), a wholly-owned subsidiary 
of Great Plains Energy Incorporated (Great Plains Energy). Prior to the closing of the merger transactions, Monarch 
Energy changed its name to Evergy and did not cond~ct any·business ~ctivities other than those required for its 
formation and matters contemplated by the Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 
9, 2017, by and among Great Plains Energy, Westar Energy, Monarch Energy and King Energy, Inc. (King Energy),· 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Monarch Energy (Amended Merger Agreement). 

On June 4, 2018, Evergy completed the mergers contemplated by the Amended Merger Agreement. As a result of 
the mergers, Great Plains E.nergy merged into Evergy, with Evergy surviving the merger and King Energy merged 
into Westar Energy, with Westar Energy surviving the merger. Following the completion of these mergers, Westar 
Energy and the direct subsidiaries of Great Plains Energy, in~luding KCP&L and GMO, became wholly-owned 
subsidiaries of Evergy. 

· The merger was structured as a merger of equals in a tax-free exchange of shares that involved no premium paid or. 
received with respect to either GreatPlains Energy or Westar Energy. As a result of the closing of the merger 
transaction, each outstanding share of Great Plains Energy common stock was converted into 0.5981 shares of 

· Evergy common stock and each outstanding share of Westar Energy common stock was converted into 1 share of 
Evergy common stock. 

Westar Energy was determined to be the accounting acquirer in the merger and thus, the predecessor ofEvergy. 
Therefore, Evergy's ·consolidated financial statements reflect the results of operations of Westar Energy for 2017 anci 
2016 and the financial position of Westar Energy as of December 31, 2017. The results of Great Plains Energy's 
direct subsidiaries have been included in Evergy's results or'operations. from the date of the closing of the merger 
and thereafter. 

See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for more information regarding the merger. 

Regulation 
Westar Energy and KCP&L's Kansas operations are regulated by the State Corporation Commission of the State of 
Kansas (KCC) and KCP&L's Missouri operations and GMO are regulated by the Public Service Commission of the 
State of Missouri (MPSC), in each case with respect to retail rates, certain accounting matters,. standards of service 
and, in certain cases, the issuance of securities, certification of facilities and service territories. The Evergy 
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Companies are also subject to regulation by The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) with respect to · · 
transmission, wholesale sales and rates,'and other matters. Evergy has a 94% ownership interest in Wolf Creek 
Generating St~tion (Wolf Creek), which is subject to regulation by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) with 
respect to licensing, operations and safety-related requirements. 

The table below summarizes _the rate orders in effect for Westar Energy's, KCP&L's and GMO's retail rate 
jurisdictions .. 

Allowed Return Rate-Making 
Regulator on Equity Equity Ratio Effective Date 

~~~~~,;Eitetg£f~:::r'.;;a:i;(;;:;i·~:t,:/~::,.:;;.cb,. :'~¥;it<C<B):~-: ,1 ' . .3:.fa12]1'.·.·• ~~i; .. ;.' :;.~§£:16.~:i·'; ::~ ·1~tW~~~qprs~;~;j 
KCP&LKansas KCC 9.3% 49.09%- December2018 

GMO MPSC (a) (a) December 2018 

(a) KCP&L's and GM O's current MPSC rate order ·does not contain an allowed return on equity or rate-making equity ratio. 

Evergy expects its Kansas and Missouri jurisdictional _retail revenues to be approximately 60% and 40%, ·. 
respectively, ba~ed on historical averages of Westar Energy's~ KCP&L's and GMO's retail revenues. 

See Item 7 MD&A, Critical Accounting Policies section, and Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for 
additional informatio_n concerning regulatory matters. 

Competition . . . . . 
Missouri and Kansas continue to operate on the fully integrated and regulated retail utility model. As a result, the 
Evergy Companies do not compete with others fo supply and deliver electricity in their franchised service territories 
in exchange for agreeing to have their terms of service regulated by state regulatory bodies. If Missouri or Kansas 
were to pass and implement legislation authorizing or mandating retail choice, Evergy may no longer be. able to 
apply regulated utility accounting principles to deregulated portions of its operations which may require a surcharge 
to recover certain costs from legacy customers or could lead to a write off of certain regulatory assets and }~abilities. 

Evergy competes in the wholesale market to sell power in circumstances when the power it generates is· not required 
. for retail customers in its service territory. This competition primarily occurs within the SPP Integrated 

Marketplace, in which Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO are participants. This marketplace determine~ which 
gerieta:ting ·units aniong market participants should run, within the operating constraints of a unit, at any given time 
for.maximum region11l cost-effectiveness.· 

The·SPP Integrated Marketplace is similar to other Regional Transmission Organization (RTO) or Independent 
System Operntor (ISO) markets currently operating in other regions of the United States.· 

Power Supply 
Evergy has approximately 14,500 MW s of owned generating capacity and renewable purchased power agreements. 
Evergy's owned _generation and purchased power from others, as a percentage of total MWhs generated and 
purchased; was approximately 71 % and 29%, respectively, for 2018. Evergy purchases power to meet its 
custom~rs'-~eeds, to.satisfy firm power commitments or to meet renewable energy.standards. Management believes 
Evergy will be able to .meet its future purchased power· demands due to the coordination of planning and operations 
in the SPP region and existing power purchase agreements; however, price and availability of power purchases may 
be impacted during periods of high demand. 
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Evergy's total capacity by fuel type, including both owned generating capacity and purchased power agreements, .is 
detailed in the table below. 

Estimated Percent ofTofal 
Fuel Type MW Capacity. Capacity 

l£oc1L·. __ ,··,; .:·.··.~ ....• · .. · .. -· ... ·-~-·, _· ·:s -_·_ ··-·-- <.:':·· .·• ···-· __ . ·-··: · .. ·?)90· · .. ·· ._· :~·'•4P:~:J 
Natural gas and oil ' 3,991 27 

w"""·,·,•·•··-·J 

Uranium 1,104 · 8 

~Ja11dfillgasandhY~lectric(b) .· '.'\ •• : ' . •. '. , ,/ . · . .':, .... : .· ', . <\ ,\ .75 '·.,;' ·:·.\';~·i~'=r,~! 
Total capacity .. 14,502 100 % 

(a)MWs are based on nam~plate capacity of the wind facllity. Includes owned generating capacity of 579 MWs and long-term power purchase 

agreements of approximately 2,863 MW s of wind generation that expire in 2028 through 2048. 

(b).In~ludes a long-term power purchase agreement for approxiinately 66 MWs of hydroelectric generation that expire~ in 2023. 

Evergy's projected peak summer demand for 2019 is approximately 10,350 MWs. Evergy expects to meet its 

projected capacity requirements for the foreseeable future with its existing generation assets and power and capacity 

purchase!3. 

Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO are members of the SPP. The SPP is a FERC~approved RTO with the 

responsibility to ensure reliable power supply, adequate transmission infrastructure and competitive wholesale 

electricity prices in the regio·n. As SPP. members, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO are required to maintain a 

minimum reserve margin of 12%. This net positive supply of capacity is maintained through generation asset 

ownership, capacity agreements, power purchase agreements and peak demand reduction programs. The reserve 

margin is designed to support reliability of the region's electric supply. 

hcl .. 
The fuel sources for Evergy's owned generation and purchased power agreements are coal, wind and other 

· renewable sources, uranium and natural gas and oil. The aqtual 2018 fuel mix and fuel cost in cents per net kilowatt: 

hour (kWh) delivered are outlined in the following table and include full-year 2018 amounts for Westar Energy,· 
KCP&L and GMO. . . . . 

Fuel Mix(a) . 

Actual 

Fuel cost in cents P.er 

net kWh: deliv~red 
Actual 

Fuel 2018 2018 

f.t.'.}>.~l-~: :. ~\·<tXt:~:·.·.·; .. _. __ ·-· -· .. -~), ... , .. s_··*·· ·-··*·--d·· .:r .. </,·4 ) .. ··- _ < .. · ..• ds~ffc;;,/:_ . ,, / !¥'.Pf ·.:~~,.·,/::J 
Wind, hydroelectric, landfill gas and solarCbl· 23 0.01 

100:s.o/o 

(•l Fuel mix based on percent ofnet MWhs generated by owned resources and delivered under purchased power agreements. . . 

(bl Fuel cost in cents per net kWh delivered does not include purchased power c,osts associated with renewable purchased power' agretemellts'.· 
The actual 2018 fuel and purchasecl power cost in cents per net kWh delivered for wind, hydroelectric,.landfill gas and solar was $2.8? .. 

Coal 
During 2019, Evergy's generating units, including jointly-owned.units, are projected to bum approximately 

18 million tons of coal. Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO have entered into coal-purchase contracts with 

various suppliers in Wyoming's Powder River ·Basin (PRB), the nation's principal supply region of low~ 

sulfur coal, and with local suppliers. The coal to be provided under these contracts is expe~ted to satisfy 

approximately 80% of the projected coal requirements for 2019 and approximately 55% for 2020. Th~ 
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remainder of the coal requirements is expected to be fulfilled through entering into additional contracts or 
spot market purchases. 

Westar Energy, KCP6?L and GMO have also entered into rail transportation contracts with various railroads. 
to transport coal from the PRE and local suppliers to their generating units. The transportation services to 

·be provided under these contracts are expected to satisfy almost all of the projected transportation 
requirements for 2019 and 2020. The contract rates adjust for changes in railroad costs. 

Nuclear Fuel 
Westar Energy and KCP&L each owns 47% of Wolf Creek, which is Evergy's only nuclear generating unit.. 
Wolf Creek purchases uranium and has it processed for use as fuel in its reactor. This process involves · 
conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium hexafluoride, enrichment of uranium hexafluoride and 
fabrication of nuclear fuel assemblies. The owners of Wolf Creek have on hand or under contract all of the 
uranium, uranium enrichment and conversion services needed to operate Wolf Creek through March 2027. 
The owners also have under contract all of the uranium fabrication required to operate Wolf Creek through 
September 2025. 

Natural Gas . . . . . . 
Natural gas accounted for approximately 8% of the total MMBtu of fuel consumed and approximately 14% 
of total fuel expense in 2018. From time to time, Evergy may enter into contracts, including the use of . 
derivatives, in an effort to manage the cost of natural gas. For additional information about our exposure to 
commodity price risks, see Item 7 A., Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk. 

Westar Energy maintains natural gas transportation arrangements with Kansas _Gas Service and Southern 
Star Central Gas Pipeline. The Kansas Gas Service agreement has historically expired on April 30 o( each 
year and is renegotiated for an additional one-year term. 

Environmental Matters 
There have been political, legal and regulatory efforts to influence climate change, such as efforts tq reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions (GHG), impose a tax on emissions and create incentives for low-carbon generation and 
energy efficiency. These ·efforts, and climate change itself, have the potential to adversely affect the Evergy 
Companies' results of operat1ons, financial position and cash flows. See Part I, Item ·1A, Risk Factors, for additional 
information. · 

The Evergy Companies have taken, and will continue to take, proactive measures to mitigate the impact of climate 
change on its businesses. For example, the Evergy Companies regularly conduct preparedness exercises for a. 
variety of disruptive events, including storms, which may become more frequent or intense due to climate change. 
In addition, the Evergy Companies have invested, and will continue to invest, in grid resiliency. Much of the 
Evergy Companies' infrastructure is aged, and grid resiliency efforts include building additional transmission and 
distribution lines, replacing aged infrastructure and proactively managing the vegetation that can damage systems 
during severe weather. The Evergy Companies also monitor water ~onditions at their ge_nerating facilities, and · 
focus on water conservation at these facilities to address resource depletion. 

The Evergy Companies are committed to a long-term strategy to reduce carbo~ emissions in a cost-eff~ctive and 
reliable manner. Public attention is currently focused· on reducing emissions and closing coal-fired generating units. 
Diversity of fuel supply has historically proven to provide benefits in ttirms of cost and reliability. In addition, the 
Evergy Companies must ensure that they prudently utilize the generation assets that regulators have allowed. the 
Evergy Companies to include in rat~s and avoid "stranding" assets by prematurely closing facilities. The Evergy 
Compariies use an integrated resource plan, which is a detailed analysis· that estimates factors that influence the 
future supply and demand for electricity. The integrated resource plan considers forecasts o(future electricity 
demand, fuel prices, transmission improvements, new generating capacity, integration ofrenewables, energy 
storage, energy efficiency and demand· response initiatives. Strategies that the Evergy Companies have pursued 
include: 
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• retiring fossil fuel generation; 

. • developing renewable energy facilit1es; 

• collaborating with regulators to offer customers the opportunity to procure electricity produced with 

renewable resources; and 

• investing in customer energy efficiency programs .. 

The Evergy Companies are also committed to transparency. On its website, www.evergyinc.com, Evergy provides 

quantitative and qualitative data regarding various environmental, social ·and governance matters, including 

information related to emissions, waste and water. The content of the ~ebsite and report is not incorporated into . 

this filing. 

See Note 14 to the consolidated finan~ial statements for information regarding environmental matters. 

WESTAR ENERGY, INC:· 

Westar Energy, a Kansas corporation incorporated in 1924 and headqu~rtered in Topeka, Kansas, is an integrated, 

regulated electric utility that engages in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity. Westar 

Energy serves approximately 711,600 customers located in central and eastern Kansas. Customers include 

approximately 620,20Q residences, 86,800 commercial firms, and 4,600 industrials, municipalities and other electric 

utilities. Westar Energy's retail revenues averaged approximately 76% 'of its total operating revenues over the last 

three years. Wholesale firm power, bulk power sales, transmission and miscellaneous electric revenues accounted 

for theremainde_r of Westar Energy's revenues. Westa:i; Energy is significantly impacted by seasonality with 

approximately one-third of its retail revenues recorded in the third quarter. 

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

KCP&L, a Missouri corporation incorporated in 1922 and headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri, is an integrated,'. 

regulated electric utility that engages in the generation, transmission, .distribution and sale of electricity .. KCP&L 

serves approximately 549,900 customers located in western Missouri and eastern Kansas. Customers include - .. 

approximately 485,300 residences, 62,600 commercial firms, and 2,000 industrials, municipalities and other .electric 

utilities.· KCP&L's retail revenues averaged approximately 92~ of its total operating revenues over the last three 

years. Wholesale firm power, bulk power sales and miscellaneous electric rev·enues accounted for the remainder of 

KCP&L's revenues, KCP&L is significantly impacted by seasonality with approximately one-third of its retail 

revenues recorded in the third quarter. Missouri and Kansas jurisdictional retail revenues for KCP&L averaged 

approximately 57% and 43%, respectively, of total retail revenues over the last three years. · · · 

Employees 
At December 31, 2018, the Evergy ~ompanies had 4,832 employees, including 2,652 represented by five local 

unions of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW). Evergy also has a 94% ownership share 'in 

Wolf Creek, which has 889 employees, including 495 represented by a local union of the IBEW and a local union of 

the United Government Security Officers of America (UGSOA). Westar Energy has labor agreeqients with IBEW 

Locals 304 and 1523 (expires June 30, 2021). KCP&L has labor agreements with IBEW Local 1613, representing 

clerical employees ( expires March 31, 2021 ), with IBEW Local 1464, representing transmission and distribution 

workers (expires January 31, 2021), and with IBEW Local 412, representing power plant workers (expires 

February 28, 2021). Wolf Creek has labor agreements with IBEW Local 225 (expires September 20, 2021) and 

UGSOA Local 252 ( expires July 31, 2020). 
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Executive Officers 
Set forth below is information relating to the executive officers of Evergy, Inc. Each execut!ve officer holds the 
same position with each of Westar Energy, Inc., Kansas City Power & Light Company, Kansas. Gas and Electric 
Company and KCP&L Greater Missouri Operations Company as he or she does with Evergy, Inc. Executive 
officers serve at the pleasure of the board of directors. There are no family relationships among any of the 
executive officers, nor any arran$ements or understandings between any executive officer and other persons 
pursu~nt to which he or she was appointed as an executive officer. 

Year First 
Assumed an 

Officer· 
Name · Age Current Position(s) Position* 

lTerryBassham(a} ·. . ... :>· '·58,·. :.J>resiclentaiidChief,Executive?fficef;· .,. ;., .·. ,,;,",,,.· . .• 11,,., ···)~J05'.;~i 
K~~~·i. B~~~t ·(bi : .ft•J" ··• • : 43'"' , . · E~~~~tive:·~ic~ P~esi~le~t ~~~ C~i~/~;eratin~ ()ffic~; · · ··· '~ 2006 

50 Vice President - Risk Management and Controller 2014 

* Denotes the year m which the individual first assumed an officer position with any of Great Plains Energy, Westar Energy, 
KCP&L, KGE or GMO.' 

(a) Mr. Bassha~ was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer ofEvergy, Inc. in June 2018. Mr. Bassham served as 
Chairman of the Board of Great Plains Energy (2013-2018), and had served as Chief Executive Officer of Great Plains 
Energy, KCP&L and GMO since 2012. He has served as President of each company since 2911. He previously served as 
President and Chief Operating Officer of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and GMO (2011-2012) and as Executive Vice 
President - Utility Operations of KCP&L and GMO (2010-2011 ). He was Executive Vice President - Finance and Strategic 
Development and Chief Financial Officer of Great Plains Energy (2005-2010) and ofKCP&L and GMO (2009-2010). 

(b) Mr. Bryant was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer ofEvergy, lnc . .in June 2018: Mr. Bryant 
previously served as Senior Vice President - Finance and Strategy and Chief Financial Officer of Oreat Plains EtJ,ergy, 
KCP&L and GMO (2015-2018). He previously served as Vice President~ Strategic Planning of Great Plains Energy, 
KCP&L and GMO (2014). He served as Vice President - Investor Relations and Strategic Planning and Treasurer of Great. 
Plains Energy, KCP&L and GMO (2013). He served as Vice President - Investor Relations and Treasurer of Great Plains . 
Energy, KCJl&L and GMO (2011-2013). He was Vice President - Strategy and Risk Management ofKCP&L and GMO 
(2011) and Vice President - Energy Solutions ofKCP&L (2006-2011) and GMO (2008-2011). 

( c) Mr. Greenwood was appointed Executive Vice President, Strategy and Chief Administrative Officer of Evergy, Inc. in June 
2018. Mr. Greenwood previously served in the following officer roles for Westar Energy: Senior Vice President, Strategy · 
(2011-2018); Vice President, Major Construction Projects (2006-2011); and Treasurer (2003-2006). Mr. Greenwood also 
served in the following roles for Westar Energy: Executive/Senior Director, Corporate Finance (1999-2003); Director, 
:financial Strategy and Acting Director, Internal Audit (1999-2000); and Director, Financial Strategy (1998-1999). Mr. 
Greenwood joined Westar Energy in 1993. 

(d) Mr. Somma was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer ofEv\!rgy, Inc. in June 2018. Mr. Somma 
previously served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (2011-201 ~) for Westar Energy, after 
having been appointed as Treasurer in 2006 and Vice President in 2009. He also served as Executive Director, Generation 
(2004-2006), Executive Director, Finance (1998-1999) and Director, Corporate Strategy (1996-1998) of Westar Energy, 
after having joined the company in 1994. From 1999to 2004, Mr. Somma served in various leadership roles wit~ a former 
affiliate of Westar Energy, including Senior Vice President, Finance and Administration, Chief Financial Officer and 
Secretary. 
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(e) Mr.Banning was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief People Officer ofEvergy, Inc. in June 2018. Mr. Banning 

previously served in the following officer roles for Westar Energy: Senior Vice President, Operations Support and 

Administration (2015-20.18); Vice President, Human Resources and IT (2014); a11d Vice President, Human Resources 

(2010- 2013). Mr. Banning also served as Executive Director of Human Resources for Westar Energy (2008-2010). 

(f) Ms. Hu~phrey was appointed Senior Vice Preside!1t, Gene~al Cou~sel a~d Corp~rate Secretary ofEvergy, Inc. in June . 

2018. Ms. Humphrey previously served as Senior Vice President - Corporate Services and General Counsel of Great Plains 

Energy, KCP&L and GMO (2016-2018). She previously served as General Counsel (2010-2016) and Senior Vice · · 

President- Human Resources of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and GMO (2012-2016). She served as Vice President-

.· Human Resources·ofGreat P,lains Energy, KCP&L and GMO (2010-2012). She was Senior Director of Human Resources 

and Interim General Counsel of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and GMO (2010) and Managing Attorney ofKCP&L 

(2007-2010) .. 

(g) Mr. Caisley was appointed Senior Vice President, Marketing and Public Affairs and Chief Customer Officer of Evergy; Inc. 

in June 2018. Mr. Caisley served as Vice President - Marketing and Public Affairs of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and 

GMO (2011-2018). He was Senior Director of Public Affairs (2008-2011) and Director,of Governmental Affairs of 
. I . 

KCP&L (2007-2008). 

(h) Mr. Busser was appointed Vice President - Risk Management and Controller of Evergy, Inc. in June 2018. Mr. Busser was 

appointed Vice President - Risk Management and Controller of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and GMO in 2016. 'He 

previously served as Vice President - Business Planning and Controlier of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and GMO 

(2014-2016). He served as Vice President -Treasurer of El Paso Electric Company(2011-2014). Prior to that, he served as 

Vice President - Treasurer and Chief Risk Officer (2006-2011) and Vice President - Regulatory Affairs and Treasurer 

(2004-2006) of El Paso. Electric Company. ' 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 

Utility Regulatory.Risks: 

Prices are subject to regulatory review and may not prove adequate to recover costs or provide a fair return. 

The prices that the Evergy Companies are allowed to charge their customers significantly influence their results of 

op~rations, financial position and cash flows. These prices are subject to the determination, in large part, of . j 

governmental entities, including the MPSC, KCC and FERC. 

In general, utilities are allowed to recover costs (including a reasonable return on invested capital) that were 

. prud~ntly incurred to provide utility service. There can be no assurance, however, that regulators will determine 

such costs to have been prudently incurred. Further, the amounts approved by the regulators may not be sufficienf 

to allow for a recovery of costs or provide for an adequate retumon and of capital investments, Al~o, amounts that 

were approved by regulators may be modified, limited or eliminated by regulatory or legislative actions .. Any 

decisions made by these regulators could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial 

condition and cash flows of Evergy and its utiiity subsidiaries. · · · 

The Evergy Companies are also exposed to cost-recovery shortfalls due to the inherent "regulatory lag" in the rate

setting process. This is because utility rates are generally based on historical information and, except for certain 

situations where regulators allow for recovery of expenses through use of a formula that tracks costs, are not subject 

to.adjustment between rate cases. In connection with the merger, Westar Energy arid KCP&L agreed to a five-year 

base rate moratorium in Kansas beginning in December 2018. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements 

for additional information. In addition, effective as of January 1, 2019, KCP&L and GMO elected into plant-in 

service accounting (PISA), which, by law, requires each company to keep base rates constant for three years 

following KCP&L's and GMO's last gener~l rate case. See Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis of 

Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Executive Summary for additional information on PISA. These and 

other factors may result in under-recovery of costs or failure to earn the authorized return on investment, or both. 

Failure to timely recover the full investment costs of capital projects, the impact of renewable enei:gy and ~nergy 

efficiency programs, other utility costs and expenses due to regulatory disallowances, regulatory lag or other factors 
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-could lead to lowered.credit ratings, reduced ac'cess to capital markets, increased financing costs, lower flexibility 
·due to constrained financial resources and increased coliateral.security requirements or reductions or delays in 1 

planned capital expenditures. In response to competitive, economic, political, legislative, public perception atid I 
regulatory pressures, Evergy and.its utility subsidiaries may be subject to rate moratoriums, rate refunds, limits on · 
rate increases, lower allowed returns on investments or rate reductions, including phase-in plans designed to spread 
the impact of rate increases over an extended period for the· benefit of customers. Any of these results could have a 
material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial condition and cash flows of the Evergy Companies. 

Regulatory requirements regarding utility operations may increase costs and may expose the Evergy Companies 
to compliance penalties or adverse rate consequences. . 
FERC, the ;North American Electric Reliability (:orporatio11 (NERC) and SPP have implemented and. enforce an 
extensive set of transmission system reliability, cybersecurity and crj.tical infrastructure protection Standard~ t4at 
apply to public utilities. The MPSC and KCC have the authority to im,plement utility operational standards and 
requirements, such as vegetation management standards, facilities inspection requirements and quality of service 
standards. In addition, Evergy is also subject to health, safety and other requir~ments enacted by the Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration, the Department of Transportation, the Department of Labor and other federal and 
state agencies. AS discussed more fully under "Operational Risks," the NRC extensively regulates nuclear power 
plants, including Wolf Creek. The costs of complying with existing, new ·or modified regulations, standards and. 

· other requirements could have a material ·adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position and cash 
flows of the Evergy Companies. In addition, failure to meet quality of service, reliability, cybersecurity,, critical 
infrastructure protection, operational or other standards ,and requirements could expose the Evergy Companiys .to 
penalties; additional compliance costs or adverse rate consequences, any of which could have a material adverse 
impact on their results of operations, financial position and cash flows. · · · · 

Environmental Risks: 
. . 

Costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations, including those. relating to GHG emissions, are and 
may continue to be significant and may adversely impact operations and financial results. 
The Evergy Companies are subject to extensiv·e'and frequently cha~ging federal, state and local envirorunental laws, 
regulations and permit requirements relating to air and water quality, waste management and hazardous substance 
disposal, protected natural resources (such as wetlands, ·endangered species and other protected wildlife) and health 
and safety.·· For example, Westar Energy, KCP&L and. GMO combust large amounts of fossil fuels in the pro.duction 

. I . 

of electricity, which results in significant emissions of carbon dioxide (CO2) and other GHGs: Federal legislation · 
regulates the emission of GHGs and numerous states and regions have adopted programs to stabilize or reduce GHG 
emissions. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the Kansas Department of Health and Environment 
(KDHE) and the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) regulate emissions under the Clean Air Act 
Amendments of 1990 (CAA), water under the Clean Water Act (CWA) and waste under the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act (RCRA), among other laws and regulations. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements 
for additional information: 

Compliance with these laws, regulations anci requirements entails significant capital and operating resources, and 
the failure to comply could result in the imposition of substantial penalties, including fines, injunctive relief and · · 
other sanctions. In. addition, there is a risk oflawsuits alleging violations ·of enviroru:nental laws, regulations or 
requirements, claiming creation of a public nuisance or other rriatters, and seeking injunctions or'nionetary damages 
or other relief. Certain federal courts have held that state and local governments and private parties have st~nding to 

· bring climate change· tort suits seeking company-sp_ecific emission reductions and daniages. · 

Environmental permits·are subject to periodic renewal, which may result in more stringent permit conditions ana 
limits. New facilities, or modifications of existing facilities, may require new environmental permits or 
amendments to existing permits. Delays in the environment~! permitting process, public opposition and challenges, 
denials of permit applications, limits or conditions imposed in permits and th_e associated uncertainty may materially 
adversely affect the cost and timing of projects, _and t~us materially adversely affect the results of operations, 
financial position and cash _flows of the Evergy Cqmpanies. In addition, compliance ·with environmental laws, 
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regulations and requirements·could alter the way assets are managed, which in turn.could result in retiring assets. 

earlier than expected,.recording asset retirement obligations{AR.Os) or having a regulator disaHowrecovery of 

costs that had been prudently incurred in connection with those assets. · 

.Costs of complian~e with environmental laws,regulations and requirements, or fines, penalties or negative lawsuit 
outcomes,if not recovered in rates from custom·ers; could have a material adverse effect on th,e results of operations; 

· financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companies. 

Financial Risks: 

Findiiciat'market disruptions o~ 4eclin·es'in the Evergy Companies' cr~dit'raiings may increase financing costs 
andlorlimit access to the'credit markets~ which may adversely affect liquidity and result~.. . 

The Evergy Companjes rely on internally generated cash, access. to capital markets and ·short-temi credit to fund · · 

capital exp~nditures and for working capital and liquidity. Disruption in capital markets, increases.in interest rates; 

deterioration in the financial conc,lition of the financial institutions mi which the Evergy Companies rely, any credit 

rating downgrade or any decrease in the market price ofEvergy's common stock could have material adverse effects 

· on the Evergy Companies. These effects· could include, among others: reduced access to capital and 'increased cost 

ofbortowed funds; dilution reimltin'g from equity issuances at reduced prices·; changes in the type anp/or increases ... 

in the amount of collateral ·or other credit support' obligations required to be posted with contractual counterparties; 

increased nuclear decommissioning trust and pension and other post-retirement benefit plan funding .requirements; 

reduced ability to pay dividends or repurchase.shares of Evergy cm.nmon stock; rate case disallowance of costs of 

capital; reductions .in or delays of capital expenditures; limitatiop iri or the ability ofEvergy to provide credit 

support for its subsidiaries.· Further, Westar Energy and KCP&L hav~ outstanding tax-exempt·bop.ds that niay be·. 

put back to the respective issuer at the option of the holder. In addition, market disruption and volatility could have 

an adverse impact on· Evergy's lenders, suppliers and other counterparties or customers, causing them: to fail to meet 

their obligations. 

Evergy 's holding company structtlre could limit its ability to pay dividends on its comm~n stock and to service its · 

debt ()bligations. · ' 
Evergy,is a ·holding company with no significant operations of its own.· T~e primary source of funds for payme11t of 

· dividends to its .shareholders and .its. other financial obligations .is dividends paid to it by its direct subsidiaries, 

particularly Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO. Evergy's subsidiaries are separate legal entities and.have no : 

obligation to'provide Evergy with funds. The ability of Ev~rgy's subsidiaries to pay dividends .or make other 

distributions, and accordingly, Evergy's ability to pay dividends on its common stock arid 111eet.its financial 

obligations, principally depends on the earnings, and c.ash flows, capital requirements _and general financial position · 

of its. subsidiaries, as well as regulatory factors, financial covenants, general business conditions and other matters.· 

In addition, the Evergy Companies are· subject to ~ertain corp·orate and ~egulatory restrictions and fmancial · · 

covenants that could affect their ability to pay dividends. Under the Federal Power Act; Westar Energy, KCP&L 

and GMO generally can pay dividends only out ofretained_eamings. · In connection with approval ofthe merger in 

Missouri; each·ofKCP&L and GMO agreed to not pay dividends to Evergy if its credit rating falls below BBB- for: 

S&P Global Ratings· or Baa3 for Moo~y's Investor Services; In connection with approval of the merger in Kansas,· . 

each of Westar Energy and KCP &L agreed to not pay dividends to Evergy if (i) the. payment would result in an. , 

increase in. the utility's debt level ( excluding short-t~rm debt and debt due within one year) above 60 percent of its .· ; 

total capitalization, absent approval from the KCC or (ii) if its credit rating falls below.BBB- for S&P Global. 

Ratings or Baa3 for Moody's Investor Services. As. described els~where ii!. this Farm 10-K, the Evergy Campa.hies . 

are parties to various financing agreements that contain requirements to maintain a certain financial condition that 

. could restrict the amount of dividends the Evergy Companies are permitted to pa)'., such:as maintaining a · 

consolidated indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization ratio of not more than 0.65 to 1.00. Evergy··cannot · 

guarantee dividends will be paid in the future or that, if paid, dividends will be at the same amount or with the 'same 

frequency as in the past. 
\ . . . 
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In addition, from time to time Evergy has and may guarantee debt obligations of its subsidiaries. Under the 
financing agreements to which Evergy is a party, a guarantee of debt may be considered indebtedness for purposes 
of complying with financial covenants that dictate the extent to which Evergy can borrow money, and any 
guarantee payments could adversely affect Evergy's liquidity and ability to service its own debt obligations. 

. ' Increasing .costs associated with defined benefit retirement and postri!tirement plans, health care plans and other 
~mployee benefits could adversely affect Evergy 's financial position a11;d liquidity. 
A substantial number ofEvergy's and Wolf Creek's employees participate in defined benefit retirement and other 
post-retirement plans. Former employees also have accrued benefits in defined benefit retirement and other post-' 
retirement plans. The costs of these plans depend on a number of factors, incl~ding the rates ofreturn on plan 
assets, the level and nature of the provided benefits, discount rates, the interest rates used to measure required 

. minimum funding levels, changes in benefit design, changes in laws or regulations and the amount of any requir~d 
or voluntary contributions to the plans. The Evergy Companies have substantial unfunded liabilities under these 
plans.· Also, if the rate ofretirements exceeds. planned levels, if these plans experience. adverse market returns on ;. 
investments or if interest rates materially fall, required or voluntary contributions to the plans could be materiaL In 
addition, changes in accounting rules and assumptions related to future costs, returns on investments, interest rates 
and other actuarial assumption~, including projected retirements, could have a significant adverse impact on the 
results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companies. 

The costs of providing health care benefits to employees and retirees have increased in re.cent years and may 
continue to rise in the future. Future legislative changes related to h~alth care could also cause significant changes 
to benefit programs and costs. The i:J;1creasing costs associated with health care plans ,cquld have a signi,ficant 
adverse impact on the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companies, 

The use of derivative contracts in the n~rmal course of business could result in losses that could negatively 
impact the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companies. 
The. Evergy Companies use derivative instruments, such as swaps, options, futures and forwards, to manage· 
commodity and financial risks. Losses could be recognized as a result of volatility in the market values of these. 
contracts, if a counterparty fails to perform or if the underlying transactions, which the derivative instruments. are 
intended to hedge, fail to materialize .. In the absence of actively quoted market prices and pricing inform,ation from 
external. sources, the val~ation of these financial instruments· can involve management's judgment or the use .of: 
estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying assumptions or use ofalternative valuation methods could affect 
the reported fair value. of these contracts. 

Tax legislation and an inability to utilize tax credits could adversely impact the financial result~ and liquidity of .. 
the Evergy Companies. . . . 
Major tax legislation, known as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA), was signed into law ili December-2017. The 
TCJA significantly reforms the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (IRC), and is generalJy effective .. · 

. January 1, 2018. The TCJA contains significant changes to federal corporate income taxation, including reducing 
the federal corporate income tax.rate from 35% to21 %, limiting the deducti.on for net operating losses; eliminating 

. net operating loss carrybacks and eliminating the. use of bonus depreciation on new capital investments. The TCJA 
· reduced revenues and internally generated cash flows due to the reduced collection of taxes in customer prices, . 
which could adversely affect the financial results, liquidity and credit ratings of the Evergy Companies. There may 
be other _material adverse effects of the legislation, such as causing a reduction in deferred income tax as~ets, and.· 
th~ financial results and liquidity ofEvergy could be adversely affected by the TCJA . 

. Over the last several years, income tax obligations have been reduced due to the continued use of bonus · 
depreciation provisions that allow for an acceleration of deductions for tax purposes and IRS guidance on tax ' . 

· deductions for repairs. Although the TCJA expands bonus depreciation in general, it eliminates bonus depreciation 
forregulated utilities on new capital investments. The Evergy Companies regularly assess their future ability to 
utilize tax benefits, including those in the form of net operating loss, tax credit .and other tax carryforwards, that are . 
recorded as deferred income tax ass.ets on its balance sheets to determine whether a valuation allowance is 
necessary .. A reduction in, or disallowance of, these tax benefits resulting from a legislative change or adverse 
determination by a. taxing jurisdiction could have an adverse impact on the financial results and liquidity of the 
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Evergy Companies. Additionally, changes in corporate tax rates or policy changes, such as those resulting from the 

TCJA, as well as any inability to generate enough taxable income in the future to utilize all tax benefits before they 

expire, could have an adverse impact on the financial results and liquidity of the Evergy Companies. 

In addition, the Evergy Companies operate wind farms that generate production tax credits that reduce federal -

income tax obligations. The amount of production tax credits is dependent on the level of.electricity output 

generated by wind farms and the applicable tax credit rate. A variety of operating and economic parameters, 

including transmission constraints, adverse weather conditions and breakdown or failure of equipment, could 

significantly reduce the production tax credits generated by these wind farms, which could have an adverse impact 

on the financial results of the Evergy Companies. 

Customer and Weather-Related Risks: 

The results of operations, financial position and cash flows of Evergy can be materially affected by changes in 

customer electricity consumption. 
Change in customer behaviors in response to energy efficiency programs, changing conditions and preferences or 

changes in the adoption of technologies could affect the consumption of energy by customers. Federal and state _ 

programs exist to influence the way customers use energy and regulators have mandates to promote energy 

efficiency. Conservation programs and customers' level of participation in the programs could impact the financial 

results of the Evergy Companies in adverse ways. · 

Technological advances, energy efficiency and other energy conservation measures have_ reduced and will continue 

to reduce customer electricity consumption. The Evergy Companies generate electricity at central station power 

plants to achieve economies_ of scale and produce electricity at a competitive cost. Self-generation and distributed 

generation technologies, including microturbines, wind turbines, fuel cells and solar cells, as well as ~hose related to 

the storage of energy produced by these systems, have become competitive with the manner and price at which the 

Evergy Companies sell electricity. There is also a perception that generating ·or storing electricity through these 

technologies_is more environmentally friendly than generating electricity with fossil fuels. Increased adoption of 

these 'technologies could reduce electricity demand and the pool of customers from whom fixed costs are recovered, 

_restilting in under recovery of the fixed costs of the Evergy Companies. Increased self-generation and the related 

use of net energy metering, which allows self-generating customers to receive bill credits for surplus power, could 

put upward price pressure on remaining customers. If the Evergy Companies are unable to adjust prices to reflect 

reduced electricity demand and increased self-generation and net energy metering, their financial condition and 

results of operations could be adversely affected. 

Changes in customer electricity consumption due to sustained financial market disruptions, downturns or 

sluggishness in the economy or other factors may also adversely affect the results of operations, financial position 

and cash flows of the Evergy Companies. 

Weather is a major driver of the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companies 

and the Evergy Companies are subject to risks associated with climate change. 

Weather conditions directly influence the demand for electricity and natural gas and affect the price of energy 

commodities. The Evergy Companies are significantly impacted by seasonality, and, due to energy demand created 

by air conditioning load, highest revenues are typically recorded in the third qmnier. Unusually mild winter or 

summer weather can adversely affect sales. In addition, severe weather and events, including tomados, snow, fire, 

rain, flooding and ice storms, can be destructive, causing outages and property damage that can potentially-result in 

additional expenses, lower revenues and additional capital restoration costs. Storm reserves established by the 

Evergy Companies may be insufficient to cover these increased costs, and rates may not always be adjusted timely 

and adequately to reflect these increased costs. Additionally, because many of the Evergy Companies' generating 

stations utilize water for cooling, low water and flow levels -can increase maintenance costs at these stations, result 

in limited power production and require modifications to plant operations. High water conditions can also impair 

planned deliveries of fuel to generating stations operated by the Evergy Companies. Climate change may produce 

· more frequent or severe weather events, such as storms, droughts or floods and'could also impact the economic 
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health of Evergy's service territories. An 1nc:rease in the frequency or severity of extreme weather events or a 
deterioration in the economic health of Evergy's service territories could have a ·material adverse effect on the 
results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companie.s. · 

In addition, political, legal and regulatory efforts to influence climate change, such as efforts to reduce GHG 
emissions, impose a tax on emissions and create incentives for low-carbon generation and energy efficiency, could 
result in reduced sales and require significant costs to respond to such efforts. These efforts could also result in the 
early retirement of generation facilities, which could result in stranded costs if regulators disallow full recovery of . 
investments that were prudent when originally made. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect the results of 
operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy Companies.· · 

Operational Risks: 

Operational risks may adversely affect the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy 
Con,panies. · . . · · · .. · · 
The operation of electric generation, transmission, distribution and information systems involves many risks, 
including breakdown or failure of equipment; aging infrastructure; operator error or contractor or subcontractor 
failure; problems that delay or increase the cost of returning facilities to service after outages; limitations that may 
be imposed by equipment conditions or environmental, safety or other regulatory requirements; fuel supply or fuel 
tran~portation reductions or interruptions; labor disputes; difficulties with the implementation or ope~ation of . 
information systems; transmission scheduling constraints; and catastrophic events such as fires, floods, droughts, . 
explosions, terrorism, severe weather or other similar occurrences. Many of the Evergy Companies' generation, 
transmission and distribution resources are aged, which increases the risk of unplanned outages, reduc~d generation 
output and higher mainte:o.ance expense. Any equipment or system outage or constraint can, among other things, 
reduc.e sales,.increase costs and affect the ability to meet regulatory service metrics, customer expectations and 
regulatory reliability and security r.equirements. 

The Evergy Companies have _generai liability and propei:ty insurance to cover a porti~n of their facilities, but suc.h 
policies do not cover transmission or distribution systems, are subject to .certain limits and deductibles and do not 
include· business interruption coverage .. Insurance coverage may not be available in the future at reasonable costs or 
on commercially reasonable terms, and the insurance proceeds received for any loss of; or any damage to, any . 
facilities may not be sufficient to restore the loss· or damage. 

These a11d other ·ope~ating events may reduce revenues or increase cost~, or both, and may materially affect the 
results .of operations, finan~ial position and. cash flows of the Evergy Companies. 

Physical and cyberse.curity breac;hes, cri"!inal activity~ terrorist attacks and other disruptions to facilities or 
information technology infrastructure could interfere with operations, expose the Evergy Companies or their 
customers or employees to a risk of loss, expose the Evergy :Companies.to legal or regulatory liability and cause 
reputationafand other harm. · · · 
The Evergy Companies rely upon information technology networks and systems to process, transmit and store 
electronic information, and to manage or support a variety of business processes and activities, including the 
generation, transmission and distribution of electricity, supply chain functions and the invoicing and c~llection of 
payments from customers. Th~ Evergy Companies also use information technology networks and systems to· · 
record, process and summ8:rize financial information and results of operations for· internal reporting purposes and to 
comply with financial reporting, legal and tax requirements. These networks and systems are in some cases owned 
or managed by third-party servke providers. In the ordinary course of b.usiness, the Evergy Companies collect, 
store and transmit sensitive data including operating information, proprietary business information and personal 
information belonging to ~ustomers and employees. · · · · 

The Evergy Companies' information technology networks and infrastructure, as weli as the networks and 
infrastructure belonging to third-party service providers that the. Evergy Companies utilize, may be vulnerable to 
damage, disruptions or shutdowns due to attacks or breaches by hackers or other unauthorized third parties; error or • • • 

• J 
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malfeasance by one or more employees or service providers; software or hardware upgrades; additions or 

replacements; malicious software code; telecommunication failures; natural disasters or other catastrophic events .. 

The occurrence of any of these events could, among other things, impact the reliability or safety of the Evergy 

Companies' generation, trans1Tiission and distribution systems; res~lt in the erasure of data or render the Evergy 

Companies' equipment, or the equipment of third-party service providers, unusable; impact the Evergy Companies' 

ability to conduct business in the ordinary course; reduce sales; expo_se the Evergy Companies and their cust01ners, 

employees and vendors to a risk ofloss or misuse of information; and result in legal claims or proceedings, liability 

or regulatory penalties, damage _the Evergy Companies' reputation or otherwise harm their business. The Evergy 

Companies can p'rovide no assurance that they will identify and remedy all security or system vulnerabilities or. that 

unauthorized access or error will be identified and remedied. 

The Evergy .Companies are subject to laws and rules issued by multiple government agencies concerning 

safeguarding and maintaining the confidentiality of their security, customer and business information. For.example, 

NERC has issued comprehensive regulations and standards surrounding the security of bulk power systems and is 

continually in the process of developi_ng updated and new requirements with which the utility industry must comply. 

The NRC als_o has issue.d regulations and standards related to the protection of critical digital assets at nuclear · 

power plants. · Compliance with NERC and NRC rules and standards, and rules and standards promulgated by other 

regulatory agencies from time to time or future legislation, will increase the Evergy Companies' compliance costs 

and their exposure to the potential risk -of violations of these rules, standards or future legislation, which includes 

potential financial penalties. Furthermore, the non-compliance of other utilities with applicable regulations _or th~ 

occurrence of a serious security event at other utilities could result in increased regulation or oversight; both of 

which could increase the Evergy Companies' costs and impact their financial results. 

Additionally, the Evergy Companies cannot predict the impact that any future information technology or terrorist 

attack may have on the energy industry in general. The electric utility industry, both within the United States and· 

internationally, has experienced physical and cybersecurity attacks on energy infrastructure such as power plants, 

substations and related assets in the past, and there will likely be more attacks in the future. The Evergy Companies' 

facilities could be direct targets or indirect casualties of such attacks. The effects of such attacks could include 

disruption to the Evergy Companies' generation, transmission and distribution systems or to the electrical grid in 

general,: reduced sales and could increase the cost of insurance coverage or result in a ·decline in the U.S. economy. 

Any ofthe foregoing could have a material adverse impact on the Evergy Companies' operations or. financial 
results. · 

. . 
The cost and schedule of capital projects may materially change and expected performance may not be achieved. 

The Evergy Companies' business is capital intensive and regularly includes significant construction projects.· The 

risks of any capital project include: actual costs may exceed estimated costs; regulators may disallow, limit or delay 

the recovery of all or part of the cost of, or a return on, a capital project; risks associated with.the capital and credit . 

. markets to fund projects; delays in receiving, or failure to receive, necessary permits, approvals and other regulatory · 

authorizations; unforeseen engineering problems or changes in project design or scope; the failure of suppliers and 

contractors to perform as required under their contracts; inadequate availability or increased cost of labor or . 

materials, including·commodities such as steel, copper and alumimim that may be subject to uncerj:ain or increased 

tariffs; inclement weather; new or changed laws, regulation_s and requirements, including environmental and health 

and safety laws, regulations and requirements; and other ev~nts beyond the Evergy Companies' control may o~cur . 

that may materially affect the schedule, cost and performance of these projects. 

These and other risks could cause the Evergy Companies to defer or limit capital expenditures, materially ii1crease - ·• 

the costs of capital projects, delay the in-service dates of projects, adversely affect the performance of the projects 

and require the purchase of electricity on the wholesale market, at potentially more expensive prices; until the 

projects are completed. Thus, these risks may significantly affect the Evergy Companies' results of operations, 

financial position and cash flows. 
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. - Failure of one or more generation plant co-owners to pay their share of construction or operations and 
maintenance costs could in~rease the Evergy Companies' costs and capital requirements. 
The Evergy Companies are co-owµers of several large generation piants. See Item 2. Properties, for additional 
information. Failure by any other co-owner to pay its proportionate share. of capital and other costs cou!d materially 
increase the Evergy Companies' share of the costs. Disputes may also arise between co~owners regarding operation 
ofa plant or the sharing of expenses, which could result in legal expenses and damages and adversely impact the 
Evergy Companies' financial results. 

. ' 

The Evergy · Companfes are exposed to risks associated with· the ownership and operation of a nuclear generating 
unit, .;,hich could adversely impact the Evergy Companies' business and financial results. 
Evergy. indirectly owns· 94 ~ of Wolf Creek, with Westar Energy and KCP &L each· owning 4 7% of the nuclear 
plant. The NRC has broad authority under federal law to impose licensing and safety-related requirements for the · 
operation of nuclear generation facilities, including-Wolf Creek. In the event of non-compliance, the NRC has the 
authority to impose fines, shut down the facilities, or both, depending upon its assessment of the severity of the · 
situation, until compliance is achieved. Additionally, the non-compliance of other nuclear facility operators with 
applicable regulations or the occurrence of a serious.nuclear incide11t anywhere in the world could result in 
incre~sed regulation of the nuclear industry. Sµch events could increase Wolf Creek's costs. and impact the_ financial 
results of the Evergy Companies or result in a shutdown of Wolf Creek. 

An yxtended outage of Wolf Creek, whether resulting from NRC ~ction, an incident at the plant or otherwise, ,could 
have a m~terial adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Evergy 
Companies in the event replacement power and other costs are not recovered through rates or insurance. If a long-· 
term outage occurred, the state regulatory commissions could reduce rates by excluding the Wolf Creek investment 
from rate base. Wolf Creek was constructed prior to 1986 and the age of Wolf Creek increases the risk of unplanned 
outag.es and res~lts in higher maintenance costs. ' 

On an annµal basis, Westar Energy and KCP&L are required to contribute money to tax-qualified trusts that were 
esta]?Eshed to pay for decommissioning costs at the end of the unit's life. The amount of contributions varies 
depending on .estimates of decommissioning expe11ses and projected return on ·trust assets. If the actual return on 
trusta:Ssets is below the projected level or actual decommissioning costs are higher than estimated, Westar Energy 
and KCP&L could be responsible for the balance of funds required and may not be ~llowed to recover the balance 
through rates. · 

. . 
' . 

The Evergy Companies are also exposed to other risks associated with the ownership and op~ration of a nuclear 
generating unit, including, but not limited to, (i) potential liability associated with the potential harmful effects on 
the environment and human health resulting from the operation of a nuclear generating unit, (ii) the storage, 
handling, disposal and potential release (by accident, through third-p!_trty actions or otherwise) ofradioactive 
materials and (iii) uncertainties with respect to contingencies and assessments if insurance coverage is · 
inadequate. Under the structure for insurance among owners of nuclear generating units, Westar Energy and 
KCP&L are also liable for potential retrospective premium assessments (subje~t to a cap) per incident at any 
commercial reactor in the country and losses in excess o:( i~surance coverage. 

In addition, WolfCreek is reliant on a sole supplier for fuel and related services. The supplier has in the past been 
the subje~t of Chapter 11 reorganiz~tion proceedings, and an extended outage of Wolf Creek could occurif the 
supplier is nQt able to perform under its contracts with Wolf Creek. Switching to another supplier could take an 
extended amount of time and would require NRC approval. An extended outage at Wolf Creek could affect the 
amount of Wolf Creek investment included in customer rates and could have a material impact on the Evergy 
Companies' financial results .. 

Th"e structure of the regional power market in which the Evergy Companies operate could have an adverse effect 
on their 'results of operations, financial position and cash flows. . ' 
Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO are members of the SPP regional transmission organization, and each has 

. transferred operational authority (but not ownership) of their transmission facilities to the SPP. The SPP's Integrated 
Marketplace determines which generating units among market participants should run, within the operating 
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constraints of a unit, at any given time for maximum cost-effectiveness. · In the event that Westar Energy's, . 

KCP&L's or GMO's generating units are not aiµong the lowest cost generating units operating within the market, 

each could experience decreased levels of wholesale electricity sales. 

A market for Transmission Congestion Rights (TCR) is also included as part of the Integrated Marketplace. TCRs 

are financial instruments used to hedge transmission congestion charges. Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO acquire 

TCRs for the purpose of hedging against transmission congestion charges. There is a risk that the entities could 

incorrectly model the amc;mnt ofTCRs needed; or that theTCRs acquired could be ineffective in hedging against 

transmission congestion charges, either ofwhich·could lead to increased purchased power costs. 

The rules governing the various regional power markets, including the SPP, may change froni time to time and such 

changes could impact the costs and revenues of the Evergy Companies. 

Litigation Risks: 

The outcome of legal proceedings cannot be predicted. An adverse finding could have a material adverse effect 

on the Evergy Companies' results of operations, financiaf position and cash flows. 

The Evergy Companies are parties to various lawsuits and regulatory proceedings in the ordinary course of thei_r 

respective businesses. The outcome of these matters cannot be detennined, nor, in many cases, can the liability that 

could potentially result from each case be reasonably estimated. The liability that the Evergy Companies may incur . 

with respect to any of these cases may be in excess of amounts currently reserved and insured against with respect 

. to such matters and could adversely impact the financial results for the Evergy Companies. , 

Risks Rela~ed to the Merger: 

The anticipated benefits of the merger may not be realized. 
The Evergy Companies have incurred, and expect tq incur additional, significant costs associated with combining 

the operations of Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy. Additional unanticipated costs may' also be incurred in 

the integration of the businesses of Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy. The Evergy Companies expect the 

merger to produce various benefits, including, among other things, operating efficiencies and cost savings. 

However, achieving the anticipated benefits is subject to a number of uncertainties, including: 

the ability to efficiently and effectively combine operations of the merged companies; 

general market and economic conditions; 
. ' . ' . 

general competitive factors in the marketplace; and 

higher than expected costs required to achieve the anticipated benefits of the merger. 

No assurance can be given that these benefits will be achieved or, if achieved, the timing of their achievement. 

· Integration costs could have a material adverse impact on the results of the Evergy Companies; an,d a failure to 

achieve the anticipated benefas of the merger could impair Evergy's ability to repurchase shares and its ability to 

grow its earnings and dividend. In addition, the Evergy Companies may encounter difficulties in integrating the 

operations of the companies, including inconsistencies in standards, systems and controls, and man~gement's focus 

and resources may be diverted from ordinary business activities and opportunities in order to focus on integration 

efforts. Any of the foregoing could have a mat~rial adverse effect on the Evergy Companies. 

The price of Evergy common stock may experience volatility. 
The price ofEvergy common stock may be volatile. Some of the factors that could affect the price of Evergy 

common stock are quarterly increases or decreases in revenue or earnings, changes in revenue or earnings estimates 

by the investment community, the ability of the Evergy Companies to implement their-integration strategy and to 

realize the; expected synergies and other benefits from the merger, the ability of Evergy to implement its share 

repurchase program and speculation in the press or investment community about the Evergy Companies' financial 

condition or results of operations. General market conditions and U.S. economic factors and political events 
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. unrelated to the performance of the Evergy may also affect Evergy's stock price. For these reasons, shareholders 
· should not rely on historical trends ·in the price of Great Plains Energy or Westar Energy common stock to predict 
the price ofEvergy's common stock or its financial results: · 

Capital, credit market conditi.f_ms or future legislation may adversely impact Evergy 's share repurchase program . 
. ,Evergy expects to repurchase a significant number of shares over the next several years using a combination of 

existjng cash on the balance sheet, internally generated cash, proceeds from capital markets activities and short-term 
debt. Disruptions in capital and credit markets, negative credit rating actions and volatility in the market price of 
Evergy's common stock may make c~pital more difficult and costlier to obtain, may restrict liquidity and may 
adversely impact the ability to execute the share repurchase program in a timely or cost-:effective manner. Ev~rgy's 
ability to execute its share repurchase program could also be adversely impacted by the passage of federal· ' 
legislation 'prohibiting ot significantly restricting the ability of companies to repurchase shares of their own st9ck. ·.' 

Evergy has recorded goodwill that could become impaired and adversely affect financial results. 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), Evergy recorded a significant amount of goodwill 

· on its balance sheet in connection with completion of the merger. Evergy assesses goodwill for impairment on an 
annual basis or whenever events or circumstances occur that would indicate a potential for impairment. If goodwill 
is deemed to be impaired, Evergy may be required to incur material non-cash charges ·that could materially 
adversely affect its results of operations. 

ITEM l6. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Generation Resources 

S,tation Unit No. 

Western Plains 

Ironwood 

Cedar Bluff 

Ninnescah 

Kingman2 

Hutch Solar 

Spearville I 

Spearville 3 

Ensign 

Slate Creek 

Osborn 

· CNPPID (NE) -
Hydro 

~(; ?i,'.'y, : ' /\:. 
1··:st}oseph Landfill. 

Nuclear: 

Coal: 

Steam Turbines 1-3 (b )(i) 

Location 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Missouri 

Nebraska 

Year 
Completed 

2017 

2012 

2015 

2016 

2016 

2017 

2006 

2012 

2012 

2015 

2016 

1941 

2012 

1978, 1980 
&1983 

Fuel 

Wind 

Wind 

Wind 

Wind 

Wind 

Solar 

Wind 

Wind 

Wind 

Wind 

Wind 

Hydro 

: t Landfin • 
·H Glci . 

Coal 

23 

Unit Capability (MW) By Owner<•l 

Westar 
Energy KCP&L GMO 

281 

IOI 

,p:, 

2,012 175 

Total 
Company 

Generation 

99 

281 

101 

2,187 

Renewable 
Purchased 

Power 

168 (e) 

. 199 (e) 

208 (e) 

103 (e) 

101 (f) 

99 (g) 

150 (f) 

201 (h) 

66 (f) 

Total 
Generation 

and 
Renewable 
Purchased 

Power 

99 

281 

168 

199 

208 

103 

101 

101 

99 

150 

201 

66 

:·]/
11:f:,til 

2,187 
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Steam Turbines 

Steam Turbines 

Steam Turbines 

Emporia Energy 
Center 

Gordon Evans 
Energy Center 

Hutchinson Energy 
Center 

Combustion 
Turbines. 

Combined Cycle 

West Gardner 

Osawatomie 

4&5 

I & 2 (b)(c) 

I & 2 (b) 

4 

1-4 

2-1, 
2-2 & 
2-3 (b) 

6/9 

Year 

1960, 1971 

1973, 1977 

1980,2010 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Kansas 

1975. 

2001 

2001 

2000 

Kansas 

Kansas 

Coal 

Coal 

Coal 

Oil 

Natural 
Gas 

Natural 
Gas · 

Natural 
Gas 

24 

Westar 

484 

699 

70 

273 

196 

Unit Capability (MW) By Owner<•) 

699 

~72 285 

235 

484 

1,398 

1,257 

70 

273 

196 

235 

Renewable 
Purchased 

Total 
Generation 

and 
Renewable 
Purchased 

484 

1,398 

1,257 

70 

273 

196 

235 



\ 

Station 

Ralph Green 

Nevada 

Black Start Unit 

Combustion 
Turbines 

Combustion · 
. Turbines 

Combustion 
Turbines 

· Unit No. Location 

Missouri 

Missouri 

1 - 3 

1 - 4 

1-4 

Yeai: 
Completed Fuel 

1985 Oil 

· · Natural 
2005 Gas 

1975 - Natural 
1979 Gas 

. 2002 
Natural 

Gas 

Unit Capability (MW) By Owner<•) 

Westar 
Energy KCP&L GMp 

2 

303 

242 

292 

: 5,8:fi:: 

Total 
Company 

Generation · 

2 

303 

242 

292 

Renewable 
Purchased -

Power 

Total 
Generation 

and 
Renewable 
Purchased 
. Power· 

2 

303 

242 

292 

. I 

<•) Capability ( except for wind generating facil~ties) represents accredited net generating capacity approved by the SPP. Capability for wind 

generating facilities represents the nameplate capacity. Due to the intermittent nature of wind generation, these facilities are associated 

with~ total of 1,301MW of accredited generating capacity. · 
(b) Share of a jointly owned unit. . 
Cc) In 1987, KGE entered into a sale-leaseback transaction involving its 50% interest fu. the La Cygne Unit 2. Evergy and Westar Energy 

· consolidate the leasing entity as a variable interest entity (VIE). See Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements for more infomiation. 

(d) In 2001, a new boiler, air quality control equipment and an uprated turbine was placed in service at the Hawthorn Generating SJation. · 

(e) Westar Energy renewable purchased power agreement. · · 

(f) KCP &L renewable purchased ·power agreement. 
(g) GMO renewable purchased power agreement. 
(h) KCP&L and GMO renewable purchased power agreement. 
Ci) Westar Energy leases 8% of the Jeffrey Energy Center. Unit capacity amounts reflect both owned and leased percentages. 
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Transmission and Distribution Resources 
Evergy's electric transmission system interconnects with systems of other utilities for reliability and to permit 
wholesale transactions with other.electricity suppliers. Evergy ·has·approxim~tely 13,700 circuit miles of · · 
transmission lines, 39,100 circuit miles of overhead distribution Fnes arid 12,soo circuit miles of underground 
distribution lines in Missouri and Kansas. Evergy has all material franchise rights necessary to sell electricity 
within its retail service. territory. Evergy's transmission and distribution systems are routinely monitored for 
adequacy to meet customer needs·. Management believes the current syst~ms are. adequate to serve customers. -· 

' General 
Evergy's generating plants are located on property owned ( or co-owned) by the Evergy Companies, except for _ 
certain' fadlities tiiat are located ori: ease'rnents or are contractually contr61fed:. Eveigy's servfoe· centers·; electric: '' ' 
substations and a portion of its transmission and distribution systems are located on property owned or leased.by 
Evergy. Evergy's transmission and distribution systems ;ire for the m·ost part locateq above or.wdemeath highways, 
streets, other public places· or property owned by others.· Evergy believes that .it has satisfactory rights to use th6se · 
places or properties in the form ofpermits, grants, easements, licenses or franchise rights; however, it has not 
necessarily undertaken efforts to examine the underlying title to the land upon which the rights rest. Evergy's 

· headquarters are located in leased office spi,ice. · · 

· Supstantially all of the fixed property and franchises of the Evergy Ccimpanies, which ~bn;ist priiicip'ally of electric 
generating stations, electric transmission and distribution lines and systems, and buildings (subject to·exceptions, 
reservations and.releases), are subject to mortgage indentures pursuant to which bonds have b~en issued and are 
outstanding. See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for more information. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Other Proceedings 
The Evergy Companies are parties to various lawsuits and regulatory proceedings-in the ordinary course of their 
respective businesses. For information regarding material l~wsuits and proceedings, see Notes 2, 5 and 14 to the 
consolidated finan9ial statements. Such information is incorpor~ted herein by reference. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 

Not applicable. 
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PARTH 

ITEM 5. M,ARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

. EVERGY, INC. _ 
Evergy's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "EVRG." At February 15, 
2019, Evergy's common stock was held by 24,165 shareholders <;>frecord. 

Performance Graph . . . . . . . 
The following graph compares the performance ofEvergy's common stock during the period that began on June 5, 
2018 (the first day that Evergy's common stock traded), and ended on December 31, 2018, to the performance of the 

Stand~d & Poor's 500 Index (S&P 500) and the Standard & Po~r's Electric Utility Index (S&P 500 Electric 
·Utilities). The graph assumes a $100 investment in Evergy's common stock and in each of the indices at the 
beginning of the period and a reinvestment of dividends paid on such inv~stments throughout the period. 

· $i05 

$100 

'$95 

$90 

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN 
Based on anJn:itial inve$tment of $100 on June 5, '2018 with dividends 

reinvested 

06/05/18 12/Jl/l 8 

~ Evergy; Inc, · ~ S&P 500-Index --.- .S&P 500 Electric Utilities 
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Purchases ·of Equity Securities / 
The following table provides information regarding purchases by Evergy of its equity securities that are registered 
pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as am.ended (Exchange Act), during the three ~onths -
ended December 31, 2018. · 

Month· 

Total 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 

Total Number of 
Shares (or Units) 

Purchased<aJ 

9,473,477 

Average Price 
Paid per Share 

(or Unit) 

Total Nuniber of 
Shares (or Units) 
· Purchased as 
Part of Publicly 

Announced Plans 
or Programs . 

9,473,290 

Maximum 
Number of 

Shares ( or Units) 
that May Yet Be 

Purchased Under 
the Plans or 
Programs<aJ 

43,631,637 

(a) In July 2018, the Evergy Board of Directors (Evergy Board) authorized the repurchase ofup to 60 million shares ofEvergy's common 
stock with no expiration date. Evergy expects to repurchase the 60 million shares by mid-2020. See ·Note 17 to the consolidated financial 
statements {or additional information on Evergy's common stock repurchase program. 

(b)InAugust 2018, Evergy entered into two accelerated share repurchase (ASR) agreements to purchase $450 .. 0 million ofEvergy common 
stock. In October 2018, one of the ASR agreements was settled early at the option of the financial institution, which resulted in the 
delivery of 848,226 additional shares of Evergy common stock at no additional cost. In total, 3,981,930 shares were delivered under this 
ASR at an average price paid per share of $56.51. In addition, Evergy repurchased 492,957 shares of common stock in the open market at 
an average price of$55.97. · _ 

(c) In Nov~mber 2018, the final August 2018 ASR agreement was settled, which resulted in the delivery of 816,405 additional share~ of· 
Evergy common stock at no additional cost. .In total, 3,950,109 shares were delivered under this ASR at an average price paid per share of 
$56.96. In addition, Evergy repurchased 412,534 shares of common stock in the open market at an average price of $58.16. 

(d)In November 201~, Evergy entered into a new ASR agreement to purchase $475.0 million ofEvergy common stock and through which 
6,400,539 shares were delivered in December 2018. The final number of shares ofEvergy common stock that will ultimately be delivered 
to Evergy, and therefore the average price paid per share, will be determined at the final settlement_ of the ASR by March 2019 or earlier at 
the option of the financial institution. In addition, Evergy repurchased 502,629 shares of common stock in the open market at an average 
price of $58.94. Evergy also purchased 187 shares for withholding taxes for restricted stock vesting at an average price of $56.45. 

Dividend Restrictions 
For information regarding dividend restrictions, see Note 17 to the consolidated. financial statements. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Year Ended December 31 2017 2016 2015 2014 

Evergy (dollars in millions except per share amounts) 
... ,.,,"""" ___ ,,, __ ,, ____ ,_--_,--_-_''_" _-_"' _-=_ :/2,57l _ ~$ i,562 "', $ _ i,459'·- ~ ::: _2,uqij 

Net income $ 546 $ 337 $ 361 $ 302 $ 322 
---"'-~------- --,-------7"·---~-------,--------,------~-------------.----.....----

$ 

Basic earnings per common share $ 2.50 $ 2.27 $ $ 2.11 $ 2.40 

foi1µt;2t ~arµingipe~ foni~bn sha~~ . 
t, ... _ ,.,i,"~v" ~.,,,.'. . .S,,., -"--~,,;,,.,',',>',-,,,-..:; • .;'~ •. " • .;/;,-,,,_,A,,~" .'/J 

Total -assets at year end $ 25;598 $ 11,624 $ 11,487 $ 10,706 $ 10,289 

[!_oi~llongtterin.61:,ligationSatyearend\b) __ ·::··· _-_,,,, r ·'_,;'$·_ 7,47~,-- '$ ::¥~·: _.·'s;·-,_ 3,p99.-. $ __ 3;~79::::}2:.3,4:h; 
Cash dividends per common share $ 1.735 $ 1.60 $ J.52 $ 1.44 $ 1.40. 

f ' , -·- . 
!WestarEriergy · . _ . ._ _; . 
L , --- , ' ------------- - ---- -- , '----~----- • -- '-- , • -----· - ,' • ---·. --- ------ ------· ·-·-·-----·----~·-·-·=·-----~----------~---·---- -----~----· ... A., 

Operating revenues 

Total assets at year end 8,121 $ 8,124 8,058 $ 7,815 $ 7,495 

lioiaiiong~te~obligatio~s at yeai; ·6~dJb) ·.- 2;s32_·;: :$ t2,5s2 f 2,s65 --- }$ ,i;s63t,> $ :i<:2,2~a) 

<•) On June 4, 2018, Evergy completed the mergers contemplated by the Amended Merger Agreement. The results of Great Plains Energy's 
· direct subsidiaries have been included in Evergy's results from the date of the closing of the merger and thereafter. KCP&L-amounts are 

not included in consolidated Evergy for 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 .. 
(b)Includes long-term debt, current maturities of long-term debt, capital leases, long-term debt ofVIEs and current maturities of long-term debt 

·ofVIEs. · · 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

EVERGY, INC. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Evergy, Inc. is a public utility holding company incorporated in 2017 and headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri. 

Evergy operates primarily.through the following wholly~owned direct subsidiaries: 

• Westar Energy is an integrated, regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers in the state of 
Kansas. Westar Energy has one active wholly-owned subsidiary with significant operations, KGE. 

• KCP&L is an integrated, regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers in the states of 
Missouri and Kansas. 

• GMO is an integrated, regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers in the state of 
Missouri. 

• GPETHC owns 13.5% ofTransource with the remaining 86.5% owned by AEP Transmission Holding 

Company, LLC, a subsidiary of AEP. Transource is focused on the development of competitive electric 
transmission projects. GPETHC accounts for its investment in Transource under the equity method. 

29 



Westar Energy also owns a 50% interest in Prairie Wind, which is a joint venture between Westar Energy and 
affiliates of AEP and Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company. Prairie Wind owns a 108-mile, 345 kV double-circuit 
transmission line that provides transmission service in the SPP. Westar Energy accounts for its investment in Prairie 
Wind under the equity method. 

Westar Energy and KGE conduct business in their respective service territories using the name Westar Energy. 
KCP&L and GMO conduct business in their respective service territories using the name KCP&L. Collectively, the 
Evergy Companies have approximately 14,500 MWs of owned generating capacity and renewable purchased power 
agreements and engage in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity to approximately 1.6 
million c~stomers in the states of Kan·sas and Missouri. The Evergy Companies assess financial performance and. 
allocate resources on a consolidated basis (i.e., operate in one segment); . 

Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy Merger 
Evergy was incorporated in 2017 as Monarch Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy. Prior to 
the closing of the merger transactions, Monarch Energy changed its name to Evergy and did not conduct any 
business activities other than those required for its formation and matters contemplated by the Amended Merger 
Agreement. On June 4, 2018, in accordance with the Amended Merger Agreement, Great Plains Energy merged 
into Evergy, with Evergy surviving the merger and King Energy merged into Westar Energy, with Westar Energy 
surviving the merger. These merger transactions resulted in Evergy becoming the parent .entity of Westar Energy 
and the direct subsidiaries of Great Plains Energy, includingKCP&L and GMO. As a result of the closing of the 
merger transactions, each outstanding share of Great Plains Energy common stock was converted into 0.5981 shares 
ofEvergy common stock, resulting in the issµance of 128.9 million shares. Additionally, each outstanding share of 
Westar Energy common stock was converted into '1 share of Evergy common stock 

Westar Energy was determined to be the accounting acquirer and thus, the predecessor of Evergy. Therefore, 
Evergy's accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the results of operations of Westar Energy for 2017 
and 2016 and the financial position of Westar Energy as of December 31, 2017. Evergy had separate operations for 
the period beginning with the quarter ended June 30, 2018, and references to amounts for periods after the closing 
of the merger relate to Evergy. The results of Great Plains. Energy's direct subsidiari~s have been included in 
Evergy's results of operations from the date of the closing of the merger and thereafter. 

KCP&L has elected not to apply "push-down accounting" related to the merger, whereby the adjustments of assets 
and liabilities to fair value and the resulting goodwill would be recorded on the financial statements of the acquired 
subsidiary. These adjustments for KCP&L, as well as those related to the acquired assets and liabilities of Great 
Plains Energy and its other direct subsidiaries, are orily reflected on Evergy's consolidated financial statements. 

See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for more information regarding the merger. 

Comnion Stock Repurchase Program 
In July 2018, the Evergy Board authorized the repurchase ofup to 60 million shares ofEvergy's common stock. 
Although this repurchase authorization has no expiration date, Evergy expects to repurchase approximately 60 
million shares by mid-2020. Evergy plans to utilize various methods to effectuate the share repurchase program, 
including but not limited to, a series of transactions that may include AS Rs, open market transactions or other 
means, subject to market conditions and applicable legal requirements. The repurchase program may be suspended, 
discontinued or resumed at any time. For 2018, Evergy had total repurchases of common stock of approximately 
$1,042 million and h.ad repurchased 16.4 million shares under the repurchase program. These repurchase totals 
include shares repurchased under ASR agreements, one of which had not reached final settlement as of December 
31, 2018, and are discussed further below. 

In August 2018, Evergy entered into two ASR agreements with financial institutions to purchase $450.0 million of 
Evergy common stock. The ASR agreements reached final settlement in the fourth quarter of 2018 and resulted in 
the delivery of 7 .9 million shares to Evergy based on the average daily volume weighted-average price of Evergy 
common stock (luring the term of the ASR agreements1 less a negotiated discount. 
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fo November 2018, Evergy entered into anASR agreement with a financial institution to purchase $475.0 million of 
· Evergy common stock. In December 2018, the financial institution delivered to Evergy 6.4 million shares of 
- common stock, representing a partial settlement of the contract, based.on then-current market prices and Evergy 
paid a total of$475.0 million. The final number of shares ofEvergy common stock that Evergy may receive orbe 
required to remit upon settlement of the ASR agreement will be based on the average daily volume weighted-. . 
average price of Evergy common stock during the term of the ASR agreement, less a negotiated discount. · Final 
settlement of the ASR agreement will occur by March 2019, but may occur earlier at the option of the financial 
institution. Evergy expects that the final settlement of the ASRagreement will result in the delivery of additional 
shares of common stock to Evergy at no additional cost._ · 

See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for'moreinformation regarding Evergy's common stock 
repurchase prngram. 

Missouri Legislation . . . . 
On June 1, 2018, Missouri Senate Bill (S.B.) 564 was signed into law by the Governor of Missouri. Most notably, 
S.B. 564 tncludes a PISA provision that can be elected by Missouri electric utilities to defer to a regulatory asset and 
recover 85% of depreciation expense and associated return on investment-for qualifying electric plant rate base 
additions. Qualifying electric plant includes all rate base additions with the exception of new coal, nuclear or 
natural gas generating units or rate base additions that in~rease revenue~ by allowing service to new customer 
premises. The deferred depreciation and return recorded in the associated regulatory asset, except for any prudence 
disallowances, is required to .be included in determining the utility's rate base during subsequent general rate 
proceedings subject to a 3% compound annual growth rate limitation on future electric rates compared with the 
utility's rates in effect prior to electing PISA. Utilities that elect the PISA provision can make qualifying deferrals 
of depreciation and return through December 2023, with a potential extension through Decemb~r 2028 subject to 
MPSC approval. Except under certain circumstances, utilities that elect the PISA provision must keep base rates 
constant for three years following the utilities' last general rate cas.e. KCP&L and GMO have elected the PISA 
provision of S.B. 564 effective as of January 1, 2019. 

Regulatory Proceedings 
See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding regulatory proceedings. 

Plant Retirements 
In 2017, Westar Energy announced plans to rejire Unit 7 at Tecumseh Energy Center, Units 3.· and 4 at Murray Gill 
Energy Center and Unit~ 1. and 2 at Gordon Evans Energy Center, subject to the completion of the merger in 2018. 
In 2017, KCP&L and GMO also announced plans to retire KCP&L's Montrose Station and GMO's Sibley Station. 

In the fourth quarter of 2018, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO retired these stations consistent with their 
previously announced plans. 

Strategy _ 
Evergy expects to continue operating its vertically integrated utilities wit~in the currently existing regulatory 
frameworks. Evergy's objectives are to deliver value to shareholders through earnings and dividend growth; serve 
customers and communities with reliable service, clean energy and fewer and lower rate increases; and maintain a 
rewarding and challenging work environment for employees. Significant elements ofEvergy's strategy to achieve 
these objectives include: · 

the realization of a total of approximately$550 million of potential net savings from 2018 through 2022 
resulting from synergies that are expected to be created as a result of the merger; 

the repurchase of approximately 60 million outstanding shares ofEvergy common stock by mid-2020; 

anticipated rate base investment of approximately $6 billion from 2018 through 2022; 

the continued growth ofEvergy's renewable energy portfolio as the Evergy Companies retire older and less 
efficient fossil fuel ·plants; and 
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. . implementation of the rate orders received by the KCC and MPSC in 2018 . 

See "Cautionary Statements Regarding Certain Forward-Looking Information" and Part I, Item lA, Risk Factors, 
for additional information. 

Earnings Overview 
The following·table summarizes Evergy's net income and diluted earnings per common share (EP.S). 

2018 2017 Change 

(millions, except per share amounts) 

Net income and diluted BPS increased i:Q 2018 compared to 2017, primatjly due to the inclusion ofKCP&L's and· 
GMO's earnings beginning in June 2018, higher Westar Energy retail sales driven byfavorable weatp.er and lower 
income tax expense, partially offset by m,erger-related costs and reductions of revenue for customer bill credits 
incurred following the close of the merger. 

In addition, a higher number of diluted weighted average common shares outstanding due .to the issuance of 
common shares to Great Plains Energy shareholders as a result of the merger diluted earnings per share $1.26 for 
2018. 

For additional infonnation regarding the change in net income, refer tq the Evergy Results of Operations section 
within this MD&A. · 

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards 
See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding the impact ofrecently issued 
accounting standards. · 

Wolf Creek Refueling Outage 
Wolf Creek's most recent refueling outage began in March 2018 and the unit returned to service in May 2018 .. Wolf 
<;:reek's next r_efueling outage is plam1ed to begin in the third quarter of 2019. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

s·ee ~ote 14 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding environmental matters. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

See Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding related party transactions. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES-AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of _financial statements in co,nformit)'. with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Management considers an accounting estimate to 
be critical if it requires assumptions to be made that were .uncertain at the time the estimate was made and changes 
in the estimate or different estimates that could have been used could have a material impact on Evergy's results of 
operations and financial position. Management has identified the following accounting policies as criticalto the 
understanding ofEvergy's results of operations and financial position. Management has discussed the development 
and selection of these critical accounting policies with the Audit Committee of the Evergy Board. 
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Pensions 
Evergy incurs significant costs in providing non~contributory defined pension benefits. The costs are measured 
using'actuarial valuations that are dependent upon numerous factors derived from actual plan experience and 
assumptions of future plan experience. 

Pension costs are impacted by actual employee demographics (including age, life expectancies, compensation levels 
and employment periods), earnings on plan assets, the level of contributions made to the plan, and plan 
amendments. In addition,.pension costs are also affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions, including 
anticipated rates ofreturn on plan assets and the discount rates used in determining the projected benefit obligation 
and pension costs. . 

The assumed rate of return on plan assets was developed base~ on the weighted-average of long-term returns 
forecast for the expected portfolio mix of investments held by the plan. The assumed discount rate was selected 
based on the prevailing market rate of fixed income debt instruments with maturities matching the expected timing 
of the benefit obligation. These assumptions, updated annually at the measurement date, are based on 
management's best estimates and judgment; however, material changes may occur if these ass.umptions differ from 
actual events. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding the assumptions used to 
detennine benefit obligations and net costs. 

The following table reflects the sensitivities associated with a 0.5% increase or a 0.5% decrease in key actuarial 
assumptions for Evergy's qualified pension plans. Each sensitivity reflects the impact of the change based on a 
change in that assumption only. 

Actuarial assumption 

Rate of return on plan assets 

Rate of compensation 

Change in 
Assumption 

0.5% increase 

0.5% decrease 

Impact on 
Projected 

Impact on 
2019 · 

Benefit Pension 
Obligation Expense 

(millions) 

(8.1) 

(36.4) (7.7) 

Pension expense for Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO is recorded in accordance with rate orders from the KCC 
and MPSC. The orders allow the difference between pension costs under GAAP and pension cost~ for rateinaki_ng 
to be recorded as a regulatory asset or liability with future ratemaking recovery or refunds, as appropriate. 

In 2018, Evergy's pension expense was $90.1 million under GAAP and $98.4 million for ratemaking. The impact 
on 2019 pension expense in the table above reflects the impact b.n GAAP pension costs. Under the Evergy · 
Companies' rate agreements, any increase or decrease in GAAP pension expense would be deferred in a regulatory 
asset or liability for future ratemaking treatment. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for additional 
information regarding the accounting for pensions. 

Market conditions and interest rates significantly affect the future assets and liabilities of the plan. It is difficult to 
predict future pension costs, changes in pension liability and cash funding requirements due to the inherent 
uncertainty of market conditions. 

Revenue Recognition 
Evergy recognizes revenue on the sale of electricity to customers over time as the service is provided in the amount 
it has the right to invoice. Revenues recorded include electric services provided but not yet billed by Evergy. . 
Unbilled revenues are recorded for kWh usage in the period following the customers' hilling cycle to the end of the 
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month. This estimate is bas.ed on net system kWh usage less actual billed kWhs. Evergy's estimated unbilled kWhs 
are allocated and priced by regulatory jurisdiction across the rate classes based on actual billing rates .. Evergy's 
unbilled revenue estimate is affected by factors including fluctuations in energy demand,· weather, line loss~s and . ]

1 

changes in the composition of customer classes. See Note 4 for the balance of unbilled receivables for Evergy as of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
Evergy has recorded assets and liabilities on its consolidated balance sheets resulting from the effects of the 
ratemaking process, which wou_ld not otherwise be recorded under GAAP. Regulatory assets represent incurred 
costs that are probable of recovery from future revenues. Regulatory liabilities represent future reductions in 
revenues or refunds to customers. 

Management regularly assesses whether regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future recovery or refund by 
considering factors such as decisions by the MPSC, KCC or FERC in Evergy's rate case filings; decisions in other 
regulatory proceedings, including decisions related to other companies that establish precedent 01i matters 
applicable to Evergy; and changes in laws and regulations. If recovery or refund of regulatory assets or liabilities is 
not approved by regulators or is no longer deemed probable, these regulatory assets or liabilities are recognized in 
the current period results of operations. Evergy's continued ability to meet the criteria for recording regulatory 
assets and liabilities may be affected in the future by restructuring and deregulation in the electric industry or · 
changes in accounting rules. In the event that the criteria no.longer applied to all or a portion of Evergy's · 
operations, the related regulatory assets and liabilities would be written off unless an appropriate regulatory 
recovery mechanism were provided. Additionally, these factors could result in an impairment on utility plant assets.' 
See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information. 

Impairments of Asset_s and Goodwill 
Long-lived assets are required to be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount ofan asset may not be recoverable as prescribed under GAAP. 

Accounting rules require goodwill to be tested for impairment annually and when an event occurs indicating the 
possibility that an impairment e~ists. The goodwill impairment test consists of comparing the fair value of a 
reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill, to identify potential impairment. In the event that tp.e 
carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference 
between the carrying amount of the reporting unit and its fair value. Evergy1s consolidated operations are · 
qmsidered one reporting unit for ·assessment of impairment, as management assesses financial performance and 
allocates resources oti a consolidated basis. Evergy's first impairment test for the $+;338.9 million of goodwill from 
the Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy merger will be conducted on May 1, 2019. 

. - . 

Evergy anticipates that the determination of fair value for the reporting unit-will consist of two valuation techniques: 
an income approach consisting of a discounted cash flow ana,lysis and a market approach consisting of a_ 
determination ofreporting unit invested capital using-market multiples derived from the historical revenue, earnings 
before irtterest, income taxes, depreciation.and amortization, net utility asset values and market prices of stock of 
peer companies. The results of the two techniques will be evaluated and weighted to determine a point within the · 
range that management considers representative of fair value for the reporting unit, which involves a significant 
amount of management judgment. 

The discounted cash flow analysis is most significantly impacted by two assumptions: estimated future cash flows· 
and the discount rate applied to those cash flows. Management will determine the appropriate discount rate fo be 
based on the reporting unit's weighted average cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both the 
return on equity authorized by the KCC and MPSC and after-tax cost of debt. Estimated future cash flows are based 
on Evergy's internal business plan, which assumes the occurrence of certain events in the future, such as the 
outcome of future rate filings, future approved rates of return on equity, anticipated earnings/returns rel~ted to future 
capital investments, continued recovery of cost of service and the renewal of certain contracts. Management also 
makes assumptions regarding the run rate of operations, maintenance and general and administrative costs based on 
the expected outcome of the aforementioned events. Should the actual outcome of some or all of these assumptions 
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differ significantly from the ~urrent assumptions, revisions to c~rrent cash flow assumptions could cause the fair 
value of the Evergy reporting unit under the income approach to be significantly different in future periods and 
could result in a future impairment charge to goodwill. 

The market approach analysis is most significantly impacted by management's selectio.n of relevant p'eer companies 
as well as the determination of an appropriate control premium to be added to the calculated invested capital of the 
reporting unit, as control premiums associated with a controlling interest are not reflected in the quoted market price 
of a single share of stock. Management will determine an appropriate control premium by using an average of 
control premiums for recent acquisitions in the industry. Changes in results of peer companies, selection of 
different peer companies and future acquisitions with significantly different control premiums could result in a 
significantly different fair value of the Evergy reporting unit. 

Income Taxes 
Incorpe taxes are accounted for using the asset/liability approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined 
based on the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, applying 
enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred 
investment tax credits are amortized ratably over the life of the related property. Deferred tax assets are also 
recorded for net operating losses, capital losses and tax credit carryforwards. Evergy is r~quired to estimate the 
amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and the deferred tax liabilities and assets for future tax 
consequences of events reflected in Evergy's consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Actual results could 
differ from these estimates for a variety of reasons including changes in income tax laws, enacted tax rates and 
results of audits by taxing authorities. This process also requires manag~ment to make assessments regarding the 
timing and probability of the ~ltimate tax impact from which actual results may differ. Evergy records valuation 
allowances on deferred tax assets if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the asset _will not be realized. 
See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information. 

Asset Retirement Obligations 
Evergy has recognized legal obligations associated with the disposal oflong-lived assets that result from the 
acquisition, construction, development or normal· operation of such assets. Concurrent with the recognition of the 
liability, the estimated cost of the ARO incurred at the time the related long-lived assets were either acquired, placed 
in service or when regulations establishing the ·obligation became effective. The recording of AROs for regulated 
operations has no income statement impact due to the deferral of the adjustments through the establishment of a 
regu_latory asset or an offset to a regulatory liability. 

Evergy initially recordedAROs at fair value for the estimated cost to decommission Wolf Creek (94% share), retire 
wind generating facilities, dispose of asbestos insulating material at its power plants, remediate ash disposal ponds' 
and close ash landfills, among other items. ARO refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity 
in which the timing and/or method of settlement may be conditional on a future event that may or may not be within 
the control of the entity. In determining Evergy's AROs, assumptions are made regarding probable future disposal 

· costs and the timing of their occurr~nce. A change in these assumptions could have a significant impact on Evergy's 
· AROs reflected on its consolidated balance sheets. 

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, Evergy had recordedAROs of $687.1 million and $405.1 million, respectively. 
See Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for more information regarding Evergy's AROs. 

EVERGY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Evergy's results of operations and financial position are affected by a variety bf factors including rate regulation, 
fuel costs, weather, customer behavior and demand, the economy and competitive forces. 

Substantially all ofEvergy's revenues are subject to state or federal reguiation. This regulation has a significant 
impact on the price the Evergy Companies charge for electric service. Evergy's results of operations and financial 
position are affected by its ability. to align overall spending, both operating and capital, within the frameworks 
established by 'its regulators.' 
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Wholesale revenues are impacted by, among other factors, demand, cost and availability of fuel and purchased 
power, price volatility, available generation capacity, transmission availability and weather. 

The Evergy Companies primarily use coal, and uranium for the generation of electricity for their customers and also 
purchase power on the open market. The prices for these commodities. can :fluctuate significantly due .to a variety of 
factors including supply, demand, weather and the broader economic environment. Westar Energy, KCP&L and 

· GMO have fuel recovery mechanisms in their Kansas and Missouri jurisdictions, as applicable, that allow them to 
defer and subsequently recover or refund, through customer rates, substantially all of the variance in net energy 
costs from the amount set in base rates without a general rate case proceeding. 

Weather significantly affects the amount of electricity that Evergy's customers use as electricity sales are seasonal. 
As summer peaking utilities, the third quarter typically accounts for the greatest electricity sales by the Evergy 
Companies. Hot summer temperatures and cold winter temperatures prompt more demand, especially among 
residential and commercial customers, and to a lesser extent, industrial customers. Mild weather reduces customer 
demand. 

Energy efficiency investments by custoI11ers and the Evergy Companies also can affect the demand for electric 
service. Through the Missouri Energy Efficiency Investment Act (MEEIA), KCP&L and GMO offer energy 
efficiency and demand side management programs to their Missouri retail customers and recover program costs, 
throughput disincentive, and as applicable, certain µerformance incentives in retail rates through a rider mechanism. 

The following table summarizes Evergy's comparative results of operations. 

2018 Change 2017 Change 2016 
(millions) 

".'~-c-·,,·c_;_:-::--.. ·~~'::':::'"'°·.·= 

Interest expense 279.6 108.6 171.0 9.3 161.7 

Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net of income taxes (1.3) 6.5 
r,,,~ «-·~ ,,_..,.g-." ·'--;>""'"'""'"'~ ~~·-r--«'i\w:,ry~~r~=- rr-,_,.«,,..~.,."~~~w'";'"'"~..,..,,,..-.»=-"= -}'~--,.,·,-~,.,,·~,. ',:-c,'.,,' ,'',~ , ,, ",., ,,,, ,, ,,, ,,,-,,,. "j' 
! Netincome· . ·. :·. ·., . " ·. " . " '',· :··:~209.5. ·:'~36:51 '' '(24.7)· i3'6f.2: 
' ' -·-·-"- ·- '" ...... - ' ''' - -- . ···---·--· - -·-· -· ·- --· " -- --·-- -- ' ·--- '" ·- ' ···-· '"" ..... · ...................... ,.__.,., ., j 
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling 1nterests 10.2 (2.4) 12.6 (2.0) 14.6 
~tinc()meattrib-µtabh:!t0Evergy;I11c. ·; ~./ · {. :.\ : ." $'"535.8 $ :.211.~ · ,$ 323.9 $.'(22.7} $ -346.6j 

Evergy Utility Gross Margin and 1'fWh.Sales 
Utility gross margin is a financial measure that is not calculated in accordance with GAAP. Utility gross margin, as 
used by the Evergy Companies, is defined as operating revenues less fuel and purchased power costs and amounts 

· billed by the SPP for network transmission costs. Expenses for. fuel and purchased power costs, offset by wholesale 
sales margin, are subject to recovery through cost adjustment mechanisms. As a result, changes in fuel and 
purchased power costs are offset in operating revenues with minimal impact on net income. In addition, SPP 
network transmission costs :fluctuate primarily due to investments by SPP members for upgrades to the transmission 
grid within the SPP RTO. As with fuel and purchased power costs, changes in SPP network transmission costs are 
mostly reflected in the prices charged to customers with minimal impact on n~t income. See Note 3 to the 
consolidated financial sti;itements for additional information regarding the manner in which Evergy reflects SPP 
revenues and expenses. 
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Management believes that utility gross margin provides a meaningful basis for ~valuating the Evergy Companies' 
operatio1ts across periods compared with operating revenues because util,ity gross margin excludes the revenue 
effect of fluctuations in these expenses. Utility gross margin is used internally to measure perfonnance against 
budget and in reports for management and the Evergy Board. The Evergy Companies' defipition of utility gross 
margin may differ from .simil~r terms used by other companies, 

The following tables summarize Evergy's utility gross margin and MWhs sold. 

Utility Gross Margin 2018 Change 2017 Change 2016 
Retail revenues (millions) 

Commercial 1,356.4 644.7 711.7 (16.9) 728.6 

Other retail revenues 30.6 7.8 . 22.8 0.8 22.0 

c·Totaf~ie2ti:icJetalf._. _ ----·--·--·-----· __ ------· ... :.· ____ .. 3,493.6 ·- 1,544.9 · _: _ l,948:J __ .,
6
_;(32.~) __ J_,28:1.§_! 

Wholesale revenues 404.4 73.2 331.2 14.9 316.3 

Other revenues 69.8 63.5 6.3 0.8 5.5 

[(2P~~~t!1.:E~~E:t:~--··--------- _________ ·---- ____ _'.:.. ___ ; ___ -----· ·4';275.9 . : !;704,9 .. 2;57t;O, :;. · 8.9. , 2,5.62;1 I ----~·"--.~,--~--, -~-2----··--· ''·-~· --·-"--'~-,,,,.,.,.. __ ~--~ ·--~ 
Fuel and purchased power (1,078.7) (537.2) - (541.5) (32.0) (509.5) 
f sPP ne~orittransrrtission aosts . (259.9) . (12.0) .' (247.9). . . . (15)) .. , (232.8~ 

Utility gross margin l•J $ 2,937.3 $ 1,155.7 $ 1,78L6 $ (38.2) $ 1,819.8 
(aJ Utility gross margin is a non-GAAP financial measure. See explanation of utility gross margin above. 

MWh Sales 2018 Change 2017 Change . 2016 
Retail MWh Sales (thousands) 

Commercial 14,129 6,761 7,368 . (176) 7,544 

Other retail revenues 110 37 73 (4) 77 

[ ,\_ :J~t~l.electric retail_:· _· ___ .___ · , ' ___ ---~~-~~~------!~~_5_0L~2~:.~93 ~~~---:_(~~!X~ 1~,~~~J 
Wholesale revenues 13,811 3,465 10,346 2,047 8,299 

1···operati~gre~enues --- ---·----- 47,954 ,,: ,18,31:) .~Q.~39,, .. ··::l,7;86. ,27,853,l 

Evergy's utility gross margin increased $1,155.7 million in 2018 compared to 2017 driven by: 

an $1,181.5 million increase due to the inclusion ofKCP&L's and GMO's utility gross margin beginning hi 
June 2018~ and 

a $75.0 million increase primarily due to higher Westar Energy retail sales driven by warmer spring and 
summer weather and colder winter weather.· For 2018 compared to 2017, cooling degree days increased 
31 % and heating degree days increased 23%; partially offset by 

a $69.8 million provision for rate refund recorded at Westar Energy for the change in the corporate income 
tax rate caused by the passage of the TCJA. See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements for 
additional information; and 

a $31.0 million reduction in revenue recorded at Westar Energy for one-tirrie and annual bill credits as a 
res~lt of conditions in the KCC merger order. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for · 
additional information. 

Evergy's utility gross margin decreased $38.2 million in 2017 compared to 2016 primarily due to lower Westar 
Energy retail sales driven by milder weather. For 2017 compared to 2016, cooling degree days decreased 13%. 
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Other Operating Expenses (including operating and maintenance expense and taxes other than income tax) 
Evergy's other operating expenses increased $653.8 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by: 

a $453.0 million increase in operating and maintenance expense due to the inclusion ofKCP&L's and 
GMO's operating and maintenance expenses beginning in June 2018, excluding the defep-al of merger 
transition costs discussed below; · , 

$69.5 million of merger-related costs incurred following the close of the merger in June 2018, consisting of: 

0 

0 

0 

0 

$24.7 million ofunconditional,charitable contributions and community support recorded by Evergy 
fo accordance with conditions in the KCC and.MPSCinerger orders; · 

$44.2 million of Westar Energy change in control payments, Westar Energy voluntary severance 
and the recording of unrecognized equity compensations·costs and the incremental fair value 
associated with the vesting of outstanding Westar Energy equity compensation awards in 
accordance with the Amended Merger Agreement; and 

$48.4 million of merger consulting fees and fees for other outside services incurred, primarily 

consisting of merger success fees; partially offset by 

a $47.8 million decrease in operating and maintenance expense due to the deferral of merger 

transition costs to a regulatory asset in June 2018 for future recovery by Westar Energy, KCP&L 
and GMO in accordance with the KCC and MPSCmerger orders; 

. ' ' - ' . 
• a $95.3 million increase in taxes other than income taxes due to the inclusion ofKCP&L and GMO 

amounts beginning in June 2018; 

• $12.3 million of obsolete inventory write-offs for Westar Energy's Unit-7 at Tecumseh Energy Center, Units 
3 and 4 at Murray Gill Energy Center and Units 1 and 2 at Gordon Evans Energy Center, which were retired 

· in the fourth quarter of 2018; and 
. r - . . . . . . . - . . 

• a $5.5 million increase due to Westar Energy's 47% share of voluntary severance expenses incurr.edrelated 
to the Wolf Creek voluntary exit program. 

. ' \ . . . ' '. . \ 

Evergy's other operating expenses decreased $47.8 million ·in ZOl 7 compared to 2016 primarily driven by: 
' . . . 

• a $24.2 million decrease in Westar En~rgy's property tax expense due to a decrease in amortization of the. 
regulatory asset comprised of actual costs incurred for property' taxes in the prior year in excess of amounts 

collected in prices in the prior year, which is mostly offset in retail revenues; 

· • ari $8.6 million decr~ase in Westar Energy's transmission and distribution expense due to h1gher grid 
resiliency costs in 2016 and receiving credit for assisting other utilities with mutual aid during an active 

hurricane season, which offsets operatii;ig and maintenance expense; 

• a $7 .1 million decrease in Westar Energy's employee at-risk compensation that is payable only upon 
meeting pre-established operating and financial objectives; 

• a $5.8 million decrease in Westar Energy's nuclear operating and maintenance costs primarily due to 
receiving a legal settlement related to Wolf'Creek in 2017; and . 

• a $4.9 million decrease in Westar Energy's operating and maintenance expense at coal fired plants primarily 
· due to a planned outage at Jeffrey Energy Center iri 2016; partially offset by 

. . . . ' 

• an $8.8 million increase in Westar Energy's operating and maintenance expense due to the start of 
operations at the Western Plains Wind Farm in March 2017. 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Evergy's depreciation and amortization increased $24 7 .1 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by a 
$227.9 million increase due to the inclusion o:fKCP&L's and GMO's depreciation expense beginning in June 2018. 

Evergy's depreciation and amortization increased $33.2 million in 2017 compared to 2016 primarily driven by the 
start of operations at We.star Energy's Western Plains Wind Farm in March 2017. 
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Other Income (Expens~), Net . 
Evergy's other expense, net increased $27.6 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by: 

a $25.7 million increase due to the inclusion ofk.CP&L and GMO _amounts beginning in June 2018; and 
. . 1 . 

a $4.6 million decrease in Westar Energy's investment earnings primarily due to a decrease in interest and 
dividend income. 

Evergy's other expense, net increased $25.3 million in 2017 compared to 2016 primarily driven by: 
' . ·, 

• a $26.3 million decreas~ in Westar Energy's other income primarily consisting ~f:' 
0 a $19.5 million decrease du_e to recording higher corporate-owned life insuriiµ<::e (COLI).benefits in 

201_6; and. · · · 
\ 

0 a $9 .6 million decrease in equity allowance for funds used during construction "(AFUDC); partially 
offset by · 

~ $3.5 ~illion increase related to the deconsolidation of the trust holding Westar Energy's 8% 
mterest m Jeffrey Energy Center. . · . . . · 

0 

Interest Expense . . . . .· , . . 
Evergy's i~terest expense increased. $108.6 mil,lion in 20i8 compared to 2017 primarily driven by a $102.8 million 
increase due to the in~lusion or'KCP&L's and GMO's interest expense beginning in June 2018 and Evergy's · 
assumption of Great Plains Energy's' $350.0 million of 4.85% unsecured Senior Notes _and $287.5 million ofS.292% 
unsecured Senior Notes upon the consummation of the merger. 

. . . . 
Everny's interest expense increased $9.3 milli~m in 2017 compared to 2016 primarily driven by an increase in 
Westar Energy's interest expense on long-term debt of $4.9 million as a result of the issuance of first mortgage 
bonds_ (FMBs) in excess of retirements and a $4.4 milliori_decrease in debtAFUDC. 

Income Tax Expense 
Evergy's "income tax expense decrease_d $92.2 million-in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by: 

• a $53.4 ·millio~-decrease related to the ;evaluation ofW~star Energy's deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities based o·n the Evergy composite tax rate as a result of the merger; 

a $58.4 million decrease due to lo~er Westar ~nergy pre-tax income; and. 

a $44.3 million decrease_ in Westar Energy's .i11come ta)i:. expense as a result of the dec_rease in the federal 
· statutory incotne tax r!lte _in 2018; partially offset by 

a $63.2 million increase as a result'ofthe inclusion of income tax expense related to Evergy, Inc. and the 
subsidiari_es of Great Plains E11ergy beginning in June 2018. 

-Evergy's iµcome tax expense decreased $33.3 million in 2017 compar~d to 2016 primarily driven by: 

• a $24.0 million decrease due to production tax credit~, primarily due to the. start of operations at Westar 
Energy's Western Plains Wind Fann in.March 2017; and · · · . '· ' · . 

• a $22.9 million decrease due t9 low_er Westar Energy pre-tai income; partially offset by 
. ..,,. ...... . . . ' ' 

• a $12.2 million increase.related to the revaluation of Westar Energy's deferred income taxes not included in 
rate base as a result of the ena.ctm~nt of the TCJA in 2017.. . . . 
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EVERGY SIGNIFICANT BALANCE SHEET CHANGES 
(December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017) 

/ 

The following table summarizes Evergy's significant balance sheet changes. 

Total 
Change 

Assets 
I' ---·--··-···-·-· 
i Cash and casll._equi:vale11t~ 1 • 

Accounts recei:vable, net (97.0) 

Fuel inventories and supplies 217.4 

204.4 

Property, plant and equipment, net 9,228.7 
l' . ' ,, ,-_,: ~" :· · .. " " '....,., ,· ', ':i: .. ' : "' '' ,:r:"1,,r; /f\;,; ,,,,, l Propeity;plant and eq1.iipni~tft"of varial;,le 111tetest entiti_ 
'~' -,~,--,•-O•M"~'" '-,,M"',<>, aA,' .~.---' ' _.•,•,,,•,•-•'" ·--•~,----~-,-~J-o,< '<•~'J<~,_.-,,J, \' --~-'' 

- Goodwill 2,338.9 

Change Due Remaining 
to !\'lerger Change 

(in millions) 

155.6 

171.5 . (54.1) 

207.8 (3.4) 

9,179.7 49.0 

2,338.9 
·····-:·----------·-·,r-,c~·-r-----·-·--~--,-----,·r-··------,-~-·-:-:··-c--·-c~~"-;r,';"'''c·---~---c-·-.---·=•':"'-------:-··--cc--·,-.,, ·-

Liabilities 

Collateralized note payable .... ,,,,,_, _____ ,,,,,,,,,,,=-··---~-----

Asset retirement obligations - current 

----- __ c1mentliabilities_. -------- ---·---- -- -----"-----'----
Long-term debt, net 

[;~~~it~I2;~4~~£iiy~~~. 
Deferred income taxes 

Asset retirement obligations 
· · Other long-term li~b-iliti~?·:··-

365.0 

24.7 

783,.5 

. 180.0 

46.0 

73.1 

669.6 

185.0 

(21.3) 

113.9 

_ -- (8.2)i · 
(48.1) 

Change Due to Merger as reflected in the table above _represents the preliminary purchase-price allocatio:i;i. to ·Great 
Plains Energy's assets and liabilities as of June 4, 2018. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for 
additional information regarding changes in Evergy's balance sheet du,e to the merger. 
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The following are significant balance sheet changes in addition to those due to the Great Plains Energy and Westar 
Energy merger: 

I 

• Evergy's cash and cash equivalents decreased $997.3 million primarily due to the repurchase of common 
stock for a total cost of approximately $1,042 million in connection with Evergy's share repurchase 
progr~m. See Note 17 to the consolidated :financial statements for additional information on Evergy's 
share repurchase program. 

• Evergy's receivables, net decreased $252.6 million primarily due to Westar Energy's entry into a 
receivable sale facility in December 2018 for an initial amount $185.0 million. This sale of the undivided 
percentage ownership interest in accounts receivable resulted in the reduction of receivables, net and an 
increase in accounts receivables pledged as collateral and collateralized note payable of $185.0 million. 
See Note 4 to the consolidated :financial statements for additional information regarding Westar Energy's 
receivable sale facility. · 

• Evergy's receivables pledged as collateral and collateralized note payable increased $185.0 million due to 
Westar Energy's entry into a receivable sale facility in December 2018. 

• Evergy's fuel inventories arid supplies decreased $54.1 million primarily due to $31.0 million of obsolete 
inventory ·write-offs at Westar Energy's Unit 7 at Tecumseh Energy Center, Units 3 and 4 at Murray Gill 
Energy Center, Units 1 and 2 at Gordon Evans Energy Center, KCP&L's Montrose Station and GMO's 
Sibley Station, which were all retired, in the fourth quarter of 2018. 

• Evergy's income taxes receivable increased $67.5 million primarily due to refundable alternative 
minimum tax (AMT) credits that Evergy expects to receive in 2019. 

• · Evergy's prepaid expenses and other assets decreased $142.8 million primarily due to the $140.6million 
settlement of deal contingent interest rate swaps entered into by Great Plains Energy that settled 
following the consummation of the merger in June 2018. 

• Evergy's regulatory assets increased by $243..4 million primarily due to the reclassification ofretired 
generating plant of $159.9 million related to GMO's Sibley No. 3 Unit froin property, plant and 
equipment, net to a regulatory asset upon the retirement of the unit in 2018. 

• Evergy's current maturities of long-term debt increased by $290.1 million primarily due to the 
reclassification ofKGE's $300.0 million of 6.70% Series First Mortgage Bonds from long-term to 
current. 

• Evergy's notes payable and commercial paper decreased $98.1 million primarily due to the repayment of 
commercial paper with funds from operations at KCP&L and GMO. 

• Evergy's accounts payable increased $55.9 million primarily due to the timing of cash payme~ts. 

• Evergy's accrued dividends decreased $113.2 million due to Evergy's assumption and subsequent 
payment of Great Plains Energy's $59.4 million of accrued common stock dividends following the 
consummation of the merger and the timing of payment between Evergy's common stock dividend 
declared in November 2018, which was paid in De.cember 2018, and its common stock dividend declared 
in November 2017, which was paid in January 2018 and was reflected as accrued dividends of $53.8 
million as of December 31, 2017. 

• Evergy's current regulatory liabilities increased $80.9 million primarily due to $71.2 million ofrefund 
obligations recorded by KCP&L and GMO consisting of $63.7 million related to the TCJA and $7.5 
million related to one-time customer merger bill credits. 

• Evergy's current asset retirement obligations decreased $21.3 million primarily due to lower expected 
cash flows in th~ next twelve months as of December 31, 2018, compared to December 31, 2017, related 
to closure costs for ponds containing coal combustion residuals (CCRs) at La Cygne Station and Iatan 
Station. 
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Evergy's long-term debt decreased by $409.9 million primarily due to the reclassification of KGE's 
$300.0 million of 6. 70% Series First Mortgage Bonds from long-tehn to current and the redemption of 
$104.0 million of GMO's Series A and B Senior Notes in 2018. · 

Evergy's long-term debt of variable interest entities, net decreased $30.3 million primarily due to the VIE 
that holds the La Cygne Unit 2 leasehold interest having rtiade principal payments totaling $28.5 million. 

Evergy's deferred income taxes increased $113.9 million primarily due to the reclassification of 
refundable AMT credits that. Evergy expects to receive in 2019 to income taxes receivable. 

Evergy's asset retirement obligations decreased $108.8 million primarily due to a $127.0 million decrease 
in Evergy's and Westar Energy's AROs for a revision in estimate primarily related to Westar Energy's 
ARO to 'decommission its 47% ownership share of W<;M Creek. See Note 6 to the consolidated financial 
statements for additional information. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Evergy relies primarily upon cash from operations, short-term borrowings, ~ebt issuances and its existing cash 
and cash equivalents to fund its capital requirements. Evergy's capital requirements primarily consist ofcapital . . 

expenditures, payment of contractual obligations and other commitments, the payment of dividends to 
shareholders and the repurchase of common shares. , 

Capital Sources 
Cash Flows from Operations 
Evergy's cash flows from operations are driven by the regulated sale of electricity. These cash flows are relatively 
stable but the timing and level of these cash flows can vary based on weather and economic conditions, future 
regulatory proceedings, the timing of cash payments made for costs recoverable under regulatory mechanisms and 
the time such costs are recovered, and unanticipated expenses such as unplanned plant outages and/or storms. 

Short-Term Borrowings 
As of December 31, 2018, Evergy had $1.7 billion of available borrowing capacity from its master credit facility 
and receivable sale facilities. Westar Energy's, KCP&L's and GMO's borrowing capacity under the master credit 
facility also support their issuance of commercial paper. The available borrowing capacity consisted of $449 .0 
million from Evergy, Inc.'s master credit facility, $570.0 million from Westar Energy's·credit facilities, $420.4 
million from KCP&L's credit facilities and $297 .9 million from GM O's credit facilities. See Notes 4 and 11 to the 
consolidated financial statements for more information regarding the receivable sale facilities and master credit 
facility, respectively. Along with cash flows from operations, Evergy generally uses these liquid resources to meet 
its day-to-day cash flow requirements. 

Long-Term Debt and Equity Issuances 
From time to time, Evergy issues long-term debt and/or equity to repay short-term debt; refinance maturing long
term debt and finance growth. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, Evergy's capital structure, excluding short
term debt, was as follows: 

December 31 

-2018 2017 

j·corim;io~equity __ 2J._ - /z:·· __ -· -: <''0]~· •- ::_:-··-·· -.·- _-·-- ::;-~?7o/~ ··t:e')5Jo/J''-. . 'J 
Noncontrolling interests . <0% <0% . 

r--- ---- _ ... --------- . ------- ------.------------------- .:----------------- --------------- ---------------------
Long-term debt, including yIEs · . _ _· 43o/;·---------- . ~- 49% -1 

After the completion of its common stock repurchase program, Evergy anticipates targeting a common equity to 
total capitalization ratio of approximately 47%-50%. Following the utilization of its excess cash and cash 
equivalents discussed further below, Evergy anticipates issuing debt in 2019 in support of its common stock 
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repurchase program. See "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Capital Requirements - Common Stock Repurchase 
Program" for additional information. 

Under stipulations with the MPSC and KCC, Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L are required to maintain 
common equity at not less than 35%, 40% and 40%, respectively, of total capitalization. The master credit facility 
and certain debt instruments of the Evergy Companies also contl:).in restrictions that require the maintenance of 
certain capitalization arid leverage ratios. As of December 31, 2018, the Eyergy Companies were in compliance 
with these covenants. 

· Significant Debt issuances 
See Note 12 to the consolidated financial sfatements for information regarding significant debt issuances. 

Credit Ratings . 
The ratings of the Evergy Companies' debt securities by the credit rating. agencies impact their liquidity, 
including the cost of borrowings under their master credit facility and in the capital markets. The Evergy 
Companies vfow maintenance of strong credit ratings as vital to their access to and cost of debt financing 
and, to that end, maintain an active and ongoing dialogue with the. agencies with respect to results of 
operations, financial position and future prospects. While a decreai'ie in these credit ratings would riot 
cause any acceleration of the Evergy Companies' debt, it could increase interest charges under the master 
credit facility. A decrease in credit ratings could also have, among other things, an adverse impact, which 
could be material, on the Evergy Companies' access to capital, the cost of fundsi the ability to recover 
actual interest ~osts in state regulatory proceedings, the type and ~mounts of collateral required under 

· supply agreements and Evergy's ability to provide credit support for its subsidiaries. 
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, As of February 21, 2019, the major credit rating agencies rated the EvergyCompanies' securities as 
detailed in the following table. 

Corporate Credit Rating 

Outlook 

Outlook 

Senior Secured Debt 

Senior Secured Debt 

GMO· 

Corporate CreditRating 

Commercial Paper 

Moody's 
Investors Service<a) 

Stable 

Stable 

A2 

A2 

Baa2 

P-2 

S&PGiobal 
. Ratings<•> 

A-

Stable 

Stable 

A 

A 

A-

A-2 

(a)A securities rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities_and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any 
time by the assigning rating agency. 

Shelf Registration Statements and Regulatory Authorizations 
Evergy . 
In November 2018, Evergy filed an automatic shelfregistration statement providing for the sale of 
unlimited amounts of securities with the SEC, which expires iri November 2021. 

Westar Energy · 
In November 2018, Westar Energy filed an automatic shelfregistration statement providing for the sale of 
unlimited amounts· of unsecured debt securities and firstmortgage bonds with the SEC, which expires in 

· November 2021. · 

KCP&L 
In November 2018, KCP&L filed an automatic shelfregistration statement providing for the sale of. 
unlimited amounts of unsecured notes and mortgage bonds with the SEC, whi~h expires in November 
2021_., 
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The following table summarizes the regulatory short-term and long-term debt financing authorizations for 

Westar Energy, KGB, KCP&L and GMO and the remaining amount available under these authorizations 

as of December 31, 2018. 

Type of Authorization Commission Expiration Date 

Westar Energy & KGE 

f siidrt-T~~ ~J3~iii'; 
i';.;:,..,~, ,,• _,<~-~~"' , -wo,•r':.• ••-

T)ecember 2020 . . 
, __ ._,. ·-~,.· ~ <-.--·,'·--· '',--~'-· 

Long-Term Debt MPSC September 2019 

Authorization 
Amount 

Available Under · 
Authorization 

(in millions) 

- ';$t,25q:o _ .. , _ 

$750.Q $450.0 

Short-Term Debt FERC December 2020 $750.0 · $600.0 

ft~rtt.Ftetm De~{····,·,,. it"t.·; •·. ·.:'!"PER(: '.f:'i!;:,> DeceriiBer202ci!:•'f .. ·· .. ; ,;'$,100'.b:·.··· ·.: •. •• : "'";.:;::_;!'$l00:6/it\J11t:l 

In addition to the above regulatory authorizations, the Westar Energy, KGB and KCP&L mortgages-each 

contain provisions restricting the amount of FMBs that can be issued by each entity. Westar Energy, KGB 

and KCP&L must comply with these restrictions prior to the issuance of additional FMBs, general 

mortgage bonds or other secured indebtedness. 

Under the Westar Energy mortgage, the issuance of bonds is subject to limitations based on the amount of 

bondable property additions. In addition, so long as any bonds issued prior to January 1, 1997, remain 

outstanding, the mortgage prohibits additional FMBs from being issued, except in connection with ce1iain 

refundings, unless Westar Energy's unconsolidated net earnings available for interest, depreciation and 

pr()perty retirement (which as defined, does not include earnings or losses attributable to the ownership of 

securities of subsidiaries), for a period of 12 consecutive months within 15 months preceding the · 

issuance, are not less than the greater of twice the annual interest charges on or 10% of the principal 

amount of all FMBs outstanding after giving effect to the proposed issuance. As of December 31, 

2018, $344.5 million principal ·amount of additi.onal FMBs could be issued under the most restrictive 

provisions in the·mortgage, except in connection with certain refundings. · 

Under the KGB mortgage, the amount of FMBs authorized is limited to a maximum of $3 .5 billion and 

the issuance of bonds is subject to limitations based on the amount ofbondable property additions. In 

addition, the m<;>rtgage prohibits additional FMBs from being issued, except in connection with certain 

refundings, unless KGE's net earnings before income taxes and before provision for retirement and 

· depreciation of property for a period of 12 consecutive mo~ths within 15 months preceding the issuance 

are not less than either two and one-half times the annual interest charges oh or 10% of the principal 

· amount of all KGB FMBs outstanding after giving effect to the proposed issuance. As of December 31, 

2018, KGB had sufficient capacity under the most restrictive provisions in the mortgage to meet its near 

term :financing and refinancing needs. 

Under the KCP&L mortgage, additional KCP&L mortgage bonds may be issued on the basis of property 

additions or retired bonds. As of December 31, 2018, KCP&L had sufficient capacity under the most 

restrictive provisions in the mortgage to meet its near term financing and refinancing needs. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At December 31, 2018, Evergy had approximately $160.3 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand. Under 

the Amended Merger Agreement, Great Plains Energy was required to have not less than $1.25 billion in cash and 

cash equivalents on its balance sheet atthe closing of the merger with Westar Energy. In 2018, Evergy primarily 

utilized this excess cash to repurchase approximately $1,042 million of common stock. Evergy anticipates that its 

remaining· excess cash will also be returned to shareholders through the repurchase of common stock. 
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Capital Requirements 
Capital Expenditures 
Evergy requires significant capital investments and expects to need-cash primarily for utility construction 
programs designed to improve and expand facilities related to providing electric service, which include, but are 
not limited to, expenditures to develop new transmission lines and improvements to power plants, transmission 

. and distribution lines and equipment. Evergy's capital expenditures were $1,069.7 million, $764.6 million and 
$1,087.0 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016; respectively. 

Capital ~xpenditures projected for the next five y~ars, excluding AFUDC and .including costs of removal, are 
detailed in the following table. This capital expenditure plan is subject to continual review and change. 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

(millions) · 
~'~;"~~ 

Transmission and distribution facilities 678 714 706 712 705 

Total utility capital expenditures $ 1,278 $ · 1,338 $ 1,183 $ 1,107 $ ·· 1.,196 

Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments . 
I ' , , 

In the course of its business activities, the Evergy Companies enter into a variety of contracts and commercial 
commitments. Some of these result in direct obligations reflected·on Evergy's consolidated balance sheets while 
others are coI111Tiitments, some firm and some based on uncertainties, not reflected in Evergy's underlying 
consolidated financial statements. ' 

The information in th~ followi~g table is prnvided to s~a:rize E:.Vergy'~ cash obligations and cormherci~l 
commitments. 

Payment due by period 2019. 2020 2021. 2022. 2023 Aftlir 2023 . Total 

Long-term debt (millions) 

Lease commitments 

Capital leases 6.4 2.2 5.3 4.7 4.0 48.6 

Purchase commitments 

Power 47.4 · 366.8 60'4.2 

,_:i9Qier-,f5;i;;,· · · · ;,·:;~ .·:_<::·. -;,;;r,,: .)~:';l'i)' J3J:?•., -· ~i;;'.Ll~;$~;:;~ r;~~3,4'~I{1
;;;::• :~ .'::~;f]g;~~i;!ii3~:4~f,·;;7>;~{3':3j 

J:otal contractual commitments·(•) $1,796.9 $1;137.0 $1,006.0 $ 798.4 $ 933.7 $9,066.5 $14,738.5 

. <•) Evergy expects to mak~ contributions to the, pension and oth~r. post-retirement plans beyond 2023 but the amounts are not yet 
determined. 

Long-term debt includes current maturities. Long-term debt principal excludes $57.2 million of unamortized_ net 
· discounts and debt issuanc:e costs and a $144.8 million fair vahie adjustment recorded in connection with purchase 

accounting for the Great Plains Energy and West!lr Energy merger. Variable rate interest obligations are based on 
rates as of December 31, 2018. 
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Operating lease commitments include leases for office buildings, computer equipment, operating facilities, 
vehicles and rail cars to serve jointly-owned generating units where Westar Energy or KCP&L is the managing 
partner and is reimbursed by other joint-owners for its proportionate share of the cost. Capital lease commitments 
include obligations for both principal and interest. · 

Evergy expects to contribute $118 .3 million to the pension and other post-retirement plans in 2019, of which the 
majority is expected to be paid by Westar Energy and KCP&L. Additional contributions to the plans are expected 
beyond 2023 in amounts at least sufficient to meet the greater of Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974, as amended (BRISA) or regulatory funding requirements; however, these amounts have not yet been 
determined; Amounts for years after 2019 are estimates based on information available in determining the 
amount for 2019. Actual amounts for years after 2019 could be significantly different than the estimated amounts 

· in the table above. 

Fuel commitments consist of commitments for nuclear fuel, coal and coal transportation costs. Power 
commitments consist of certain commitments for renewable energy under power purchase agreements. Other 
represents individual commitments entered into in the ordinary course of business. 

Evergy has other insignificant long-term liabilities recorded on its consolidated balance she.et at December 31, 
' 2018, which do not have a definitive cash payout date and are not included in the table above. 

Common. Stock Dividends 
The amount and timing of dividends payable on Evergy's common stock are within the sole discretion of the 
Evergy Board. The amount and timing of dividends declared by the Evergy Board will be dependent on 
considerations such as Evergy's earnings, financial position, cash flows, capitalization ratios, regulation, 
reinvestment opportunities and debt covenants. Evergy targets a long-term dividend payout ratio of 60% to 70% 
of eami11,gs. See Note 1 to the cons.olidated financi~l statement~ for informatio:t). on the common stock dividend 
declared.by the Evergy Board in February 2019. 

The Evergy Companies also have certain restrictions stemming from statutory requirements, corporate 
organizational documents, covenants and other conditions that could affect dividend levels. See Note 17 to the 
consolidated financial statements for ~her discussion of restrictions on dividend payme.nts. 

Common Stock Repurchase Program 
In July 2018, the Evergy Board authorized the repurchase of up to 60 million shares of Evergy's common stock. · 
Although this repurchase authorization has no expiration date, Evergy expects to repurchase approximately 60 
million shares by mid-2020. For 2018, Evergy had total repurchases of common stock of approximately $1,042 
million and had repurchased· 16.4 million shares under the repurchase program. These repurchase totals include 
· shares repurchased under ASR agreements, one of which had not reached final settlement as of December 31, 
2018, and are discussed further below. 

In August 2018, Evergy entered into two ASR agreements with financial institutions to purchase $450.0 million of 
Evergy common stock. The ASR agreements reached final settlement in the fourth quarter of 2018 and resulted in 
the delivery of7.9 million shares to Evergy_and Evergy paid a total.of $450.0 million . 

. In November 2018, Evergy entered into anASR agreement with a financial institution to purchase $475.0 million 
. of Evergy common stock. In, December 2018, the financial institution delivered. to Evergy 6 .4 million shares· of 

common stock, representing a partial settlement of the contract, based on then-current market prices and Evergy 
paid a total of$475.0 million. TheASR agreement is expected to reach final settleinent by March 2019 or earlier. 

· See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for more information regarding Evergy's common stock 
repurchase program. 
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Impact of TCJA 
The TCJA will result in lower operating cash flows for the Evergy Companies due to lower income tax expense 
recov;eries in customer rates and the settlement of related deferred income tax regulatory liabilities, which are 
significant. These decreases in. operating cash flows are expected to exceed the increase in operating cash flows 
for the Evergy Companies resulting from the lower corporate federal income ·tax rate primarily due to the 
utilization of the Evergy Companies' net operating losses and tax credits. These net regulatory liabilities will be 
refunded in future rates by amortizing amounts related to plant assets primarily over the remaining useful life of 
the.assets and amortizing the amounts related to the other items over various periods as determined_.in the Evergy_ 
Companies' 2018 rate cases. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
In the ordinary course of business, Evergy and certain of its subsidiaries enter into various agreements providing 
·financial or-performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. Such agreements include, for 
example, guarantees and letters of credit. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the 
creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a: stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of 
sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiary's intended business purposes. · In connection with the closing of the 
merger, Evergy assumed the guarantees previously provided to GMO by Great Plains Energy. The majority of 
these agreements guarantee Evergy's own future performance, so a liability for the fair.value of the obligation is 
not recorded. 

At December 31, 2018, Evergy has provided $111.3 million of credit support for GMO as follows: 

• Evergy direct guarantees to GMO counterparties totaling $17 .0 million, which expire in 2020, and 

• Evergy's guarantee of GMO long-term debt totaling $94.3 million, which includes debt with maturity 
d~tes ranging from 2019 to 2023. 

Evergy has also guaranteed GMO's short-term debt, including its commercial paper program. At December 31, 
2018, GMO had $150.0 million of commercial paper outs~anding. None of the guaranteed obligations are subject 
to default or prepayment if GM O's credit ratings were downgraded .. 

' ' 

The Evergy Companies also have off-balance sheet arrangements in the form of operating leases and letters of 
credit entered into in the ordinary course of business. · 

Cash Flows 
The following table presents Evergy's cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities. 

2018 2017 2016 

(in millions) 

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities 197.4 (780.8) (994.1) 
rc~li~ifr~u-;;tlitf:lfu~cing~;fi;s\~·--_ -_7 -;;~~::c-.-·:c~~rs3'sJifI:tf{h::.';· <1J1 .6)::·;"::~~::i,~-,:·-.. '.19o}i 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Evergy's $585.1 million increase in cash flows from operating activities in 2018 compared to 2017 was primarily 
driven by an $800.8 million increase due to the inclusion ofKCP&L's and GMO's cash flows from operating 
activities beginning in June 2018; partially offset by an increase of $50.3 million in amounts paid by Westar 
Energy related to income taxes; $35.6 million of merger success fees paid by Evergy and Westar Energy upon the 
completion of the merger; an increase of $27 .0 million in purchased power costs paid by Westar Energy; an 
increase of $15 .3 million in Wolf Creek refueling outage costs paid by Westar Energy related to the outage that 
concluded in May 2018 and :;in $11.6 million increase in Westar Energy pension and post-retirement contributions. 

The $108.9 million increase in cash flows from operating activities in 2017 compared to 2016 was primarily 
driven by a $43.9 million increase in Westar Energy wholesale power sales and transmission services; a $26.3 
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million decrease in amounts paid for Westar Energy coal and natural gas;-a $26.0 million increase due to Westar 
Energy receiving a $13.0 million refund for income taxes in 2017 and Westar Energy paying $13.0 million in 
income taxes in 2016 and a $13.6 million increase from Westar Energy retail customers; partially offset by a $16.4 
million increase in amounts paid for Westar Energy purchased power and transmission services and a $12.0 
million increase in Westar Energy interestpayments. 

Cash Flmysfrom (used in) Investing Activities 
Evergy's cash flows from investing activities increased $978.2 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily due to 
the inclusion of $1,154.2 million of cash acquired from Great Plains Energy as of the merger date. 

Evergy's cash flows used in investing activities decreased $213 .3 million in 2017 compared to 201 (:i primarily 
driven by a $322.3 million decrease in additions to Westar Energy's property, plant and equipment primarily · 
related to the construction of Western Plains Wind Farm in 2016; partially offset by receiving $110:5 million less 
proceeds from Westar Energy COLI investments than in 2016. · 

1/_.· •. 

Cash Flows from (used in) Financing Activities 
Evergy's cash flows used in financing activities increased $1,406.8 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily 
due to the repurchase ofcommon stock of $1,042.3 million .as a result of Evergy's share repurchase program in 
2018; an increase in cash dividends paid of $251 .. 9 million due to an increase in outstanding shares of common 
stock following the close of the merger and a $0.06 and $0.075 per share increase in the quarterly dividends paid 
in September 2018 and December 2018, respectively; an increase in retirements oflong-tenn debt of $270.8 
million; partially offset by an, increase in collateralized short-term debt, net of $185 .0 million due to Westar 
Energy's receivable sale facility that was entered into in December 2018. · · · , · · 

.' L' ~ '. . ! ~ . ..: ; 

Evergy's cash flows from financing activities decreased $321.8 million in 2017 compared to 2016 primarily due to 
· Westar Energy issuing $207.5 minion less in commercial paper; Westar Energy issuing $1.62.0 million less in 
lorig-temi debt of VIEs; Westar Energy issuing $100.1 million less in long-term debt; Westar Energy's redemption 
of$75.0 million-more in long4erm debt and paying $18.8 million more in dividends; partially offset by Westar 
Energy redeeming $163.5 million less in long-term debt ofVIEs and repaying $88.3 million less for borrowings 
against the cash surrender value of COLI. 

,,;:· r : ~ . J. ,~ .• 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

MANAGEMENT'S NARRATivE ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
. : .. · . . ' / . . .· . .·. .· . . ' . 

The below_ results of operations and related discussiop for Westar Energy is presented in a reduced disclosure 
forn:iat in accordance'with General Instruction (I)(2)(a) to F~rm 10.:.K. . . . . .. 

The following tabl~ 'summarizes Westar Energy's comparative results.of operations. 

2018 C~ange . 2011';: 
(millions) 

Income from operations 550.5 (128.3) 678.8 

Equity in earnings of equity:method investees, net 

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 10.2 (2.4) 12.6 

kf:{t:~ilqg~m~· ~fui~µ~1,ne.~tg,.W:ysfor.::&:11~rror;•~o..;:_,1;~~::"1·.:1:k;.~f::.,~1;,~-~i-:'.:i'i:;':J',1~ .. ::1,,:;;:·:2i11~':'.:1;2/:·,~~7:~::~~s':Q:,J ·';~:-1~·x1~~6:'.~;:,'~~-,~:321Wl 

Westar Energy Utility Gross Margin and -MWh Sales 
The following.table summarizes Westar Energy's utility gross margin and MWhs sold. 

. . . . . . - \ ... . , .· 

Revenues and 'Expenses . . · MWiis Sold ' 
2018 · Change · ~017 . 2018. Change , ~017 .. 

Retail revenues (millions) (thousanqs) 
z·rr,,•,::'•!"'C"'f:!·C.C"C"?'.:::-i"A•1"."':r:rrr::o::,:::-.:,;?:."'"7!7'Cl'-"0'0'''7.:l"3!17"C' 

Other retail revenues 20.0 · (2.8) 22;8 58 . . ·. (15). · 73 

--~~--:-ff~~ .,:;(',bitSifo~~~§~~~ :;:\:::~6x9}iKrlliIB~~27d...i~l?i~33L,L:!~:::,2,~jf[: ... ~f ~~&~JJ. 
Wholesalerevenues · · 346.1 14.9 · 331.2 10,169 · (177) 10,346. 

J~~~1;::E~~~1(1:;i~;.i::Ef~;.~~;:1:~{r,;1~ .. ~i~1;;;;,;kt~i~~~J!;;; ... :r\i*~£l~Ma~:r1~nf~~~~~7i> ... ;l<'.~~&~~gj 
Fuel and purchased'p()"7er \ .. , . , .... , . . , , (?.~9.2) . · (5'J.7) · (54f5) . . . .. .. . , . . . . .. >·, , . 

1 f~;n~hka*;tr~mi~~w~W%~~~E:E:~~~~1 ~~1<t~.io'.~~i.i:·:C~41,\~),~.:.·;,~~::""~h~::I;;~~f~;~i~]:dL"~i 
Utllity'gross·margin<•l ·... . .. ··.. '$1;755.8" $' .. (25.8). $1,78uf· . , . ., . 

<•l Utility gross margin is a nonaGAAP financial measure. See explanation of utility gross margin under Evergy's ·Results of Operations .. 
.' • 1 • • 

Westar Energy's utility gross margin decreased $25.8 )llillion in 2018 compared to 2017 driyen by: . 

. • a $69. 8 million provision for rate refund for the change in the corporate income tax rate caused by the 
passage of the TCJA. See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements for additional info~ation; and 
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• a $31. 0 million reduction in revenue for one-ti~e and annual bill credits •as a result of conditions in the 
KCC merger order. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information; partially 

. offset by 
' • a $75 .0 million increase primarily due to higher i:etail sales dri,ven by wanper spring a,nd summer weath~r. 

ai.{d c~lder wiriter weather. For 2018 compared to 20i'i; ~ooling degree days focrease4 29% ~n<l'heating 
qegree days increased 22%. · · · · 

Westar Ene~gy Other Operating Expe.nses (including operating arid.maintenance expense and taxes other thal) 
'income •tax) . . . i • . 

Westar e.nergy's other operating expenses increased $83.3 million in 2018 ·compared to 2017· primarily-driven by: 

I, 

· • $51.9 million of merger-related co~ts incurred following the close of the merger in June 2018, consisting of: 

u. 'i 

0 $44.2 million of change in control payments, voluntary severance and the recording of 
unrecognized equity compensation Costs and the incremental fair value associated with the vesting 
of outstanding Westar Energy equity compens·ation awards iri: accordance with the Amended · ·i -

- J\1erger Agreement; and · 

0 .• '$21.5 million of merger consulting fees and fees for other outside services incurred,priniarily 
· consisting of merger succ~ss fees; partially offset b)'. · · '; · .1, ,-,: · 

0 a $13;8 million decrease in operating and maintenance expense due to the net reallocation .. of 
incurred·merger transition costs between Westar Energy, Evergy, KCP&L and GMO and. the 
.subsequent deferral of these transition costs to· a re~latory asset in-June 2018 fo~ ·future reco~ery:. 
by Westar Energy in ·accordance with the KCC merger order; · · 

,.,,..!:,., . · · ·: .1/iJ' ,r}'·-·' 

• .. $12.3 'million of obsolete inventory.write-offs for Uui,t·7 at Tecumseh Energy Center, Units 3. and 4 at .. 
Murray Gill Energy Center and Units 1.and 2 at Gordon Evans Energy Center, which were retired in 2018; 
and ' · 

• a $5.5 million increase du'e to Westa~ Energy's 47% share of voluntary severance expenses incurred related 
-to the W9lf Creek voluntary ·exit-prograJn. · · · · ·· · "·· · 

- • . ' l . ,, ·~ ,~ ": 

' ' 
Westar Energy Depreciation and Amortization . 
Westar Energy's depreciation and amortization expense increased $19.2 million .in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily 
driven by .cap1tal additions. - . . . . . 

Westar Energy Other Income (Expense), Net ·· ·· 
1 

.. 

Westar Energy's other expen_se, net increased $6.7million in 2018 compared to 2017 prim~rily driven by: 

• a $4.6 'million .decrease in 'investrrient earnings primarily due to a decrease in interest and'ciivideiid iric6me; 
and · · 

a $3.5 million increase in pension non-service costs. 

. \ . . ' 

Westar Energy Income Tax Expenstf. . . . . · . . .· _ 
Westar Energy's income tax expense decreased $155.5 million iri'2018 compared to 2017 driv~n.by: ,,, 

' ' ' . 

i .. , .·. 

· • a $53.4 million decrease relatedto the revaluation of deferred income·.tax assets arid liabiHties,:i,ased on the . ' ·.. . . .• 

Eyergy composite tax rate as a result ofthe merger; . 
,: •• ' • •. ,r •• • ., , ' .• 

• a $58A million decrease due to lower pre-tax income; and 

• . a $44.3 million decrease as aresul_tofthe decrease in the federalsta:tufory 'income tax rate in 2018. 
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KA~S,:\S CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPA~Y 

MANAGEMENT'S NARRATIVE ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The below results of operations and related di~cmssion for KCP&L is presented in a reduced disclosure fonnat ip ·· 
accordance with General Instruction (I)(2)(a) to Form 10-K. 

The following table summarizes._KCP&L's comparative results of operations. 

2018 Change 2017 
(millions) 

Income tax expense 87.3 (40.9) 128.2 

KCP&L Utility Gross Margin and MW_h Sales 
The following table summarizes KCP&L's utility gross margin and MWhs sold. 

Revenues and Expenses MWhsSold 
· 2018 Change 2017 2018 Change 

Retail revenues (millions) (thousands) 

Commercial 794.8. (49.6) 844.4 7,782 . 3'!6 .. 7,466 

Other revenues . 75.5 30.7, 44.8 NIA NIA NIA 

<•l Utility gross margin is a non-GAAP fin~ncial measure. See explanation of utility gross margin under Evergy's Results of Operations.· · . . . . . ·. . ., .. 

KCP&L's. utility. gross.margindecreased,$107.5 minion in 2018 c,ompared to 2017 driven.by: , . 

• a $72.4 million refund obligation for the change in the corporate income tax rate caused by the passage of 
the TCJA. See Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements'foradditlonal information; · 

-• . $72.9 mi1lio11- of sales taxes and franchise .fees collected from KCP &L Missouri customers included in . 
revenue in 2017, which as part of KCP&L's adoption of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606, are 
now excluded from revenue in 2018; and 

• a $25 .. 0 million reduction in revenue for one-time and annual bill credits as a result of conditions in the 
MPSC and KCC merger orders. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements for additional 
information; partially offset by 
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• a $62.8 million increase primarily due to higher retail sales driven by warmer spring and summer weather 
and colder winter weather. For 2018 compared to 2017, cooling degree days increased 3 3 % and heating 
degree days increased 23%. · · 

KCP&L Other Operating Expenses (including operating and maintenance expense and taxes other than 
income tax) 
KCP&L's other operating expenses decreased $45.9 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by: 

.. 

• 

$72.2 million decrease in taxes other than income tax due to sales taxes and franchi~~ fees collected from 
KCP&L Missouri customers in 2017; which, as part ofKCP&L's adoption of ASC 606; Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers, are now excluded from taxes other than income tax in 2018; and. 

a $23 .2 million decrease in operating and maintenance expense due to the net reallocation of incurred 
merger :transition costs between KCP&L, Evergy, Westar Energy and GMO and the. s1,1bsequent d~fe1rnl. 9f 
these transition cost.s to a regulatory asset in June 2018 for future recovery by KCP&L in accordance with 
the KC<;:: and MPSC merger orders; partially offset by 

an $11.6 million increase due to voluntary severance expenses incurred related to KCP&L's 41% share of 
the Wolf Creek voluntary exit program as well as other KCP&L voluntary exit programs; 

$7.3 rri1llion of obsolete inventory write-offs for Montrose Station, which was retired in the fourth quarter 
of 2018; 

a $6.8 million increase in transmission and distribution operating and maintenance expense; and · 

a $6.9 million increase in injuries and damages expens~ primarily due to an increase in estimated worker's .• 
compensation losses. 

KCP&L Depreciation and Amortization 
' . 

KCP&L's depreciation and amortization increased $15.0 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by 
capital additions. · 

KCP&L 0th.er Income (Expense), Net . , 
KCP&L's other expense, net decreased $13.7 million in 2018 compared to 2017 driven by a $16.8 million decrease 
iri pension non-service costs due to KCP&L's adoption of ASU 2017-07, Compensation-Retirement Benefits, which 
requires the non-service.cost components to be reported separately from service costs and outside of a subtotal of 
income from operations. For retrospective application of the 2017 non-service cost components, KCP&L utilized 
the practical expedient that allows for the use of the amounts disclosed in a company's pension and other post
retirement benefit plan footnote as the· estimation basis for retrospective presentation. The 2017 amounts disclosed 

· in KCP&L's pension and. other post-retirement benefit plan footnote are presented prior to the effects of 
capitalization and sharing with joint owners of power plants. See Note 1 and Note 9 to the consolidated financial 
statements for additional information. · 

KCP&L Iricome Tax Expense · . . . 
KCP&L's· income tax expense decreased $40.9 million in 2018 compared to 2017 primarily driven by: 

• a $32.2 million de'crease in income tax expense as a tesultof the decrease in the federal statutory income 
tl)X rate in 2018; 

• a $22.5 in:illioti decrease due to lower pre-tax income; 

a ·$15 .5 million d~crease related to the revaluation of deferred income tax- assets 'and liabilities as a result of 
the enactment ofMissouri state income tax reform in June 2018; and 

• an $8.3 million decrease in income tax expense due to an increase in flow-through items primarily 
consisting of amortization of regulatory liabilities for excess deferred inconie taxes generated as a result of 
the enactment of the TCJA in December 2017; partially offset by · 

• a $51.0 million increase related to the revaluation of deferred income tax assets and liabilities based on the 
Evergy composite tax rate as a result of the merger. 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

In the ordinary course of business, Evergy faces risks that are either non-financial or non-quantifiable. Such risks 
principally include business, legal, operc;1tional and credit risks and are not represented in the following analysis. 
See Part I, Item lA, Risk Factors and Part II, Item 7, MD&A for further discussion of risk factors. 

The Evergy Companies are exposed to market risks associated with commodity price and supply, interest rates and 
equity prices: Commodity price risk is the potential adverse price impact related to the purchase or sale of 
electricity and energy-related products. Credit risk is. the potential adverse financial impact resulting from non- . 
performance by a counterparty of its contractual obligations. Interest rate risk is the potbntial adverse financial 
impact related to changes in interest rates. In addition, Evergy's investments in trusts to fund nuclear plant · 
decommissioning and to fund non-qualified retirement benefits giverise to security price risk. 

Management has established risk management policies and strategies to reduce the potentially adverse effects that 
the volatility of the markets may have on Evergy's operating results. During the ordinary course of business, the 
Evergy Companies' hedging strategies are reviewed to determine the hedging approach deemed appropriate based 

. upon the circumstances· of each situation. Though management believes ,its risk management pq1ctices are effective, 
it is not possible to identify and eliminate all risk. Evergy could experience losses, which could have a material · 
adverse effect on its results of operations or financial position, due to many factors, including unexpectedly large or 
rapid movements or disruptions in the energy markets, regulatory-driven market rule changes and/or bankruptcy or 
non-performance of customers or counterparties, and/or failure of underlying transactions that have been hedged to 
materialize. 

Hedging Strategies . 
From time to time, Evergy utilizes derivative instruments to execute risk management and hedging strategies. · 
Derivative instruments, such as futures, forward contracts, swaps or options, _derive their value frorri underlying .. 
assets, 'indices, reference rates or a combination of these factors. These derivative instruments include negotiated 
contracts, which are referred to as over-the-counter derivatives, and instruments listed and traded on an exchange. 

Commodity Price Risk , 
The Evergy Companies engage in the wholesale and retail sale of electricity and are exposed to risks associated with 
the price of electricity and other energy-related products. Exposure to these risks is affected by a number of factors 
including the quaritity and availability of fuel used for generation and the quantity of electricity customers corisume. 
Customers' electricity usage could also vary from year to year based on the weather oi other factors.· Qu;mtities of 
fossil fuel used for generation vary from year to year based on the availabiiity, price and deliverability of a given 
fuel type as well as planned and unplanned outages at facilities that use fossil fuels. Evergy's exposure to 

, fluctuations in these factors is limited by the cost-based regulation of its regulated operations in Kansas and 
Missouri as these operations are typically allowed to recover substantially all of these costs through cost-recovery 
. mechanisms, primarily through fuel recovery mechanisms. While there may be a delay in timing between when 
these costs are incurred and when they are recovered through rates; changes from year to year generally do not have 
a material impact on operating results ... 

Interest Rate Risk . . 

- Evergy manages interest rate risk and short- and long-term liquidity by limiting its exposure to variable interest rate 
debt to a percentage of total debt, diversifying maturity dates and, from.time to time, entering into interest rate 
hedging transactions. At December 31, 2018, 4% of Evergy's long-term debt was variable rate debt. Evergy also 
has short-term borrowings and current maturities of fixed rate debt that are exposed to interest rate risk. Evergy 
computes and presents information regarding the sensitivity to changes in interest rates for variable rate debt and 
current maturities of fixed rate debt by assuming a 100-basis-point change in the current interest rates applicable to 
such debt over the remaining time the debt is outstanding. 

Evergy had $1,747.0 million of variable rate debt, including notes payable and commercial paper, and current 
maturities of fixed rate debt as of December 31, 2018. A 100-basis-point change in interest rates applicable to this 
debt would impact income before income taxes on an annualized basis by approximately $12.5 million .. 
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At December 31, 2018, Evergy had $500.0 million of notional amounts of fixed-to-floating .interest rate swaps that 
had been designated as a cash flow hedge of a forecasted debt issuance in 2019. Assuming settlement of the swaps, 
a hypothetical 10% decrease in the interest rates underlying the swaps would have resulted in an approximately 
$12.8 million increase in interest expense that would have been reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive 
loss to interest expense over the period that the hedged interest payments affected earnings. 

Credit Risk '. 
Evergy is exposed to counterparty credit risk largely in the form of accounts receivable from its retail and wholesale 
electric customers and1through executory contracts with market risk exposure. The credit risk associated with 
accounts receivable from retail and wholesale customers is largely.mitigated by Evergy's large number of individual· 
customers spread across diverse customer classes and the ability to recover bad debt expense in customer rates .. The 
Evergy Companies maintain credit policies anµ employ credit risk control mechanisms, such as letters of credit, 
when necessary to minimize their overall credit risk and monitor exposure. 

Investment Risk • 
Evergy maintains trust funds, as required by the NRC, to fund its 94% share of decommissioning the Wolf Creek 
nuclear power plant and also maintajns trusts to fund pension benefits as well as certain non-qualified retirement 
benefits. As of December 31, 2018, these funds were primarily invested in a diversified mix of equity and debt 
securities and reflected at fair value on Evergy's balance -sheet. The equity securities in the trusts are exposed to 
price fluctuations in 'equity markets and the value of debt securities are exposed to changes in interest rates and 
other market factors. 

As nuclear decommissioning costs are currently recovered in customer rates, Evergy defers both realized and 
unrealized gains and losses for the vast majority of these securities as an offset to its regulatory asset for 
decommissioning Wolf Creek and as such, fluctuations in the value of these securities do not have a mat,erial impact 
on Evergy's earnings. A significant decline ili the value of pension or non-qualified retirement assets could require 
Evergy to increase funding of its pension plans in future periods, which could adversely affect cash flows in those 
periods. In addition, a decline in the fair value of these plan assets, in the absence of additional cash contributions 
to the plans by Evergy, could increase the amount of pension cost required to be recorded in future periods by 
Evergy. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC Accoifr~TING }'IRM 

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors ofEvergy, Inc. 

Opinion on the Finanfial:Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Evergy, Inc. and subsiqiaries (th,¥ '.'C::ompany") f!S 

of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the. related consolidated statements .of comprehem;ive iµ9ome, changes. in equity, , . 

and cash flows for eadµ of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, a:11d ,he reiated notes and the . 

financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15 ( collectively referred to as 'the 'Tn:iancial stateµients"). ·, . 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects1 th~ fau1ndhi position oftl:ib Company 

as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and Jts cash flo;~J9r,.eac~ c>f'ihe thtee y~ars hi' 
the period ended Dece~ber 31, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generalli accepted in the U11ited . 

·. St~tes of.America. . . · · ' · ·-:. · '·,. :· >:; .. ··k, ·. ' 1:i'·· · ,.iK. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accountµig OvfrsightBqard (tJnjted 

States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as ofDecember31',i01&; pased, Qn 

. criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Cohunttt~e of.$,ponsofi:qg .. 

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2019, expr~~§~4 ~n ~qµt}Ffif,t;: . 

opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting. · 

· Basis for Opinion 

These. financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management Our.re~ponsibjlity is,to expressJp,1,· 

opinion on the Company's financial statements based on. our audits .. We are a p-qblic acfb\llltitj.g firm. registei~ct ;with 

the. PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with th~·us. feder~t 

securities. laws and the applicabie rules and regulations of the Securities and Ex.change .¢ortw1issioµ · and tµe · 
-

- • i• t ..• ·,1 .,. •• I '. 

PCAOB. . . · . · .. · · 

• • r • , • • 

· We conducted our audits. in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. 1)iose standarqs require t,hat we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable &ssurance aboutwhether the fin'ancial-statemerit~ are free.of qrateHal · · 

misstatement, whether due to error ot fraud. Our audits i~cluded·perfonning prbcedure$ tq ~ssess the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and perf0~i:qg procedures that:· 

respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a t~stbasis, evidence r~~anfo1g the·amourtts artd 

disclosures in the financial statements .. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting p:ri!lciples usedand 

'significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall pre::;ent~tiqn1qftb~ finan9ial .. · ,,;: 

statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for olir opinion: ,, : · · : i,:, ··· .. ,,·:.,· < · 

Isl DELOiTTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 
Febru!1-iy'21, 2_019 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002. 

,_,: .. :. ;'j' 

.':' 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT'REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the shareholder and the Board of Directors of Westar Energy, Inc. 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Westar Energy; Inc. and Subsidiaries:(th~ 
"Company") as of December 31; 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, 
and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and.the related notes and the 
financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (collectively referred to as the ;'financial statements"). jrt 
our opinion, the financial statements present fl:!irly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as 
of December 31, 2018 and 20i 7; and.the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the 

·period ended December 31, 2018; in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States· . . 
of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements· are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our r~sponsibility is to express an 
opinion on the.Company's financial statements based on om audits. We are a public accounting firni registeredwith 

. the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) an:d are required to·be independent 
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securiti~s laws and the applicable rules and · 
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB .. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable .assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to 
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an'. 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the. 
effectiyeness of the Company's iqternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Our audits. included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether. due to error or fra"ud, and performing procedures that r~sp9nd to those risks. Such procedures included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits· . . . also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. · We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

Isl DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 
February 21, 2019 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM . 

To the shareholder and the Board of Directors of Ki~nsas City Power & Light Company 

Opinion on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kansas City Power & Light Company and 

subsidiaries (the '.'Company") as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated statements of 

comprehensive income, changes in.equity, anq cash.flows, for each of the three years in the period ended 

Decen;iber 31, 2018, and the related notes and the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 

(collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all · 

material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and· the results of its 

operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. .our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with 

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) an:d are required to be independent with 

respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations . 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission 'and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits-in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 

misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The.Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to 

· perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an 

und.erstanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oil the 

effectiveness of the Company's.internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
. . . . 

Our aud~ts included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to ~rror or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included 

ex~mining, on a test basis, evidence_regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits 

· also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 

. evaluating the overall presentation of the financia,l statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 

for our opinion. 

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 

February 21, 2019 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002. 
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EVERGY, INC. 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

Year Ended December 31' 2018 2017 2016 
(millions, except per share amounts) 

S 4,275.9 $ 2,571.0 · $ . 2,562.11 .. ' '" , ., . '. ! 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

259.9 247.9' 232.8 

1 ,,.nrPr.rn1,1nn and amortization 618.8 371.7 338.5 
[f~ifiiiei:Jl}~co~~< ~: ; .,2 .. '.,,. :,~::, .. :· .. · .,< .. ,; ,1,_........;; _ _;\_;'·2_6-9 __ .1..;.· .. _._ .. _;1::.;_._.;_' .... :"1_6_1_:6...;·•_••_.;_·........;;_..:.1_9_1_.1..J11 

... .. Tq~al 02erating Expenses . 3,342.3 1,892.2 1,859.7 
tw~o~FR()M o~tRAt~oNs,, ·· ;;• _ . ·'· ~- ·.~~ ·--~> ·-· ·· · ~=-· -.. = .. :~.:~ _.;· '----'--'-'-.9_3_3:_6.· ___ -"6_7_8._8-'-i --'-...;._, ·:_10.;...·2-...1Al 
OTHER (EXPENSE): 

- ·,1·,z-----,o;;,-·"7.'0'C"'_ ... 

Other income 15.5 8.3 
[~¥~~~~JJ~nsf_:_ " , ~- ' ~ ' . ··. ,· -- .; _____ :_ -. . ·---~:. ' (78.7) ,, (39.1) . : (38.6): 

· Total Other Income (Expense), Net · (54.4) (26.8) . (1.5) 
jinter~~(~xpense · ., -·.···· __ _.. .. ::. --~-·--·~-~~--'-·---:'. .... -~-~.:.~. •. 279.6 .171.0 l§L?j 
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 599.6 481.0 539.2 

· · U~~met.ax expense.~-- .• .. ·-. =~===---·: : .~ ·- .~·-··· --·-~· ___ _ -··--,..--··- ~P?:9 .... ~ ---· 1~!_:2_ ,. .... · J.8~2] Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net of income taxes 5.4 . 6. 7 · · · · 6'.5 

[~2:n:-J~OM§_ .... L -~:~dL' . ,-: . > 5,Lu~; s_':e: ~h :»~1.v·;.1f::._,, ,$4~;~» .. . < 4•~~;:;.~ .. :J~J,;2,l 
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 10.2 12.6 · 14.6 

l:tiJ;:Jfl).T~OME,;i\TTRP3U1'AI3!,,J;:.JO EyPRG)'.',.INC. $•. ..·. t5~5.8;;, $. ,." ;_3Z3.9? $. 346,6j 
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER AVERAGE COMMON SHARE 

OUTSTANDING ATTRIBUTABLE TO EVERGY (see Note I) 

Diluted earnings per common share 

Basic 213.9 142.5 142.1 1 F:>i1.;;te.4 , :- . · .. __ -- -----
• • - ,; • : ' ' ; • • :'. i. ;: • . ••• i, J14,l\ .. ; . }42.l> > •. 142,sl 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

[NllJJN<;:Orvi~ ... ,. . . - . .• 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Loss on derivative hedging instruments (5.4) 
l••\J11cdui'6talC,Det1efit

0 

•• .>;.;3,. ,··;,,.,---,,. ··. t'[ '. ~; ' "':>~'.''. ~~;;: _' _7<••._ ,·,·;,••· ~;'.f•·· ., .. y, }.4'' '. ~t.. ~-"~ ~ .. ·:. , .. I. . -.,··. -'-] 

Net loss on derivative hedging instruments (4.0) r &_:\''~ , ', ,.,,'/,0,;""',, -,;~s,~,~,<:=. ,,·,~- ," ?"~""'.''' ~L-,<;,"~""''Y~~-~o"-/~JS',--',-,~- ,_, ____ __:_;__ ___ __, _______ _ I " ~ Denva~ve hetlging activity; net c>K tax :· ··· · · · · _ • ( 4.0) , :_ ] 
Defined benefit pension plans 

-.. -·--···--·""••·-----------···-···---------.-·--··~--· 
Income tax expense (0.4) ri ~ef~ii_si_ng_~~ruil'_en_· O.c!:Jl<::09~_· ____ · _____ · ____ -_· _· _______ : ____ _;_1_._0--'-___ _;_ _ _;_ _ ___; _ _;_ _ _..;._..;_· __:I 

Change in unrecognized pension expense, net of tax 1.0 
[ To:tal oth!'!r c~preh,ensiveJoss ' . · .. ·. • _ . ·.ii ... ,--==--,1-_-__ -..c.;;-.. ·_-; __ - __ -, -•. -.. ... ·--·· ...__;____; ___ i:..' ""'p_ • ...;9:..t;.;._ _ _..;____.."--.:.-.___;_....._:......_..;_·'c"'".---'i 

Comprehensive incoll).e 543.0 336.5 361.2 L i:--e-. s-s3-c-ompi6he-ns-iv-e -in-~e attn-.. -.b-u-ta-b17 to non~u-tro-1§1-g-in-te-le-st-. -_. --:=-.. ,-1 -~:~---,-,~---- ., 10:r:--... ~--:-T2-.6-. ·. ;-- ----.•.. -_ -1-4-,.61 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO EVERGY, INC. . $ 532.8 $ 323.9 $ 346.6 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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EVERGY, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31 

2018 ,, , 2017-

ASSETS (millions, except share amounts) 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

The ·a~companying Notes :to Consolidated Fina~cial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 

./ 

··'.·:.'_'\ 
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

· Asset retirement obligations · 

, EVERGY, INC. 

Cons~lidated Balance Sheets 

rieceniber 31 

2018 2017 

(millions, excel'.~ share amounts), ,· 

637.3 . 380.0 

EQUITY: 

j.}g~~~h~[~~~~f-~~~t~~~~-~~,;~~~:17:11J~·f_ .. ·. ;·_l~~~;t,:,,:,·. ~-·~~;,,J-~::;,:.~}~33 
Coinmon stock - 600,000,000 shares authori_zed, without par value, 255,326,252 shares issued 

. (275,000,000 .shares authorized, $5 par value, 142,994,275 shares issued as of December 3J; 2017) • ,8,68!p 2,734.8 • 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3.0) 

""H""'::1.""-~-,~""'-.;t-L""".:~ta"~~il~i11~fx::~~,-~G~~i:;1~~~~1~gt~~li~~ill1. 
, Noncontrolling Interests · , · · , · (37.5), (47.7) 

~ltt~ii~1ffl1~'hi;~~~~~~~~~~~fi!:;":~:2:~:::i'~·-,,;:\ff;:!1!:!it!'1· 
The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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EVERGY, INC. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 2018 2017 · 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM (1)SED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: . . .. (millions) .. 

fNetincoineC{,:::'.; .·::_,; ..•.. ·.:;;:; ,:·. ·:\ ,,'.r.,.~· .. ):::f~/ .$ ··546.o· $. 3'36:50:/$'···36L2l 

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cailifrom operating act~7 · · · ,._ · ~ · ~:' 

.r .. Deprecia,jion,and (\mortizafion .. ·~ .. /,.~·:. :/h~:tj"'",··· L::.\::,;:,'/~·:. · .:;· :.c:• .~·/!£:··.··· .. ··. : .. 61§:,8:.: .. ···· ,311.10:.·.) .3:rs:S] 
. Amortization of nuclear fuel 43.6 32.2 26.7 

Changes in other assets · · 66.8 . 32.0 ' . 21 . .4 

LCl!apg~~!!i.ei:'lliffiIITties'J:{~/i.,: ···· i,.,:~\;~J'."·~.:·".,o,~5\t,f ''..~,r::;~?; ... :.,.~~,~j5.9):.: .. r, 19.3 ,"::s-: '.·· . .'23.3.! 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 1,497.8 912.7 803.8 

lCASH FCOWS'FROM q:JSEJ);IN) INVESTING;AC}'IVITIF:S:J,rz•'ff:,,;_,·r ,, · ··,·, ::3\{if::,,:,;?1 ·• . ,.: +§. : •. >~·,: ' ''" :;.::: .,: >,:·· ' l 
, · Additions ~o property, plant an~ equipment . . (1,069;7) (764.6) (1,087.0) 

r·ca1s11,apcillife4ffr0:1inthe,merger:~ith;Oreil:Plaiijs·$ne.r~)£:.,'1:.rci::·~1\ti:;;fr;;_:::p,· ·.~.,,~;·t~·"::·~.;:4 'i.~·flJis47t5D:.'i:···•·,·.~;;~~:;'.0:::,;,·'{'.:1 
L",,,.s~, ,~, 0,,~, ,;._;,, h,;.,;;,,,-,,.,.,,~'"-"''~'"'""''-\co""'"-" -~""'"~¢ " ~,,_,,~ ~ ~~~,--,~-"""' .,-,.,,,..,,,..',>.,,,'-"-""""'~'lB • -- .....-.~· ' ,,.,.,1-,.,~~0 ""~'°"" ',;.~,· -""'"""""'' ~~ '-"'=""'°'"°''"'"'"''~''3 \, '°" ,JiA,' ,,,;i,,;, ,'W _,-,,,....,"'~"-X ·,' ~/,,~- ·\c.« ',~ • .,o ·,..-,,., •. , ,/' ~"'""'"'"""""''(,,~, '"°" "~o,h.'' \s ,,;.,,l w,,~..,.,.,\ ... ;I ,'ij 

Purchaseofsecurities-trusts . , (117.5) ' (41.0) (46.6) 

~le ofse'cuptii'.\s - trusts , ,:•ff;. ,~. _ 7?~~;;,!>~j · :\~:±> ·~~~Ho/'.7 ··•·• . >\}H.2~ ', c·41,.0J 

Investment in corporate-owned life insurance , (17.1) (17.0) {18.1) 

I P~ee<!ff[2ffiinv~iment iaqorp~w:1;edjify;ih,surarice .. ·' _:,:~r:.;':.5 ,.· .. ·· ~.:_ . S: ~; ~~=~2~~-·~4'.2~-:~:rj:J~1:,. 
~roceeds· from settlement of interest r~te swap ' ' · ' 140.6' • ~ 

~~.~~~1td~.~~~ldlli~-;~Ii~!~~\11~~111~~fl 
Cash Flows from (used in) Investing Activities · 197.4 (780.8), (994.1) 

l G:A_S~ FLOWS FR.QM (!1-SED IN).!J.!'i.~CING;ACTIV1TIES: ·.·: . ' : ~- '.· . •< ;ci'.l}' ' 1. / ,;, /$~ : '. ' ·;3SJ:• < 0: ·' .":_j 
Short term 

Retirements oflong-term debt .(395.8) . (125.0) · (50.0) 

fRet~ements oflohg-terrri deb!;~fvariable interesf~iliilies ... ·; ·~r._...:c,~ , .~_,7,7:: : . ·' . _.(~8.5)"-'·--·-· Q6;8L ·>". (190.4}j 

Borrowings against cash surrender value of corporate-owned life insurance . 56.5 55.1 57 .8 

~P}!Y}Ilenlofborrowings ag~IlS} cas];J. suirender;y~lue ofcow,.2raje,9,)Yileqlife insurance: i ..•... < ••• -~~~~~£ ... ::~9 .3): 

Cash dividends 

Other financing activities (21.3) (15.7) (8.1) 

I Cash Flows from (used in) Financing Activiti~~ (1,538.4) (131.6L 190.2 I 
NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 156.8 0.3 (0.1) 

'CASH, CASHEQUIVALENTS AND RESTRl:C'.fED:CASH: . . .:.,,;,; . ' . .. ' ;: . . • < :, ' • I 
L~'~•M=~=-·~ ,,.. '""~'"'""''""'"'"~~-. -~- .,,.,..-.,,,,m,~~~~--» "S,~~ ·"· '-·--s0-~w,• ,N ,,.,,..,,~-.,~-"'-,,,.,~wk< ,.,~,=""·' . -~,-,- 0,. ,-··-' '•- '~w,,,,,,..,0,.;;.,.. .. ~ _ _, --·~"''"'""w--"'~~-,,._,N,-«-~' --- -' ~,,-.. ~ ' -· ,. ,~">«~~,· ~~- • ~-~·- --- -- ~-- 0,,0".» ••""'"""" =•··-,~-""' J....! 

Beginning of period, including restricted cash of $0.1, $0.1 and $0.1, respectively 3.5 3.2 3.3 

~nd ofperibd, iticluding restricted cash of$0.o:]o.tand $0.l;·respecHvelX . ",i~:··2,•>" : $ .·· • 160.3 . $ 3:5 ' $, 3.2 l 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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EVERGY,'INC . 

. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

. ~yer.gy, Inc. Shareholders 

Dividends declared on common stock ($1.52 per share)· 

Common 
stock shares 

Common 
stock 

Non-
Retained controlling : .-· Total 
earnings . · AOC! . in(erests equity 

(217.1) (217.1) 
T"'#_'.T'"'TTTTTT=·~•=·=g,_~..,...,..,,,---<?='"'7•-,,..,,TTT'"'70~--,.,., .• ,,.,.,-,,.~7~•'"'7=7:wo~r,C""l"'"77TT;•=~=,,.,.,,.,.,,.,...,..~'""''=•·,·,""2~":''1 

Issuance of stock 12,131 0.6 0.6 

··s.s 
i1!)e~oiisillidat1ori ofncfn'~htrollu:f'" tfrt~ . 
U11~'k,,~~.d;,';.1Li.~i2\.i.~,:,.,:,,~~~~M.iS~.;L:.:...t.;£&.£&.2t:;'z, . . < • fr.~k:}' ' . ;~2] 
Distributions to shar~holders ofnoncoiltrolling interests - , · - · ·, .• ,,,.;:·(5.7) .,;.,, · (5.7) 

11~1a11£e·~sl9£:Dece~pfftl~"t~::~~~},2.flz(;~g~·;.:f::1,1t;;H2,09,i,7~~',J .• ·:'~ll~1:&.tt .. :1;n:q· :,:-,::~~;'''!,· . :t .. ~::g~j!i_(~1:1)/ 1'!~i86Q)i~ 
Net income - 535.8 10.2 546.0 

~rJ~~aiiceio.t~fu'~t 
C:r~?...":"1\'1 ~ :...2t'"'itlLU. , ·< · 

Issuance of restricted common stock 122,505 

. Tax withh()Jding related to stock compensation (17.2) (17,2) 

Repurchase of common stock (16,371,319) (1,042.3) (1,042.3) 

Change in unrecognized pension expense, net of tax 1.0 1.0 

[9I~~:~w~1:.,_·.· .~q,j'.{~".' ,&f~J,~71T'.:~:'"'~~~[:~·~'J0;j~~~~~~~~·}Ij:~. ·.,}ii~i~;·~ ._-. ,•:,'.;~If:8s;~ 
Balance as of December 31, 2018 255,326,252 $ 8,685.2 $ 1,346.0 $ (3.0) $ (37.5) $ 9,990.7 

The accompanying Notes to Consolic!ated Financial-.Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year Ended December 31 2018 2017 2016 

(millions) 

[OfpR:ATir;sGRE\lE~E~.:,,:..> · 
, OPERATING EXPENSES: 

---------~--------------·-·--"------~·· . . --1 
. ., • , $ 2,614.9 $ 2,571.0 $ 2,562.1, 

- - ~--. ~ '..'' -"'~-~-- f-----~~ . ' ' 

SPP network transmission costs 

Depreciation and amortization 

fI€F[otl;}er.!~d11c~rrift~~~ J,_ ~.::~ . ·.· . :. _ . ·:_ ·_· ::. "': 173:7 ' . · .... 167;6 · .,· ·.' '.'>191.Tj 
Total Operating Expenses 2,064.4 1,892.2. ·1• 1,859.7 

~MEFMMOPE~iO!\I~~: -~~ >"' .•. ;: ·::·. i ! \_'.: . ······ 550.5 -·· .... '; 6'78.8 7; :, ·-,•'.792:4{1 
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE): 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 340.2 481.0 

Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net of income taxes 

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 10.2 12.6 

. (NE;£ ING9Iv$ 4IfTRJ.BUTAJ31,J?,,TQ,.~ST~ gNBRG,Y,;INc. ,, .. . · $ ·. 338 .. 9 Si $i ~.i3.~ 

· The disclosures regarding Westar Energy, Inc. include<l in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated.Financial Statements are an integral part of.these 
· . stateinerits. 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December31 

2018 2017 

ASSETS '(millions, eX:cept,share amounts)_ 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

Receivables, net 84.3 290.7 

Accounts receivable pledged as collateral 185;0 

Income taxes receivable 42.7 

The disclo~ures regarding Westar Energy included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financia!' Statements are an integral part of these stat~ments, 
. . . ... •. '· 
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Current maturities of long-term debt of variable interest entities 

Collateralized note payable. 

Related party payables 

Accrued taxes 

Other 

Long-term debt of variable interest entities, net 

Unamortized investment tax credits 

Other 

Westar Energy, Inc. Shareholder's Equity: rr:~-z v~ock :,r r-Jii'~in\ut~zdi, $~:9{t,ar >;afue:. nh~f~'.isfued {2~~;ooQ,(j&f~ba!es •. ----• O 
1,~:L .$s·pa J-,>~j:~11,~·11:2,03t83~~:-~9'.11:~~j~s~~a,~~;9~pe,~~~B~~~-~r~2::?EK:·.'.~_·/::~ 

December31 

2018 2017 
(millions, except share amounts) 

30.3 

185.0 

-14.9 

88;6 87.7 

51.1 81.4 

249.7 257.1 

130.7 133.3 

Retained earnings - 1,260.6 
l_ · Toi~l:WesfarEnergy; hlc,~Share~older's:Equity - , . -._ ; .·_· ).'·:-'. ·- -·-: .. -. - - / .;;, .'f,", .. : :: o_·'s'_t_;''.-C'.,""':-3,-9-9g __ ,....2--.;-.,:,--,:(,...K"";;-1-,3-,9-0..,..8-/~-J.,...,:· 

' , 
0 

--- '\ o '- ----~ ,.,.<'(o ·,\_v_ -·- .,,_,,
1 

' =-----~---~ ' ~_,_,,__ __ ~-------=--~~-
Noncontrolling Interests (37.5) (47.7) 

[:~t?ElfouJhk·-~vi~":(·:J:-E3=2§J?y_-~-~\tY'v~-::~--;{;L~~-<·~- .·-'._;;?,;:.~-;;:·3,960.t-··-·--•i.;:;:3,86Q.4_:;j 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 11,816.8 $ 11,624.4 

The disclosures regarding Westar Energy included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated financial Statements are an'integral part of these statements. 



WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 2018 2017 2016 
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (millions) 
Net income $ 349.1 $ 336.5 $ 361.2 

··mrn ••:••;••,c,, c.s;,·r,·,•-;,~·;: :c 

Other financing (21.2) (15.7) (8.1) 
~1~~:;llil~1[i$1i~~~(ii~][i1:RhiR&t1fAc]v't~~i1:2ri:;1~iti1~!tR~r~;,1f1i1r:;r;1¥~1f:1:~JrD~"~[JiN0~11;~:i]J;t:~t;''·.i:"~.<i~s:1i,r: 1.,::er~m;in:t:i:1i;~;,fg<1ti:i 
NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 41.0 0.3 (0.1) 

-~~,~~~~B'.i'.E~p1;y,@E\gJ'Si~Q\R~~I.fil~tEii'§~S§:3:::~··1~.,:;;::41:~2;:0,t.j;F"'.1:3;';~~:·f.Q!",:g~:/;;;1:li':~1y:;~;,j~:;;t;.e:;;•;:;i:;i'?i:':i!fil;§,)l]tj 
Beginning of period, including restricted cash of $0.1, $0.1 and $0.1, respectively 3.5 3.2 3.3 

l:l!°llEild:~'f?iit!b'o.; :in'91!l~iiigres1Jic:t(.'d\:a$l;f 9{$Q1f);t$Q:1~~aJ:fO}l ~'.iespfcij~ely:,·1;:;:;;'.;'/fl'J!.l:;~i:;,;;1::,),;,:·••11,:1::j sJ,,,,·'li)fi;$,t;$'};.:1!:'/~;~i:', $;i2 ,:;11f31~\j 

The disclosures regarding Westar Energy included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these. statements. 
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WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Ch~nges in Equity 

.- Westar Ener~, Inc. Sha_reholders 

Non-
Common 

stock shares 
Common. 

stock 
Retained controlling 
earnings · c interests Total equity -

( millions, except share amounts) 

Issuance of stock compensation and reinvested dividends 389,626 - 9.7 9.7 

Dividends declared on common stock (217.1) 

Distributions to shareholders ofnoncontrolling interests 
., 

(2.5) (2.5) 

-Balance as of December 31, 2016 141,791,153 2,727.3 1,078,6 27;3 3,833:2 

Issuance of stock 12,131 0.6 0.6 

Distri_butions to shareholders ofnoncontrolling interests · (5.7) _ ,(5.7) · 

-~~1!~fl~~~~i~~~iZ:~·;Jl~ITTu~~w1;'~~:1t4~~0~1~2~5'.ff5;;~~~'Z}73ff~~;;'~ff:,l"~;\\}f,il?3;~i~'":2\li:t!lW(J4W7;)~~;(;~'1t~!~6o:~l! 
Ne_t incol,lle 338.9 10.2 349.1 

Sto.ck cancell_ed pursuant to Amended Merger Agreement (1_42,611,264) 

-Dividends declared on common stock 

-~~~~!~!i~~~~";;;•i®~,1~} 
(251.6) (25h(i) 

· Other 0,1 - 0.1 

The disc_losures re$arding Westar Energy included iri "th~ accompanying Notes to ·consojidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements .. 
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Year Ended Dec·ember 31 

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

2018 2017 2016 

(millions), 

[opgR,ATIN'QRp"fNU~§, ,:_1_:': :.~ .. :,)2.~r~~·4''D::t.':. $. ·,t,823,1,, ,$; >1,890.7 .. $;;;-·l]1s::q 
OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Operating and maintenance 494.2 474.8 502.0 

Investment earnings 2.8 2.0 0.6 

· Interest expense 138.8 139.4 
[~CQMf B~FORBIN(:;OME;J;'AXES;~ ·• ,:;;,._,;:y<-~: ~02~.:_s~ ..... --"'-_ .... -'--.,-'--..C,..:.,,,_. • '. t ~250.2 ·. . . 308.o: .~ .. ·. 34~:2.J 
Income tax expense 87.3 128.2 · 121.9 

~t,;INQOM,i;:'.,., , ,, , ) ... ~·. 'I! .itr ,;,,: $ .:,;·162.9 '$ ,179.8/ $ ·225.0j 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

'""''"""'~rn,..,u,,vu to expenses, net of tax: 4.6 5.4 
! · .. ·~ .. J)erivati~ ~edgin& activity; net:'oftaX:. · • / .~::: '~::, . :;;_,.l_.,· .. · : . ;._-'-'_ ........ ___________ ·_4_.6'-·._-'------5"""A __ ·I 
Total Other Comprehensive Income 3.7 4.6 5.4 

f C.OMPREHENSfVEINCOME~----,:-'-'>,o--•T;;-·.· -:"7'"~-~~--- ,$ 16~.6: $ 184.4 2J0;.4,l 

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included.in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these· statements. 
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KANSAS CITY POWER& LIGHT'COMPANY 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

December 31 

2018 2017 

ASSETS (millions, except share amounts) 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

Income taxes receivable 5.4 

[J:~::;,r:otar otfier ~ss&rs:~-~-x:,-. · ··'.i7~~0~1.~~-:.-F;';'.·f~···~;R~S-:T~~<•,;?~::::{~ri:·~ ·.·•1'.:-· •• 7~9,9··;~;'.· ,;_;1 ·. ·· 

TOTALASSETS $ 8,120.5 . . $ 

!he disclosures regarding KCP&L included· in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. · 
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES: 

Accrued interest· 

Asset retirement obligations 

Long-term debt, net 

KANSAS CITY POWER& LIGHT COMPANY 

Consolid.ated Balance Sheets 

---------·----------·-··------··-·--·------~--------------------------~----~---

Unamortized investment tax credits 

Pension and post-retirement liability 

Other . 

December 31, 

. 2018 2017 

28.9 32.4 

29.2 34.9 

2,130.1 2,232.2 

120.7 121.8 

491.9 512;2 

81.8 61.6 

: 4,482.4 _ \' · : 4i54l:f2 J r ;;•! Tqtall,';ohg~TerniLfa~il~~-Ci'' :r_. a_ • ,. --~ ~: > :f. :~ q~~-2 .. 1 
·:, -~-'------'------'-'--------

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 14) 

Common stock- 1,000 shares authorized, without par value, 1 share issued, stated value 1,563.1 1,563.1 
e- Retained e.amings __ _ 

Accumulated other compr~hensive income 4.1 0.4 · f _; _ Total.EqyitY; .· . . .- ... ;~~=· :i ~-~---__ ___ -._ :~-= ===· 2=·· ,=4=~9=·=8======··=2=;5=1=3i1:.,2=·-=-1 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 8,120.5 $ 8,123.9 

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these stat~ments." · 
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 2018 2017 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: (millions) 

fN~Ht:icg1~~':,·l;;;f·,:.l;:t\~·'1'.i;.,::.•·+••·:L',0:\)\f.';•~".r·.'+:•:JJ.•·.;:•,1.•.;1;•,·i:.;n0:,:.,;~·~·.·:~:;~.····.i.:,i{.\:;1~{•,>,:;.)~,.,.1.!l1;!}.;••.•$\'.hn?'i8\:'···$).;~~~:~~ 
to reconcile incorrie to net cash from activities: 

Amortization of nuclear fuel 26.2 32.1 -26.6 

Net deferred income taxes and credits 48.6 82.5 92.4 

Accrued taxes 16.1 9.1 67.9 

Sale of securities - trusts 27.1 30.3 28.6 

The disclosures regarding KCP&L included in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

Common 
stock 
shares 

Common 
stock 

Retained 
earnings 

AOCI-Net 
gains 

(losses) on, 
cash flow 

hedges 

/.· 

'Total equity 

(rriillions, except share amounts) 

Net income \ 225.0 

Derivative hedging activity, net of tax , 

!~ai]!!it~:~j!~i:o,~°c"~~~~i;'~t/;29~~ ::;,;;~;:;1:;~;Ji·.'r':1,,:[!':;•ii1!;i'1:i;r: :.:;;;1;:''.•·!V:~:;t!);~: -~~:'i1;5~?i1.'.:,,:1,:; :''i:;''0 982.6··.1 · 
Net income 179.8 

Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 1,563.1 $ 932.6 $ 

· 225.0 

5.4 5.4 
. '<I. ' .• (lt-J) :', •' • • '> •2,~tt,p j 

1}9.8 

2;499.8 · 

The disclosures regarding KCP&L incjuded in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial .statements are an integral part of these statements. 
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EVERGY, INC. 
WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 
KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

Combined Notes to Consolidated Financial St_atements 

The notes to consol~dated financial statements that follow are a combined presentation for Evergy, Inc., Westar 

Energy, Inc. and Kansas City Power & Light Company, all registrants under this filing. The terms "Evergy," 

"Westar Energy," "KCP&L'~ arid "Evergy Companies" are used throughout this report. "Evergy"-refers to Evergy, 

Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated. "Westar Energy" refers to Westar Energy, Inc. and 

its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated.· "KCP&L" ref(,rs to Kansas City Power & Light Company 

and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated, "Evergy Companies" refers to Evergy, Westar Energy 

and KCP&L, collectively, which are individual registrants within the Evergy consolidated group. 

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization · 
Evergy is a public utility holding company incorporated in 2017 arid headquartered in Kansas City, Missouri. 

·Evergy operates primarily through the follow1ng wholly-owned direct subsidiaries: 

• Westar Energy is ~mintegrated, regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers in the state of 

Kansas. Westar Energy has one active wholly-owned subsidiary with significant operations, Kansas Gas 

and Electric Company (KGE). · 

• KCP&L is an integrated, regulated electric utility that provides electricity to customers in the states of 

Missouri arid Kans,as. 

• KCP&L Greater Missouri Operations Co_mpany (GMO) is an integrated, regulated electric utility that 

provides electricity to customers in the state of Mi§souri. · 

• GPE Transmission Holding Company, LLC (GPETHC) owns 13.5% ofTransource Energy, LLC 

(Transource) with the remaining 86.5% owned by AEP Transmission Holding Company,' LLC, a subsidiary 

of American Electric Power Company, Inc. (AEP). Transource is focused on the development of . 

·competitive electric transmission projects. GPETHC accounts for its investment in Transource under the 
equity method. · 

Westar Energy also owns a 50% interest in Prairie Wind Transmission, LLC (Prairie Wind), which is a joint venture 

between Westar Energy and affiliates of AEP and Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company.· Prairie Wind owns a 108-

mile, ~45 kV double-circuit transmission line that provides transmissiori seryice in the Southwest Power Pool, Inc. 

(SPP). Westar Energy accounts for its investment in Prairie Wind under the equity' method. 

Westar Energy and KGE conduct business in their respective service territories using the name Westar Energy. 

KCP&L and GMO conduct business in their Fespective service territories using the name KCP&L. Collectively, the 

Evergy Companies have approximately 14,500 MWs of owned generating c.apacity an~ renewable purchased power 

agreements and engage in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity to approximately 1.6 

million customers in the states of Kansas and Missouri. 

Evergy was incorporated in2017 as Monarch Energy Holding, Inc. (Monarch Energy), a wholly-o~ned subsidiary 

of Great Plains Energy Incorporated (Great Plains Energy). Prior to the closing of the merger transactions, Monarch 

Energy changed its name to Evergy and did not conduct any business activities other than those required for its 

formation and matters contemplated by the Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 

9, 2017, by and among Great Plains Energy, Westar Energy, Monarch Energy and King Energy, Inc. (Kin'g Energy), 

a wholly-owned subsidiary of Monarch Energy (Amended Merger Agreeme;nt). On June 4, 2018, in accordance 

with the Amended Merger Agreement; Great Plains Energy merged into Evergy, with Evergy surviving the merger 

.and King Energy merged int9 Westa~ Energy, with Westar Energy surviving the merger. These merger transactions . 

resulted in Evergy becoming the parent entity of Westar Energy and the direct subsidiaries of Great Plains Energy, 

including KCP&L and GMO. See Note 2 for additional information regarding the merger. 
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Principles of Consolidation 
Westar Energy was determined to be the accounting acquirer in the merger and thus, the predecessor of Eyerg'y .. 
Therefore, Evergy's consolidated financial statements reflect the results of operations of Westar Energy for 2017 and 
2016 and the financial position of Westar Energy as of December 31, 2017. Evergy had separate operations for the 

' period beginning with the quarter ended June 30, 2018, and references to amounts.for periods after the closing of 
the merger·relate to Evergy. The results of Great Plains Energy's direct subsidiaries have been included in Evergy's 
results of operations from the· date of the closing of the merger and thereafter. · 

Westar Energy and KCP&L continue to be Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registrants. KCP&L has . 
elected not to apply "push-down accounting" related to the merger, whereby the adjustments of assets and liabilities. 
to fair value artd the resulting goodwill would be recorded on the financial statements of the acquired subsidiary. : 
These adjustments for KCP&L, as well as those related to the acquired assets and liabilities of Great Plains Energy 
and its other direct subsidiaries, are only reflected on Evergy's consolidated financial statements. 

Each ofEvergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's consolidated financial statements includes the accounts of their· 
subsidiaries and variable interest entities' (VIEs) of which they are the primary beneficiary. Undivided interests in 
jointly-owned generation facilities are included on a proportionate basis. Intercompany transactions have been 
eliminated. The Evergy Companies assess financial performance and allocate resources on a consolidated basis 
(i.e., operate in one segment). 

Certain changes in dassification and corresponding reclassification of prior period data were made in Evergy's, 
Westar Energy's and KCP&L's consolidated balance sheets, statements of income and comprehensive. income and 
statements of cash flows for comparative purposes. · Evergy reflects the classifications of Westar Energy as the 
accounting acquirer in the merger. These reclassifications did not affect Evergy's, Westar Energy's or KCP&L'.~ net 
income or Evergy's, Westar Energy's or KCP&L's cash flows from operations, investing or financing. · · 

Most significantly for Westar Energy's consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017, ;~s the . 
reclassification of $50.2 million from accrued employee benefits ( currently reported as pension and post-retirement· 
liability) to other long-term liabilities. Most significantly for KCP&L's consolidated balance sheets, current 
regulatory assets and liabilities have been presented separately from the non-current portions in each respective 
consolidated balance sheet where recovery or refund is expected within the next 12 months. 
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The table below summarizes KCP&L's reclassifications related to operating and investing activities for its 

consolidated statement of cash flows for 2017 and 2016. 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Adjustments to reconcile income to net cash from operating activities: 

Amortization of deferred refueling outage 
''7- .. , . __ ... ·-· ·•,•o• 

Investment tax credit ~mortization 

Changes in working capital items: 
p.-"- ~.,-.. -.,-:- .. ·· .· .. - .... · .. "" ··-· 
rt Fuel inventory and supplies, . 
L--- . . -·-· .... ,,_ .... ________ --· 

Fuel inventories<•) 

expenses· and other current assets 

! .•. Other c~entliabi11ties -
/•'·''·- --· ,<,, ' .,;,. '•··· ,,,/' ··-···< "'"·~··· ,' 
Changes in other assets 

Deferred refueling outage 

2017 2016 

. As 
·' Previously 

As 
Previously 

Filed As Recast Filed As Recast 

"(In millions) ' 

18.3 19.0 

(1.0) ,· (1.0) 

1.9 10.6 

31.7 66.5 

~nsion aridpost~r~tirementbenetit obligationi<•) ' ' ',, ' ; ! '', 
--- . --~--~--~---- ' --·-·--·-·---·------' -- ' . ---~-----~---·-·----------~----··-:--~-

Fuel recovery mechanisms<•) · 

[Totatieclassificatfons .- . , $ 124.1 , ,$ . 124.l 105.8: 
' ' ',i 

Utility capital expenditures 

llow~e for boirowed funds us~d durfug ('{\1'l"tr11t't1 

Other investing activities 

[J:otal~i;~clas,s(fications · 

(437.7) (418.8) 

(23.9) 0.9 (23.8) (0.3) 

. $ · (4§7.7) ,. $ (;467/11 ,$ (4482) ,$ :(448.:Z); 

.<•)Previously reported within Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements of the Great Plains Energy and KCP&L combined 2017 and 2016 

Annual Reports on Form 10-K. 

Use ofEstimates 
The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 

requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain types of assets, liabilities, 

revenues and expenses. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as_ of the date of the 

financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may differ from estimated amounts. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with originai'maturities of three months or less at acquisition. 
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Fuel Inventory and Supplies 
The Evergy Companies record fuel inventory and supplies at average cost. · The following table separately states the 
balances for fuel inventory and supplies. 

December 31 

2018 2017 
Evergy (millionst 

Supplies _ 342.1 199.5, 

I- Fµel inveµtory and supplies :::· 293:61 

- Westar Energy 

Supplies _ 189.0 199.5 
----------

! .- .. :\3uyl iµvyntory a!ld supplies . _ 2Q3:6l 
KCP&L<al 

Supplies 119.8 126.0 
r-o---- 2?-~-~ 
r. Euelin\;ent9ry and supplie$ · .171.6 ... J '. . --, .. -lQJ._OJ 
<•l KCP &L amounts are not included in consolidated :Evergy at December 31, 2017. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
The Evergy Companies record the value of property, plant and equipment, including that of variable interest entities 
(VIEs), at cost. For plant, cost includes, contracted services, direct labor and materials, indirect charges for 
engineering and supervision and an allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents·· _ 
the allowed cost of capital used to finance utility construction activity. AFUDC equity funds are includ~d as a non~ · 
cash item in other income and AFUDC borrowed funds are a reduction of interest expense. AFUDC is computed by 
applying a composite rate to qualified construction work in progress. The rates used to compute gross AFUDC are -
compounded semi-annually. . , 

. . 

The amounts of the Evergy Companies' AFUDC for borrowed and equity funds are detailed in the-followin~ tabie. 

2018 2017 _- _2016 

AFUDC equity funds 3.1 2.0 11.6 

Westar Energy 

AFUDC equity funds 2.9 2.0 11.6 

L Tot~l--~-~ .. ___ - ~- ·,: .- . ---~~~-$-;1, :,9.5;'_ $· ·'-7f·_,;,$.:~-'1._-_4,1Jj 
KCP&L<al - . 

AFUDC equity funds 1.4 6.0 6.6 
[-- _ Total · · · · - · · -- · · · · ·- · -----, · , $ :6.3 $ 12.1 .$ 12.21 
(a)KCP&L amou_nts are only included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018 through December 31, 

2018. . - - . . 
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The average rates used in the calculation of AFUDC are detailed in the following table. 

2018 
!Westar.Energy · · .·. · ··· •. . . ·. · · ·. ·.. · 
k , • ... ----~ • -:v - • ---,._~-""'-~-~--~ ---~.~--NO ' -------- 3.3% 

KCP&L 

fQMQ:, 0 ".. . · .. ,· , .. · ,, 

2017 

2.3% 

2016 
'·.4.2% 

5.7%. 

1.6% 

When property units are retired or otherwise disposed, the original cost net of salvage is charged to accumulated 
depreciation. Repair of property and replacement of items not considered to be units of property are expensed as 
incurred, except forplanned refueling and maintenance outages at Wolf Creek Generating Station (Wolf Creek). As 
authorized by regulators, the expense is deferred and amortized ratably over the period between planned oµtages 

. I . . 

incremental maintenance cost incurred for such outages. · . 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Depreciation and amortization of utility plant other than nuclear fuel is computed using the straight-line method 
over the estimated lives of depreciable property based on rates approved by state regulatory authorities. Annual 
depreciation rates average approximately 3%. Nuclear fuel is amortized to fuel expense based on the quantity of 
heat produced during the generation of electricity. See Note 7 for more details. 

I 

The depreciable lives of Evergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's property, plant and equipment are detailed in the 
following table. 

Evergy Westar Energy KCP&L 

'(years) 
- . . . . ' . . . 

8. to 8 to 

Tran~mission facilities 15 to 94 36 to 94 to 70 

Other 5 to 84 7 to 84 5 to 50 

Plant to be Retired, Net 
When the Evergy Companies retire utility plant, the original cos.t, net. of salvage, is charged to accumulated 
depreciation. However, when it becomes probable an asset will be retired significantly in advance of its original 
expe~ted useful life and in the near term, the cost of the asset and related accumulated depreciation is recognized as 
a separate asset arid a probable <!,bandonment. If the asset is still in service, the net amount is classified as plant to 
be retired, net on the consolidated balance sheets. If the asset is no longer in service, the net amount is classified as 
a regulatory asset on the consolidated balance sheets. 

The Evergy Companies must also assess the probability of full recovery of the remaining net book value of the 
abandonment. The net book value that may be retained as an asset on the balance sheet for the abandonment is 
dependent upon amounts that may be recovered through regulated rates, including any return. An impainnent 
charge, if any, would equal the difference between the remaining net book value of the asset and the· present value of 
the future revenues expected from the asset. 

In June 2017, GMO announced the expected retirement of certain older generating units, including GMO's Sibley 
No. 3 Unit, over the next several years. GMO determined that Sibley No. 3 Unit met the criteria to be considered 
probable of abandonment. GMO retired Sibley Station, including the No. 3 Unit, iri November 2018. As of 
December 31, 2018, Evergy has classified the remaining Sibley No. 3 Unit net book value of $159.9 million as 
retired generation facilities within regulatory assets on its consolidated balance sheet. Evergy is currently allowed a 
full recovery of and a full return on Sibley No. 3 Unit in rates and has concluded that no impairment is required as 
of December 31, 2018. 
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Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs 
Nuclear plant decommissioning cost estimates are based on either the immediate dismantlement method or the 
deferred dismantling method as determined by the KCC and MPSC and include the costs of decontamination, 
dismantlenierit and site restoration. Based ori these cost estimates, Westar Energy and KCP&L cont1ibute to a tax
qualified trust fund to be used t.9 decommission Wolf Creek. Related liabilities for decommissioning are included 
on Evergy's;Westar Energy's and KCP&L'~ consolidated balance sheets in Asset Retirement Obligations (AROs). 

·Asa result of the authorized regulatory treatment and related regulatory accounting, differences between the 
decommissioning trust fund asset and the related ARO are recorded as a regulatory asset or liability. See Note 6 for 
discussion of AROs including those associated with nuclear plant decommissioning costs. 

-Regulatory Accounting · 
Accounting standards are applied that recognize the economic effects of rate regulation~ Accordingly, regulatory 
assets and liabilities have bee_n recorded when required by a regulatory order or based on regulatory precedent. See 
Note 5 for additional information concerning regulatory matters .. 

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance. 
Amounts related to corporate-owned life insurance (COLI) are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets in other 
long-terms assets and are. detailed in the following table for Evergy. Substantially all of Evergy's COLI-related 
balances relate to Westar Energy's COLI activity. 

December 31 

2018 2017 

Evergy (millions) 

Borrowings against policies (1,306.9) (1,189.2) 

~{}Q9~~t?~o'ffei~clli~;in~ttr~nce';;/ii~t''i:,;}'.f;;{];i(!(,if~i<,;, lb:·~; ·:}Y' ..• r,i;~;; .• {5•'31'.$'.:'.'\F; ·1;;n·1i(g:;· s+:1,.: \• 11?::,.:.:;J~·ts'.1 

Increases in cash surrendei:: value and death benefits are recorded in other income in the Evergy Companies' 
consoliµated statements ofincom~ and comprehensive income: Interest expense incurred on policy loans i·s offset 
against the policy income. Incoine from death benefits is highiy variable from pe1iod to period. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the following financial instruments 
for which it was practicable to estimate that value. 

Nuclear decommissioning trust /uni- The Evergy Companies' nuclear decommissioning trust fund assets are · 
recorded at fair value based on quoted marJ<.et prices of the investments held by the fund and/or valuation models. · 

Pension plans - For financial reporting purposes, the market value of plan assets is the fair value. 
' ', ,' . 

Revenue Recognition· . . . 
The Evergy Companies recognize revenue on the fale of electri~ity to customers over time as the ·s·ervice is provided 
in the amount they have the right to invoice. Revenues recorded include electric services provided but not yet billed 
by the Evergy Companies. Unbilled revenues are recorded for kWh usage in the period following the customers' 
billing cycle to the end of the _month. This estimate is based on net system kWh usage less actual billed kWhs. The 
Evergy Companies' estimated unbilled kWhs ate allocated and priced by regulatory jurisdiction across the rate 
classes based on actual billing rates. The Evergy Companies' unbilled revenue estimate is ·affected by factors 
including fluctuations in energy demand, weather, line losses and changes in the composition of customer classes. 
See Note 4 for the balance of unbilled receivables for each of Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L as of December 
31, 2018 and 2017. 

The Evergy Companies also collect sales taxes and franchise fees from customers concurrent with revenue
producing activities that are levied by state and local governments. These items are excluded from revenue, and 
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thus are not reflected on: the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for Evergy, Westar 
Energy and KCP &L. 

See Note 3 for additional details regarding revenue recognition fro1n sales of electricity by the Evergy Companies. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The Evergy Companies determine their allowance for doubtful accounts based on the age of their receivables. 
Receivables are charged off when they are deemed uncollectible, which is based on a number of factors including 
specific facts surrounding an account and management's j~dgment. 

Property Gains and Losses 
Net gains and losses from the sale of assets and businesses and from asset impainnents are recorded in operating 
expenses. 

Asset Impairments . 
Long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum 
of the undiscounted expected future cash flows from an asset to be held and used is less than the carrying value of 
the asset, an asset impairment must'be recognized in the financial statements. The amount of impairment 
recognized is the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its fair value. 

Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and when an event occurs 
indicating the possibility that an impairment exists. The annual test must be performed at the same time each year. 
Evergy's first impairment test for the $2,338.9 million of goodwill from the Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy 
merger will be conducted on May 1, 2019. The goodwill impainnent test consists of comparing the fair value of a 

·. reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill, to identify potential impairment. In the event that the 
carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference 
between the carrying amount of the reporting unit and its fair value. · 

Income T1;1xes. . . 
Income taxes are accounted for using the asset/liability approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined 
based on the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, applying 
enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets 
are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it i1:, more likely than not that some 
portion of the deferred ta~ assets will not be realized. 

The Evergy Companies recognize tax benefits based on a "more-likely-than-not" recognition threshold. In addition, 
the Evergy Companies recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and 
penalties in operating expenses. 

Evergy files a consolidated federal income tax return as well as unitary and combined income tax returns in several 
state jurisdictions with Kansas and Missouri being the most significant. Income taxes for consolidated or combined 
subsidiaries are allocated to the subsidiaries based on separate company computations of income or loss .. Wes.tar 
Energy's and KCP&L's income tax provisions include taxes allocated based on their separate company's income or 
loss. ' . 

The Evergy Companies have established a net regulatory liability for future refunds to be made to customers for the 
over-collectio~ of income taxes in rates. Tax credits are recognized in_ the year generated except for certain Westar 
Energy, KCP&L and GMO investment tax credits that have been deferred and amortized over the remaining service 
lives of the related properties. 
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Other Income (Expense), Net 
The table oelow shows the detail of other expense for each of the Evergy Companies. 

2018 2017 2016 

Evergy (millions) 
1G1~10*6y. ,',H~~-i~ 

Other (30.9) (19.1) . (18.0) 

Westar Energy 

L; .'~iP~~-~-J-c,Le-.~c-L~~s-t-~-Im-.P-j·-,B:-~~:1-::9-J-,it~.f!-(b-.. L~".i--f~fi-t:c-_L"'j=t-·•~-,..·· :~~~~1tfi~ .. dJf,, ... ·' :~~~~1~2~;;;,·.1~~~~:,tgJ<n)::'·\ 
Other · · (23.3) (19.1) (18.0) 

$ii;, ·: 1iii5:ts) .. · · .;s,1,.f'.'139;1)..' :.·<($i{i:. f·.'(1's4,,1 
\,,,,/,~,~,:,j,,;:~~-~~~,J')~...r.,\;~~~;e• i~><~~,,~~~~4d2122.d:! 

Other . . . (5.0) (8.1) (7.(j) 

rr:~~t?oih:e1l{p~ris~;r'~':;~1'.::;~"'(:~~~~~~wrE:-:7,'I:::~~rl?1'?:::11:P::1i1:ii:; ~ (3o?f),1::·':?J1-:::.~t~cr~l r,:1:~i:i~\:<:c~Ja>J 
(a)KCP&L amounts are only included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the ~losing of the merger,June 4, 2018 through December 31, · 

2018. . . 

Earnings Per Share . . . . . . . 
· To compute basic earnings per share (EPS), Evergy divides net income attributable to Evergy, Inc. by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS includes the effect of issuable common shares 
resulting from restricted share units (RSUs),.performance shares and restricted stock. Evergy computes the d1lutive 
. effects of potential issuances of common shares 1,1sing the treasury stock method. 

The following table reconciles Evergy's basic c:1.nd diluted EPS. 

2018 2017 . 2016 
Income (millions, except per share amounts) 

Less: Netincome to noncontrolling.interests . 
[Net:inc9m¢'~ttrlbutaJiie to Ev6rgy, Inc;,;:(· .J: ,:,t ,·":;-:,:~:;-:. :: .o·/\t ·· .:\f::.· .. ··.:~f,i' 
Common Shares Outstanding 

. . 

[D~~~1:~uinir~()£~~lj;~t~~sT~~l~~;~rMITfEIT . .,,..::·"'"·\~:;11.,.,..I';!""':i"'"}"'"1:.,..,·2,..,.,i-.. f4'"").,...1:..,.::,,..,,.,,,;1r"",i""'"·:,,..:.,.,..:f,..,.111-.i""':i6-,).,.,..'1'"",t""·1""'·i!r.,..,~i-'c).,...,;/,...itit..,..;2""':Js"""'J 

Basic and Diluted EPS $ 2.50 $ 2.27 $ -· 2.43 

. There were no anti-dilµtive securities exqluded from the computation of diluted EPS for 2018, 2017 and 2016. 
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Supplemental Cash Flow Information 

Year Ended December 31 2018 2017 2016 
Evergy· · (millions) 

Cash paid for (received from): . 

~ 
-- .· -- ·····-· --- .- .--·--. ~···· ··-···.··· - ,-- · .... .,.... '"S: ""•·- .•· .·-·· • . •. . ''J 

tereston financing activities, net of amount capitalized .. · $ 255.9 .$ · 153.9 139.0 
'' ·~,: ----·------ '----.. -----~ '·~-~------. -~ ~~----·-·'_ .. -' ____ ,_ - . . . ~--------'-------.. -" 

Interest on financing activities ofVIEs 2.3 3.1 5.8 

Deconsolidation of property, plant and equipment of VIE 

Issuanpe of stock for compensation and reinvested dividends , 

. Assets acquired through capital leases 

Year Ended December 31 

Westar Energy 

Cash paid for (received from): 

! Interest ori financing activities, net of amount capitalized ' ' 
-·~-·-· --~·--' ••·-,--u• .. ~¥--~~--, . .-'' 0 ·, __ -•--·-··------·--~·-•-• '·-·--•••--••••••'••••-··----~-·---···· • 

Interest on financing activities ofVIEs 

Non-cash investing transactions: . 

(72.9). 

0.5 5.1 

1.2 4.8 

.2018 . 2017 

(millions) 

··-· ~--·- ·-·-··--···--- --- - --¥ 
15·5_3 · $ 153.9 $ 
. - -- ··----- ____ ...-, 

2.3 3.1 

9.7 

2.7 

139.0 

5.8 

r- .. --._ •. - · ......... ,_ ..... -· •.•..••. :.• --.~ .. ·-·-···-···.,:~•···-.·--~ .. · .. :.· . .,··--·-.. ·--~-.•. ··· ....... ·-·· ........ , •... ···.·--····- . U 
! Property, plarit andequip111ent additions {reauctions) ,. --.f. . . : (32.5) .• . : 158.8 . . . 151.5 
L..::..'.--~• ~~~~; ----~-----~=--w--·--- ·.,,-~=------'~- ',,----

Deconsolidation of property, plant and equipment of VIE (72.9) 

9.7 

Assets acquired through capital leases 1.2 4.8 2.7 

Year Ended December 31 -2018 2017 2016, 
KCP&L<al (millions) 

Cash paid for (received from): 

L0n~est()Ilfinancingactiv~tie~, net ofa~~italized t · . _· __ . ·c __ 129.4; :~l-~_128.0 .$ 
-income taxes, net ofrefunds 31.2 3 8.8 (37.3) 

Property, plant and equipment additions 19.2 36.6 75.4· 

C•li<.CP&L amounts are only included in consolidated Evergy from the date ofthe closing of the merger, June 4, 201~, through December 31, 
2018. . ' 

See Note 2 for the non-cash information related to the merger transa<::tion, including the fair value of Great Plains 
Energy's assets acquired and liabilities assumed a.nd the issuance ofEvergy common stock 

Dividends Declared 
In February 2019, Evergy's Board of Directors (Evergy Board) declared a quarterly dividend of $0.475 per share on 
Evergy's common stock. The common dividend is payable March 20, 2019, to shareholders ofrecord as of 
February 27, 2019. 

In Febi:uary 2019, Westar Energy's Board of Directors declared a cash dividend payable to Evergy of $110.0 
million, payable on March' 19, 2019. 
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· New Accounting Standards 
Intangibles-Interna.l-Use Software 
In August 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 
2018-15, Customer's Ac<:ountingfor Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a 

. Service Contract,-wliich aligns the requirements for recording implementation costs incurred in a hosting 
arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation ~osts incurred to 
develop or obtain intem·al-use software: An entity in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract will need to 
detertnine·which project stage (that is, preliniinary project stage, 'application development stage or post
implementation·stage) an implementation activity relates. Costs for implementation activities in the application· · 
development stage are recorded as a prepaid asset depending on the nature of the costs, while costs incurred during 
the preliminary project and post-implementation stages are expensed as the activities are incurred. Costs that are 
recorded to a prepaid asset are to .be expensed over the term of the hosting arrangement. The new guidance is 
effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The 
·new guidance can be applied either retrospectively or prospectively to all implementation costs incurred after the 
date of adoption. Early adoption is permitted. The Evergy Companies early adoptedASU No. 2018-15 
prosp·ectively as of January 1, 2019'. The adoption of ASU No. 2018-15 did not have a material impact on the. 
Evergy Compani~s. · · ·· 

Compensation - Retirement Benefits 
In March 2017, the FASB issuedASU No. 2017-07, Compensation-Retirement Benefits, which requires an 
,employer to disaggregate the service cost component from the other components of net benefit cost. The service 
cost component is to be reported in the same line .item or items as other' compensation costs arising from services 
rendered by.the pertine:p.t ~mployees during_the period. _The :non-service cost components are to be reported 
separately from service costs and outside of a subtotal of income from operations. The amendments in this update ' 
allow only the service cost component to be eligible for capitalization as part of utility plant. The non-service cost 
components that are no longer eligible for capitalization as part of utility plant w1ll be recorded as~ regulatory as·set. 
The new guidance is to be applied retrospectively for the presentation of service cost and non-service cost 
components in,the income statement and prospectively for the capitalization of the service cost component and is 
effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Evergy Companies adopted ASU 
No. 2017-07 on January 1, 2018, and accordingly have retrospectively adjusted prior periods. The Evergy .. . ,/ 

Companies utilized the practical expedient that allows for the use of amounts disclosed in Note 9 for applying the -·-
retrospective presentation to the 2017 and 2016 consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. 

- .'! 
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The following table reflects the retrospective adjustments in the line items of Evergy's, Westar Energy's and 
KCP&L's consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income associated with the adoption of ASU No.·, 
2017-07. 

2017 2016 
As As 

Previous}~ Effect of As Previous!~ Effect of As 
, Reported > Change Reported Reported > · Change Reported 

Evergy (millio'ns) 

Total operating expenses 1,912.2 (20.0) 1,892.2 1,880.3 (20.6) 1,859.7 

Other expense (19.1) , . (20.0) 

ft0,ta19y,;~t;iqtc6me (expe~~~y;~Ret: ;:_ ·· ~::,0(6is}~;.·· "·<•.•:c2·9~(.?;_" 
Westar Energy 

Other expense 

- [J<rt;~~~;(~peI1s~)lnet-
KCP&L <a>. 

1,356.1 

Sl'.9(3; ~~}J 
Other expense (8.1) (42.7) (50.8) - (7.6) · (37.2) (44.8) 

lfttalqtb_~r,iJ:1come,•(e~e,n,~e,):J1bt.; . x· ·.~ C::3:1 .> .~:, ".·-~.{42.7y:. ) i.,\(39:fil,:K:~:, : ... '''; ii';.,.···;.>;. '&iJ.},.,L:: 7,"'.~0J;Q~ 
<•>KCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy for 2017 and 2016. 
(b)Certain Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L as previously reported amounts ·have been adjusted to reflect reclassification adjustments m·ade 

for comp_arative purposes as discussed further in Principles of Consolidation above and that have no impact on net income. 

Statement of Cash Flows . 
In August 2016, the FASB issuedASU No. 20f6-15, Statement of Cash Flows: Classification of Certain Cash 

I 

Receipts and Cash Payments, which clarifies how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and 
classified in the statement of cash flows. Among other clarifications, the guidance requires that cash proceeds . 
received from the settlement of COLI policies be classified as cash inflows from investing activities and that cash 
payments for premiums on COLI policies may be classified as cash outflows- for investing activities, operating 
activities or a combination of both._ Retrospective application is required. The Evergy Companies adopted the 
guidance effective January 1, 2018, which resulted in retrospective reclassification of cash proceeds of $2.8 million 
and $22.1 million from the settlerpent of COLI policies from cash inflows from operating activities to cash inflows 
from investing activities for 2017 and 2016, respectively, for Evergy and Westar Energy. In addition; cash payments 
of $3.1 million and $3.4 million for premiums on COLI policies were reclassified from cash outflows used in 
operating activities to cash outflows used in investing activities for the same periods, respectively, for Evergy and 
Westar Energy. The adoption of ASUNo. 2016-15 did not have a material impact on KCP&L. 

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows: Restricte_d Cash, which requires 
that the statement of cash flows explains the change for the period ofrestricted cash and restricted cash equivalents 
along with cash and cash equivalents. The guidance requires a retrospective transition method and is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017. The Evergy Companies adopted the guidance effective January 1, 
2018. As a result, Evergy and Westar Energy adjusted amounts previously reported for cash and cash equivalents to . 
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include restricted cash, which resulted in an increase to beginning and ending cash, cash equivalents and restricted 

cash of $0.1 million for 2017and 2016. The adoption of ASU No. 2016-18 did not have a material impact on 

KCP&L. 

,Leases 
.In February 2016, the FASB issuedASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires an entity that is a les~ee 

to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for lease payments on the balance sheet for all leases with terms 

longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting the . 

pattern of exP.ense recognition in the income statement. Lessor accounting remains largely unchanged. ln January 

2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-01, which permits entities to elect an optional transition practical expedient 

to not evaluate under Topic 842 land easements that exist or expired before the entity's adoption of Topic 842 ~nd . 

that were not previously accounted for as leases under Topic 840. In July 2018, the FASB issuedASUNo. 2018-10, 

"Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases," which updates narrow aspects of.the guidance issued inASU 

2016-02. Also in July 2018, the FASB issuedASU No. 2018-11, "Leases, Targeted Improvements," which provides 

an optional transition method that allows entities to initially apply the new standard at the adoption date and 

recognize a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption 

without restating prior periods .. In December 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-20, "Leases: Narrow-Scope 

Improvements for Lessors," which is expected to reduce a lessor's implementation and ongoing costs associated 

with applyingASU 2016-02. ASU 2016-02 and the subsequent amenqments are effective for interim and annual 

periods begirµiing after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted, and requires a modified retrospective 

transition approach with an option to either adjust or not adjust comparative periods.· 

The Evergy Compan1es adopted the new gujdance on January 1, 2019, without adjusting comparative. periods for all 

leases existing as of January 1., 2019, by electing the optional transition method pe~itted by ASU No. 2018-1,1. As 

a result, Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L recorded an increase to assets and liabilities of approximately $110 · I 

million, $40 million and $80 million, respectively, as of January 1, 2019. The Evergy Companies do not expect the 

impact of adoption of the standard.will have a material impact on their consolidated statements of income and · · 

comprehensive income. The Evergy Companies will,include ad.ditional disclosures about its right-of-use assets, 

lease liabilities and lease expense in the first quarter 2019 notes to financial.statements. The Evergy Companies 

also elected a practical expedient to forgo reassessing.existitig or expired contr'acts as leases to determine whethei: •. 

each is in scope of the new standard and to forgo reassessing lease classification for existing and expired leases .. 
. \ . . 

Financial Instruments 
In January 2016, .the FASBissuedASU No. 2016-01, 'Financial Instruments - Overall: Recognition and 

Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which generally requires equity in~estments to be 

mel;tsured at fair value with 9hanges in' fair value recognized Ill net income. Under the new standard, equity 

securities are no longer to be classified'as available-for-sale or trading securities .. The guidance requires a modified 

retrospective transition method. This guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017; 

accordingly, the Evergy Companies adopted the new standard on January 1, 2018, without a material impact on their 
. consolidated financial statements. · · 

Revenue Recognition 
In May 2014, the FASB issuedASU No. 2014.:.09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires an entity 

to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services 

to customers. In August 2015,the FASB issuedASU No. 2015-14, deferring the effective date of ASU No. 2014-09 

one year, from January 1, 2017, to Janua,ry 1, 2018. The ASU replaced most existing revenue recognition guidance 

in GAAP when it became effective. The Evergy Companies adoptedASU No. 2014-09 and its related amendments 

(Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606) on January 1, 2018, using the modified retrospective transition 

method for all contracts not completed as of the date of adoption. Results for reporting periods beginning after 

January 1, 2018; are presented under ASC 606 while historical periods have ~ot been adjusted and continue to be 
reported in accordance with t~e legacy guidance in ASC 605 - Revenue Recognition. · 

There was no cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in 2018 for the Evergy 

Companies as a result of the adoption of the new guidance. As a result of the adoption of ASC 606, operating 
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revenues and taxes other than income taxes on KCP&L's stateme,nts of comprehensive income decreased $76.4 
million for 2018. This impact wa~ related to sales taxes and franchise fees collected from KCP&L's Missouri 
customers that were included in KCP&L's operating revenuc,s and taxes other than income taxes on KCP&L's 
statements of comprehensive income prior to the adoption of ASC 606. See Note 3 for more information on 
revenue from contracts with customers . 

. 2. MERGER OF GREAT PLAINS ENERGY AND WESTAR ENERGY 

Description of Merger Transaction 
On June 4, 2018, Evergy completed the mergers contemplated by the Amended Merger Agreeme_nt. As a result of 
the mergers, Great Plains Energy merged into Evergy, with Evergy surviving the merger and King Energy merged 
into Westar Energy, with Westar Energy surviving the merger. Following the completion of these mergers, Westar 
Energy and the direct subsidiaries of Great Plains Energy, including KCP&L and GMO, became wh9lly-owried 
subsidiaries of Ewrgy. · 

The merger was structured as a merger of equals in a tax-:free exchange of shares that involved no premium paid or 
received with respect to either Great Plains Energy or Westar Energy. As a result of the closing of the merger 
transaction, each o~tstanding share of Great Plains Energy common stock was converted into 0.5981 shares of _ . 
Evergy common stock and each outstanding share of Westar Energy common stock was converted into I share of 
Evergy commpn stock. . . . . 

As provided in the Amended Merger Agreement, substantially all of Westar Energy's outstanding equity 
compensation awards vested and were converted into a right to receive Evergy common stock and all of Great . 
Plains Energy's outstanding equity compensation awards were converted into equivalent Evergy awards subject to 
the same terms and conditions at the Grear :elains Energy merger exchange ratio' of 0.5981. 

J Merger Related Regulatory\Matters 
I KCC 
f In May 2018, the State Corporation Commission of the State of Kansas (KCC) approved Great Plains Energy's, 

KCP&L's and Westar Energy's joint.application for approval of the merger, including a settlement agreement that 
had been r·eached between Great Plains Energy, KCP&L, Westar Energy, KCC staff and certain other intervenors in 
the case. Through the joint application and settlement agreement, Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and Westar Energy 
agreed to the conditions and obligations list~d.below, in addition to other organizational, financing, customer 
service and civic responsibility commitments. · 

• Provide a totai of $30.6 million of one-dme bill credits to Kansas electric retail customers as soon as' 
practicable following the close.of the merger and the completion of Westar Energy's and KCP&L's cun-ent 

· rate cases in Kansas. Of this total, $23.l million of the credits relate to Westar Energy customers and the 
remaining $7.5 million of credits relate to KCP&L Kansas customeis. 

Provide a total of approximately $46 million in additional bill c;edits consisting of $11.5 million in annual 
bill credits to _Kansas electric retail customers from 2019 through 2022 .. Of the annual amount, '$8.7 million 
of the credits relate to Westar Energy customers and the remaining $2.8 million of credits relate to KCP&L 
Kansas _customers. ' 

Provide for the inclusion of a total of $30.0 million of merger-related savings in Westar Energy's and 
· KCP&L's current rate cases in Kansas. Of this total, $22.5 _million of the savings are attributable to Westar 
Energy with the remaining $7 .5 million of savings attributable to KCP&L's Kansas jurisdiction. 

A fi:ve-year base rate moratorium for Westar Energy and KCP&L in Kansas that commenced following the 
. conclusion ofKCP&L's current Kansas rate case in December 2018. The moratorium is subject to certain 

conditions and does not include Westar Energy's or KCP&L's fuel recovery mechanisms and certain other 
cost .recovery mechanisms in _Kansas. 
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• Require both Westar Energy and KCP&L to file rate cases in K~nsas in a fashion that would allow for 

updated electric utility rates to bec9me effective upon the end of the five-year rate moratorium in December 

2023. 

• Participate in an Earnings Review and Sharing Plan for the years 2019 through 2022, which may result in 

· Westar Energy and/or KCP&L being subject to refunding 50% of earned return on equity in excess of· 

authorized return ori equity to their Kansas customers. 

• Maintain charitable contributions and community involvement in the Kansas service territories of Westar 

Energy and KCP&L at levels equal to or greater than theirrespective 2015 levels for 5 years following the 

closing of the merger. 

• Commit that Westar Energy's and KCP&L's retail electric base rates will not increase as a result of the ·. 

merger. 

• Allow Westar Energy and KCP&L to repover a total of $30.9 million of merger transition costs consisting 

of $23 .2 million for Westar Energy and $7. 7 million for KCP&L's Kansas jurisdi9tion: Westar Energy and 

KCP&L have recorded these amounts as regulatory assets and they are being recovered over a ten-year 

period. 

MPSC 
In May 2018, the Public Service Commission of the State of Missouri (MPSC) approved Great Plains Energy's, 

KCP&L's, GM O's and Westar Energy's joint application for approval of the merger, including two stipulations and 

agreements between these companies, MPSC staff and certain other intervenors in the case. Through the joint 

application and stipulations and agreements, Great Plains Energy, KCP&L, GMO and Westar Energy agreed to the 

conditions and obligations listed below, in addition to other. organizational, financing, customer service and civic 

responsibility commitments. · · 

· • Provide a total of $29 .1 million of one-time bill c;edits to Missouri electric retail customers within 1·20 days 

following the close of the merger.· Of this fotal, $14.9 million of the credits relate to KCP&L Missouri 

. customers and the remaining $14.2 million of credits relate to· GMO customers. 
I 

• Commit that KCP&L's andGMO's retail electric base rates will not increase as a result of the merger. 

• Maintain charitable c_ontributions and community involvement in the Missouri service territo1ies ofKCP&L 

and GMO at levels equal to or greater than their respective 2015 levels for 5 years following the closing of 

the merger. 

• Provide a to.tal of$3.0 million of support over 10 years to community agencies to promote low-income 

weatherization efforts. ' 

• Support the recovery of a total of $16.9 million of merger transition costs in KCP&L's and GMO's 2018 

~ate cases, consisting of $9.7 million for KCP&L's Missouri jurisdiction and $7.2 million for GMO. 

KCP&L and GMO recorded these amounts as regulatory assets and they will be recovered over a ten-year 

period. · 
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Accounting Charges and Deferrals Related to the Merger . 
The following pre-tax reductions of revenue, expenses and deferral were recognized following the consummation of 
the merger and are included in the Evergy Companies' consolidated statements of income and comprehensive 
income for 2018. 

Income Statement Line Expected 
Description · Item Payment ·Period Evergy 

Westar 
Energy ;KCP&L 

(millions) 

l©neitimebfilcieclits. ~-·-· ·~;:.· · f ~. f;'.Operatingi·evenues ;t: ·, · ··./ 2018 ~·2019·' .. $; ·· (59.7)_ $ · __ ('.23. lf:$ .- ; (22'.4)~ 
Annual bill credits Operating revenues 2019 - 2022 (10.5) ·. (7.9) (2.6) 

iTotafimpapt to operating revenues · . . · · _ ·· . .·· , · · · . $ (70.2) ,$ (31.0) $ · (25~0); 
L.c..,,, __ ,' ' --' * , -__,/...~~.M---,~,~o-,~=~~Th----"--'_,_ - --· • C ·--·~-~ O ,--·-,-~, • . ---,~-~-----·ll•-• 0 •• • --------,,<-' ™'°--~- •-•--< ~••'- w•••·------·- • ~~-·- 'o-,.--,-0~ ••-- oW,, __ ,--•-·--• 

t ............ ·-·. ,,-···· ··,·-······-,···· ..... ···•···· .... ........... ...... ... -·· ....... ····- ...... .. -··. • . ......... . 
rCharitableicontributions and,.. · • < .· . .. . • .. ,.. . • . ... . . . > . .. . · .. 
f•: 'cdrfimmiity suppoif '• ·,/r • :'Qperatingfandmai'nteriance 261s·::202'i · $ · 24:7 ·s;· 
~~ ., __ .,,,__ _____ ~---------' -· '-~- - --··. ---·-·--~ ·--- ,, --· _-._ ____ . ~-·. --~-.-------~ 

Voluntary severance and.accelerated 
equity compensation Operating and maintenance· 2018 -2019 

2018 fOther,ttrari:~.a.cti~n'and transition costs Operating)nd mainte11ance · 
Ls-· ___ , .• ·-~--,/--"---~-' ____ ,,,,,__,_'" __ z.·'...,,,~ , .. ~-· "-,·-~"---~-. ---<-~~-·-~~~--- ,----~--·, --~·'·" 
Reallocation and deferral of merger 

transition costs Operating and maintenance n/a 

~I ihir.a~t to. operating ~nq . ._ . · · . · · .. · . ' . t · maintenance expense · · · · · , 
Total · 

47.9 

(47.8) 

$ (146.0) $ 

44.2 

(13.8) 

"51.9' $ 

(82.9) $ 

' ·-, ::· . :·', ., , ;: at,·\. ' 
Reductions of revenue related to customer bill credits and expenses related to charitable contributions and 

2.6 

(23.2) 

(18:5): 

(6.5) 

community support were incurred as a result of conditions in the MPSC and KCC merger orders and were recorded 
as liabilities in the amounts presented above following the consummation of the merger. Reductions ofrevenue for 
annual bill credits of $11.5 million for Westar Energy's and KCP&L's Kansas electric retail customers are 
recognized ratably in the twelve month period preceding their payment. 1 

Voluntary severance and accelerated equity compensation represent costs related·to payments for voluntary 
severance and change in control plans, as well as the recording ofunr.ecognized equity compensation costs and the 
incremental fair value associated with the vesting of outstanding Westar Energy equity compensation awards. 

Other transaction and transition costs include merger success fees and fees for other outside services incurred. 

Reallocation and deferral of merger transition costs represents the net reallocation of incurred merger transition 
costs between Evergy, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO and the subsequent deferral of these_transition costs to a . 
regulatory asset for future recovery in accordance with the KCC and MP.SC merger orders. 

. . ' '.' i ' 
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Purchase Price 
Based on an evaluation of the provisions of ASC 805, Business Combinations, Westar Energy was determined to be 

tl:].e a~ccmnting acquirer in the mergyr. Pursuant to the A.t11ended Merger Agreement, Great Plains Energy's common 

stock shares were exchanged for Evergy common stock shares at the fixed exchange rate of 0.5981. The total 

consideration transferred 1ri the merger is based on the closing stock price of Westar Energy on June 4, 2018 and is 

· calculated as follows. 

(millions, except share amounts) 

Great Plains Energy restricted stock awards outstanding as of June 4, 2018 (204,825) 

rr;::~atPl~in~Ene~gyshare.is"19 b.~c.oriv.~.rte<{toEyergy~.har.e.s, .... :.,. :, .. ·!· {~ ·?,--.·.'.,' ... · i: ..... ·.' .. :r: 215,595}24f.! 
~:::··' ~.~&s/»s-,,-~-~~-... ~~. '· · un---"-"~ ~:...w-~~-~---4"r...,-~r1A---.,·).~d4';:;.,_t~·d"'""'"'i.s\k,,.""""-~'"'""~~"'"'"""'""°"'""'""."""''_;i___,4 ·,.....;; 

Exchange ratio · 0.5981 

rgy·<lomm<>n Y199!~4a~~~~Q.9.r~atPl~fu~ }1;t1~rgy,'s_~ar~Ii,old~i:s ', ·:. \&,CL,1 ;;. ' ;;;l: ,'.' 'J00,c_;·% 128:,94·1;?)18! 
Closing price of Westar Energy common stock as of June 4, 2018 $ 54.00 

(Fair val~~j!~ij'shar,e~u'ed'~~Pl§~Bierg~ry@idef~\;\.•:~};~ ·.~··· ·.·,,, .. , .·.····.~i .····:;·6,9~]j 
Fair value of Great Plains Energy's equity compensation awards 12.5 

!Totalpiji:cha.seprici ,~: · :., . ·• ? ·· :\:.t ., .$. · {,' ·:,}:· 6;'li5·.7. I 

Great Plains Energy's equity compensation awards, ihcluding performance shares and restrict.ed stock, were 

replaced by equivalent Evergy equity ~ompensation awards subject to substantially the same terms and conditions 

. upon the closing of the merger. In accordance with the accounting guidance in.ASC 805, a portion of the fair value 

of these awards is attributable to the purchase price as it represents consideration transferred in the merger. 

Purchase Price Allocation 
The fair value of Great Plains Energy's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of June 4, 2018 was determined· · 

based on significant estimates and assumptions that a're judgmental in nature. Third-party valuation specialists were 

engaged to assist in the valuation of these assets and liabilities. The fair values of Great Plains Energy's assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed utilized for the purchase price allocation are preliminary to the extent that 

additional information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. 

The significant assets and liabilities for which preliminary valuation amounts are reflected as of the.filing of this 

combined Form 10-K include the fair value of acquired long-term debt, asset retirement obligations, pension and 

post-retirement plans, accumulated deferred income tax liabilities and certain other long-term assets and liabilities'. 

The majority of Great Plains Energy's operations .are subject to the rate.:.setting authority of the MPSC, KCC and 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and are accounted for pursuant to GAAP, including the 

accounting guidance for regulated operations. The rate-setting and cost recovery provisions for Great Plains 

Energy's regulated operations provide revenue derived from costs including a return on investment of assets and 

liabilities irtcluded in rate base. Except for the significant assets and liabilities for which valuation adjustments 

were made as discussed above, the fair values of Great Plains Energy's tangible and intangible assets and liabilities 

subject to these rate-setting provisions approximate their carrying values a:nd the assets and liabilities do not reflect 

ariy adjustments to these amounts· either than for amounts riot included in rate base. The difference between the fair. 

value and pre-merger carrying amounts for Great Plains Energy's long-term debt, asset retirement obligations and 

pension and post-n,tirement plans that were related to regulated operations were recorded as a regulatory asset or 

liability. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the a~sets acquired and liabilities 
' ' 

assumed was recognized as goodwill as of the merger date. 
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The preliminary purchase price allocati?n to Great Plains Energy's assets and liabilities as of June 4, 2018, is 
detailed in the following table. 1 

J 
(millions) 

Property, plant and equipment, net 9,179.7 ·-···------·-----,,·-----------·,"·•·~---·-··-~·,·•cc·,=-----,,,, __ - __ , ··------~---,,,-~~·-----, ... ,, .. ,r,·,------·--,--,. 

/L~nii~te~ liabiliti~;, excluding long-term debt -_----. 2,898.0' l 
- --,~---- ---... ~~~ --~·-S-V -- •:--• •- ••,·-•-• ---0 ~--·--------• 

Long-term debt, net 3,358.6 

Total purchase price $ 6,975.7 

Impact of Merger 
The impact of Great Plains Energy's s_ubsidiaries on Evergy's revenues in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income for 2018 was an increase of $1-,661.1 million. The impact of Great Plains Energy's 
subsidiaries on Evergy's net income attributable to Evergy in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income 
for 2018 was an increase of $236.2 million. 

Evergy hasjncurred total merger-related CQsts, including reductions ofreven1,1~ for customer bill credits, of $148.0 
million for 2018 and $11.9 ·million for 2017. 

Pro Forma Financial Information 
The following unaudited pro forma financial information reflects the consolidated results of operations of Evergy as 
if the merger transactions had taken place on January 1, 2017. The unaudited pro forma information was calculated 
after applying Evergy's accounting policies and adjusting Great Plains Energy's results to reflect purchase 
accounting adjustments. 

The unaudited pro fomia financial information has been presented for illustrative purposes only and is not 
necessarily indicative of the consolidated results of operations that would have been achieved or the future 
consolidated results of operations of Evergy. 

2018 2017 

(miilions, except per share amounts) 
[2~er~~ng_:~ven1::~~---"~ ·-'--------.:.~::.-~ '. 4~~- --<·-:·--_-, ,·-,··.', • .. -·.-__ ---_·_·_··.-.,,.,._··-· .,,.--~---· .$-:-5~~.i((j·~- $-. -•• -s:21@ 
Net income attributable to Evergy, Inc. · 714.3 468.9 

Diluted earnings per common share $ 2;67 $ 

Evergy, Westar Energy and Great Plains Energy incurred non-recurring costs and a gain directly related to the 
merger that have been excluded in the pro forma earnings presented above. On an after-tax basis, these non
recurring merger-related costs and gain incurred by Evergy, Westar Energy and Great Plains Energy included: 

) 
1.73 

$74.7 million and $14.8 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, of certain after-tax merger-related transition 
and transaction costs; 

$44.4 million in 2018 of after-tax reductions in operating revenues related to one-time customer bill credits; 

$278.0 million of after-tax financing charges in 2017 related to Great Plains Energy's previously 
contemplated ·acquisition of Westar Energy; and 
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• $36.6 million and $7.3 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, of after-tax mark-to-market gains on interest 

rate swaps for which cash settlement wa~ contingent upon the consummation of the merger. 

3. REVENUE 

Evergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's revenues disaggregated by customer class are summarized in the following 

tables. 

2018 Evergy Westar Energy KCP&Ll•J 

Revenues (millions) 

Commercial 1,356.4 702.8 794.8 

tl:14~; 
Other retail · 30.6 20.0 10.4 

,, ::·; i ·2,:~::;t$··: ·;>'],12~:6;:'. ,$·- ,•.· .•.•. './tl,;965:(5_··· ·:·:$~.;~;'.ff6?1:PJ 
Wholesale 404.4 346.1 53.5 

Industrial steam and other 17.9 6.0 4.4 

Other 51.9 8.3 71.1 

<•lKCP&L amounts are included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018, through December 31, 2018. 

Retail Revenues 
The Evergy Companfos' retail revenues are generated by the regulated sale of electricity to their residential, . 

commercial and industrial. customers within their franchised service territories. The Evergy Compan;es recognize 

revenue on the sale of electricity to their customers over time as the service is provided in the amount they have a 

right to invoice. Retail customers are billed on a monthly basis at the tariff rates approved by the KCC and MPSC 

based on customer.kWh usage. 

Revenues recorded include electric services provided but not yet billed by the Evergy Companies. Unbilled 

revenues are recorded for kWh usage in the period following the customers' billing cycle to the end of the month. 

This estimate is based on net system kWh usage less actual billed kWhs. The Evergy Companies' estimated 

unbilled kWhs are allocated and priced by regulatory jurisdiction across the rate classes based on actual billing 

rates. 

The Evergy Companies also collect sales taxes and :franchise fees from customers concurrent with revenue~ 

producing activities that are levied by state and local governments .. These items are excluded from revenue, and 

thus not reflected on the statements of income and comprehensive income, for Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L. 

Prior to the adoption of ASC 606 on January 1, 2018, KCP &L recorded sales taxes and franchise fees collected 

from its Missouri customers gross on KCP&L's statements of comprehensive income within operating revenues and 

taxes other than income taxes. 

Wholesale Revenues 
The Evergy Companies' wholesale revenues are generated by the sale of wholesale power and capacity in 

circumstances when the power that the Evergy Companies generate is not required for customers in their service 

territory. These sales primarily occur within the SPP Integrated Marketplace .. The Evergy Companies also purchase 

power from the SPP Integrated Marketplace and record sale and purchase activity on a net basis in wholesale 

revenue or fuel and purchased power expense. In addition, the Evergy Companies sell wholesale power and 

capacity through bilateral contracts to other counterparties, such as electric cooperatives, municipalities and other 

electric utilities. · 
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For both wholesale sales to the SPP Integrated Marketplace and through bilateral contracts, the Evergy Companies 
recognize revenue on the sale of wholesale electricity to their customers over time as the service is provided in the 
amount they have a right to invoice. 

Wholesale sales within the SPP Integrated Marketplace are billed weekly based on the fixed transaction price 
determined by the market at the time of the sale and the MWh quantity purchased. Wholesale sales from bilateral 
contracts are billed monthly based on the contractually determined transaction price and the kWh quantity. 
purchased. 

Transmission Revenues 
The Evergy Companies' transmission revenues are generated by the use of their transmission networks by the SPP. 
To enable optimal use of the diverse generating resources in the SPP region, the Evergy Companies, as well as other 
transmission owners, allow the SPP to access and operate their transmission networks. As new transmission lines 
are constructed, they are included in the transmission network available to the SPP. In exchange for providing 
access, the SPP pays the Evergy Companies consideration determined by formula rates approved by FERC, which 
include the cost ~o construct and maintain the transmission lines and a return on investment. The price for access to 
the Evergy Companies' transmission networks are updated annually based on projected costs. Projections are 
updated to actual costs and the difference is included in subsequent year's prices. 

The Evergy Companies have different treatment for their legacy transmission facilities within the SPP, which results 
in different levels of transmission revenue being received from the SPP. Westar Energy's transmission revenues 
from SPP include amounts that Westar Energy pays to the SPP on behalf of its retail elect,ric customers for the use 
of Westar Energy's legacy transmission facilities. These transmission revenues are mostly offset by SPP network 
transmission cost expense that Westar Energy pays on behalf of its retail customers. KCP&L and GMO do not pay 
the SPP for their retail customers' use of the KCP&L and GMO legacy transmission facilities and correspondingly, 
their transmission revenues also do not reflect.the associated transmission revenue from the SPP. 

The Evergy Companies recognize revenue on the sale of transmission service to their customers over time as the 
service is provided in the amount they have a right to invoice. Transmission service to the SPP is billed monthly 
based on a fixed transaction price detennined by FERC formula transmission rates along with other SPP~specific 
charges and the MW quantity purchased. 

Industrial Steam and Other Revenues 
Evergy's industrial steam and.other revenues are primarily generated by the regulated sale of industrial steam to 
GM O's steam customers. Evergy recognizes revenue on the sale of industrial steam to its customers over time as 
the service is provided in the amount that it has the right to invoice. Steam customers are billed on a monthly basis 
at the tariff rate approved by the MPSC based on customer MMBtu usage. 

Optional Exemption 
Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L do not disclose the value of unsatisfied perfonnance obligations on certain 
bilateral wholesale contracts with an original expected duration of greater thart one ·year for which they recognize 
revenue in the amount they have the right to invoice. 
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4. RECEIVABLES 

The Evergy Companies' receivables are detailed in the following table. 

/ December 31 
2018 2017 

· Evergy 
I Customer accounts rp(',>>Hr!ll~IP 

I .. ~~ ·-~,,~.~-.~~:<:> ',' _ ·---"·-- _, .• ,C-L-,-...C--·-~-·--·--·-"'""·'-"'''k---'•-·--··-··•·--'·-'----·---'-·--"-•-•••••----·-·- ,,,,,., •. .-.... ·•··---~-···--~~----•-~-~ 
Customer accounts receivable - unbilled 91.2 76.6 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (9.2) (6.7) 
i .. Total..... . ~, .. · .. ·_. ·. . . .- .. · ··. ,,. . ·-$-_.--,-1-9-3-.7-,--.-$--29-0-.7~1 

Westar Energy 

J 
__ ·. ' ----' -- '. ----·"-------_J 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 

i _ 'Total:' .: ' . . \;;\'. . , . :\J::r · · : _ \,' t, .. ':,)',", , . 
(6:7) 

l: _84.3 
KCP&L<aJ 

Customer accounts receivable - unbilled 42.9 67.6 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (3.8) . (2.2) 
1:·--'i:'6ta((,,:;,,· . -
C•lKCP&L amounts are not included_jn consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 

Evergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's other receivables_ at December 31, 2018 and 2017, consisted primarily of 
receivables from partners in jointly-owned electric utility plants and wholesale sales receivables. As of 
December 31, 2018, other receivables for Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L included receivables from contracts 
with customers of $65.8 million, $55.9 million and $5.5 million, respectively. 

The Evergy Companies recorded bad debt expense related to contracts with customers as summarized in the 
following table. 

2018 2017 2016 

(:millions) 

, . 20.2 $ 10.3· $-~-"------·---··-··-·----~-,-N-.---~--- ~ _,_ "- -~~-'<•~•' ... -,...·-·----~---,,-..--?-~ 
Westar Energy . 8.5 · 10.3 _ 11.4 

!KCP&I.}~ltf.C.:\ .. , ·::·:"t~;k{\,i, ~':~;T::i;: .. , .. · \);::,::::,,:'.·} · .. :}';,/i; . ,-,l{l::'';1\;~·., 7.6;ii~;,,\:••·--6'.3·j 
w'icP&L amounts are included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018, through December 31, 2018. 

Sale of Accounts Receivable 
· Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO sell an undivided percentage ownership interest in their retail electric and certain 
other accounts receivable to independent outside investors. These sales of the undivided percentage ownei:ship 

. interests in accounts receivable to independent outside investors are accounted for as secured borrowings with 
accounts receivable pledged as collateral and a corresponding short-term collateralized note payable recognized on· 
the balance sheets. At December 31, 2018, Evergy's accounts receivable pledged as collateral .and the 
corresponding short-term collateralized note payable were $365.0 million. At December 31, 2018, Westar Energy's 
accounts receivable pledged as collateral and the corresponding short-term collateralized note payable were $185.0 
million. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, KCP&L's accounts receivable pledged as collateral and the 
corresponding short-term collateralized note payable were $130.0 million. 
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Westar Energy's receivable sale facility expires in September 2019 and allows for $185.0 million in aggregate 
outstanding principal amount of borrowings from mid-December through mid-January, $125.0 million from mid 
January through mid-February, $185.0 million from mid-February to mid-July and then $200.0 million from mid
July through the expiration date of the facility. KCP&L's receivable sale facility expires in September 2019 and 
allows for $J30.0 million in aggregate outstanding principal amount of borrowings at any time. GMO's receivable 
sale facility expires in September 2019 and allows for $50.0 million in aggregate outstanding principal amount of 
borrowings froni mid-November through mid-June and then $65.0 million from mid-June through the expiration . 
date of the facility. 

s.· RATE MATTERS AND REGULATION 

KCC Proceedings 
Westar Energy 2018 Transmission Delivery Charge 
In March 2018, the KCC issued an order adjusting Westar Energy's retail prices to include updated transmission 
costs as reflected in the FERC transmission formula rate (TFR). The new prices were effective in April 2018. and 

' ' ' 

are expected to increase Westar Energy's annual retail revenues by $31.5 million. 

In August 2018, Westar Energy filed an updated Transmission Delivery Charge (TDC) tariff with the KCC to reflect 
the reduction in revenue requirement that occurred as a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA). The updated 
filing requested new prices decreasing Westar Energy's annual retail revenues by approximately $20 million. In 
October 2018, the KCC issued an order approving the request with the new prices effective October 30, 2018. 

Westar Energy 2018 Rate Case Proceedings 
In February 2018, Westar Energy filed an application with the KCC to request a two-step change in rates, a decrease 
to retail revenues of approximately $2 million in September 2018 followed by an increase in retail revenues of 
approximately $54 million in February 2019, with a return on equity of 9.85% and a rate-making equity ratio of. 
51.6%. The request reflects costs associated with the completion of the Western Plains Wind Farm, the expiration 
of wholesaie contracts currently reflected in retail prices as offsets to retail cost ·of service, the expiration of 
production tax credits from prior wind investments and an updated depreciation study, partially offset by the impact 
of the TCJA and a portion of the savings from the merger with Great Plains Energy. 

In July 2018, Westar Energy, the KCC staff and several other intervenors in the case reached a non-unanimous 
stipulation and agreement to settle all outstanding issues in the case. The stipulation and ~greement provides for a 

. decrease to retail revenues of $66.0 million, before rebasing property tax expense, with a return on equity of 9.3%, a 
rate-making equity ratio of 51.46% and does not include a second step revenue requirement change as included in · 
Westar Energy's initial application. The stipulation and agreement also provides for an approximately $16 million 
increase associated with rebasing property tax expense, an.approximately $46 million increase in depreciation 
expense, allows for the recovery of an approximately $41 million wholesale contract that expires in 2019 through 
Westar Energy's fuel recovery mechanism and reflects customer benefits related to the impacts of the TCJA, 
including a one-time bill credit of approximately $50 million, which was provided to customers following the 
conclusion of the rate case. 

In September 2018, the KCC issued an order approving the non-unanimous stipulation and agreement. The rates 
established by the order took effect on September 27, 2018. 

KCP&L 2018 Rate Case'Proceedings 
In May 2018, KCP&L filed an application with the KCC to request an increase to its retail revenues of $26.2 
million before rebasing property tax expense, with a return on equity of 9.85% and a rate-making equity ratio of 

· 49.8%. The request reflects the impact of the TCJA and increases in infrastructure investment costs. KCP&L also 
requested an additional $6.7 million increase associated with rebasing property tax expense. 
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In October 2018, KCP &L, the KCC staff and other intervenors reached 'a unanimous settlement agreement to settle 
all outstanding issues in the case. The settlement agreement provides for a decrease to retail revenues of $3. 9 · 
million, a return on equity of9.3%, a rate-making equity ratio of 49.09% and a one-time bill credit of $36.9 million 
for customer benefits related to the impacts of the TCJA. 

In December 2018, KCC issued an order approving the unanimous settlement agreement. The rates established by 
the order took effect on December 20, 2018. 

MPSC Proceedings 
KCP&L 2018 Rate Case Proceedings 
In January 2018, KCP&L filed an application with the MPSC to request an increase to its retail revenues of $8.9 
million before rebasing fuel and purchased powe~ expense, with a return on equity of 9.85% and a rate-making 
equity ratio of 50.03%. The request reflects the impact of the TCJA and increases in infrastructure investment 
costs, transmission related costs and property tax costs. KCP&L also requested an additional $7.5 million increase· 
associated with rebasing fuel and purchased power expense. 

In September 2018, KCP&L, MPSC staff and other intervenors in the case reached several non-unanimous 
stipulations and agreements to settle all outstanding issues in the case. The stipulations and_ agreements provide for 
a decrease to retail revenues of $21.1 million and a one-time customer benefit of $38.7 million (on an annualized 
basis) related to the impact of the TCJA, which will be offset against existing KCP&L regulatory assets. The final 
amount of the one-time customer benefit related to the impact of the TCJA was $36.4 million, as its calculation was 
dependent on the effective date of new rates. · 

In October 2018, the MPSC issued an order approving the non-unanimous stipulations and agreements. The rates 
established by the order took effect on December 6, 2018. 

GMO 2018 Rate Case Proceedings 
In January 2018, GMO filed an application with the MPSC to request a decrease to its retail revenues of $2.4 
million before rebasing fuel and purchased power expense, with a return on equity of 9.85% and a rate-making 
equity ratio of 54.4%. The request reflects the impact of the TCJA and increases in infrastructure investment costs 
and transmission related costs. GMO also requested a $21.7 million increase associated with rebasing fuel and 
purchased power expense. 

'in September 2018, GMO, MPSC staff and other intervenors in the case reac~ed several non-unanimous 
stipulations and agreements to settle all outstanding issues in the case. The stipulations and agreements provide for 
a decrease to retail revenues of $24.0 million and a one-time bill credit of $29 .3 million ( on an annualized basis) for 
customer benefits related to the impacts of the TCJA. The final amoun_t of the one-time customer bill credit related 
to the impact of the TCJA was $27.4 million, as its calculation was dependent on the effective date of new rates. 

In October 2018, the MPSC issued arr order approving the non-unanimou~ stipulations and agreements. The rates 
established by the order took effect on December 6, 2018. 

FERC Proceedings 
In October of each year, Westar Energy posts an updated TFR that includes projected transmission capital 
expenditures and operating costs for the following year. · This rate provides the basis for Westar Energy's annual 
request with the KCC to adjust retail prices to include updated transmission costs. In the most recent three years, 
the updated TFR was expected to adjust Westar Energy's annual transmission revenues by approximately: 

• -$11.2 million decrease effective in January 2019; 

• $2.3 million increase effective in January 2018 ($25.5 million increase offset by $23.2 million decrease 
from reduction in federal corporate income tax rate); and 

• $29.6 million increase effective in January 2017. 
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities . . 
The Evergy Companies have recorded assets and liabilities on their consolidated balance sheets resulting from the 
effects of the ratemaking process, which would not otherwise be rec'orded if they were not regulated. Regulatory 
assets represent incurred costs that are probabl'e'of recovery from future revenues. Regulatory liabilities represent 
future reductions in revenues or refunds to customers. · 

' ' 

. Management regularly assesses whether regulatory assets and liabilities are probable of future recovery or refund by 
considering factors such as decisions by the MPSC, KCC or FERC in Westar Energy's, KCP&L's and GMO's rate 
case filings; decisions in other regulatory proceedings, including·decisions related to other companies that establish 
precedent on matters applicable to theEvergy Companies; and changes in laws and.~egulations. Ifrecovery or 
refund of regulatory assets or liabilities is not approved by regulators or is no longer deemed probable, these 
regulatory assets or liabilities are recognized in the current period results of operations. The Evergy Companies 
continued ability to meet the criteria for recording regulatory assets and liabilities may be affected in the future by 
restructuring and deregulation in the electric industry or changes in accoun~ing rules. In the event that the criteria 
no longer applied to any or all of the Evergy Companies' operations, the related regulatory assets and liabilities 
would be written off unless an appropriate regulatory recovery mechanism were provided. · Additionally, these 
factors could result in an impairme1;1t on utility plant assets. 
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The Evergy Companies' regulatory assets and lia~ilities are detailed in the following table. 

December31 
2018 2017 

Westar.· 
Evergy 

Westar 
Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&LCal 

Regulatory Assets 
f" ..... ·:·,·· , ...... , ... ,.. . ... ; .· ··:;, ... ~·-
,, Pension ~nd post:-retirer:µent costs: 
L.,--· -~,»-~-'- _ •• ,.,,. -··· ~ .. ~~ ... -.. ·~,.·--- ··--.-.·-,~-·- -- - "µ""···-··-

Debt reacquisition costs 

(millions) 
$ .·· 808.2 · ··$. ··. 343.7 · , f . 361.5 · 

·--- ~.,,:; • • .-~wv, ' :: ~...,-."'_~-.,'" "\ "" "" <••• • ~-· ··~·-,,,,..,,_,v",L '• •»• • ·- l,:. 

113.5 104.1 8.2 109.2 109.2 
·-:--T'··.~--,·-~---,-···--,--~.._,-,---,·-~-~.----·~·-··-····--·---,~----~·--·--~-.,--,-~~--

Cost of removal . 102.4 65.7 36.7 30.8 30.8 

. Iatan No. 1 and common facilities 7.4 2.9 

Iatan No. 2 constii,iction acc'outltiri'g costs 
....... ,,• .. - .. - .......... ,.,, ... · ... , ••.•••.• ;/ ·· .•... ··-··•-•• • .... · •..• ., .. ,L, .• -., .......... .. 

Kansas property tax surcharge 33.1 23.7 9.4 17.4 17.4 

L.a Cygne environmental costs 14.8 12.2 2.6 13.3 13.3 
·-····~-,---····--~.----· 

·· Fuel recovery mechanisms · 91.2 7.1 41.7 20.7 20.7 

Pension and other post-retirement benefit 
non-service costs 

I: .• Reti~ed gerietatibn :facillfies'' 

8.7 

30.3. 

12.9 

6.6 

2.7 

61.7 

Merger transition costs . 47.0 22.6 17.3 

r.·otiier re~lat~~ aislts'{: ,""' ·tt ·. ''( ·.·':"' .:'· -~; 6:1 "' ..•. 13.5' " >" ·-r2j .y,.; f .9.7 ;''~' ' t/9:7 : t'. : :,''351 
Total 2,061.& 797.5 626.1 784.9 784.9 698.7 · 

Le~s: c11rren(p'dition .:·> " '. ,:• {303:9) ;1' . (97.1) '' (130.9) (99.5)'>: ;,(9..9.5) ~;~; (1i~'3Xi); 
Total noncurrent regulatory assets $ 1,757.9 $ 700.4 $ 495.2 $ 685.4 $ 685.4 $ . · 545.1 

(a)KCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 
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Decembei-31 

2018 · 2017 

Evergy 
Westar 
Energy KCP&L Evergy 

Westar 
Energy KCP&L<a> 

Regulatory Liabilities (millions) 

···· e~refli11dabl~thfough:fuuu-e rates; :·1 $ .. l/Z0~.6 ... :$:> 853.2:}~·$-;@9:2'·. '$:··~.:8:1-51e:"'$':JS45?];?f .<·,gii] 
Deferred regulatory gain from sale 

leaseback 59.1 59.1 64.6 64.6 

Nuclear decommissioning 

,.,u, ..... a,ucu allowance for funds useq 
during construction 

Cost of removal 

Purchase power agreement 

Refund of tax reform benefits 
i:7"'"'" ·• .. --·· . ;- ·-···- . • ···- . 
f 1:Qtq.erregulatoryJi<1.J:,iJitie.s· .. 

Total 

Total noncurrent regulatory liabilities $ 

188.2 84.5 

30.3 30.3 

48.1 

8.8 8.8 

2,329.0 1,121.3 

(1}9.2) (19:~t 
2,218.8 $ 1,101.8 $ 

<•>.KCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 

103.7 55.5 126.0 

31.7 31.7 

8.8 8.8 

--N-«<.~·~.· ~-- -;-~-~"~ ~--, ----. .-- ,_ >;"' • ,, " • i 

:):;11.2 /,:.,;: .19·: . s.,o.:; ·. :. }'1~q I 
847.1 1,105.6 1,105.6 779.2 

794.3 $ 1,094.0 $ 1,094.0. $ 770.9 

The following summarizes the nature and period of recovery for each of the regulatory assets listed in the table 
above. 

Pension and post-retirement costs: Represents unrecognized gains and losses, prior service and transition costs 
that will be recognized in future net periodic pension and post-retirement costs, pension settlements amortized over 
various periods and financial and regulatory accounting method differences that will be eliminated over the life of 
the pension plans. Of these amounts, $764.5 million, $343.7 million and $353.6 million for Evergy, Westar Energy 
and KCP&L, respectively,_ are not included in rate base and are amortized over various periods. · · 

Debt reacquisition costs: Includes costs incurred to reacquire and refinance debt. These costs are amortized over 
the term of the new debt or the remaining lives of the old debt issuances if no new debt was issued an.dare not 
included in rate base. 

Debt fair value adjustment: Represents purchase accounting adjustments recorded to state the carrying value of 
KCP&L and GMO long-term debt at fair. value in connection with the merger. Amount is amortized over the life of 
the related debt and is not included in rate base. 

Asset retirement obligations fair value adjustment: Represents purchase accounting adjustments recorded to 
state the carrying value ofKCP&L and GMO AROs at fair value in connection with the merger. Amount is 
amortized·over the life of the related plant and is not included in rate base. 

Depreciation: Represents the difference between regulatory depreciation expense and depreciation expense 
recorded for financial reporting purposes. These assets are included in rate base and the difference is amortized 
over the life of the related plant. 

Cost of removal: Represents amounts spent, but not yet collected, to dispose of plant assets. This asset will 
decrease as removal costs are collected in rates and is not included in rate base. 

Asset retirement obligations: Represents amounts associated with AROs as discussed further in Note 6. These 
amounts are recovered over the life of the related plant and are not included in rate base. 
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Analog meter unrecovered investment: Represents the deferral ofunrecovered investment ofretired analog 
meters. Of this amount, $27.3 million is hot included in rate base for Evergy and Westar Energy and is being 
amortized over a five-year peri.od. 

Treasury yield hedges: Represents the effective portion of treasury yield hedge transactions. Amortization of this 
amount will be included in interest ~xpense ov.er the term of the related debt and is not included in r~te base. 

Iatan No. 1 and common facilities: Represents depreciation and carrying costs related to Iatan No. 1 and comn1on 
facilities. These costs are included in rate base and amortized over various periods. 

_Iatan No. 2 construction accounting costs: Represents the construction accounting costs related to Iatan No. 2. 
These costs are included in rate base and amortized through 2059. 

Kansas property tax surcharge: Represents actual costs inc~rred· for property taxes in excess of amounts collected 
in revenues .. These costs are expected to be re~overed over a one-year period and are not included in rate base. 

Disallowed plant costs: The KCC originally disallowed certain costs related to the Wolf Creek plant. In 1987, the 
KCC revised its original conclusion and provided for recovery of an indirect disallowance with no return on 
investment. This regulatory asset represents the present value of the future expected revenues to be provided to 
recover these costs, net of the amounts amortized. 

La Cygne environmental costs: Represents the deferral of depreciation and amortization expense and associated . 1 

carrying charges related to the La Cygne Station environmental project. This amount will be amortized over the life 
of the related asset and is included in rate base. 

Deferred customer programs: Represents costs related to various energy efficiency programs that have been 
accumulated and deferred for future recovery. Of these amounts, $4.7 million for Evergy and KCP&L are not 
included in rate base and are amortized over various periods. 

Fuel recovery mechanisms: Represents the actual cost of fuel consumed in producing electricity and the cost of 
purchased power in excess of the amounts collected from customers. This difference is expected to be recovered 
over a one-year period and is not 'included in rate base. 

Solar rebates: Represents costs associated with solar rebates provid\;!d to retail electric customers. These amounts 
are not included in'rate base and are amqrtized through 2020. · 

Transmission delivery charge: Represents costs associated with the transmission delivery charge. The amounts 
are not included in rate base and are amortized over a one-year period. 

Wolf Creek outage: Represents deferred expenses associated with Wolf Creek's scheduled refueling and· 
maintenance outages. These expenses are amo1iized during the period between planned outages and are not 
included in rate base. 

Pension and other post-retirement benefit non-service costs: Represents the non-service component of pen,sion 
and post-retirement net benefit costs that are capitalized as authorized by regulators. The amounts are included in 
rate base and are recovered over the life of the related asset. · 

' . 

Retired generation facilities: Represents amounts to be recovered for facilities that have been retired and are 
probable of recovery. - · · · 

Merger transition costs: Represents recoverable ti-ansition costs related to the merger. The amounts are not 
included in rate base and are recovered from retail customers through 2028. 

Oth~r regulatory assets: Includes various regulatory assets that individually are small in relation to the total 
regulatory asset balance. These amounts have various recovery periods and are not included in rate base. 

The following summarizes the nature arid period of amortization for each of the regulatory liabilities listed in the 
table above. 

Taxes refundable through future rates: Represents the obligation to return to customers income taxes recovered 
in earlier periods when corporate income tax rates were higher than current income tax rates. A large portion of this 
amount is related to depreciation and will be returned to customers over the life of the applicable property. 
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Deferred regulatory gain from sale leaseback: Represents the gain KGB recorded on the 1987 sale and leaseback 
of its 50% interest in La Cygne Unit 2. The gain is amortized over the te1m of the lease. , 
. . 
Emission allowances: Represents deferred gains related· to the sale of emission allowances to be returned to 
customers. 

Nuclear decommissioning: Represents the difference between the fair value of the assets held in the nuclear 
decommissioning trust and the am~unt recorded for.the accumulated accretion and depreciation expense associated 

· with the asset retirement obligation related to Wolf Creek. 

Pension and post-retirement costs: Includes pension and post-retirement benefit obligations and expense 
. recognized in setting prices in excess of actual pension and post-retirement expense. 

Jurisdictional allowance for funds used during construction: Represents AFUDC that is accrued subsequent to 
the tilrie the associated construction charges are included in prices and prior to the time the related assets are placed 
in service. The AFUDC is amortized to depreciation expense over the useful life of the asset that is placed in 
service. 

La Cygne leas_ehold dismantling costs: Represents amounts collected but not yet spent on the contractual 
obligation to dismantle a portion of La Cygne Unit 2. The obligation will be discharged as the unit is dismantled. 

Cost of removal: Represents amount collected, but not yet spent, to dispose of plant assets. This liability will be 
discharged as removal costs are incurred. 

Kansas tax credits: Represents Kansas tax credits on investment in utility plant. Amounts will be credited to 
customers subsequent to the realization of the credits over the remaining lives of the utility plant.giving rise to.the 
tax credits. 

Purchase power agreement: Represents the amount included in retai_l electric rates from customers in excess of 
costs incurred under purchase power agreements. Amounts are amortized over a five-year period. 

Merger customer credits: Represents one-time merger bill credits to KCP&L's Kansas electric retail customers. 
The credits are expected to be provided to customers in the first quarter of 2019. · 

~efund of tax reform benefits: Represents amounts collected from customers in 2018 related to federal income tax 
in excess of the income tax owed by the Evergy Companies as a result of the lower federal income tax rate enacted 
by the TCJA. ·Amounts will be refunded to customers in 2019. 

Other regulatory liabilities: Includes various regulatory liabilities that individually are relatively small iri relation 
to the total regulatory liability balance. These amounts will be credited over various periods. 

6. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 

AROs associated with tangible lo~g-lived assets are legal obligations that exist under enacted laws, st~tutes and 
written or oral contracts, including obligations arising under the doctijne of promissory estoppel. These liabilities. 
are recognized at estimated fair value as incurred whh a corresponding amount c~pitalized as part of the cost of the 
related long-lived assets and depreciated over their useful lives. Accretion of the liabilities due to the passage of 
time is recorded to a regulatory asset and/or liability. Changes in the estimated fair values of the liabilities are 
recognized when known. 

Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO have AROs related to asbestos abatement and the closure and post-closure care. 
of ponds and landfills containing coal combustion residuals (CCRs). In addition, Westar Energy and KCP&L have 
AR Os related to decommissioning Wolf Creek Generating Station (Wolf Creek) and the retirement of wind 
generation facilities. 
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The following table summarizes the change in the Evergy Companies' AROs .. 

.. 
Liabilities assumed upon merger· with 

Great Plains Energy 

Evergy 
2018 2017 

. 412.2 

Westar Energy 
2018 2017 

(millions) 

KCP&L(a) 

2018 2017 

· Accretion 34.9 16.8 19.3 16.8 19.2 · 13.5 

tfil1~F2g'J?~J~11c~~~-.~1:/·t:',\t2:£.~tg;;.~it'$.~\:~&i)t:t:?'~\t~{q5:J~:::.fff$SJ~S];[,';:''$:f40~1::.;'§.>}S.A~l1t'~:~·:r$.{\f~.6,3':]. 
Less: currentportion (49.8). .(25.1) (17.1) (25.1) (29.2) (34.9) 

rT~~tW~*~%1~1~;~s~~f;::!:_~~~~~~ii:: iL;··:':;(;~i:r::6~;:~::~~/v;:~::::~~a:·~:E~~:ti}~,~~:1otc~~~;;.:~::~:i~;~~~;"\i i~rX: :r:f0;s·'.'~:3l.:~:,J 
(a) KCP&L amounts are only included.in consolidated Eve~gy from the date of the· closi~g of the merger, June 4, 2018, through December 31, 

2018. 

See Note 2 for more information regarding KCP&L's and GMO's ARO liabilities that Evergy·assumed as a result of 
the merger. 

In 2018, Evergy and Westar Energy recorded a $127.0 million revision in estimate primarily related to Westar 
Energy's ARO to decommission its 47% ownership share of Wolf Creek. 

/ 
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The following tables summarize the property, plant and equipment of'Evergy, Westar Energy and KCP&L. 

December 31, 2018 Evergy Westar Energy KCP&L 

(millions) 

· Electric plant acquisition adjustment 740.6 740.6 

t~;;:.i§.c;yufnd1}!1;<l;d~~2±atroii:.f5J:: ,.(::z~;::,1 TI ;.,('t< ·,i<:,,::.7:i~i .. ,}::?:~:::: .:}.c97~S>1; 1)/·:·:, >::i~ : ;.<·· :(4;_~~2, s) .':. 1: · ;. ·: ~. · :: :.:r< 4,02W4)J 
Plant in service 17,963.2 9,274.5 

Net property, plant and equipment $ 18,782.5 $ . 9,718.3 $ . 6,688S 

December 31, 2017 Evergy Westar Energy KCP&L<aJ 

Electric plant acquisition adjustment 

i~;A:c.cuw?Jat~cl9,9pr~9i~4Rn~ ... ~}.>. ·:::~, .. ·;,·,;,.,,.'.',;w ;:< .. ··.;~~::. ::·:,;.;.'.,· ,:;':, '(,f~6}il,.7). ·,y: \ I,· ... X, ;• Cfr;65J.'7),,/: .:·.·· ::··· .. ,, .•• · K4;07:03)] 
Plant in service 9,041.6 9,041.6 6,142.9 

Nuclear fuel, net 71.4 71.4 72.4 

Net property, plant and equipment $ 9,553.8 $ 9,553.8 $ 6,565.6 

(a) KCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 

(b) As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, represents the·planned retirement of Westar Energy analog meters prior to the end of their remaining 

useful lives. 

The following table summarizes the property; plant and equipment of VIEs for Evergy and Westar Energy. 

December31 

2018 2017 

(millions) 

;S:0~'\~;{3:}}~J};,·::{ ··~92~t,'(.,·.: ''! ;,,.$, __ ;·:;,.f~9~J:;,'5J 
rl.vl,UlllUJLau:,u depreciation ofVIEs (222.9) (215.8) 

(:_·/,ij~(pr9fi~w;cr1an1<w4,equipw:e~tPtYJ~s:);.J,r t-s,x,-:.?;i: .. ·{;···/:::c·,:, .• ·.:::;.\t$. 

Depreciation Expense 
The Evergy Companies' depreciation expense is detailed in the following table. 

2018 2017 2016 

(millions) 

Westar Energy 
r , , ~ 'lIT $f ""' ~ ~ , ,., .... \, ,. , -~ , 

1KCP&L· , · . . , .. .. . . , .. : '. :·. ,: ·, .. : i , 

<•)Approximately $7.1 million, $8.3 million and $9.5 million of depreciation expense in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, was attributable 

to property, plant and equipment ofVIEs. 
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8. JOINTLY-OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANTS 

Evergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's share'·ofjointly-owned electric utility plants at December 31, 2018, are 
detailed in the following tables. . 

Evergy 

Accumulated 

Construction work in 
progress 

f 2019 accredited! . .. 
; capacity~MWs 

Wolf Creek 
Unit 

171.6 

La Cy~ne 
. Units a) 

41.8 

Iatan No. I 
Unit · 

27.1 

Iatan No. 2 
Unit 

30.5 

Iatan 
Common 

26.5 

Jeffrey 
Energy 

Center{b) 

33.2 

State· 
Line 

0.4 

<•l The VIE consolidated by Evergy and Westar Energy holds its 50% leasehold interest in La Cygne Unit 2. This 50% leasehold interest.in La 
Cygne Unit 2 is reflected in the information provided above. See Note 7 for additional information. 

(b) Evergy and Westar Energy's 8% leasehold interest in Jeffrey E?-ergy Center is reflected in the information provided above. 

Westar Energy 

Wolf Creek 
Unit 

La Cy2ne 
Un,its-Ca> 

Jeffrey 
Energy· 

Centern,) 

(millions, except MW amounts) 

State 
Line 

Construction work in progress 83.7 34.0 30.6 0.4 .. ~ .. -... ·--.·~-.--..,_--, ,··~-----.----, ·~-·- .,"- '"~-~-\.:F. --~~- -~- .-- __ ,.,..,,,··--· . .-----·------~------,-,,,------,---··1· 
12QI9 accreditedtcapacity-MWs •· . 1, •• ·/ ': ·•: :'. ·: •. r ': <, t .. ~52 • .· ·' 699'. · ' ~;012 . , 19,6 / 
<•l The VIE consolidated by Evergy and Westar Energy holds its 50% leasehold interest in La Cygne Unit 2. This 50% leasehold interest in La 

Cygne Unit 2 is reflected in the information provided above. See Note 7 for additional information. · 
(bl Evergy's and Westar Energy's 8% leasehold interest in Jeffrey Energy Center is reflected in the information provided above. 

KCP&L 

Wolf Creek 
Unit 

La Cygne 
Units 

Iatan No.1 
Unit 

Iatan No. 2 
Unit 

(millions, except MW amounts) 

Iatan 
Common 

ri··. .• ... • .. r·-· .,,.,~··c--··,...···-····"'·-""·-:···-·;:·7'-,cc---·•- ,··:··.:.:,,~~-·,":"·~·--::·,:o:---:-"·-·c•··---~r·~-::: :-·=·-:·:-·-··· -~--·····--···"'· ,-·-··•-., 
. Ll(.CP&L's shar_e_.·_. ·-·--·---------~~-~----~-~-~~~~~--~-~-~---~·-'--·--·-·' ....... -··-·-·-.... -""-·"'--"-

Construction work in progress 87.9 7.8 3.3 6.2 
12015)'.accredited capacit<j0-MWs . '..' . ,.· · i -·: \ ,: 552_ ,' ,··"'· ·" .. 699: .. _·.. . 490 , .. · ,: 482· ,;_ 
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Each owner must fund its own portion of the plant's operating expenses and capital expenditures. The. Evergy 

Companies' share of direct expenses are included in the appropriate operating expense classifications in Evergy's, 

Westar Energy's and KCP&L's consolidated financial statements. 

9. PENSION PLANS AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Evergy and certain of its subsidiaries maintain, and Westar Energy and KCP &L participate in, qualified non

contributory defined benefit pension plans covering the majority of Westar Energy's and KCP&L's employees as 

well as certain non-qualified plans covering certain active and retired officers. Evergy is also responsible for its 

94% ownership share of Wolf Creek's defined benefit plans, consisting of Westar Energy's and KCP&L's respective 

47% ownership shares. 

For the majority of employees, pension benefits under these plans reflect the employees' compensation, years of 

service and.age at retirement. However, for the plan covering Westar Energy's employees, the benefits for non-

. union employees hired between 2002 and the second quarter of 2018 and union employees hired beginning in 2012 

are derived froni a cash balance account formula. The plan was closed to future non-union employees in 2018. For 

the plans covering KCP&L's employees, the benefits for union employees hired beginning in 2014 are derived from 

a cash balance account formula and the plans were closed to future non-union employees in 2014. 

Evergy and its subsidiaries als6 provide certain po1)t-retirement health care and life insurance benefits for 

subs~antially all retired employees of Westar Energy·and KCP&L anci their respective shares of Wolf Creek's post

retirement benefit plans. 

The Evergy Companies record pension and post-retirement expense in accordance with rate orders from the KCC 

and MPSC that allow the difference between pension and post-retirement costs under GAAP and costs for 

ratemaking to be recognized as a regulatory asset or liability~ This difference between financial and regulatory 

accounting methods is due to timing and will be eliminated over the life of the plans. 
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The foliowing pens.ion benefits tables provide information relating to the funded status of all defined benefit 
pension plans __ on an aggregate basis as well as the components of net periodic benefit costs. For financial reporting 
purposes, the market value of plan assets is the fair value. Net periodic benefit costs reflect total plan benefit costs 
prior to the effects ofcapitalization and sharing with joint owners of power plants. KCP&L amounts are only., . 
included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018, through December 31, · 
2018. 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar Westar 

Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy . KCP&L 
Change in projected benefit obligation (PBO) (millions) r · ., . . -·~ .. ".''f:;""~~'C':'·~7"""!'':"C-····-:0•~·~:,-y·'~-~~7,,·-,-.• ,·=,-?'PBO af1an\ii'' i 

~.i~\£1:i...Ai~~),:\' 

Service cost .. 60.7 32.2 48.6 2.3. 1.3 :2.0 

Actuarial (gain) loss -· (98.8) (100.1) (89.6) (11.3) (2.6) (18.0) 

Obligations assumed upon merger with Great Plains 
Energy · 1.,275.9 123.4 

PBO at December 31, 2018 $2,553.4 $1,258.9 $1,272.4 $ 249.3 $ 133.6 $ 115.7 
~hallgeinplanaSsets/ g',~~~,~~v· '~·: ;··,.· "'

0,0 ~' ~ } ~ ·~·,' :; .:. __ , __ .~ 'l-1·:. ~'«--"1: 8,.~ ~·.,'~H':,~:"\1,~,:~l"~f,J L::'.'.,,,_,,,_ • --·--- .:. ,,.,,,; ___ ~;_,_. __ _: ___ ~.::. ... :: ~':., .. .'..'... --~,··::· ··---··- ·-·-· _:... ,,, ' . ' ' ' ·=· 
FairvalueofplanassetsatJanuaryl,2018 $ 887.0 $ 887.0. $ 848.4 $ 124.1 $ 124.1 $ 115.8 ;~~£!~,r~ss~ey:• ·--:-:-~-C""'.'.-'C'C"'.''-•-•::-,-,".'~·~--·-:,=~·"'.':"'.'•'~'"'."'.'''~'1'"'"="'.,.Pl"''?[",;,""P 

Contributions by·employer and participants 114.5 47.9 

acquired upon merger with Great Plains 
Energy 825.0 111.8 

Fair value of plan assets at December 31, 2018 $1,603.4 $ 804.6 $ · 798.8 $ 223.3 $ 109.7 $ 113.6 
[•Jfu'nde~ ~t~tj:fs [at~l)ecem~et; :ll}iptf ~,;/ :,,,r ~: f:i1,,}E'J,;, 3f: (~~O))); ;!J;, ;(~54. J)''. $ : (47$.; 6) :~$ii, .:(Zf pj'; J'~ ~~t~Y ~,'.$;~ :J~: f 2~~~ 
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance 
sheets 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Westar Westar 
Evergy Energy KCP&L . Evergy Energy KCP&L 

(millions) 

Current pension and other post-retirement liability ( 4.4) (2.6) (0.5) (1. 7) (0.9) (0 .. 8) 

r··~· ;"·~~·f'·~··· . - ''"' . , ............ ··. ···~--·-·: . · .. , . .... .. . .. . . ·- .. · .... ... . .. ,.. . . . . .. . . . . • . . . . . . " •. 

1; N
oncurrenfpehsiohliabilityan<l'otn'etposf- .; (:.\}. >,·;;_~· · ·, I · .. '.;)J >7:/ . ; ,, ~-; \'.' z} , ,· \:;>· 'i ·,· .. f·J 

b' ";ret~en5'liabilj}Y~j ... ~·}-,;:·:v> -~ ! ·~ .• i.<l~:::'.:~ J5>4~:p); ': ,, J15,l;;;7~.~~;{47~:~r:· ·•;• (4X~J ·'l < {23:());~ •. '.(,L§.8~'. 

Net amount recognized before regulatory treatment (950.0) (454.3) (473.6) (26.0) (23.9) (2.1) 
('.' " ,,, ,, • ' ~ ,,._. <' • , " ••• • " 0 ·~ /:~~- ,o, "!~\,, /:."' s~·,~~r"'< .~·.;r.~~ .• -.,"',""'.,,~.:~·"·; "°• '"° "<"' ~~ .~F ! ,','\"'. "~.~ •. ·~·~ o~"; ., ,··,,,,, ~ ':."' , ,,- ,<·T~ ~·;'(, :'. 

j,1.tc;cuajulatc.:d Q(;L9iregiifatoi.-yttsset/liabiHty ':• .. · ... J-':419,.9 ··1·,. __ .3}7;5- • , L'???.4:•,,,, C ·:(6'.0\·· i'r {.0:!r /::.a:; C2!'5'.9): 

NetamountrecognizedatDecember31,2018 $ (530.1) $ (116.8) $ (111.2)· $ (32.0) $ (23.1)-$ (28.1) 

'f A~~uht.s i~.a~cultlulated,OCl or regulatocy ass~t!. " , .. · · ; 
,liability not yet.recognized as,a Fomponent of net• · -·' 
:.Periodic' b~nefit cost: - . . , . · ~ .'-. , · · . · · , : ':· ' 

t.C>~- -,---- ---- -·-- -· - - ______ ...,, _____ " __ ... • -\- •• 

Actuarial (gain) loss $ 

Other 132.3 (6.9) 

f:i-~~~!~am:ouht,:recpg6~ze'1 ii'f.P~s~r{~~r}l; i91s:;: :,i t'.,';:$.':)iJ~:9.-. $" J:337::5' , $ _··.· 36i:~' $;. ;.'.'.}(6:of ;ti;::: - -0:8, ::•$ : :'(26:0j 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Westar Westar 
Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

Change in projected benefit obligation (PBO) . (millions) 
'T7'7~;;:-:-;::-:v,,;~-:--~,;:.c::·-:,r7,----:4:,7c-......-,--:7,r,--~-,,-:,:r7;1·'7"'--o;;-;"''T7':'~'-,·•·• 

Service cost 28.7 28.7 44.2 1.2 1.2 2.1 

Contribution by participants 1.5 1.5 6.0 

Benefits paid (62.1) (34.7) 
~~,·, <<>.,i,~J:~,,,·.,.o,'<>.".'):·.''1',,,/;,~,Y',,,'fi ,;,," .. ~:-']'/.~&' ;,_.,,;·;~,·,;;,~~"~~'°"~~·"" .·• •·;·'" ''>"',:, • 1' 

f,:Settle!fiehts11nd spe'c\al termination oene:6,t~ , •.. '. . , t''.) i~ •' :ji' ; , ' '''.: :. i \ (&~.~){/' · i .•• -;-,,-;: • • 0: - • :(:,: :, ·.:::'/ ;;; : ,.; · 

PBO at December 31, 2017 $1,367.0 $1,367.0 $1,331.7 $ 138.6 $- i38.6 '$ 133:2 

!5~~A~~J~pl~~ ~~~et!'."j:~: _: : ·_.:£~:- --.· ,. ..- --·. _____ ---.: __ : :~.~ ·- ...... _ .. . 
Fair value of plan .assets at 1, 2017 

Contributions by employer and participants 36.3 36.3 76.9 1.9 1.9 10.4 
"r--··~·····----,.~,.--.. ,--·.-,··--- •~•-•·•-

Settlements (85.6) 

l;lfsf:~~ {i~ltj~ ofijlah ii~sei~ 'a(J?e9~~b~t~l, .~Qt_?; .•. · •.. · .•. $''. 887 .() •. , $,.: 8'8"/:'() > $· ';8:4$:~.;~ $ fl24J .... ;_ $ , .. 124:1 : · $; fis;8 l 
Funded status at December 31, 2017 $ (480.0) $ (480.0) $ (483.3) $ .. (14.5) $ (14.5) $ (17.4) 
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Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance 
sheets 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar Westar 

Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L. 

(millions) . · 

Current pension and other post-retirement liability· (2.5) , (2.5) · .. (0.6) (0.8) (0.8) (0.8) 
r--~~n~u~e~f-,p~~;i~ri li~bii"ity~nd;oth~rpost- . ,. . . ~--·· - ·--··- . ' .•. .··· .... 1 
~- :r~tireme~}!~~il~tx_.~ ·' ~~- ~ .: . --~"-'::~. '•-·'· . : '(482)) .. ti'3'.1Y> . tf;3)j) .. ·;:.~(i9:·4~ 

Net amountrecognized before regulatory treatment (480.0) (480.0) (483.3) (14.5) (14.5) (17.4) 
;,","-"''T,_.,,....,. ...... ~,,-~ .,-~,~-~~ .. ~,' ,· ,; .,,·. ~i-~..,,~~~~-, -~ --. -~,-' ,, ~--~ ._·N _,.,,,,,,_,,,.,._ ~N-.,--.- . ·~. ""' ;,N. ~~. 

1 Actumulate.d OCLorregulatClry. asset/hal:i1hty, . •.... .,. ' .·/:A?2,6 • ·· . 372.:6 .. )79, 7' J".<l:J::1) , :, ,· (H,1) < . , (t2i2); 
NetamountrecognizedatDecember31,2017 $ (107.4) $ (107.4) $ (103.6) $ (25.6) $ (25.6) $ (29.6) 

l~mounts ill 'accumulated. OGro.r regulatory asset/,., ~; i:? '.,,, P. :2 )· !1 
1 lfab_ilitr not ye,t ,recq~ntzed ~s)1 co?1ponent of1~.,t~~: . • ... , , · . , . . , '; , :. ,. ,:~·:: 1',;i :(: ;;j 
, periodic benefit cost.. . , :. - . "'· .. c,· •.• • , •• • •• , • . .. , .. • . • • ;, • • •. : • •. /' • ·.·, ~"'~· _,,•-,0-WW,_,,,_,s,_~··~-~-M~~-<M>-N,O~---~ ·-• -~Y•~> , ___ , ,, ~-.' • -- >,' ,,'~' > ,, -~-'~~><'l}'~!A~' ,, """'"'"~-~<''.:0°''~"1,'j'_, 0•~,>,~//y"~J 

Actuarial (gain) loss $ 369.0 $ · .369.0 $ 245.5 $ (13.3) $ (13.3) $ 2.8 

Other ·. 131.7 . (7.0), 
\ • Net amount recognized'.a{Qecem.hei;.31; 201'7\ · 

As of December 31,· 2018 and 2017, Evergy's pens10n benefits include non-qualified benefit obligations of $46.9 
million and $27.4 million, respectively, which are funded by trusts containing assets of $43.8 million and $34.3 
million, respectively. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, Westar Energy's pension benefits include non-qualified 
benefit obligations of $24.8 million and $27.4 million, respectively, which are funded by trusts containing assets of 
$30.6 million and $34.3 million, respectively. The assets in the aforementione.d trusts are not included in the table 
above.' See Note 13 for more information on these amounts. 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar Westar 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 Evergy Energy KCP&L ·Eve,rgy Energy KCP&L 
Components.of net periodic benefit costs (millions) 
r :.service cosf · .·. · · 
L . --··· --·-

Interest cost 82.5 50.7 49.9 8.0 5.0 4.8 
.fExp¢'ct~. retunJ.(~niP!flll :~ss~t~.·" & V · .. 

Prior service cost , 0. 7 0. 7 0. 7 0.5 0.5 1 
i"Rec:og~ednet ~chlarial (gain)lossp-P -. · , · .· ; ,;, ··"§4.~32.6 -~74TI .< .: ·, ([6)"";;:-~(0.6)'."'.'.T(o.ij. 

Net periodic benefit costs before regulatory · 
adjustment and intercompany allocations 90.1 60.3 88.8 1.4 .. (0.8) 3.9 

t: Regulatory ad.jHsfnieiit . -~ : •. ~L·~J.>;~~;~8:3 ~- 8~ ..... sQ,1 . . ; (1:'Z) ~. ··. (2:0GJ<Qill 
Intercompany allocations n/a · (21.6) · n/a (1.1) 

[.:l!~.I>~ii.<:>dic_~enefi!__c;.?~ts. ... ~------~---- · .· , 98)n . 69.1 ·. . 67:9 •• ,· (tl:3)\:z'U2,8): · -;:2.:71 
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations 

recognized in OCI or regulatory assets/liabilities 
1 ciireiii1e~trteT<g~in)io'is7· ·:.- ---·= ~~---~0-1·· ·il·f····:~:11r2f· .... 2fe:_=239 · .• ~. n.1.·· -~- €Y4:·01 

Amortization (32.6) (32.6) (45.1) 0.6 0.6 0.2 
cost · l3.4.- , I 11.4 ·.•·' :2.0 .·: · ... 

Amortization of prior service cost · , (0.7) (0'.7) (0.7) (0.5) (0.5) (0.1) 
L.:Q!tJ.e.EI~gula!r~~~-~--.:'--.-.:C . .:.:.._:~_;_;;: .. ~'-.--.:.; .. • .~,. . : · ~ . ,, o.6 . . . ..... ,.:..; ·. ',=-> .: =1 

Total recognized 1n OCI ofregulatory asset/liability 47.3 (35.1) (17.3) 5.0 11.8 (13.9) 

G:?fo~;Je:f!~~~~~~ittene~tc9~tsand.• .. '$ .14s.1· $ ·: )4.0 .$. -.~0.6 $. f7, $ 9.0 .. $ ·(1:.i.d 
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Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar· Westar 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

Settlement and special termination benefits 0.4 0.4 16.3 

[Irr~:t~:k~[~;i~d~rllj:;r~r&~t~~:-m>-::~--::-.~-:;_J_:.s_i...,.·~-:~.--.. ....,:-;-~-:5-:--·-:-?-;J-.:1-.~,_-.~-:-..,..S,-.:-~.:-;-(0--,~-5L-.{-,_.-?-1-·:'"'"io_j.,..,:~-t-~-·J"'"'/"'".::,.-c-·•·~-~.,....,,fl 

Regulatory adjustment 14.5 14.5 . (9.2) . . . (1.9). (1.9) . . 1.3 

f• mte,~cQiiJ;pany ~lp5aiisE§l:J :,r. •;: ·:t . ·:~ ;~,i~~-~· ·1: . ·~ •( .,::~t:[[ .t•~t· :~.War . • .. :::· ;,; <+· ;~:;:: ·:;eff,.:1.')·· .. ;,; .:' •. f]y~·.:r -~. f·:,-~;-~';• ~·· ,!;(::f.:~J, 
Netperiodic benefit costs 70.0 70.0 65.3 ,(2.4) (2.4) . 4.3 

tli'ei clianges in•pfan'aSs~ts and benefit'obli 'iftfons: .A ? ... ·· 
':·r~co 'nized:i~:Q<;loi'r~gpJator,f@~t; . '§'.'''_:. ·••·•· ;c .••.. ··- .,£.;._.'.:;\j .... ···.'- '~ ··/. ___ .:.·,, • · ..• ·. · .. .• • 
Current net loss 

Amortization of prior service cost (0.7) (0.7) (0.7) (0.5) (0.5) . 

[::::PJJls#Jegi.~fily~Jtr>;,;;,~; :::.-Jv,;:~;._. , -:12'.'": .. J;: ·,, ..... L.:7.~.':~:. -;,6tl,~ .. ,k ;;_:~'i .. -+,7:: :.~ 
Total recognized in OCI or regulatory asset/liability 19.5 19.5 11.8 (5.5) (5.5) 3.5 

Er1rs&}iit~lfittf!s~fffll~it~ff~~t~,,:~e.,.It:{•::,,i;:rs: •. :¥;·.:#1~.~·:;;,·;:·::.z1;if:!s::tt~~:~)'J-·t __ :l.,J/t11•Jt1.::1ii1 
Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Westar, Westar . 
Year Ended December 31, 2016 · Evergy Energy . KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

(millions) 

Interest cost 53.4 53.4 52.9 5.9 5.9 6.1 

Prior service cost 0.8 , 0.8 0.7 0.5 . · 0.5 1.2 

~R~'co~t{9~_3S~~riaj'($a'i~J~1EI ::J3;·,~1;~~:-~ <::.} :14[9•1~ 1~ ~i. '.24'.~}: .t.'"5.1:? :~ ~;.,_•;'(;(~:1,;):rpff r .. f! :JJ,:.:t :~,/~:<fl~ 
Net periodic benefit costs before regulatory· 

adjustmel}t and intercompany allocations 

Intercompany allocations . . . n/a . (36.0) .n/a (L9) 

~~etpe~ohenefit'co§tsS~·tJ!;,;;:1J:·;:;;s.7,.;,,:f<,·~:,·:;-'.•6875·;,; 1:';~, 68~5: /Lt',·59:I .:, ":: ~•: \~;3t·: 11}·•:,'t2-;$t::JJ~:{J:,!fl 
0th~; ch;~ge.s in ~l;n'assets a~d be;efi;• ;;i,iigations~., · · · · · · · ·' · · · .· 

recognized in OCI or regulatory assets/liabilities 

Amortization of gain (loss) (24.9) (24.9) (51.8) 1.1 1.1 -1.5 

TotalrecognizedinOCiorregulatory'asset/liability 33.7 33.7 8.2 3.7 . 3.7. (10.7) 

l:1,·::~·:{gt~~~~~~tr~ie~~~t~~1::~.~~t~(:Jfl:$:'.-·~~~~:~2~:··s.-~~;iBiit;;;i'--:;~~6~~i;·'.;:·$,.i,,'ii~4I_,~$~'.;'~ •. :.,~r:~.::~$:~~'.;·:(3~~ 
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For financial reporting purposes, the estimated prior service cost and net actuarial (gain) loss for the defined benefit 
plans are amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income (OCI) or a regulatory asset into net periodic 
benefit cost. The Evergy Companies amortize prior service cost on a straight-line basis over the average future . 
service of the active employees (plan participants) benefiting under the plan at the time of the amendment. Evergy 
and Westar Energy amortize the net actuarial (gain) loss on a straight-line basis over the average future service of 
active plan participants benefiting under the plan without application of an amortization corridor. KCP&L 
amortizes the net actuarial (gain) loss on a rolling five-year average basis. The estimated amounts to be amortized 
in 2019 are detailed in the following table. 

Pension Benefits 
Westar 

Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar 

Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

(millions) 

Prior service cost amortization 1.9 1.7 0.9 0.5 0.5 

Pension and other post-retirement benefit plans with the PBO, ABO or accumulated other post-retirement benefit 
obligation (APBO) in excess of the fair value of plan assets at year-end are detailed in the following tables. KCP&L 
amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 

December 31, 2018 Evergy 
Westar 
Energy 

(millions) 

KCP&L 

fABO for alldefmed benefit pension:plans·< . f :·' . · <:; .</ ; $ ·2,isJ:9" .:$ i)39Jf.:f:f,OJ~i7] 
Pension plans with the PBO in excess of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets 1,603.4 804.6 · 798.8 
I Pension plans with the ABO in excess 9f plan assets .. i . •: <: . : · 

· ~'-"•· ·--·- __ ,.,.·.--.,~ . .;,~; ·-vJ-,. Z---··-·-•- .,._ ~'---= 

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 2,257.9 $ 1,139.1 $ 1,096.7 
fJ~air yafoe'of rlan as~~ts •.. ·;..' ·i:· •... • ::, '. .·.·· .. ·· H •••. ·7~ .••.. . '.·(, ~'..~. ·:. i ·;::.·:·.:·I ,,; :•;:,t -~ :~l;§g3'.,4 : ~· .. ''•:f?04:~";.~~~~,:!7'9§:§::j 
Other post-retirement benefit plans with the APBO in excess of plan assets 

-···,··r·"."'c:·-, .. --...... ~--~··-~-"-·~:"'V-•-··-·-~-.,-;,,·-,-··--:~·"""."'"';"'Vl'~7CC;"''~"'·""''"''~"~'?"'.-'?.7"9 

Fair.value of plan assets 223.3 

December 31, 2017 , Evergy 

109.7 

Westar 
Energy 

(millions) 

38.2 

KCP&L 

fA;Bo. ror•all ~eoned. Qeneit p;-n~ioUpJa11s;~: 1~ · .. :.~, ,, ,,, .?~~,1=Tl:' r:2r9,~.<£TIJ:~~19:6::~~]:'.J~t52~~J 
Pension plans with the PBO in excess· of plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets 887.0 887.0 848.4 
!l3~!i;Sio~plans ~t4}1i~ABO fo:eic~ss <>[P}§;~t.~: £)' ;t: ; : ;,'t;J :' T~1• ~. ':;'; )~j~ ,;: :';'. ·,' . ~;_:'..' '.- '., '1~ _i~'·°)1;>Lt' :·:1fj 
'Accumulated benefit obligation $ 1,219.6 $ 1,219.6 $ 1,155.5 
[F~r.yi1~e if'p1a~;~~;~ts• . ·-- :-.. ~~.~ •... ·, .,· -~- ?;~·-·-~;-·~ ,. · • · . ,,. , ·581.0, <·. L)8if.S .n:·:sJ.iiij 

' 

124.1 124.1 81.5 
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The expected long-term rate ofreturn on plan assets represents the Evergy Companies' estimate of the long-term 

return on plan assets and is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and planned asset classes in 

the plans' investment po1ifolios. Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were selected after analyzing 

historical experience and future expectations of the returns of various asset classes. Based on the target asset 

allocation for each asset class, the overall .expected rate o~ return for the portfolios was developed and adjusted for· 

the effect of projected benefits paid from plan assets and future plan contributions. · 

The following tables provide the weighted-average assumptions· used to determine benefit obligations and net costs. 

KCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31,201.7. 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Westar Westar 
the benefit obligation at December 31, 2018 · Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy_ KCP&L 

I Discount rate. . . . . ·• '. . • . · · 0 ·••• •• 4.35% , : 4.35% · • 4.36% ·•. 4.33% C ·• 4.33% 1 _.· •• - 4.33% 
L~:s~-,"'---~-- --· 'M-.--~~- -~--·-·-- ..,_,, ·- ....... _.~----·~~-.-."-'°~"'"'·~ ., -·--·-"~-~"""'~-~-- . -· ·t.., ,~=---~-<~.-~"'"~ . ""*'~--"'-- l ~ ·~· ~-" : - • '·'· ~~--- - .· - .• "·~-·-· ·• . • • -- • · •• ~,-,( 

Rate ofcompensation increase 3.76% 4.03% .3.64%· 3.50% n/a 3.50% 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Weighted-average assumption used to determine ·westar Westar 
the benefit obligation at Decemb~r 31, 2017 Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

fDiscountrate ··-··-----··-· 3'.73% · ,·3.73,% ·· 3.72o/c{ 3.67%'. 3.67.% : 3.64,o/~ 
••••••••·-••••~•••• o•O ••••••-•• _. ••• ··-•----•-•• • -• ~ .. -~~-. ~- --·- ·--· ,---'4--,--A ----·-·--•- ,•-·~ ·•-••••·---~-• --~-•- W-0 

Rate of compensation increase · 4.00% . 4.00% 3.62% 4.00% 4.00% 3.50% 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Westar . Westar · 
riet costs for the year ended December 31, 2018 Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

tDiscountrate _·_ ·. _ -·-- .. __ - ··-··-··-- •. ~-- ...... _;3.73% .. • .... 3;73,%··-·· 3}1%._" J:67fn~J-7;,%· .. ~:64%; 

Expected long..:term return on plan assets 6.52% 6.67% 6.46% .6.00% 6.00% 2.80% 

!'Ra(e pf qompeµsat~on increa~i . · __ . . . .. '. · /. , c--. · . 3.mC .... 4.00%. ·-:r3.62% ·.-··· 3.50%· ' .. · h/a .... : 3.50% 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine Westar Westar 
net costs for the year ended December 31, 2017 Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L 

l,Piscount-rate . . . . . . . . . .. . . . , . 4.25%; .. 4,+5% '. 4.3f% > . 4:.31 % . 4.31 % ' 4.20%; 
~-,= .. ,.~-,-----·--·--"''- ~---'--"~·-·-···' ,.., ___ '-"·->--- . _______ ...,,.,,_ __ ,__,, ___ ..., ___ ·--·-· ' . "'--~··-- --.~-~----·-·-- . ----··---~-------- -

Expected long-term return.on plan assets . 6.64% 6.64% 6.73% 6.00% . 6.00% 2.00% 
/•' , .. -........ . ... _ ............ ~._. .............. _ .............. - .................. -- ......... _______________ .--·. ------ .. ·-·-·--------·- ·--·---~ 
1Rate of compensation increase , .. ·· .. 4;00% ·, 4.00% _ . ; •3;6,2% .• · , : 4.0.0%· .. \ · 4._0.Q% '· ... 3:50%: 

Evergy expects to contribute $115.5 million to the pension plans in 2019 to meet Employee Retirement Income 

Security Act c:,f 1974, as amended (ERISA) funding requirements and regulatory orders, of which $37.0 million is 

expected to be paid by Westar Energy and $78.5 million is expected to be paid by KCP&L. The Evergy Companies' 

funding policy is to contribute amounts sufficient to meet the ERISA funding requirements and MPSC and KCC . 

rate orders plus additional amounts as considered appropriate; therefore; actual contributions may differ from 

expected contributions. Also in 2019, Evergy expects to contribute $2.8 million to the post-retirement benefit plans, 

of which $0.7 million is expected to be paid by Westar Energy and $2.1 million is expected to be paid by KCP&L. 
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The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid 
through 2028. 

Pension Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar Westar 

Evergy· Energy KCP&L .Evergy Energy KCP&L 
(millions) 

2020 188.9 94.9 92.8 19.8 11.0 8.9 

2022 187.4 92.7 93.4 21.1 11.5 9.6 

2024-2028. 928.7 432.7 488.3 110.7 58.5 52.1 

Westar Energy and KCP&L each maintain separate trusts for both their qualified pension and post-retirement 
benefits. These plans are managed in accordance with prudent investor guidelines contained in the ERISA 
requirements. 

The primary objective of the Westar Energy pension plan is to provide a source of retirement income for its 
_participants and beneficiaries, and the primary financial objective of the plan is td improve its funded status. The 
primary objective of the Westar Energy post-retirement benefit plan is growth in assets and the preservation of 
principal, while minimizing interim volatility, to meet anticipated claims of plan participants. 

The primary objective of the KCP&L pension plans is to earn the highest possible return on plan assets within a 
reasonable and prudent level of risk. The primary objective of the KCP&L post-retirement benefit plans is to 
preserve capital, maintain sufficient liquidity and earn a consistent rate of return. 

The investment strategies of both the Westar Energy and KCP&L pension and post-retirement plans support the 
above· objectives of the plans. The portfolios are invested, and periodically rebalanced, to achieve the targeted 
allocations detailed below. The following table provides the target asset allocations by asset class for the Westar 
Energy and KCP&L pension and other post-retirement plan assets. 

Pension·Benefits Post-Retirement Benefits 
Westar Westar 
Energy KCP&L Energy KCP&L 

t.~-.pw_·. es.tic_·._·-~-·-·_qu_._iti~.s.: __ :-c ... ·_:_.<·' _:.:. ·. :.: .•. -. __ ·· .. :.·· · .. ·.• .. , .. ·.·.-.. · ._.-.1.·· -_·_·: ::_· . ·• ... • : .. :- 29% · > 32% ·. , s2% \. · < · : ,3o/o' , .. - ·- -- •. .. . • L:i··'•., ... A:,,,,· .~ .. ~ •. :...:._~---~-------•'...-,~·---- • __ •..:__::_', •:.,.:,,_j 
International equities 20% 21% 13% -% 

Other investments 11% 5% -% 

Fair Value Measurements 
Evergy classifies recun-ing and non-recurring fair value measurements based on the fair value hierarchy as 
discussed in Ncite 13. The following are descriptions of the valuation methods of the primary fair value 
measurements .disclosed below. 

8% 

Domestic equities - consist of individually held domestic equity securities and domestic equity mutual funds. 
Securities and funds, which are publicly quoted, are valued based on quoted prices in active markets and are 
categorized as Level 1. Funds that are traded in less than active marke~s or priced with models using highly 
observable inputs are categorized as,Level 2. Funds that are valued by fund administrators using the net asset value 
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(NAV) per fund share, derived from the quoted prices'in active markets of the underlying securities are not 

classified within the fair value hierarchy. · 

International equities - consist of indiv1dually held. international equity securities and international equity mutual 

funds. Securities and funds, which are publicly quoted, are valued based on quoted pric~s in active markets and are _ 

categorized as Level 1. Funds that are traded in less than active markets or priced with models using highly _ . 

observable inputs are categorized as Level 2. Funds that are valued by fund administritors using the NAV per fund 

share, derived from the quoted prices in active markets of the underlying securities are not classified within the fair· 

value hierarchy. 

Bond funds - consist of funds maintained by investment companies that invest in various types of fixed income 

securities consistent with the funds' stated objectives. Funds that are traded in less than active markets or are priced 

with models using highly observable inputs are categorized as Level 2 and funds that are valued by fund 

administrators using the NAV per fund share, 4erived from the quoted prices in active markets of the underlying 

securities, are not classified within the fair value hierarchy. 

Corporate bonds - consists of individually held, primarily domestic, corporate bonds that are traded in less than 

_ active markets qr priced with models using highly observable inputs that are categorized as Level 2. 

US. Treasury and agency bonds - consists of individually held lJ.S. Treasury securities and U.S. agency bonds. 

U.S. Treasury securities, which are publicly quoted, are valued based on quoted prices in active markets and are 

categorized as a Level 1. U.S. agency bonds, which are publicly quoted, are traded in less than active markets or 

priced with models using highly observable inputs and are categorized as Level 2. 

Mortgage and q,sset backed securities - consists of individually held securities that are traded in less than active 

markets or valued with models using highly observable inputs that are categorized as Level.2. 

Real estate investments - consists of traded real estate investment trusts valued at the closing price reported on the 

- major market on which the trusts are traded and are categorized as Level 1 and institutional trust funds valued at 

NAV per fund share and are not categorized in the fair value hierarchy. 

Combination debtlequity/otherfund - consists of a fund that invests in various types of debt, equity and other as~et 

classes consistent with the fund's stated objectives. The fund, which is publicly quoted, is valued based on quoted · 

prices in active markets and is categorized as Level 1. 

Alternative investments - consists of investments in institutional trust and hedge funds that are valued by fund 

administrators using the NAV per fund share, derived from the underlying investm~nts ofthe fund, and are not 

classified within the fair value hierarchy. ' 

Short-term investments - consists of fund investments in higli-quaiity, short-term, U.S. dollar-dei:i.ominated 

instruments with an average maturity of 60 days that are valued at NAV per, fund share and are not categorized in 

the fair value hierarchy. · 

Cash and cash equivalents - consists of investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased 

that are traded in active markets ·and are categorized as Level 1. 
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. . . . 

The fair values of the Evergy Companies' pension. plan assets at December 3 i,' 20.18 and 2017 ;·by 'asset caJegory 'are 
in the following tables. · · 

Description 

Westar Energy Pension Plans 

International equities 

Real estate investments 

Jjf~1ff!2frlljiti~ttoit~~tfesiJig1tdi~~:E:~. 
· Alternative investment ftjnds 

KCP&L Pension Plans 

International equities . 

Corporate bonds 

Mortgage and asset backed securities 

Combination debt/equity/other fund . 

Cash and cash equivalents 

December31 
2018 

138.7 

73.6 

123.6 

5.5 

13.5 

49.8 
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Level 1 

91.8 

13.5 

49.8 

Fair Value Measurements Using 

Level 2 Level 3 
(millions) 

123.6 

5.5 

Assets 
measured 

atNAV 

46.9 

73.6 

46.9 

201.7 



· Description 

Westar Energy Pension Plans(a) 

[L])rinesi_ic 1quitks --u ,·-.·:".---~" .. ·~ .. ~ .. ,~-·-~---
International equities 

Real estate investments 

Alternative investment funds 

r::-~4~1"(-teqn.~~r~stmeiits~_; .. ,? ;. ·:~L-~i:r:, 
. Total 

KCP&L Pension Plans 

International equities 

Corporate bonds 

Mortgage and asset backed securities 

· Combination debt/equity/other fund 

Cash and cash equivalents 

[}5~er~ ·• :-::-~;.·~-. ·\·. .· 

Total 

December31 
2017 

177.9 

41.8 

$ 887.0 

125.8 

5.9 

15.9 

35.6 
. ·4-15 

$ 848.4 

Level 1 · 

$ 

123.5 

15.9 

35.6 

$ 482.0 

Fair Value Measurements Using 

Level 2 Level 3 

(millions) 

177.9 

$ 768.0 $ 

125.8 

5.9 

Assets 
measured at 

NAV 

, ·, t 

41.8 

53.3 

$ 119.0 

· 52.5 

· · 4.6 . ·.· . . · "" 

$ 154.6 $ $ 211.8 

<•J In 2018, Evergy and Westar Energy re-evaluated the classification, within the fair value hierarchy, of their various fund investments within 

· the Westar Energy Pension Plans. As a result, Evergy and Westar Energy determined that certain fund investments within the· Westar 

Energy Pension Plans in the amount of $607 .6 million as of December 31, 2017, should have been classified as Level 1, instead of Level 2. · 

This determination is based on the fact that the fair value of these funds is based on daily published prices at which Evergy and Westar 

Energy are able to redeem their investments without restriction on a daily basis. Evergy and Westar Energy also determined that certain 

fund investments within the Westar Energy Pension Plans in the amount of $160.4 million as of December 31, 2017, should have been 

measured using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient, instead of as a Level 2 investment. This determination is based 

on the fact that these funds do not meet the definition ofreadily determinable fair value due to the absence of a published NAV. Evergy and 

Westar Energy have determined that these errors are immaterial to their current and previously filed financial reports and accordingly, have 

not revised prior periods but have reflected the changes in fair value hierarchy classification as of December 31, 2018. 
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The fair values of the Evergy Companies' post-retirement plan assets at December 31, 2018 and 2017, by asset 
category are in the following tables. · 

December31 
Description 2018 Level 1 

Westar Energy Post-Retirement Benefit Plans 

International equities 14.0 

. International equities 0.9 0.9 

Corporate bonds 17.4 

Mortgage and asset backed securities . 2.5 .. 

Other 0.3 
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Fa~r Value Measurements Using 

Level 2 Level 3 
(millions) 

17.4 

2.5 

0.3 

Assets 
measured 

atNAV · 

14.0 

-~ 



December31 
Description : 2017 Level 1 

Other· 1.4 

Fair Value Measurements Using 

Level 2 Level 3 · 

(millions) 

1.4 

Assets 
measured 

atNAV 

F,~~fl:1'\ 't.' .v'. '.. ,:1z:\r:-~~y:::::-:::-;::: $·, "/i)t8 ; :.; $: <32si:·:' .. , $," :,f7.2 'f,·"r$.;:;'.,;,•,ef., }; rJ)~~?9;f, '.~ 
<•l In 2018, Evergy and Westar Energy re-evaluated the classification, within the fair value hierarchy, of their various fund investments within 

the Westar Energy Post-R,etirement Benefit Plans. As a result, Evergy and Westar Energy determined that certain fund investments within 

. the Westar Energy Post-Retirement Benefit Plans. in the amount of $124.l_million as of December 31, 2017, should have been measured 

. using the NAV per share ( or its equivalent) practical expedient, instead. of as a Leyel 2 investment: · This determination is based on the fact 

. that these funds do not meet the definition of readily determinable fair value due to the absence of a published NAV. Evergy ahd Westar 

Energy have determined that this error is immaterial to their' current and previously filed financial reports and accordingly, have not revised 

prior periods but have reflected the changes in fair value hierarchy classification as of December 31, 2018. . . 
' .,. . ' 

Assumed he.alth ca~e cost trend rates Iiave a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans: The 
cost trend assumptions are detailed in the following table. · 

Westar 
Assumed annual health care cost growth rates as of December 31, 2018 Evergy Energy KCP&L 

!;a:ealth.,p~e{o~(tre#?rateassurn'.yd~(Q,r'i\e~tiy~api ~1 ;::r .. s . •~j.~. :c>L':;<:::·::1.+.; ~~\2';":~~l-~l} 6:;?f{o;~ B >. ··~~';;: :':L~;$%,;'.? '\, ':~·i·i'?:5~; . 
Rate to which the cost trend is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 4.5% · 4.5% 4.5% 

~ear•,ili~f~~~tr~ac,fi~~:1l1tiiri~t~,;ft~;;aI;I~;=~:;y;~I~;·~:s~·0;:\ .·•· '··<t' ,.:,·· , ;,;:i·>;:: ·.~·q2rr.:~ ~'.~:,~~Q21~::~~·:::: . .20±1.J 

Westar· 
Assumed annualh~alth. ~are cost growth rates as of December 31, 2017 Evergy Energy· KCP&L 

gr~~!~i.q~~t1teM·rate;~s~µwfafor:n;e*~¥~m-:~ J·' ... :~·:J~·n.: ·-~~;J;::::;~.·,~;:;::!;;:::µ;_6.oro:1.:,:z> ··: 6.~%:c.+;:,~·•···:~.s~ 
Rate to which the cost trend is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 5.0% 5.0% 4.5% 

w~~~~~~~tt~"fi1IT~.~;:,;;;~ \.,::·. ·, .J• '.: .. :: 1 •. ,.1.:i:,:,:.>\ .iI67<Y2lJ) .. :,t2920, ,.·.n:.~171 
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The effects of a one-percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates, holding all oth~r 
assumptions constant, at December 31, 2018, are detailed in the following table. 

Evergy 
Effect of 1 % increase · 

Westar 
Energy<a> 

(millions) 

KCP&L,., 

Effect on total service and interest component $ $ $ 0.3 

[::)ff~¢\~11(pqst~~~e,iit~~n~fitobUgation:.\ ;(, !~ .. · .. • ''°_ <.:::, ,':':\:x.~:·':, ..•. ' '• ,, '.,, •.•. : f.(0:1:} ',.t;·:·<vfo:'.l:Tf~' ·,~l'(ifz'j 
(•lwestar Energy includes only the effect of health care cost ti-end rates for Wolf Creek because the Westar Energy. post-retirement benefit plan 

includes a fixed monthly stipend for health care and thyrefore is not affected by changes in.health. care .costs. 

Employee Savings Plans 
Evergy has defined contribution savings plans (401(k)) that cover substantially all employees. Evergy matches 
employee contributions, subject to limits. The annual costs of the plans are detailed in the following table-.· KCP&L 
amounts are only included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018; through 
December 31, 2018. 

2018 2017 2016 

Westar Energy 9.9 9.7 , 9.6 

10. EQUITY COMPENSATION 

Upon the consummation of the merger, E,vergy assumed both Westar Energy's Long-Term Incentive and Share 
Award plan (LTISA) and Great Plains Energy's Amended Long-Te)ID Incentive Plan, which was renamed the . 
Evergy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan. All outstanding share-based payment awards under Westar Energy's LTISA 
vested at the closing of the merger transaction and were converted into a rightto receive Evergy common !>tock with 
the exception of certain RSUs and deferred director share units issued prior to the closing of the merger to certain 
directors, officers and employees of Westar Energy. The vesting of these shares resulted in the recognition of $14.6· 
million of compensation expense in Evergy's and We~tar Energy's consolidated statements of income and. 
comprehensive income for 2018. 

All of Great Plains Energy's outstanding perfonnance shares, restricted stock, RSUs and director deferred share 
. units under Great Plains Energy's Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan were converted into equivalent Evergy · 
performance shares, restricted stock, RSUs and director deferred share units at Great Plains.Energy's merger 
exchange ratio of 0.5981. The estimated fair value of these converted awards that was allocated to the purchase 
price was $12.5 million, after-tax. See Note 2 for more information regarding the merger. 
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The following table summarizes the Evergy Companies' equity compensation expense and the associated income .tax 

benefit. 

-2018 · 2017 .· 2016. 

Ever.gy (millions) 

Income tax benefit 1.4 3.5 3.7 

Equity compensation expense $ 24.8 $ 8.9 $ _9.2 

<•J KCP&L amounts are only included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018, through December 31, 

2018. 

Performance Shares 
The vesting of performance shares is contingent upon achievement of specific performance goals over a stated 

period of time as approved by the Compensation and Leadership Development Committee of the Evergy Board. 

The number of performance shares ultimately vested can vary from the number of shares initially granted depending 

on either Great Plains Energy's performance prior to the closing of the merger transaction or Evergy's performance 

based on the stated performance period of the awards. Compensation expense for performance shares is calculated 

by recognizing the portion of the grant date fair value for each reporting period for which the requisite service has 

been rendered. Dividends ai-e accrued over the vesting period and paid in cash based on the number of performance 

shares ultimately paid. 

The fair value of the converted Great Plains Energy performance share awards was estimated using the market value 

of Westar Energy's and Great Plains Energy's common stock at ~he valuation date and a Monte Carlo simulation 

technique that incorporates assumptions for inputs of expected volatilities, dividend yield and risk~free rates. 

Expected volatility is based on daily stock price change based on historical common stock information during a 

historical period commensurate with the remaining term of the-performance period of the grant. The risk-free rate is 

based upon the rate at the time of the evaluation for zero-coupon government bonds with a maturity consistent with 

the remaining performance period of the grant. The dividend yield is based on the most recent dividends paid by 

Westar Energy, as Evergy's stock price assumes Westar Energy's stock price on a forward basis, and the grant date 

stock price on the valuation date. For the Great Plains Energy performance shares converted into Evergy awards 

upon the closing of the merger, inputs for expected volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free rates were 16.6% -

18.5%, 2.96% and 1.8% - 2.6%, respectively. Evergy and Westar Energy did not have any performance share 

awards issued and outstanding prior to the close of the merger. 

Performance share activity for 2018 is summarized in the. following table. 

Performance Grant Date 
Shares Fair Value* 

rnfJJ;~~~~!1-~R-£~l2!?~~1d£lit.:J:.~}~~-:~-~~L::°~tt '. __ ~· 
Converted Great Plains Energy awards upon merger 351,708 63. 79 

!Fpj:_feite1::,i:c; l" ,'. :' ,{'·\ .:, ;';:;::.}' .. >;\t.ff S::, :,}'./;,:5•'·i;IL}/:c:- 1 t,):/ ·~',,>/ t\<:·.:;•·;• (3,?12)'. · .. _ . :· '; :·63)1A · .. 
Ending balance December 31, 2018 348,496 63. 80 

* weighted-average 

At December 31, 2018, the remaining weighted-average contractual term was 1.0 years. The weighted-average 

grant-date fair value of shares granted in 2018 was $63.79. At December 31, 2018, there was $6.6 million of total 

unrecognized compensation expense, net of forfeiture rates, related to converted Great Plains Energy performance 
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shares granted under its Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan, which will be recognized over .the remaining 
weighted-average contractual term. 

Restricted Stock 
Restricted stock cannot be sold or otherwise transferred by the recipient prior to vesting and has a value equal tp the 
fair market value of the shares on the issue date: Restricted stock shares vest over a stated period of time with · 
accruing reinvested dividends subject to the same restrictions. Compensation expense, calculated by multiplying 
shares by the grant-date fair value related to restricted stock, is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite 
service period of the award. Evergy and Westar Energy did not have any restricted stock awards issued and 
outstanding prior to the close of the merger. 

Restricted stock activity for 2018 is summarized in the following table. 

f Begihning balance 18:nuai:y l, 2018,: •·•· · . ·. · ' 
1 

••· • .• ,~,,,,,,AWM--~NN_,, __ ""'"'w-"-"-~-------,·----,.....,_c __ -.,.~~-""'--
Converted Great Plains Energy awards upon merger 

Non vested 
Restricted Stock 

122,505 

Grant Date 
Fair Value* 

··:$•': :~: q. 
54.05 

Forfeited (1,070) · 54.04 
!-,,-E-n-d-in-g-:b_a_Ia~n-ce-.·-o-e~ce-~~b-e_r_·~-l-;2~0-l~:s-.-.. -,.-~.-;,-.-.·-,-••-;~•-,.--,.--,.--,.--,.--,.---,.------/-.~-1-16~;-67_5..,.._...,.,.,,;~·~::;~;0~ 

* weighted-average 

At December 31, 2018, the rem~ining weighted-average contractual term was 1.2 years. The weighted-average 
grant-date fair value of shares granted in 2018 was $54.05. At December 31, 2018, there was $2.6 million of total 
unrecognized compensation expense, net of forfeiture rates, related to converted Great Plains Energy restricted 
stock granted under its Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan, which will be recognized over the remaining weighted
average contractual term. The total fair value of shares vested was $0.3 million for 2018. 

Restricted Share Units 
Evergy and Westar Energy have historically used RSUs for their stock~based compensation awards. RSU awards 
are grants that entitle the holder to receive shares of common stock as the awards vest. These RSU awards are 
defined as nonvested shares and do not include restrictions once the awards have vested. These RSUs have either 
taken the fomi of RSUs with only service requirements that vest solely upon the passage of time or RSUs with 
performance measures that vest upon expiration of the award term. All issued and outstanding Evergy and Westar 
Energy RSU awards with performance measures vested in connection with the closing of the merger transaction in 
June 2018. 

Evergy measures the fair value of RSU s with only service requirements based on the fair market value of the . 
underlying common stock as of the grant date. RSU awards with only service conditions recognize compensation 
expense by multiplying shares by the grant-date fair value related to the RSU and recognizing it on a straight-line 
basis over the requisite service period for the entire award, including for those RSUs that have a graded vesting 
schedule. Nonforfeitable divideµd equivalents, or the rights to receive cash equal to the value of dividends paid on 

· Evergy's common stock, are paid on certain of these RSUs during the vesting period. Nonforfeitable dividend 
equival~nts are re.corded directly to retained earnings. 
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I . . 

RSU activity for awards with only service requirements for 2018 is summarized in the following table. 

Nonvested 
Restricted · 

Share Units 
Grant Date 
Fair Value* 

hBeginningoafanceJai;maryJ,2018: :' -. . ... • ·: , , . . -c'>- n. ,._ .... ,. ; ... 255,9~4... $ A6.09 . . I 
~',.',· ' , ' ' '-'----~~' ·-'-·---~~·,-' >,~.--""~J.·------ ·--/----"-"·"""""•'·~·',-A -~,., __ ,_~'"""'""~--~ ,,..1 

Granted . . . 222,465 52.16 
~-~', w,,--·.,, -. ,,""~•'.---"~J,· , ~"- <,.··" ·,~·,·~ ,• , • l 
1~onverteµ Gre_at-Plains Energyawarpsupon merger.· . .• ·· . . :-.. _·1 ••. :._ , .•• • .: •. 82,331 , . .._ 53.77 .... : 
t------···-····-··----~·-·-·--·~- -·--··- ---------·---·--····-·· . ---~·-····--·-- ~--- ·- --· ·--------·---~ 
Vested (342,599) 46.81 

. [forf~it~~:--~ ·. , ._. · . •. ;'7",~ ' •· ..• · '''Tf '.. : .. , : t-~ : : ..• · ~--·-;:': ., .(905) .. · <. -:'." '° :_.sb]3. 1. ; 

Ending balance December 31, 2018 217,256 54.07 

* weighted-average 

At December 31, 2018, the remaining weighted-average contractual term related to RSU awards with only service · 

requirements was 1.4 years. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSU s granted with only service 

requirements was $52.16, $53.25 and $46.35 in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. At December 31, 2018, there 

was $7.8 million of unrecognized_ compensation expense related to unvested RSUs. The total fair value ofRSUs 

with only service requirements that vested was $16.0 million, $6.1 million and $5.2 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, 

respectively, 
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11. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND SHORT-TERM BANK LINES OF CREDil' 

In S~ptember 2018, Evergy,enfored into a $2.5 billion master credit facility, which expires in 2023. Evergy, Westar 
Energy, KCP&L'and GMO have borrowing capacity under the master credit facility with specific sublimits for each 
borrower. These sublimits can be iiriilaterally adjusted by Evergy for each borrower provided the sublimits remain 
within minimum and maximum sublimits as specified in the facility. A default by any borrower under the facility or 
one of their significant subsidiaries on other indebtedness totaling more than $100.0 million constitutes a default 
under the facility. Under the terms of this facility, each ofEvergy, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO is required to 
maintain a total indebtedness to total capitalization ratio, as defined in the facility, of not greater than 0.65 to 1.00 at 
all times. As of December 31, 2018, Evergy, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO were in compliance with this 
covenant. 1 

In connection with the entry into the master credit facility, each of Evergy (as ·successor to Great Plains Energy), 
Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO terminated its existing credit facilities in September 2018. 

The following tabJe summarizes the committed credit facilities ( excluding receivable sale facilities discussed in 
Note 4) available to the EvergY. Companies as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. 

December 31, 2018 

Credit 
Facility 

Amounts Drawn 

Commercial Letters of Cash · Available 
Paper Credit· Borrowings Borrowings 

(millions) · 

· Weighted Average 
Interest Rate on 

Short-Term· 
Borrowings · 

-~--j"::,•·-:c····---c"7•-r-:cr··-· ,,,_ •• ,.,-,•;-"·••·,-·YY-7•· . ..,,.-,,,7r·,,,-,..,,-,."""'''"""'"''','CCS·c,-·,--:-:c-.--· ,-,c,····o-.,.,,o,- -,,.,·,7·•,ox,-"'1'"'"''""'""'"'·'7''......,C-.,,,,,,,,, •. ,, .. .,r,;•7,;,,••,1 

Westar Energy 1,000.0 411:7 18.3 · 570.0 3.08% 

Evergy 979.3 275.7 11.8 691.8 1.83% 

(al KCP&L amounts are not included in co~solidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 
Cbl.$20.7 million of Westar Energy's $730.0 million and $270.0 million revolving credit facilities expired .in September 2017: 
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12. LONG-TERMDEBT 

The Evergy Companies' long-tem1 debt is detailed in the following tables. 

Westar 
December 31, 2018 Issuing Entity Year Due Evergy Energy KCP&L 

Mortgage Bonds . . . (millions) 

r.:-~. ,5.•1J)o/?j?,<:~J~/:~ ::(:,';ti \I::SJ:\'vr:5•,~:l'::%~1J~F Eritir~Ip6;; :;,~i;\: 2Q49i~~~::;?;]~-~-Et2~0,9::~::.·,!52.0<. ,$'.. ::.:;:,;;: s:.2.:.:J 
3.25% Series Westar Energy, Inc. 2025 250.0 250.0 

3.10% Series Westar Energy, Inc. 2027 300.0 300.0 

4.10% Series Westar Energy, Inc. 2043 430.0 430.0 

4.25% Series Westar Energy, Inc. 2045 300.0 300.0 

2.95% EIRR bonds KCP&L 2023 79.5 

9.44% Series GMO 2019-2021 3.4 

Senior Notes 

3.65% Series KCP&L 2025 350.0 

· 3.49% Series A GMO 2025 36.0 

t _,::~:; f ~6%:~eti~lB-'r, 

4.74% Series C GMO 2043 150.0 
r: ,,-,-·:···· ... , . ' .. ·., .. 
( , .. 4.85o/r,Se1es: .. _ 

5.292% Series 

7.33% Series GMO 2023 3.0 

Unamortized debt discount and debt issuance costs (57.2) (37.1) 
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79.5 

350.0 

_ (400.oj; 

(19.3) 



December 31, 2017 Issuing Entity 

Mortgage Bonds 

3.25% Series Westar Energy, Inc. 

4.10% Series Westar Energy, Inc. 

4.25% Series Westar Energy, Inc .. 

6.15% Series KGE 

r·: --· --'·" 
6.64% Series KGE 

2.95% EIRR bonds KCP&L 

Pollution Control Bonds 

2.50% Series KGE 

2.875% Series 2008 KCP&L 

3.65% Series KCP&L 

5.30% Series KCP&L 

Current maturities 

.. Unamortized debt discount and uebt issi.iance costs.. ' · r .. -. ................. '--·--· ------ ' ...... ' ·_· ..... -. -'.· .. ' ' ----- ····-.· '' ... 
Total excl~ding ~urr~nt inaturitie~tdJ . . . 

Westar 
YearDue Evergy Ener·gy 

(millions) 

2025 250.0 250.0 

2043 430.0 430.0 

2045 300.0 300.0 

2023 50.0 50.0 

2038 100.0 100.0 

2023 

2031 50.0 50.0 

2025 

2041 

$ 3,687.6 $ 3,687.6 

KCP&l,(e) 

79.5 

23.4 

350.0 

400.0 

(350.0) 
··~ - (1):.2i 

$ 2,232.2 

(a) Rate after amortizing gains/losses recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) on settlements of interest rate ·hedging instruments. 
(bl Variable rate. 
(c) Evergy's current maturities total as of December 31', 2018, includes $4.3 million of fair value adjustments recorded in c~nnection with 

purchase accounting for the merger transaction. · 
(d) At December 31, 2018 and 2017, doe·s not incluue $50.0 million and $21.9 million of secured Series 2005 Environmental Improvement 

Revenue Refunding (EIRR) bonds because the bonds were repurchased in September 2015 and are held by KCP&L. 
(e) KCP&L amounts·are not included in consolidated Evergy at December 31, 2017. 
(!) Represents the fair value adjustments recorded at Evergy consolidated related to the long-term debt of Great Plains Energy, KCP&L and 

GMO in connection with purchase accounting for the merger transaction. This amount is not part of future principal payments and will 
amortize over the remaining life of the associated debt instruments. 

(g) Originally issued by Great Plains Energy but assumed by Evergy, Inc. as part of the merger transaction. 
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The following table summarizes Evergy's and Westar Energy's long-term debt ofVIEs. 

December 31 
2018 2017 

Current maturities 
! · .. ·: Total. excluding c.mTentmatutities $ 

Mortgage Bonds , 

(millions) 

(30.3) 

-109})~ 
(28.5) 

The Westar Energy and KGB mortgages each contain provisions rnstricting the amount of first mortgage bonds 
(FMBs) that could be issued by each entity. Westar Energy and KGB must be in compliance with such restricti~ns 
prior to the issuance of additional first mortgage bonds or other secured indebtedness. The amount of Westar 
Energy FMBs authorized by its Mortgage

1
and Deed of Trust, dated July 1, 1939, as supplemented, is subject to 

certain limitations as described below. The amount ofKGE FMBs authorized by the KGB Mortgage and Deed of 
Trust, dated April 1, 1940, as supplemented and amended, is limited to a maximum of $3.5 billion, unless amended 
further. FMBs are secured by utility assets. Amounts of additional FMBs that may be issued are subject to 
property, earnings and certain restrictive provisions, except in connection with certain refundings, of each mortgage. 
As of December 31, 2018, approximately $344.5 million·principal amount cif additional Westar Energy FMBs could 
be issued under the most restrictive provisions in Westar Energy's mortgage. As of December 31, 2018, KGB had 
sufficient capacity under the most restrictive provisions in the mortgage to meet its near term financing and 
refinancing needs. 

KCP&L has issued mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated as of December 
1, 1986, as supplemented, which creates a mortgage lien on substantially all ofKCP&L's utility plant. Additional 
KCP&Lmortgage bonds maybe issued on the basi.s of property additions or retired bonds. As of December 31, 
2018, KCP &L had sufficient capacity under the most restrictive provisions in the mortgage to meet its near term 
financing and refinancing needs. 

GMO has issued mortgage bonds under the General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated April 1, 1946, as 
supplemented, which creates a mortgage lien on a portion of GM O's utility plant. 

Pollution Control Bonds · 
In July 2018, KCP&L remarketed its unsecured Series 2008 BIRR bonds maturing in 2038 totaling $23.4 million at 
a fixed rate of 2.75% through June 30, 2022. 

In December 2018, KCP&L remarketed its unsecured Series 2007 A and 2007B BIRR bonds maturing in 2035 
totaling $146.5 million at a variable rate that will be determined weekly. · 

In December 2018, Westar Energy, Inc. remarketed its Series 1994 pollution control bonds maturing in 2032 
totaling $45.0 million and $30.5 million, collateralized by Westar Energy FMBs, at variable rates that will be 
determined weekly. 

In December 2018, KGB remarketed the following series of pollution control bonds, which are collateralized by 
KGEFMBs: 

• Series 1994 maturing in 2032 totaling $14.5 million and $10.0 million at variable rates that will be 
determined weekly; and 

• Series 1994Bmaturing in 2027 totaling $21.9 million at a variable rate that will be determined weekly. 
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Senior Notes 
Under the terms of the note purchase agreement for GM O's Series A, Band C Senior Notes, GMO is required to 
maintain a consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio, as defined in the agreement, not greater 
than 0.65 to 1.00. In addition, GMO's priority debt, as defined in the agreement, cannot exceed 15% of 
consolidated tangible net worth, as defined in the agreement. At December 31, 2018, GMO was in compliance with 
these covenants. "' ' '' · · ,; 

In March 2018, KCP&L issued, at a discount, $300.0 million of 4.20% unsecured Senior Notes, maturing in 2048. 
KCP&L also repaid its $350.0 million of 6.375% unsecured Senior Notes at maturity in March 2018. 

As a result of the consummation of the merger transaction, a change in control provision in GM O's Series A, Band 
C Senior Notes was triggered that allowed holders a one-time option to elect for early repayment ofthefr notes at 
par value, plus accrued interest. Several holders of GMO's Series A and B Senior Notes elected this option and in · 
July 2018, GMO redeemed $89.0 million of its Series A Senior Notes and $15.0 million of its Series B Senfor· 
Notes. 

Scheduled Maturities 
Evergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's long-term debt maturities and the long-term debt maturities of VIEs for the 
next five years are detailed in the following table. 

VIEs 

C•lExcludes long-term debt maturities ofVIEs. 

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

Values of Financial Instruments 

2019 2020 

30.3 32.3 

2021 2022 2023 
· (millions) 

18.8 

GAAP establishes a hierarchical framework for disclosing the transparency of the inputs utilized in measuring · 
assets and liabilities at fair value: Management's assessment· of the significance of a particular input to the fair 
value measurement requires judgment and m~y affect the classification of assets and liabilities within the fair value 
hierarchy levels. In addition, the Evergy Companies measure certain investments that do not have a readily 
determinable fair value at NAV, which are not included in the fair value hierarchy. Further explanation of these 
levels and NAV is summarized below. · 

Level I - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The types of assets and 
liabilities included in Level I are highly liquid and actively traded instruments with quoted prices, such as equities 
listed on public exchanges. 

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are not quoted prices in active markets, but are either directly or indirectly observable. 
The types of assets and liabilities included in Level 2 are certain marketable debt securities, financial instruments 
traded in less than active markets or other financial instruments priced with models using highly observable inputs. 

Level 3 - Significant inputs to pricing have little or no transparency. The types of assets and liabilities included in 
Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment or estimation. 

NAV - Investments that do not have areadily determinable fair value are measured at NAV. These investments do 
not consider the observability of inputs and, therefore, they are not included within the fair value hierarchy. The 
Evergy Companies include in this category investments in private equity, real estate and alternative investment 
funds that do not have a readily determinable fair value. The underlying alternative investments include 
collateralized debt obligations, mezzanine debt and a variety of other investments. 
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The Evergy Companies record cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and short-term borrowings on their 
consolidated balance sheets at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 

Interest Rate Derivatives 
The Evergy Companies are' exposed to market risks arising from changes in interest rates and may use derivative 
instruments to manage these risks. From time to time, this may include entering into interest rate swap agreements 
to protect against unfavorable interest rate changes relating to forecasted debt transactions. These interest rate swap 
agreements can be design_ated as cash flow hedges, in which case, gains an.d losses on the interest rate swaps are 
deferred in other comprehensive income to be recognized as an adjustment to interest expense over the .same period 
that the hedged interest payments affect earnings. 

In December 2018, Evergy entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $500.0 million 
that has been designated as a cash flow hedge of a forecasted debt issuance in 2019. As of December 31, 2018, the 
interest.rate swap had a fair value of $5.4 million and was recorded within other cum:nt liabilities on Evergy's 
consolidated balance sheet. For 2018, Evergy recorded a corresponding $5.4 million pre-tax loss in other 
comprehensive loss on Evergy's consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

Fair yalue of Long-Term Debt . -
The Evergy Companies measure the fair value of long-tenn debt using Level 2 measurements available as of the 
measurement date. The book value and fair value oftheEvergy Companies' long-tenn debt and long-term debt c;,f 
variabl,e interest entities is summarized in the following table. 

Lorig-term debt(a) 

Evergy(b) 

2018 

Book Value 

$ 7,341.7 $ 

December 31 

2017 

Fair Value Book Value - Fair Value 

(millions) 

7,412.1 $ 3,687.6 $ . 4,010.6 

Evergy $ 81.4 $ 81.3 .$ 109.9 $ 110.8 
~tarEnergy::"?.·•>t.·'·,c:\:, :.• .. ·,. ··:;:\_ :: .. ,. :~ i:,; ,, J •.. :?'-• '., · __ ~;sf.4· -··•·''\·' ·'.. :s):3\ ., ,i'! 1·!'1 lOi:9:1{~',::;ifd':~j 
<•> Includes current maturities. 
(b) Book value as of December 31, 2018, includes $144. 8 million of fair value adjustments recorded in connection with purchase accounting 

for the Great Plains-Energy and Westar Energy m~rger, which are.not part of future principal payrpents and will amortize over the 
remaining life of the. associated debt instrument. See Note 2 for more information regarding the merger transaction. 

(c)KCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. · 
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements . . . . 

The following ,tables include the Evergy Companies' balances offinancial assets and liabiiities measured at fair 

value on a recurring basis. 

Description 
Westar Energy 
Assets 

December 31, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 · - Level3 NAV 
(mqlions) 

Real estate securities fund 11.8 11.8 
r. Ca~h eguivalents ' . , ' '. i' .·' .C •.. ; ~ .' .•. ··. • ; ~· ;. '.0.1· . '. ... ~ 0.1 •,,,•. < , ':'.:--:-, .' ,: :. '..:'. ';:L:.. : . : •', +.,', ?:: s t_:1 

Total nuclear decommissioning trust 227.5 184.9 - --,-- . 42.6 

!'. Rl!bbi trust __ ; ·--·< '· ······· ·· ~ .:· ~ ·- , ;, ·· .. · ··.· . ;,.> : . "~.st'' , __ :;<:.:: .. ;; •;_r,; },; .. ·'. ;;; ·· '}'' ~:; ;::::£1 
Core bond fund · 24.8 

lKcr&L. ~ ;.s .• >L- > . : · .. ,.:·~·s~·~.} ~.-~: .. · i ;> :; . ·, .. •, · .. \~ ~ '< .' t .· .: ~~i'.l 
Assets 

Other. 0.7 0.7 

i .. · , · Tota)nuclear dJ:COIDlilisajoning trust\. ·: ) : .. _ .. "'-----· · __ . ·_._2_44_ . ..;.6_· _______ ·• .... 2 .... 1 .... 1_.1_· __ ............... ;......;; .............. -'-----------........ -----------' 
Self-insured health trust(bl 

Debt securities 3.9 0.3 3.6 
I . Cash and cash e11u~alents' . ·. .. '7;"",.· .· . .. • ... ·· ·· ' ; . ""'g O . ; 8.0 , . \ · · :~ : t.7. "., . ' ~ -: ' t , ~ c:l 
' -·· ,, ,'1 ' ,, ' : ~- ....... ,;~~- ·_ ·---· ·-·-· ·-·-··--· ........ • -----........ ---' ................ ------------.....,.-----'-----' ................ .;.......; 

Total self-insured health plan trust . · 12.4 8.8 3.6 · -

[,.Total'' •. ' ':,~ •• ,, .r. :/ .• ~''•· .. > t $' ~257;0;;··:·$,, .219.9':: ·•·$· .37J·;·-: $~-- ~· $:,,'.,;,~/1:'i 
Other Evergy . . . 

{As~t~-"~:,.,.,'~.''.f:.,":~-~·:_.,'',',-~;,:,:",,'.,,,;:\,-.~'-,~~-~~.'~,~\N.::~,>,;<><',·;,~_.,~;~<·::;:·,~.'~,<,7~,'.~k:~:,~,,,J'\"~,'r·~~·,,':.-·~,C'.:~~:;~.:\v::~iJJ 

Evergy . 
l-ASsetS~ " , ,: ; ::_:~ ·,~ ,. ,' ·:· '. ~~,.c·~·-, ,: ... ·) •:''.''", : 0 ,< ~.~,,,\0 ~;,;2:3; ;h,,:2;';'· f ., ; ;~, ,, .~·; ,, >::;: ··~·~i_;J/:.''.''.,>"'_~~- " ~·=' , , ; --~;- 'v.: ~-0%:, J 

Nuclear decommissioning trust <•l 472.1 $ 396.0 . $ 33.5 $ - $ 42.6 
'•,";"\-' '::·,,,.-~-·-

Self-insured health plrm trust 
. Totat . · . · • ; : . ' · . ·. · ... , ; ' , · . • ; $ · •' $' 465.0> · $ .37.1 . ,' '.$,. 

Liabilities 
i • ..• Interest rate swap's (el; ' ·, 
t < '·- n--' ... __ , ~"-'-•-4W >' °'"', ~- ',;.-,,,,; 

-.-. · _ · 7 ···'-·-·..,.$ _. •. 5.ir .. $ · -~ · $ 5.4,, , ·s 
Total . $ 5.4 $ ' $ 5.4 $ 
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Description 
Westar Energy 

' Assets 

Assets 

December 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 
(millions) 

· Debt securities 2.7 0.3 2.4 · 

Level 3 NAV 

ru~~a~li1atlcl,o~filgyi.:fil[~~l.1J; ~ ;·;;:[:1J:2z:fa~.: 1:;;,;~;:~7;:.s7'f:; ·~f!,.,: :;,.,<:. (;S~;f!'f!iI· ? 1'. ':;\=;:=·),'..-~.:=•·/=; ;~ •• ~-.• ··t: l:'l::+i::r;N''.?"~~ 
Total self-insured health plan trust 10.9 8.5 2.4 

!i.::~:f;TurtaI;''.j;;;·t,s.~;;i z '.': ; .• ;. ;;,,.:,l \.:;,..ii~:~~~ ?:·:1~: ;:;; :;,:}'.
1~,~.1:;s:;1~{:,{ ·::j•; 269/3 i:'r~.··,$J ''·:230.;2;~;:'\:l ;$<;.:1:(• 3Q'.'l ;;~;J ':W$ ; •.. ;11.1 .;..,fI ;'5]~· ~ ~·$@ :, ~!·:·±.::. .,;•!,j 

Evergy ~=-~~~~~-~-

Nuclear decommissioning trust(•J(cJ $ 237.l $ 0.1 $ 199.4 $ $ 37.6 
F:J:~1i6IJtt~~c~,:~'.,~~. {:~'I?~!~f,'~'};·'z',:;~ :~3. ;,::·~}~-'.~~~7q~;;;~r7~:~:~~,<·._·;:, !.:~f;, i $,~: ~",<'.i:·' ~:~~40:=}~i'Y~~2r-~1~~~7;:0yr34Y:<;",;pt·;~ ~ ,~·-··:.';i::t.~:'r ':::·, :::~.s:· ~~r ·r1·ipS~·~:rn;.731 

Total $ 271.4 $ 0.3 $ 233.5 $ $ 37.6 
(aJ Fair value is based on quoted market prices of the investments held by the trust and/or valuation models. 
(b) Fair value is based on quoted market prices of the investments held by the trust. Debt securities classified as Level 1 are comprised of U.S. 

Treasury securities. Debt securitie~ classified as Level 2 are comprised of corporate bonds, U.S. Agency, state and local obligations, and 
other asset-backed securities. 

(cJ In the second quarter of 2018, Evergy and Westar Energy re-evaluated the classification, within the fair value hierarchy, of their various -
fund investments within both Westar Energy's nuclear decommissioning trust and rabbi trusts. As a result, Evergy and Westar Energy 
determin~d that certain fund investments within the nuclear decommissioning trust in the amount of $199 .4 million as of December 31, 
2017, should have been classified as Level 1, instead ofLevel'2. This determination is based on the fact that the fair value of these funds 
is based on daily published prices at which Evergy and Westar Energy are able to redeem their investments without restriction on a daily 
basis. Evergy and Westar Energy also determined that certain fund investments within their rabbi trusts in the amount of $34.1 million.as 
of December 31, 2017, should have been measured using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient, instead of as·a Level 2 
investment. This determination is based on the fact that these funds do not meet the definition ofreadily determinable fair value due to.the 
absence of a published NAV. Evergy and Westar Energy have determined that these errors are immaterial to their current and previously 
filed financial reports and accordingly, have not revised prior periods but have reflected the changes in fair value hierarchy classification as 
of December 31, 2018. · 

(dJ KCP &L amounts an< not included in consolidated Evergy as of December. 31,.2017. · 
(el The fair value of interest rate swaps are determined by calculating the net present value of expected payments and receipts under the 

interest rate swaps using observable market inputs including interest rates and LIBOR swap rates. 
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Certain Evergy and Westar Energy investments included in the table above are measured at NAV as they do not 
have readily determinable fair values. In certain situations, these investments may have redemption restrictions. 

The following table provides additional information on these Evergy and Westar Energy investments. 

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017 December 31~ 2018 ·· 

Fair Unfunded Fair Unfunded Redemption Length of 

Value Commitments Value Commitments Frequency Settlement 

· Westar Energy (millions) 

Nuclear decommissioning trust: 

Alternative investments fund(b) 24.1 21. 7 Quarterly 65 days 

. Real estate securitids furidCbl . .. . ·: . 
'--·---~ - '-~ •-- '-·-·• ,,- _,,,'<•~ ·.,~Y ~" 

:m.f £ ... :,!'.~· ·.~ ~s _· ...... .fo.8· .. :: .~:1,~.J;;~_J-~;:~::sg~~ily::)'·/:}Sfl~ys_·;,;j 
Total $ 42.6 $ 4.3 $ 37.6 $ 2.8 

bbi 

Core bond fund $ 24.8 $ $ $ (c) (c) 

Rabbi trusts: 
r.··--·-. --·-. . '-. ---···-~ . ··----·-,.,.,". ----~-
I . Fixed in90,meJund:d) ..•... ,, . $ •. 13:2 . l. •·· : .. '. ;:.·.'.·:"':;.;'·;· ~${Y·,,·;-,.:\·: '.$·' )'.;;;_, : ·.g~L.·,:.J:;(~~;.; :~~~:i':1l·Et~tt:1:j 
Total Evergy investments at NAV $ 86.2 $ 4.3 $ 37.6 $ 2.8 

(a) This investment is in five long-term private equity funds that do not permit early withdrawal. Investments in these funds cannot be 
distributed until the underlying investments have been liquidated, which may take years from the date of initial liquidation. Three funds 
have begun to make distributions. The initial investment in the fourth and fifth fund occurred in the second quarter of2016 and first 
quarter of 2018, respectively. The fourth fund's term 'is 15 years, subject to the general partner's right to extend the term for up to three 
additional one-year periods. The fifth fund's term will be 15 ·years after the initial closing date, subject to additional extensions approved 
by the Advisory Committee to provide for an orderly liquidation of fund investments and dissolution of the fund. 

(bl There is a holdback on final redemptions. 
(c) This investment can be redeemed immediately and is not subject to any restrictions on redemptions. 
(d) This investment is recorded at GMO. GMO amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 
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The Evergy Companies hold equity and debt investments classified as securities in various trusts including for the 
purposes of.funding the decommissioning of Wolf Creek and for the benefit of certain retired executive officers of 
Westar Energy. The Evergy Companies record net realized and unrealized gains and losses on the nuclear 
decommissioning trusts in regulatory liabilities on their consolidated balance sheets and record net realized and 
unrealized gains and losses on Westar Energy's rabbi trust in the consolidated statements of income and 

· comprehensive income. · · 

The following table ·summarizes the net unrealized gains (losses) for the Evergy Companies' nuclear 
decommissioning trusts and rabbi trusts. 

2018 2017 2016 

[westarEnergy" : ..... · -------- --- -·--· .: _· >·L~: ·· .. ; ::' ' -·· (millions)·. .. '. --"-~: ·J 
Nuclear decommissioning trust- equity securities $ (31.8) $ 15.7 $ 9.0 

[R~qbi t{u$t . : . . _. _ .... _ .. _: _ ·--·-··----~· .. --·---·-·-.... ~~---~----·,----~~----'-----.__ ____ ....... ~-""'--~..;.......;.,_-'-' 
Total $ (30.8) $ 1.4 $ 10.4 

Nuclear decommissioning trust - equity securities $ (20.7) · $ 26.7 $ 14.8 -- ,_, __ ,, ___ '' ---.. --~· -,-... , , ....... ,._,------' ----·-' ,, ' ' - ' '--·. ,'' _____ ,,____ ,-·--·-- '-~=----·' ' - j 
INtiqJearqecomniissfoningn:usf-:debtsecup.ties'·.: ... "·; .. · :'.-.. ·,'(2}) ... ,·os: .' ",' ,(0:3); .-·· ' ····-····-- -·---~--"----·--·· ---------------~-------,,,,.,.~-.---..:...;..."-'-'------,--'-------...;..;..------"-' 

Total $ '(23.2) $ - 27.2 $ 14.5 

Nuclear decommissioning trust - equity securities $ (54.1) $ 15.7 $ 
---·~, ... ..-·.-.r,---.----.. ·----------,.,.~--.----~C"""'C-~·-

NU<;le2Lr <1,ecorn1111ss10n1ng trµst:.. debt secun1t1es 

Rabbi trusts ·1.0 (14.3) 

(0i6) $-· 1.4 $ , ,! 

i•=-~, ~=-·• -·- ·-------•'-"" • "' , .. , •, •• X: '• • ,' ~ ", •• 

I Total'. . : . . 

<•J KCP&L amounts are only included in consolidated Evergy from the date of the merger, June 4, 2018 through December 31, 2018. 

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Environmental Matters 

9.0 

1.4 

,::1 O}fl 

Set forth below are descriptions of contingencies related to environmental matters that may impact the Evergy 
Companies' operations or their financial results .. Management's assessment of these contingencies, which are based 
on federal and state statutes and regulations, and regulatory agency and judicial interpretations and actions, has 
evolved over time. There are a variety of final and proposed laws and regulations that could have a material 
adverse effect on the Evergy Companies operations and consolidated financial results. Due in part to the complex 
nature of environmental laws and regulations, the Evergy Companies are unable to assess the impact of potential 
changes that may develop with respect to the environmental contingencies described below. 

Cross-State Air Pollution Update Rule 
In September 2016, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) finalized the Cross-State Air Pollution Update 

.. Rule (CSAPR). The final rule addresses interstate transport of nitrogen oxides emissions in 22 states including 
Kansas, Missouri and Oklahoma during the ozone season and the impact from the formation of ozone on downwind 
states with respect to the 2008 ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). Starting with the 2017 
ozone season, the final rule revised the existing ozone season allowance budgets for Missouri and Oklahoma and 
established an ozone season budget for Kansas. In December 2018, the EPA finalized the CSAPR Close-Out Rule, 
which determined that the existing CSAPR Update Ruie fully addresses applicable states' interstate pollution 
transport obligations for the 2008 ozone NAAQS. Therefore,. the EPA is proposing.no additional reduction in the 
current ozone season alfowance budgets -in order to address obligations for the 2008 ozone NAAQS. Various states 
and others are challenging the rule in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit (D.C. Circuit), but the rule 
remains in effect. It is not expected that this rule will have a material impact on the Evergy Companies' operations 
and consolidated financial results. 
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National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
Underthe.CleanAirActAmendmerits of 1990 (CAA), the EPA setNAAQS for certain emissions known as the 

"criteria: pollutants" considered harmful to public health and the.environment, including two classes of particulate 

matter (PM), ozone, nitrogen dioxide (N02) (a precursor to ozone), carbon monoxide and sulfur dioxide (S02), 
which result from fossil fuel combustion. Areas meeting the NAAQS are designated attainment areas while those 

that do not meet the NAAQS are considered nonattainment areas. Each state must develop a plan to bring . 

nortattainment areas into compliance with the NAAQS. NAAQS must be reviewed by the EPA at five-year 

intervals, 

In October 2015, the EPA strengthened the ozone NAAQS by lowering the standards from 75 ppb to 70 ppb. In 

November 2017, the EPA designated all counties in the State of Kansas as well as the Missouri counties in 

KCP&L's and GMO's service territories as attainment/unclassifiable. It is not expected that this will have a material 

impact on the Evergy Companies' consolidated ;inancial results. 

If areas surrounding the Evergy Companies' facilities are designated in the future as nonattairiment and/or it is 

required to install additional equipment to control emissions at facilities of the Evergy Companies, it could have a 

material impact on the· operations and consolidated financial results of the Evergy Companies. 

Greenhouse Gases 
Burning coal and other fossil fuels releases carbon diqxide (CO2) and other gases referred to as greenhouse gases 

(GHG). · Various regulations under the federal CAA limit CO2 and other GHG emissions, and in addition, other 

measures are being imposed or offered by individual states, municipalities and regional agreements with the goal of 

reducing GHG emi~sions. · · · 

In October 2015, the EPA published a rule establishing new source perfomiance standards (NSPS) for GHGs that · 

limit CO2 emissions for new, modified and reconstructed coal and natural gas fueled ·electric generating units to 

various leveis perMWh depending on various characteristics of the units. Legal challenges to the GHG NSPS have 

been filed in the D.C Circuit by various states and industry members. Also in October 2015, the EPA published a 

rule establishing guidelines for states to regulate CO2 emissions from 'existing power plants. The standards for . 

existing plants are known as the Clean Power Plan (CPP). Under the CPP, interim emissions performance rates 

must be achieved·beginning in 2022 and final emissions performance rates must be achieved by 2030. Legal . .· 

challenges to the CPP were ·filed by groups of states and industry members, including Westar Energy, in the D.C. · 

C.irc1,1it. The CPP was stayed by the Supreme Court in February 2016 and, accordingly, is not currently being· 

implemented by the states. 

' ' 

In April 2017, the EPA published in the Federal Register a notice of withdrawal of the proposed CPP federal plan, 

proposed model trading rules and proposed Clean Energy Incentive Program design details. Alsa in April 2017, the 

· EPA published ·a notice in the Federal Register that it was initiating administrative reviews of the CPP and the GHG 
NSPS. . 

In October 20 i 7, the EPA issued a proposed rule to repeal the CPP. The proposed rule indicates the CPP exceeds 

the.EPA's authority and the EPA has not _determined whether they will issue a replacement rule. The EPA solicited . 

fQmment~ on the legal interpretations contained in this rulemaking. 

In December 2017, the EPA issued an advance notice of proposed rulemaking to solicit feedback on specific areas 

of the CPP that could be changed. · 

In August 2018, the EPA published in the Federal Register proposed regulations, which contained (1) emission 

guidelines for GHG emissions from existing electric utility generating units (EGUs), (2) revisions to emission 

guideline imptenienting regulations and (3) revisions to the new source review '(NSR) program. The proposed 

emission gu1delines are better known as the Affordable Clean Energy (ACE) Rule. The ACE Rule would establish 

em~ssion guidelines for states to use in the development of plans to reduce GHG emissions from existing coal-fired 

EGUs. The ACE Rule is also the replacement rule for the CPP. The ACE rule proposes to determine the "best 

system of emission reduction" (BSER) for GHG emissions from existing coal-fired EGUs as on-site, heat-rate 
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efficiency improvements. The proposed rule also provides states with a list of candidate technologies that can be 
used to establish standards of performance and incorporate these performance standards into state plans. In order 
for the states to be able to effectively implement the proposed emission guidelines contained in the ACE Rule, the 
EPA is proposing new regulations under 11 l(d) of the CAA to help clarify this process. In addition, the EPA is 
proposing revisions to the NSR program that will reduce the likelihood of triggering NSR for proposed heat-rate 
'efficiency improvement projects at existing coal-fired EGUs. The public comment perfod for these proposed 
regulatory changes closed on October 31, 201.8. 

In December 2018, the EPAreieased a proposed rule to revise the existing GHG NSPS for new, modified and 
reconstructed fossil fuel-fired EGUs, which was issued in October 2015. This proposed rule would determine that 
BSER for new EGU s is "the most efficient demonstrated steam cycle ( e.g. supercritical steam conditions for large 
units and subcritical steam conditions for small units) in combination with the best operating practices." This 
replaces the current determination that BSER for these units is the use of partial carbon capture and sequestration 
technology. The EPA is also proposing to address, in potential future rule making, existing operational limitations 
imposed by the rule on aero-derivative simple cycle combustion turbines. 

Due to the future uncertainty of the CPP and ACE rules,.the Evergy Companies cannot determine the impact on 
their operations or consolidated financial results, but the cost to comply with the CPP, should it be upheld and 
implemented in its current or a substantially similar form, or ACE in its current or a substantially similar form, 
could be material. 

Water 
The Evergy Companies discharge some of the water used in generation and other operations. This water may 
contain substances deemed to be pollutants. AN ovember 2015 EPA rule establishes effluent limitations guidelines 
(ELG) and standards for wastewater discharges, including limits on the amount of toxic metals and other pollutants 
that can 'be discharged. Implementation time lines for these requirements vary from 2018 to 2023: In Ap1il 2017, 
the EPA announced it is reconsidering the ELG rule and court challenges have been placed in abeyance pending the 
EPA's review. In September 2017, the EPA finalized a rule to postpone the compliance dates for the new, more 
stringent, effluent limitations and pretreatment standards· for bottom ash transport water and flue gas desulfurization 
wastewater. These compliance dates have been postponed for two years while the EPA completes its administrative 
reconsideration of the ELG rule. The Evergy Companies are evaluating the final rule and related developments and 
cannot predict the resulting impact on their operations or consolidated financial results, but believe costs to comply 
could be material if the rule is implemented in its current or substantially similar form. 

In October 2014, the EPA's filial standards for cooling intake structures at power plants to protect aquatic life took 
effect. The standards, based on Section 316(b) of the federal Clean Water Act ( CWA ), require subject facilities to 
choose among seven best available technology options to reduce fish impingement. In addition, some facilities 
must conduct studies to assist permitting authorities to determine whether and what site-specific controls, if any, 
would be required to reduce entrainment of aquatic organisms. The Evergy Companies' current analysis indicates 
this rule will not have a significant impact on their coal plants that employ cooling towers or cooling lakes. that can 
be classified as closed cycle cooling and do not expect the impact from this rule to be material. Plants,without 
closed cycle cooling are under evaluation for compliance with these standards- and may require additional controls 
that could be material. 

KCP&L holds a permit from MDNR covering water discharge from its Hawthorn Station. The permit authorizes 
KCP&L to, among other things, withdraw water from the Missouri River for cooling purposes and return the heated 
water to the Missouri River. KCP&L has applied for a renewal of this permit and the EPA has submitted an interim 
objection letter regarding the allowable amount of heat that can be contained in the returned water. Until this matter . 
is resolved, KCP&L continues to operate under its current permit. Evergy and KCP&L cannot predict the outcome 
of this matter; however, while less significant outcomes are possible, this matter may require a reduction in 
generation, installation of cooling towers or other technology to cool the water, or both, any of which could have a 
material impact on Evergy's and KCP&L's operations and consolidated financial results. 
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In June 2015, the EPA along with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued a final rule, effective August 2015, 
defining the Waters of the United States (WOTUS) for purposes of the CWA. This mlemaking has the potential to 
impact all programs under the CWA. Expansion ofregulated waterways is possible under the rule depending on 
regulating authority interpretation, which could impact several permitting programs. Various states and others have 
filed lawsuits challenging the WOTUS rule. In February 2018, the EPA and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
finalized a rule adding an applicability date to the 2015 rule, which makes the implementation date of the rule 
February 2020. In December 2018, the EPA and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers published in the Federal · 
Register a proposed rule titled "Revised Definition of Waters of the United States. This proposed rule narrows the 
extent of the CWAjurisdiction as compared to the 2015 rule. The Evergy Companies are currently evaluating the 
WOTUS rule and related developments, but do not believe the rule, if upheld and implemented in its current or 
substantially similar form, will have a material impact on the Evergy Companies' operations or consolidated· 
financial results. ' 

Regulation of Coal Combustion Residuals 
In the course of operating their coal generation plants, the Evergy Companies produce CCRs, including fly ash, · 
gypsum and bottom ash. Some of this ash production is recycled, prindpally by selling to the aggregate industry. 
The EPA published a rule to regulate CCRs in April 2015, which will require additional CCR handling, processing
and storage equipment and closure of certain ash disposal units. The Water Infrastructure Improvements_ for the 
Nation {WIIN) Act allows states to achieve delegated authority for CCR rules from !he EPA .. This has the potential 
to impact compliance options. In July 2018, KDHE submitted a CCR permit program application to the EPA under 
authority of the WIIN Act. In November 2018, KDHE received notice from the EPA that its application is deficient 
and requested additional clarifying information. KDHE has decided it is not going to move forward with additional 
submittals at this time and will wait until current legal action associated with the CCR rule is final along with 
planned upcoming modifications to the CCRrule. The Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) is 
working on a rule revision, which will allow the state to apply for authority over the federal CCR regulation. The 
regulation is expected to be promulgated by early 2019. · MDNR will then determine when to submit a WIIN Act 
application to the EPA. Similar to the process in Kansas, this would allow Missouri state regulators to gain control 
of the CCR program. It will take up to one year from submittal of the Missouri application for the EPA to take final 
action and grant authority to the state, if such authority is granted. 

On July 30, 2018, the EPA published in the Federal Register a final rule called the Phase I, Part I CCR Remand 
Rule in·order to modify portions of the 2015 rulemaking. The Phase I, Part I rule provides a timeline extension for 
unlined impoundments and landfills that mu~t close due to groundwater impacts orJocation restrictions. The rule 
also sets risk-based limits for certain groundwater constituents where a maximum contaminant level did not 
previously exist. These rule modifications add.flexibility when assessing compliance. 

On August 21, 2018, the D.C. Circuit court issued a ruling in the CCR rule litigation between the Utility Solid 
Waste Activities Group, the EPA and environmental organizations. Portions of the rule were vacated and were 
remanded back to the EPA for potential modification. Potential revisions to remanded sections could force aJl 
unlined surface impoundments to close regardless of groundwater conditions. Any changes to the rule based on this 
court decision will require additional rulemaking from the EPA. In October 2018, a coalition of environmental . 
groups (including Sierra Club) filed a petition for review in the D.C. Circuit challenging the Phase I; Part I revisions 
to the CCR Rule. In November 2018, this coalition requested the EPA to stay the October 31, 2020 deadline 
extension for initiating closure for unlined impoundments and landfills that must close due to groundwater impacts 
or location restrictions. The EPA has rejected this request and the coalition has-filed a petition with the court for a 
similar stay. If granted, the compliance date will revert to the previously established date in April of 2019. In 
response, the EPA has filed a motion with the D.C. Circuit to voluntarily remand without vacatur the Part I, Phase I. 
rule. If the October 31, 2020 deadline is modified by either of these actions, then some CCR units in the Evergy 
Companies' fleet could have to initiate closure on an earlier timeline than what currently exists, but the Evergy 
Companies do not believe the earlier closure timeline would have a material impact on their operations or 
consolidated financial results. 

The Evergy Companies have recorded AROs for their current estimates for the closure of ash disposal ponds, but 
the revision of these AR Os may be required in the future due to changes in existing CCR regulations, the results of 
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groundwater monitoring of CCR units or changes in interpretation of existing CCR regulations or changes in the 
timing or cost to close ash disposal ponds. If revisions to theseAROs are necessary, the impact onthe Evergy 
Companies' operations or consolidated financial results could be material. 

Storage of Spent Nuclear Fuel 
Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, the Department of Energy (DOE) is responsible for the permanent . . 
disposal of spent nuclear fuel. In 2010, the DOE filed a motion with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) to 
withdraw its then pending application to construct a national repository for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel and 
high-level radioactive waste at Yucca Mountain, Nevada. The NRC. has not yet issued a final decision on the 
matter. 

Wolf Creek has elected to build a dry cask storage facility to expand its existing on-site spent nuclear fuel storage, 
which is expected to provide additional capacity prior to 2022. Wolf Creek has finalized a settlement agreement 
through 2019 with the DOE for reimbursement of costs to construct this facilicy that would not have otherwise been 
incurred had the DOE begun accepting spent nuclear fuel. The Evergy Companies expecnhe majority of the 
remaining cost to construct the dry cask storage facility that would not have otherwise been incurred will be 
reimbursed by the DOE. The Evergy Companies cannot predict when, or if, an off-site storage site or alternative 
disposal site will be available-to receive Wolf Creek's spentnuclear fuel and will continue to monitor this activity. 

Nuclear Insurance 
Nuclear liability, property and accidental outage insurance is maintained for Wolf Creek. These policies contain 
certain industry standard terms, conditions and exclusions, including, but not limited to, ordinary.wear and tear and 
war. An industry aggregate limit of$3.2 billion for nuclear events ($1.8.billion of non-nuclear events) plus any 
reinsurance, indemnity or any other source recoverable by_Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), provider of 
property and accidental outage insurance, exists for acts of terrorism affecting Wolf Creek or any other NEIL 
insured plant within 12 months from the date of the first act. In addition, participation is required in industry-wide 
retrospect assessll}ent programs as discussed below. 

Nuclear Liability Insurance 
. . ~ 

Pursuant to the Price-Anderson Act, liability insurance includes coverage against public nuclear liability claims 
resulting from nuclear incidents to the required limit of public liability, which is approximately $14.1 billion. This 
limit ofliability consists of the maximum available commercial insurance of $0.5 billion and the remaining $13.6 
billion is provided through mandatory participation in an industry-wide retrospective assessment program. Under 
this retrospective assessment program, the owners of Wolf Creek are jointly and severally subject to an assessment 
ofup to $137.6 million (Evergy's share is $129.2 million and each of Westar Energy's and KCP&L's is $64.6 
million), payable at no more than $20.5 million (Evergy's share is $1-9.2 million and each of Westar Energy's and 
KCP&L's is $9.6 million) per incident per year per reactor for any commercial U.S. nuclear _reactor qualifying 
incident. Both the total and yearly assessment is subject to an inflationary adjustment based on, the Consumer Price 
Index and applicable premium taxes .. In addition, the U.S. Congress could impose additional revenue-raising 
measures to pay claims. 

Nuclear Property and Accidental Outage Insurance 
The owners of Wolf Creek carry de'contamination liability, nuclear property damage and premature nuclear 
decommissioning liability insurance for Wolf Creek totaling approximately $2.8 billion. Insurance coverage for 
non-nuclear property damage accidents total approximately $2.3 billion. In the event. of an extraordinary nuclear 
accident, insurance proceeds must first be used for reactor stabilization and site decontamination in accordance with · 
a plan mandated by the NRC. The Evergy Companies' share of any remaining proceeds can be used to pay for 
property damage or, if certain requirements are met, including decommissioning the plant, toward a shortfall in the 
nuclea~ decommissioning trust fund. The owners also carry additional insurance with NEIL to help cover costs of 
replacement power and other extra expenses incurred during a prolonged outage resulting from accidental property 
damage at Wolf Creek. If significant losses were incurred at any of the nuclear plants insured under the NEIL 
policies, the owners of Wolf Creek may be subject to retrospective assessments under the· current policies of 
approximately $37.4 million (Evergy's share is $35.2 million and each of Westar Energy's and KCP&L's is $17.6 
million). ' · 
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Nuclear Insurance Considerations 
.Although the Evergy Companies maintain various insurance policies to provide coverage for potential losses and 
liabilities resulting from an accident or an extended outage, the insurance coverage may not be adequate to. cover the 
costs that could result from a catastrophic accident or extended outage at Wolf Creek. Any substantial losses not 
covered by insurance, to the extent not recoverable in prices, would have a material effect on the Evergy 
Companies' consolidated financial results. 

' ( 
Contractual Commitments - Leases . 
The Evergy Companies lease office buildings, computer equipment, vehicles, rail cars and other property and 
equipment, including rail cars to serve jointly-owned generating units where Westar Energy or KCP&L is the 
managing partner and.are reimbursed by other joint-owners for their proportionate share of the cost. In determining 
lease expense, the effect,s of scheduled rent increases on a: straight-line basis over the minimum lease term are 
recognized. Rental expense and estimated future commitments under operating leases are detailed in the foliowing 
table. · 

Total Operating Leases .· 

Evergy 

.Rental expense: 

2017 , 15.7 

2019 $ 24.2 $ 

2021 18.4 

2023 12.4 

. Westar 
Energy 

(millions) 

15.7 

KCP&L<a). 

13.1 

14.0 $ 10.2 

8.1 10.3 

2.8 9.6 

<•lKCP&L amounts are only included in consolidated Evergy following the date of the closing of the merger, June 4, 2018. 

The Evergy Companies identify capital leases baseg on defined.criteria. For both vehicles and computer equipment, 
new leases are signed each month based on the terms of master lease agreements. Assets recorded under capital 
leases are detailed in the following table. 

Evergy 

Computer equipment 0.2 

2018 

Westar 
Energy 

0.2 

December 31 

KCP&L Evergy 

(millions) 

0.9 

2017 

Westar 
Energy 

0.9 

KCP&L(a) 

Other 2.6 2:6 ,- . ··----- . -----·------···-········ ... -- .. . --- . --------· . -·,-· -- . . . ...... -·· .,___ . -" .--- . ' ------ - . .. . = 
t±_\-fCJIP:-~.~~!~.~_:Uf>Ttt~~t~Ol:_L_:..; .:... .. / .. a.c <(160.0) : • {20:3) . O,I) • , {17J) · .(17.1). ,, ,'. ':Ji.1)1 

Total capital leases $ 162.3 $ 40.2 $ 1.5 $ 43.6 $ 43.6 $ 1.5 

<•lKCP&L amounts are not included in consolidated Evergy as of December 31, 2017. 
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Capital leases are treated as operating leases for rate making purposes. Minimum annual rental payments, 
excluding administrative costs such as property taxes, insurance and maintenance, under capital leases are detailed 
in the following table. 

Total Capital Leases 
Westar 

Evergy Energy KCP&L 
(millions) · 

2020 5.8 5.4 0.2 

. 2022 4.7 4.3 0.2 

After 48.6 46.4 1.1 

[~T?§(capita~se:R!.l)T}ents< · ·. J:,' .... '. ·~ _:, .· ~- ,· ~··· ;!+i· .·. :.:. _ . ··~·· 74:~ : __ ., ·-·-· 70:6::.~ i .·~---··:: 2:1'.j 
Amounts re:Rresenting im:Ruted interest (25.8) (24.6) (0.6) 

[fi§ent, value ofnetmirtimu]ft leasepay111~nts ll~pital~Sty=-: .• ·' .···' •: _·' '49.Q •. ·-~-- '' 46._0 ' ' ..•. 12:J 

Less: current portion (3.9) (3.7) · (0.1) 

'fi"Tota1'1oug;teri,n~Honsim4ercapitalleases·. c; .. ·:• ·,. :::.$· 45;1 $ -·42.3' $,, -L4J_ 

Contractual Commitments - Fuel, Power and Other 
The Evergy Companies' contractual commitments at December 31, 2018, excluding pensions, long-term debt and 
leases, are detailed in the following tables. 

Evergy· 

Purchase commitments 

Power 

1-~ 6th~r .· ... · . ;_ 
Total contractual commitments 

Westar Energy 

Purchase commitments 

Fuel 

' l·::omef,/'' . / ' 
Total contractual commitments 

KCP&L 

Purchase commitments 

Fuel 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 After 2023 Total 

(millions) 

47.3 47.3 47.4 47.6 47.8 366.8 604.2 
.•. ...,.,. :-,"'"~ •. :. -····. -···-···-.· ---... .,, ... - .. - __ , ......... ··• - -,··--.-·. ··~.·.·-··---·. ····- . -~ ·_I 

.. :· ):3J.8 . · J8,8,: ,,, ".13.{' . 6:8 . · ,, ,.,, 2.1 __ , ;· 3f!-'.4' . · ,, 213.3 i 

$ 608.7 $ 430.5 $ 156.1 $ 137.3 $ 137.4 $ 517.4 $ 1,987.4 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 After 2023 Total 

(millions) 

$ 240.9 $ $ 25.9 $ 45.7 $ 46.9 $ 74.1 $ 651.6 

· 5.5~ '2 . .2·· .. ·1-0(01 
$ 328.3 $ 227.0 $ 31.4 $ 47.9 $ 46.9 $ 74.1 $ 755.6 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 After 2023 Total. 

(millions) 

$ . 162.6 $ 126.9 $ . $ 37.2 $ 40.6 $ 42.1 $ 478.8 
--··-" - - '. >-~,· ·-···-··~----~·~---~-~-· -· ·-----~·. ···-- ·-·-·- ._. --

' 35.1 -~-- -~~~}~~~::-.~·_:±2:~:±'1 
Other 34.7 9.0 7.0 3.8 29.7 85.8 

f'tot.al.9ontractu~lcqmmitrnents · . $ 232.1 ·. $ .no,7 $. 111.3, · $ 76.L $ 77.5 . · $ 326.3. $ . 994.Q j 

Fuel commitments consist of commitments for nuclear fuel, coal and coal transportation. Power commitments 
consist of certain commitments for renewable energy under power purchase agreements. Other represents 
individual commitments entered into in the ordinary course of business. 
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15. · GUARANTEES 

In the ordinary course of business, Evergy and certain of its subsidiaries enter into various agreements providing 
financi.al or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. Such agreements include, for 
example, guarantees and letters of credit. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the 
creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of 
sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiary's intended business purposes. In connection with the closing of the 
merger, Evergy assumed the guarantees previously provided to GMO by Great Plains Energy. The majority of these 
agreements guarant~e Evergy's own futur~ performance, so_ a liability for the fair value of the obligation is not 
recorded. 

At December 31, 2018, Evergy has provided $111.3 million of credit support for GMO as follows: 

• Evergy direct guarantees to OMO counterparties totaling $17.0 million, which expire-in 2020, and 

• Evergy's guarantee of GMO long-term debt totaling $94.3 million, which includes debt with maturity dates 
ranging from .2019 to 2023. 

Evergy has also guaranteed GMO's commercial paper program. At December 31, 2018, GMO had $150.0 million 
of commercial paper outstanding: None of the guaranteed obligations are subject to default or prepayment if 
GMO's credit ratings were dowrigraded. 

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS 

In the normal course of business, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO engage in related party transactions with one 
another. A summary of these transactions and the amounts associated with them is p_rovided below .. All related 
party transaction amounts between Westar Energy and either KCP&L or GMO only reflect activity between June 4, 
2018, the date of the merger, and December 31, 2018. 

_ Jointly-Owned Plant~ and Shared Services 
KCP&L employees manage GMO's business and operate its facilities at cost, including GMO's 18% ownership 
interest in KCP&L's Iatan Nos. 1 and 2. The operating expenses and capital costs billed from KCP&L to GMO 
were $183.2 million fo~ 2018, $196.3 million for 2017 and $194.4 million for 2016. 

Westar Energy employees manage Jeffrey Energy Center and operate its facilities at cost, including GMO's 8% 
ownership interest in Jeffrey Energy Center. The operating expenses and capital costs billed from Westar Energy to 
GMO for Jeffrey Energy Center and other various business activities were $12.3 million for 2018. 

KCP&L employees manage La Cygne Station and operate its facilities at cost, including Westar Energy's 50% 
ownership interest in La Cygne Station. KCP&L and Westar Energy employees also provide one another with 
shared service support; including costs related fo human resources, infoIU1ation technology, accounting and legal 
services. The operating expenses and capital costs billed from K,CP&L to Westar Energy were $82.9 million for 
2018. The operating and capital costs billed from Westar Energy to KCP&L were $17.5 million for 2018. 

Money Pool 
KCP&L and GMO are also authorized to participate in ·the Evergy, Inc. money pool, an internal financing 
arrangement in which funds may be lent on a short-term basis to KCP&L and GMO from Evergy, Inc. and between 
KCP&L and GMO. At December 31, 2018 and 2017; KCP&L had no outstanding receivables or payables under 
the money pool. 
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The following table summarizes Westar Energy's and KCP&L's related party net receivables and payables. 

December31 
2018 2017 

(millions) 

Net receivable from GMO $ 72.6 $ 65.8 

Net receivable from Evergy 15.7 
f"Netrec~iyabl~ fr~rn(}tiat:Plafo.s Energy)::. '."" .. : ;:· i .,,::t't i,-;[;:, ... ?).:;:,;1?~}~'.: ;·~ (;.}i.~'i/,l:'.J J )"i {{: '\\:'18:9 H 

Tax Allocation Agreement 
Evergy files a consolidated federal income tax return as well as unitary a;nd combined income tax returns in several 
state jurisdictions with Kansas and Missouri being the most significant. Income taxes for consolidated or combined 
subsidiaries are allocated to the subsidiaries based on separate company computations of income or loss. As of 
December 31, 2018, Westar Energy and KCP&L had income taxes receivable from (payable to) Evergy of $42.7 
million and $(2.0) million, respectively. 

17. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY. 

Evergy's authorized capital stock consists of 600 million shares of common stock, without par value, and 12 million 
shares of Preference Stock, without par value. 

Evergy Registration Statements 
In November 2018, Evergy filed an automatic shelf registration statement providing for the sale of unlimited 
amounts of securities with the SEC, which expires in November 2021. 

In September 2018, Evergy registered shares of its common stock with the SEC for its Dividend Reinvestment and 
Direct Stock Purchase Plan. Shares issue.d under the plan.may be either newly issued shares or shares purch~sed on 
the open market. 

In June 2018, Evergy registered shares of its common stock with the SEC for the Great Plains Energy 401 (k) 
Savings Plan and Westar Energy, Inc. Employees' 401(k) Savings Plan, among other compensation plans, that 
Evergy. assumed in connection with the merger transaction. Shares issued under th~ plans may be either newly 
issued shares .or shares purchased on the open market. 

Common Stock Repurchase Program 
. In July 2018, the Evergy Board authorized the repurchase ofup to 60 million shares ofEvergy's common stock. 
Although this repurchase authorization has no expiration date, Evergy expects to repurchase the 60 million shares 
by mid-2020. Evergy plans to utilize various methods to effectuate the share repurchase program, including but not 
limited to, a series of tr·ansactions that may include accelerated share repurchases, open market transactions or other 
means, subject to market conditions and applicable legal requirements. The repurchase program may be suspended, 
discontinued or resumed at any time. For 2018, Evergy had total repurchases of common stock of approximately 
$1,042 million and had repurchased 16.4 million shares under the repurchase program. These repurchase totals 
include shares repurchased under accelerated share repurchase (ASR) agreements, one of which had not reached 
final settlement as of December 31, 2018, and are discussed further below. Evergy retires repurchased common 
stock shares in the period the shares are repurchased. 

In August 2018, Evergy entered into two ASR agreements with financial institutions to purchase $450.0 million of 
Evergy common stock. The ASR agreements reached final settlement in the fourth quarter of 2018 and resulted in 
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the delivery of 7.9 million shares to Evergy based on the average daily volume weighted~average price ofEvergy 
common stock during the term of the ASR agreements, less a negotiated discount. · 

In November 2018, Evergy entered into anASR agreement with a financial institution to purchase $475.0 million of 
Evergy common stock. In December 2018, the financial institution delivered to Evergy 6.4 million shares of 
common stock, representing a partial settlement of the contract, based ·on then-current market prices and Evergy 
paid a total of $475.0 million. The upfront payment was recorded as a reduction to Evergy, Inc. shareholders' equity 
and as a repurchase of common stock on Evergy's consolidated statements of cash flows. 

The final number of shares pf Evergy common stock that Evergy may receive or be required to remit upon 
settlement of the ASR agreement will be based on the average daily volume weighted-average price of Evergy 
common.stock during the term of the ASR agreement, less a negotiated discount. Final settlement of the ASR 
agreement will occur QY March 2019, but may occur earlier at the option of the financial institution. Evergy ex.pects 
that the final settlement of the ASR agreement will result in the delivery of additional shares of common stock to 
Evergy at no additional cost. · · 

Evergy reflects ASRs as a repurchase of common stock in the period the shares are delivered for purposes of 
calcu\ating earnings per share and as forward contracts indexed to its own common stock. Evergy's ASRs have met 
all of the applicable criteria for equity classification and therefore are not accounted for as derivative instruments. 

Dividend Restrictions 
Evergy depends on its subsidiaries to pay dividends on.its common stock. The Evergy Companies have certain 
restrictions stemming from statutory requirements, corporate organizational documents, covenants and other 
conditions that could affect dividend levels or the ability to pay dividends. 

The KCC order authorizing the merger transaction requires Evergy to maintain consolidated common equity of at.· 
least 35% of total consolidated capitalization. 

Under the Federal Power Act, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO generally can pay dividends only out ofretained 
earnings. Certain conditions in the MPSC and KCC ordei;s authorizing the merger transaction also require Westar 
Energy and KCP&L to maintain consolidated common equity of at least 40% of total capitalization., Other ' 
conditions in the MPSC and KCC merger orders,requfre Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO to maintain credit 
rati~gs of at least investment grade. If Wes~ar Energy's, KCP&L's or GMO's credit ratings are downgraded below · 
the investment grade level as a result of their affiliation with Evergy or any ofEvergy's affiliates, the impacted 
utility shall not pay a dividend to Evergy withput KCC or MPSC approval or until the impacted utility's investment 
grade credit rating has been restored. · · 

The mast~r credit facility of Evergy, Westar Energy, KCP&L and GMO and the note purchase agreement for GM O's 
Series A, B and C Senior Notes contain covenants requiring the respective company to maintain a consolidated 
indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization ratio of not more .than 0.65 to 1.00 at all times. 

As of December 31 ~ 2018, all of Evergy's and Westar Energy's retained earnings and net income were free of 
restrictions and KCP&L had a retained earnings restriction of $192.0 million. Evergy's subsidiaries had restricted. 
net assets of approximately $5.1 billion as of December 31, 2018. These restrictions are not expected to affect the 
Evergy Companies' ability to pay dividends at the current level for the foreseeable future. 

- ' ' . 

18. VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES 

In determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE, the Evergy Companies assess the entity's purpose and design, 
including the nature of the entity's activiti~s and the risks that the entity was designed to create and pass thr9ugh to 
its variable interest holders. A reporting enterprise is deemed· to be the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has (a) the 
power to direct the activities o.f.the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and (b) the. 
obligation to absorb losses ,or right to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. 
The primary beneficiary of a VIE is required to consolidate the VIE. The trust holding an 8% interest in Jeffrey 
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Energy Center was a VIE until the expiration of a purchase option in July 2017. The trust holding Westar Energy's 
50% interest in La Cygne Unit 2 is a VIE and Westar Energy remains the primary beneficiary of the trust. 

All involvement with entities by the Evergy Companies is assessed to determine whether such entities are VIEs and, 
if so, whether or not the Evergy Companies are the primary beneficiaries of the entities. The Evergy Companies 
also continuously assess whether they are the primary beneficiary of the VIE with which 'they are involved. 
Prospective changes in facts and circumstances may cause identification of the primary beneficiary to be 
reconsidered. 

8% lnteresfin Jeffrey Energy Center 
Under an agreement with an original expiration of January 2019, Westar Energy leased an 8% interest in Jeffrey 
Energy Center from a trust. The trust was financed with an equity contribution from an owner participant and debt 
issued by the trust. The trust was created specifically to purchase the 8% interest'in Jeffrey Energy Center and lease 
it to a third party, and does not hold any other assets. Westar Energy met the requirements to be considered the 
primary beneficiary of the trust until July 2017, when a contractual option to purchase the 8% interest in the plarit 
covered by the lease expired. Accordingly, Westar Energy deconsoli~ated the trust in the third quarter of 2017. 

In February 2019, Westar Energy e.ntered into an agreement to ·extend the lease of the 8% interest in Jeffrey Energy· 
Center owned by the trust until August 2019. At the expiration of the lease term, Westar Energy will purchase the 
8% interest from the trust. · 

50%Interest in La Cygne Unit 2 
Under an agreement that expires in September 2029; Westar Energy entered into a sale-leaseback transaction with a 
trust under which the trust purchased Westar Energy's 50% interest in La Cygne Unit 2 and subsequently leased it 
back to Westar Energy. The trust was financed with an equity contribution from an owner participant and debt 
issued by the trust. The trust was created specifically to purchase the 50% interest in La Cygne Unit 2 and lease it 
back to Westar Energy, and does not hold any other assets.· Westar Energy meets the requirements to be considered 
the primary beneficiary of the trust. In determining the primary beneficiary of the trust, Westar Energy concluded 
that the activities of the trust that most significantly impact its economic performance and that Westar Energy has 
the power to direct incluqe (1) the operation and maintenance of the 50% interest in La Cygne Unit 2 and (2).Westar 
Energy's ability to exercise a purchase option at the end of the agreement at the lesser of fair value or a fixed 
amount. Westar Energy has the potential to receive benefits from the trust that could potentially be significant if the 
fair value of the 50% interest in La Cygne Unit 2 at the end of the agreement is greater than the fixed amount. 

The following table summarizes the assets and liabilities related to the VIE described ~bove that are recorded on 
Evergy's and Westar Energy's consolidated balance sheets. · 

December 31. 

2018 2017 

Liabilities: 
r:. Currenfrnaturities'oflbng-t~llll debt ofvariabi'e?interest entities ,.: · ' . · : ,, . · , ····•.' $ . ,. , . ' '30:3 . $ i . · : ,' . 2?51 
~- ·--·--·· -------·-........ ,,,, __ ,·, ··--' "·--· ---. ·-----------·---··""'·'""""··-- '--· ' ' ',__;_-__________ .,J 

Accrued interest(•) · 0.5 · · · 0.7 

r·rL6rig:-temdcl>t .. ~f;~£cibl~i~~~est~htiti~s~net·.···-·:: .. :··.. .. ..... -·:·::·:··,, ...... . : '.··.· .. :; '. ~-ij·.- •• ,::;:~·:.:··_-81,4'.l 
(a) Included in accrued interest on Evergy's and Westar Energy's consolidated balance sheets. 

All of the liabilities noted in the table above relate to the purchase of the property, plant and equipment of the VIE. 
The assets of the VIE ~an be used only to settle obligations of the VIE and the VIE's debt holders have no recourse 
to the general credit of Evergy and Westar Energy. Evergy and Westar Energy have not provided financial or other 
support to the VIE and are not 1:equired to provide such support. Evergy and Westar Energy did not record any gain 
or loss upon the initial consolidation of the VIE. · 
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19. TAXES 

Components of income tax expense are deta1led in the following tables. 

Evergy. 2018· 2017 2016 
<;:urrent income taxes . . (millions) . . 

i;J~~~rae{t~ .::.~~lfI]ID~,-Cr,.:D::···~~I:·rG · ::i•i::.;1JRB}~.:J; ;.~': h,: ~1~Jf?.,~VI~ .~:·, ... 9)·:~·:~$ ; ,.i!l9J · 
State 2.2 0.4 . 0.3 

~·w*·~37~[f7:W:P:-~?1r{_,~,;r;:.; ,i;;::s.;:y···1}~r:·.,t.•:~~S~fuEtY} :r···:;:1 (6?;:2)~ ~; :·;;~:&_o:s: i ·'. .•.. :f-:(~:J~ 
Deferred income taxes 

State (32.3) 30.7 32.9 

Investment tax credit 

~~Tffil"'".rrc·:7u~:::;:,).}s~:.,· t:·i:0~1[2~~:~v\I£r~~:r::;,.:~::::~";2~T3:6)~~::rr:;:~s~.~:)·:1;~:·(~-~] 
·. Total (3.6) (2.8) (2.9) 

f1kfAPPro~t~~~i>~nser:.:,;;;;;·:r:. /:;~:.:.;, ':,:;; ii't( t'f: +·•· 1"r:~it./' t:t<:J:ft/{l'l{::·\:tr· \~i: :sf;~tQ;Q;:/:~.:1);r~:t1:.·•· L1t: J::Sf:~1-

Westar Energy · 2018 2017 2016 
CtITTent income _taxes (millions) 

State . . . (1.8) 0.4 0.3 

R·;:fo.~~t:::~;:;_>:>_~~:·r~::'~Vh:·.;.i: .···::1:.;3~'."':~::'~:·~:·'.:}:t·:.:.;:_r;.i'.~~"I:'ii:'.'.'.• ;'r(2~1~:;n:2 2'.'.:Q.J5 ;;:1.~::·:y.·:rcp:,7~ 
. Deferred incom~ taxes 

Investment tax credit 

~§~iti}iif if ~fi~ ~,'.;f,2;·_r.i;J:r&.tf ~ ';,fil:0~~:J:-~~~~ilillbf:i~l· -Blf~t~''.~(2~81·:H:~~{2;sD1T:·:::.:,-::c~}9~ 
Total (2.8) (2.8) (2.9) 

[ :1ndo1µ¢'.tax. exphnse (byJ;it~t):''.;;; 4 ,; ·,' ' , :,/~f}-ill:i·S'F:1(':f; ;,;",'."'t,{ ,:{1,i t .1' ::,:: t. f':];i:·:,~ l f'. ttii $~{i Jf 4:~{' i .$' :\115:f;:~ 'r, $'i ;~·:1:&:i,;5~ 

KCP&L 2018 2017 2016 
Current income taxes (millions) 

Defyrred income taxes 

State 53.0 8.8 17 .0 

fITT::iqt~:~::)t?f ;;:/Jt·rf,:tirf;;,,\.:·i :;:, ,.r~f ;, :{-~,;r:tttf[f:!;11::.il,0~/:i'.::>::,f.s,?: :,/' t:/!49,,~(:~;1 ·::2stf \·3;· h-r~lJ.l 
Investment tax credit 

Total (1.0) (1.0) (1.0) 
l';JQC,~JAy;t;;J~>~xp~QS~';:{'.'~;;,il'.J: ;;·}:; ·.,,'. ;·, :·,.>~f; •;),:.,.: <~;;:;'' ';'.:,J~;'.f~·,~·f,::;f' \;<~ .:Y~ '{'.~;'tr:;$'; f;'&,Z.3;'.: .;;,;$·'•~.ii&,;~;'., ~$,{d}1;:9,J 
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Effective Income Tax Rates 
Effective income tax rates reflected in the financial statements and the reasons for their differences from the 
statutory federal rates are detailed in the following tables. 

Evergy 2018 2017 2016 

1F~~e~~in~Qt1H~(ax(J;',.!.~:2£±:.Jif~iJ'J:t.,., .i;:£i*,:0;~~l40%.i: '; . .35.0% ;:},~~·;'.35.Q~ 
COLI policies (1.9) (3.1) (4.2) 

Federal or state tax rate change (8.7) 2.5 

Westar Energy 2018 2017 2016 

Non-controlling interest (0.6) (0.9) (0.9) 

Amortization of fede.ral investment tax credits 

Federal or state tax rate change (15.3) 2.5 

Stock compensation (0.8) (0.9) (0.5) 

Other 0.2 (0.8) 
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KCP&L 2018 2017 20f6··' 

Federal or state tax rate change 14.1 5.3 

Stock compensation 0.2 

Other (LO) (0.1) 

, r,)~i':f~gtive'.iµ¢qrµ~:,tax;~~t~.~J.:;,~;·;: .. :'1·;·:,;~ir:z•·;~·1·•• ::.?<· _%z;:3'.1"d~'~:,,,:,;-~/iii~::t i 1,i~:Y~·~f;;f ·~~•;::~.:~1~~-);~;~:.i'.~;·:tt·:~}~, ;~•~[~!'.fl.%:f~'!.··,;11~I.;;4~~6%;g .2~~i'.·':~.~:~i£%l: 
' 

Deferred Income Taxes 
The tax effects of major temporary differences resulting in deferred income tax assets (liabilities) in the 
consolidated balance sheets is in the following table. 

December 31 

2018 2017 
Westar Westar 

Evergy Energy KCP&L Evergy Energy KCP&L<a> 
Deferred tax assets: (millions) 

Income taxes refundable to customers, net 478.1 233.1 186.9 230.3 230.3 179.1 

Net operating loss carryforward 383.3 60.7 119.2 70.0 70.0 131.2 

Alternative minimum tax carryforward 73.4 26.7, 52.2 52.2 

Valuation allowances _ (27.3) (1.7) 
~J].~/{:;r1~~~1f.efe.~l:t~:~~ztt::¥i~'.,'.}fS·:J'''"":.f"""'_i-,J-;;~--~-,?,-'.(j""'}:-::•""';::"""o~,: .... ~A,,..i8..,,..}?-]=:,~,...,}..,..I~=:ir=~.:=1t---~,....~-~.;,.i~-;t-:;:-:;:""''.:c{'"":•'~..,..,9,,.,00,....,;..,..9.,..,r~""'~f""t"""~, .... f;'""gp-,, 0.,..\.-Q;-;J':-{,-.l~-,~\-i·-;,P-.. ~-.~.:...:1-J 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Tax Credit Carryforwards 
At December 31, 2018 and-2017, Evergy had $333.8 million and $100.0 million, respectively, of federal general 
business income tax credit carryforwards. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Westar Energy had $134.0 mi111on and 
$100.0 million, respectively, of federal general business income tax credit carryforwards. At December 31, 2018 · 
and 2017, KCP&L had $192.8 million and $184.6 million, respectively~ of federal general business income tax 
credit carryforwards. The carryforwards for Evergy, Westar Energy and'KCP&L relate primarily to·wind 
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production tax credits and advanced coal investment tax credits and expire in the years 2020 to 2038. 

Approximately $0.5 million of Evergy's credits are related to Low Income Housing credits that were acquired in 

Great Plains Energy's acquisition of GMO. Due to federal limitations on the utilization of income tax attributes 

acquired in the GMO acquisition, Evergy expects a portion of these credits to expire unutilized and has pr(?vided a 

valuation allowance against $0.4 million of the federal income tax benefit. 

The year of origin of Evergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's related tax benefit amounts for federal tax credit 

carryforwards as of December 31, 2018 are detailed in the following table. 

Year of Origin Evergy 

2001 

2011 

2013 

9.8 

13.3 

23.5 

Amount of Benefit 

Westar Energy 

(millions) 

9.7 

10.5 

2017 43.3 34.5 
• • ; • ' 0 ' • 0 "' -,.,..,,-~-~,_,,,_,...,,,~,~~"'"'""''"""'" 

l '.'.:.: ?018 • ·... r ...... ·· -~-;: ; . ·;>' ~>·C:;;.::. · ·~:.• ~ ~. ·~ · · · · 41.~ · .36.5 

KCP&L 

13.2 

12.9 

8.2 
"'"'·~=~~. - ·-- .~.~~,- --· 

,·'.51.', 
" f ,-- i 

$ 333.8 $ 134.0 $ 192.8 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Evergy had $73 .4 million and $52.2 million of federal alternative minimum tax 

(AMT) credit carryforwards. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Westar Energy had $26.7 million and $52.2 million 

. of federal AMT carryforwards. These credits do not expire and can be used to reduce taxes paid in the future or 

become refundable starting in 2018. Due to potential federal budget sequestration reductions for refundable income 

tax credits, Evergy expects a portion of these credits will not be refunded and has provided a valuation allowance 

against $7.9 million of the federal income tax benefit. 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Evergy had $174.3 million and $176.7 million, respectively, of tax benefits related 

to state income tax credit carryforwards. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Westar Energy had $173 .1 million and 

$176.7 million, respectively, of tax benefit related to state income tax cre~it carryforwards. At December 31, 2018 

and 2017, KCP&L had $1.2 million of tax benefits related to state income tax credit carryforwards. The state 

income tax credits relate primarily to the Kansas high performance incentive program tax credits artd expire in the 

years 2024 to 2033. 

Net Operating Loss Carryforwards 
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Evergy had $324.2 million and $38.0 million, respectively, of tax benefits related 

to federal net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Westar Energy had $40.1 
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c: million and $3 8.0 million, respectively, of tax benefits related to federal NOL carryforwards. At December 31, 
· 2018 and 2017, KCP&Lhad $107.5 million and $107.3 million, respectively, of tax benefits related to federal NOL 
carryforwards. Approximately $78.1 million at December 31, 2018 are tax benefits related to NO Ls that were 
ac·quired in the GMO acquisition. Due to federal limitations on the utilization of income tax attributes acquired in 
the GMO ayquisition, Evergy expects a portion of these credits to expire unutilized and has provided a valuation 
allowance against $7 .1 million of the federal income tax benefit The federal NOL carryforwards expire in years 
2022 to 203 7. 

The year of origin ofEvergy's, Westar Energy's and KCP&L's related tax benefit amounts for federal NOL 
carryforwards as of December 31, 2018 are detailed in the following table. 

Year of Origin Evergy 

Amount of Benefit 

Westar Energy . KCP&L 

(millions) 

· 2005 44.4 

2009 21:9 

2011 65.3 38.4 

2013 1.5 0.8 0.3 

2015 59.3 0.2 55.6 

2017 16.2 12.3 0.6 

$ 324.2 $ 40.1 $ 107.5 

In addition, Evergy also had deferred tax benefits of $59.lmillion and $26.0 million related to state NOLs as of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Westar Energy had deferred tax benefits of$20.6 million and $26.0 
million related to state NOLs as of December 31, '2018 and 2017, respectively. KCP&L had deferred tax benefits of 
$11.7 million and $23.9 million related to state NOLs as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The state 
NOL carryforwards expire in years 2019 to 2037. Evergy does not expect to utilize $11.9 million ofNOLs before 
the expiration date of the carryforwards ofNOLs in certain states. Therefore, a valuation allowance has been 1 

provided. against $11.9 million of state tax benefi~s. 

Valuation Allowances 
· Evergy is required to assess the ultimate realization of deferred tax assets using a "more likely than not" assessment 
threshold. This assessment takes into consideration tax planning strategies within Evergy's control. As a result of 
this assessment, Evergy has established a partial valuation allowance for federal and state tax NOL carryforwards 

. and tax credit carryforwards. During 2018, $0.5 million of tax expense was recorded in continuing operations 
' · primarily related to AMT credits offset by the tax benefit recorded for the expiration of certain state NOL 

carryforwards. The remaining valuation allowances against federal and state NOL carryforwards and tax credit 
6arryforwards.were acquired as part of the merger and were recorded as part of the purchase accounting entries. 

Federal Tax Reform 
In December 2017, the U.S. Congress passed and President Donald Trump signed Public Law No. 115-97,, 
commonly referred to as the TCJA. The TCJA represents the first major reform in U.S. income tax law since 1986. 
Most notably, the TCJAreduces the current top corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21 % beginning in 2018, _ 
repeals the corporate AMT, makes existing AMT tax credit carryforwards refundable, and changes the deductibility 
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and taxability of certain items, among other things. Prior to the change in tax. rates that has been reflected in their 

2018 rate cases, Westar Energy, KCP&L anp. GMO recovered the cost of income taxes in rates from their customers 

based on the 35% federal corporate income tax rate. 

In Janµary 2018, the KCC issued an order requiring certain regulated public utilities, including Westar Energy and 

KCP&L, to begin recording a regulatory liability for the differeri~e between the new federal corporate tax rate and . 

amounts currently collected in rates. In the second quarter of 2018, Westar Energy and KCP&L entered into 

settlement agreements with KCC staff and other intervenors in which they further agreed to begin deferring any 

impacts of the TCJA on their excess accumulated deferred income taxes to a regulatory liability. The KCC 

approved these settlement agreements in June 2018. KCP&L and GMO had also recorded regulatory liabilities in 

2018 due to the probability thafthey would aiso be required to make similar refunds to their Missouri customers. 

The final regulatory treatmeU:t ~fthese regulatory liabillties was determined in each of Westar Energy's, KCP&L's 

and GMO's rate cases with the KCC and MPSC. See Note 5 for more information and the amounts of the 

regulatory liabilities recorded by the Evergy Companies. 

Missouri Tax Reform 
On June 1, 2018, the Missouri governor signed Senate Bill (S.B.) 884 into law. Mo.st notably, S.B. 884 reduces the 

corporate income tax rate from 6.25% to 4.0% beginning in 2020, provides for the mandatory use of the single sales 

factor formula and eliminates intercompany transactions between corporations that file a consolidated Missouri 

income tax return. · 

As a result of the change in the Missouri corporate income tax rate, KCP&L revalued and restated its deferred 

income tax assets and liabilities as of June 1, 2018. KCP&L decreased its net deferred income tax liabilities by 

$46.6 million, primarily consisting of a $28-.8 million adjustment for the revaluation and restatement of deferred 

income tax assets and liabilities included in Missouri jurisdictional rate base and a $9.9 million tax gross-up 

adjustment for ratemaking purposes. The decrease to KCP&L's net deferred income tax liabilities included in 

Missouri jurisdictional rate base were offset by a corresponding increase in regulatory liabilities: The net regulatory 

liabilities will be amortized to customers over a period to be determined in a future rate case. 

KCP&L recognized $15.5 million of income tax benefit primarily related to the difference between KCP&L's 

revaluation of its deferred income tax assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount of the 

revaluation pertaining to KCP&L's Missouri jurisdictional rate base. 
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20. QUARTERLY orERATING RESULTS (UNAUDITED) 

Quarter 
Evergy 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 
2018 (millions, except per share amounts) 

Operating income 123.5 126.9 533.1 150.1 

Basic and diluted earnings per common share 0.42 0.50 1.11 0.24 

Quarter 
Westar Energy . 1st 2nd 3rd .4th 
2018 (millions) 

Net income 63.5 76.0 · 160.7 36.3 
W;Jns9,1tr~atir~1:,cutab'k(q:W~r~~!1~w,·tii~:Fr:.r1::::··;.;ff~,;::,~•h~Yf?;;[:~:z.,:) .. ·•,:s9.:,;(.:~.·.~::·.~·7~;f':·~·",::;:t:s~:1.~i":t:~~~-~:l 

Quarter 
KCP&L 1st. 2nd 3rd 4th. 

Operating income . 61.0 114.7 , 189.4 44.7 
[~f.Fi~RJ?:ie ~}:n'.ttf;): ;:tf~Jf :.ft{ff;(·:.tfffffi'J{! ·~j U 'i.• .• ·f ~ .. 'i ii} r:/ ,:11().~;~.s· / ~4;~:., ..... \/;•'12,Q:~Jf; {; ~~@121 
2017 

Operating income . 65.q 126.2 · · 219.8 75..4 
fNcitiii!c"Fm:e7x2~'.;i.::r 1; :~+1. ~f!:·: '.i'; ·• =·;: .. } •. :;:····:c:":.·;: . . : ;·L1: ........... \.• .i-;.:':;<fFT :1.'1}/I·:~1 119:6·,.:.;r::~1:14;:~c·~~.1l4::;;;.171~:9,,1 

Quarterly data is subject to seasonal fluctuations with peak periods occurring in the summer months. Evergy's 
results reflect the results of operations of Westar Energy for all periods in 2017. Evergy had separate operations and 
includes the results of operation ofKCP&L and GMO beginning with the quarter ended June 30; 2018. See Note 1 
for more information. 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND · 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

EVERGY 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
Evergy carried out an evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 

l Sd-15( e) under the Exchange Act). This evaluation was conducted under the supervision, and with the 

participation, of Evergy's management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, and 

Evergy's disclosure committee. Based upon this evaluation, the chief executive offic~r and chief financial officer of 

Evergy have concluded as of the end of the period covered by this report that the disclosure controls and procedures 

of Evergy were effective at a reasonable assurance level. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
There has been no change in Evergy's internal control over financial reporting (as'defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 

15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarterly period ended December 31, 2018, that has 

materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as 

defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) for Evergy. Under the supervision and with the 

participation of Evergy's chief executive officer and chief financial officer, management evaluated the effectiveness 

of Evergy's internai control over financial repoi:ting as of December 31, 2018. Management used· for this evaluation 

· the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by th~ Committee of Sponsoring 

Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission. 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 

or'improper override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a 

timely basis. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with 

respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness 

of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

Management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2018, Evergy's internal control over financial reporting is 

effective based on the criteria set forth in the coso framework. Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered 

public accounting firm th~t audited the financial statements included in this annual report on Form 10-K, .has issued 

its attestation report on Evergy's internal control over financial reporting, which is included below. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Evergy, Inc. 

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

We have audited the internal c,ontrol over financial reporting ofEvergy, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of 
December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company · 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as· of December 31, 2018, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2018, of the Company and our report dated February 21, 2019, expressed an unqualified 
opinion on those financial statements and financial statement schedules. 

Basis for Opinion 
. .• 

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and 
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm 
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the 
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, 
and the PCAOB. " . . , . , , . 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting 
was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists; testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe ~hat our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

· A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.- A company's internal c6ntrol over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recprded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance . 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation o·f effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may 
become inadequate because 9f changes in conditions; or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

ls/DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP 

Kansas City, Missouri 
February 21, 2019 
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WESTAR ENERGY 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
Westar Energy carried out an evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defin~d in Rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). This.evaluation was conducted under the supervision, and with the 
participation, of Westar Energy's management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, and. 
Westar Energy's disclosure committee. Based upon this evaluation, the chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer of Westar Energy have concluded as of the end of the period covered by this report that the disclosure 
controls and procedures of Westar Energy were effective at a reasonable assurance level. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
There has been no change in Westar Energy's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) 
and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarterly period ended December.31, 2018, that has 
materially.affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) for Westar Energy. Under the supervision ~nd 
with the participation of Westar Energy's chief executive officer and chief financial officer, management evaluated 
the effectiveness of Westar Energy's internal control over financial reporting as of Decei:nber 31, 2018. 
Management used for this evaluation the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by 
the COSO of the Treadway Commission. 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a 
timely basis. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any .evaluation of the effe~tiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subjecfto the risk that the controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

,• 

Management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2018, Westar Energy's intern.al control over financial reporting 
is effective based on the criteria set forth in the COSO framework. 

KCP&L 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
KCP&L carried out an: evaluation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 
1 Sd-: 15( e) under the Exchange Act). This evaluation was conducted under the supervision, and with the 
participation, ofKCP&L's management, 'including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, and· 
KCP&L's disclosure committee. Based upon this evaluation, the chief executive officer and chief financial officer 
of KCP &L have concluded as of the end of the period covered by this report that the disclosure controls and 
procedures ofKCP&L were effective at a reasonable assurance level. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
There has been no change in KCP&L's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 
15d-J5(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the quarterly period ended December 31, 2018, that has 
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.(as 
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) for KCP&L. Under the supervision and with the 
participation ofKCP&L's chief executive officer and chief financial officer, management evaluated the 
effectiveness ofKCP&L's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018. Management used for 
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this evaluation the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO of the 
Treadway Commission. 

Because of the inherentJimitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a 
timely basis. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with 
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. · 

Management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2018,'KCP&L's internal control over financial reporting is 
effective based on the criteri·a set forth in the COSO framework. · 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 

PART III 

Information required by Items 10-14 of Part III of this Form 10-K with respect to Evergy will be incorporated by 
reference to Evergy's definitive proxy statement with respect to its 2019 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (Proxy 
Statement), which will be filed with the SEC on or before April 30, 2019. 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS~ EXECUT~E OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Evergy 
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2019 Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders: · · 

Information regarding the directors of Evergy is contained in the Proxy Statement section titled "Election of 
Directors." 

Informat\on regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is contained in the Proxy 
Statement section titled "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors and Officers - Section 
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance." 

Information reg~rding the Audit Committee of Evergy is contained in the Proxy Statement section titled 
"Corporate.Govern~nce - Committees of the Board." 

• Information regarding Evergy's Code of Ethical Business C.onduct is contained in the Proxy Statement 
section titled "Corporate Governance - Code of Ethical Business Conduct." 

Information required by this item regarding Evergy's executive officers is contain~d in this report in Part I, Item l in 
"Executive Officers." 

Westar Energy and KCP&L 
Other information required by this item regarding Westar Energy and KCP&L has been omitted in reliance on 
General Instruction (I) to Form lO~K. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Evergy 
The information required by this item contained in the sections titled "Executive Compensation," "Director 
Compensation," "Compensation Discussion and.Analysis", "Compensation Committee Report" and "Director 
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Independence - Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation" of the Proxy Statement is 
incorporated by reference. - : 

Westar Energy and KCP&L 
Other information required by this item regarding Westar Energy and KCP&L has been omitted. in reliance on 
General Instruction (I) to Form 10-K. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND 
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

Evergy 
The information required by this item regarding security ownership of the directors and executive officers ofEvergy 
contained in the section titled "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors and Officers" of tlie 
Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference. · · 

Westar·Energy and KCP&L 
The information required by this item regarding Wes.tar Energy and KCP&L has been omitted in reliance on 
General Instruction (I) to Form 10-K. 

Equity Compensation Plans 
Upon the consummation of the merger, Evergy assumed both Westar Energy's LTISA and Great Plains Energy's 
Amended Long-Term Incentive Plan, which was renamed the Evergy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan. The renamed 
Evergy Long-Term Incentive Plan permits the grant of restricted stock, restricted stock units, bonus· shares, stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, director shares, director deferred share units, performance shares and other stock
based awards to directors, officers and other employees of Evergy. 

The following table provides 1.nformation, as of December 3_1, 2018, regarding th.e number of common shares to be 
issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights, tp.eir weighted average exercise price, and the 
number of shares of common stock remaining available for future issuance. The table excludes shares issued or 

· issuable under any defined contribution savings plans. 

Plan Category 

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders (IJ 

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders 

1: total· 

Number of 

securities 

to be fssued upon Weighted-average 

exercise of exercise price of 

outstanding options, outstanding.options, 

warrants and rights warrants and rights 

(a) (b) · 

530;35~ (Z) : . $' --'-. (3) ' . 

Number of securities · 

remaining available 

for future issuance 

under.equity 

compensation plans 

( excluding securities 

reflected in column (a)) 

(c) 

. ' • 2/168,69'.3 

<1lThe Westar Energy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive and Share Award Plan will not be used for future awards. As of December :3 l, 2018, there 
were approximately 134,538 time-based restricted stock units outstanding under the plan, and approximately 362,324 units outstanding that 
were deferred pursuant ,to the Westar Energy, Inc. non-employee deferred compensation program, Deferred units will continue to receive 
deferred dividend equivalents in the form of additional deferred units until payouts pursuant to elections begin. 

<2l1ncludes 348,496 performance shares at target performance levels, 82,331 time-based restricted share units and director deferred share units 
for 99,532 shares ofEvergy com~on stock outstanding atDecember 31, 2018, 

<3lThe performance shares, time-based restricted share units and director deferred share units have no exercise price and therefore are not 
reflected in the weighted average exercise price. · 
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR 
INDEPENDENCE . 

Evergy 
The information required by this item contained in the sections titled "Director Independence" and "Related Party 
Transactions" of the Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference. 

Westar Energy and KCP&L 
The information required by this item regarding Westar Energy and KCP&L has been omitted in reliance on 
General Instruction (I) to Form 10-K. · . 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

Evergy 
The information requir~d by this item regarding the independent auditors ofEvergy and its subsidiaries contained in 
the section titled "Ratification of Appointment ofindependentAuditors" of the Proxy Statement is incorporated by 
reference; 

Westar Energy and KCP&L 
The Audit Committee of the Evergy Board functions as the Audit Committee of Westar Energy and KCP&L. The 
following tables set forth the aggregate fees billed by Deloitte & Touche LLP for audit services rendered in · 
connection with:the consolidated financial statements and reports for 2018 and 2017 and for other services rendered 

. during 2018 and 2017 on behalf of Westar Energy and KCP&L, as well as all out-of-pocket costs incurred in 
connection with these services: · 

Westar Energy 2018 . 2017 
Fee Category 

Audit-Related Fees 40,000 54,000 

All Other Fees 

·· TotaCFees: • $·:2,208,000 $ .:2,745,000l 

KCP&L 2018 2017 
Fee Category 

Audit-Related Fees ·23,000 ·22,000 

. $ .. 1,859,161 '$ :.1~351A5SJ 

Audit Fees: Consists of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audits of the annual consolidated 
financial statements of Westar Energy and KCP&L a_nd reviews of the interim condensed consolidated financial 
statements included in quarterly reports. Audit fees also include: services provided by Deloitte & Touche hLP in. 
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements; audit reports on audits of the effectiveness of 
internal control over finat,J.cial reporting and other attest services, except those not required by statute or regulation; 
services related to filings with the SEC, including comfort letters, consents and assistance with and review of 
documents filed with the SEC; and accounting research in support of the audit. 
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Audit-Related Fees: Consists of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the 

performance of the audit or review of consolidated financial statements ofWe~tar Energy and KCP&L and are not 

reported under "Audit Fees." These services include consultation concerning financial accounting and reporting 

standards. 

Tax Fees: Consists of fees billed for tax compliance and related support of tax returns and other tax services, 

including assistance with tax audits, and tax research and planning. 

All Other Fees: Consists of fees for all other services other than those described above. 

Audit Committee Pre-Approvai of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services 

The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures for the pre.:.approval of all audit services, audit-related 

services, tax services and other services to be provided by the independent registered public accounting firm for 

Westar Energy and KCP&L. Under these policies and procedures, the Audit Committee may pre-approve certain 

types of services, up to the aggregate fee levels it sets. Any proposed _service within a pre.:.approved type of service 

that would cause the applicable fee level to be exceeded cannot be provided unless the Audit Committee either · 

amends the applicable fee level or specifically approves the proposed service. The Audit Committee, as well, may 

specifically approve audit, audit-related, tax .or other services on a case~by-case basis. Pre-approval is generally 

provided for up to one year, unless the Audit Committee specifically provides for a different period. Management 

provides quarterly updates to the Audit Committee regarding actual fees spent with respect to pre-approved 

services. The Chair of the Audit Committee may pre-.approve audit, audit~related, tax and other services provided 

by the independent registered public accounting firm as required between meetings and report such pre-approval at 

the next Audit Committee meeting. 

PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

Financial Statements 

Evergy, Inc. 

a. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 
2018, 2017 and2016 

b. Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2018 and 2017 

c. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 
and2016 

d: · · Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2018, 
2017 and 2016 

e. • Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

f. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm· 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

g. 

h. 

1. 

Consolidated Statem~nts oflncome for the years December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 

Coqsolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2018 and 2017, 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 
2016 
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60 

61 

63 -· 

64 

75. 

57 

65 
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j. 

k. 

1. 

I 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2018, 
2017 and 2016 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

KCP&L 

m. 

n. 

0. 

p. 

q. 

r. 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 
2018, 2017 and2016 

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2018 and 2017 

Consolidated Statements .of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2018, 201 7 
and 2016 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended December 31, 2018, 
2017 and 2016 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Financial Statement Schedules 

Evergy, Inc. 

a. Schedule I - Parent Company Financial Statements 

b. S~hedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 

Westar Energy, Inc. 
C. Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves · 

KCP&L 

d. Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 
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Exhibits 

· Exhibit 
Number 

2.1 

2.2 

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

,4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

Description of Document 

*~ Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 29, 2016, by and 
·among Westar Energy, Inc., Great·Plains Energy Incorporated and, 
from and after its accession thereto, Merger Sub ( as defined · 
therein) (Exhibit 2.1 to Great Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on 
May 31, 2016). . 

* ~ Amended and Restated Merger Agreement, dated July 9, 2017, by 
·and among Great Plains Energy Incorporated, Westar Energy, Inc., 
Monarch Energy Holding, Inc., King Energy, Inc. and, solely for 
the purposes set forth therein, GP Star, Inc. (Exhibit 2.1 to Great 
Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on July 10, 2017). 

* Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Evergy, Inc., 
·. effective June 4, 2018 (Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K filed on June 4, 

2018). 

* Amended and Restated By-laws ofEvergy, Inc., effective June 4, 
2018 (Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2018). · 

* Amended and Restated Articles of Consolidation of Kansas City 
Power & Light Company, restated as of May 6, 2014 (Exhibit 3.2 .· 
to KCP&L's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014). 

* Amended and Restated By-laws of Kansas City Power & Light· 
Company, as amended December 10, 2013 (Exhibit 3.3 to 
KCP&L's Form 8-K filed on December 16, 2013). 

* Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Westar 
Energy, Inc., as amended June 4, 2018 (Exhibit 3.3 to Westar 
Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ep.ded June 30, 2018). 

* Amended and Restated By-laws of Westar Energy, Inc., as 
· ·amended June 4, 2018 (Exhibit 3.4 to Westar Energy's Form 10-Q 

for the quarter ended June 30, 2018). 

\ 

* Indenture, dated June 1, 2004, between Great Plains Energy 
Incorporated and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.4 to Great Plains Energy's Form 8-A/A filed on 
June 14, 2004). 

* -First Supplemental Indenture, dated June 14, 2004, between Great 
Plains Energy Incorporated and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as 
trustee (Exhibit 4.5 to Great Plains Energy's Form 8-A/A filed on 
June 14, 2004). 

* Second Supplemental Indenture, dated September 2?, 2007, 
between Great Plains Energy Incorporated and The Bank of New 
York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Great Plains 
Energy's Form 8-K filed on September 26, 2007). 
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Evergy 
Westar Energy 

Evergy 

Evergy 
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KCP&L 

Westar Energy 

Westar Energy 
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Evergy 



4.4 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

4.8 

4.9 

4.10 

4.11 

4.12 

4.13 

4.14 

* Third Supplemental Indenture, dated August 13, 2010, between 
Great Plains Energy Incorporated and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Great 
Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2010). 

* Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 19, 2011, between· 
Great Plains Energy Incorporated and The Bank of New York 
MellonTnist Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Great· 
Plains Energy's Fi:m.n 8-K filed on May 19, 2011). · 

* Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 9, 2017, between 
Great Plains Energy and The Bank of New York Trust <:;:ompany,_ 
N.A. as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Great Plains Energy's Form 8-K 
filed on March 9, 2017). 

I 

* Sixth Supplemental Indentur_e, dated June 4, 2018, by and among 
Great Plains Energy Incorporated, Evergy, Inc. and The Bank of 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4;1 to 
Evergy's Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2018). 

* Subordinated Indenture, dated May 18, 2009, between Great 
Plains Energy Incorporated and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Great Plains 
Energy's Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2009). 

* Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated May 18, 2009, between 
, Gre_at Plains Energy Incorporated and The Bank of.New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to Great 
Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on May 19, 2009}. 

* . Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated March 22, 2012, between 
Great Plains Energy Incorporated and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Great_ 
Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2012). 

* Supplemental Indenture No. 3, dated June 4, 2018, by and among 
Great Plains Energy Incorporated, Evergy, Inc. and The Bank of 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to 
Evergy's Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2018). 

* Indenture, dated August 24, 2001, between Aquila, Inc. and 
BankOne Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4(d) to . 
Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-68400) filed by 
Aquila, Inc. on August 27, 2001). · · · 

* Second Supplemental Indenture, dated July 3, 2002, between 
Aquila, Inc. and BankOne Trust Company, N.A., as trustee 
(Exhibit 4(c) to Form S-4 (File Nq. 333-100204) filed by Aquila, 
Inc. on September 30, 2002). 

* General Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated December 1, 1986, 
between Kansas City Power &Light Company and UMB Bank, 
N.A. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.),.as · 
trustee (Exhibit 4.12 to KCP&L's Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2017). 
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4.15 * Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated September 1, 1992, between Evergy 
· Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. KCP&L 

(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.13 to KCP&L's Form .IO-K for the year ended ·. 
December 31, 2017). 

4.16 * Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated October 1, 1993, between Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. KCP&L 
(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit'4.14 to KCP&L's Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 20] 7). 

4:17 * Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated December 1, 1993, between Evergy 
· Kansas City Power.& Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. KCP&L 
(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.15 to KCP&L's Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2017). 

4.18 * Eleventh SuppJemental Indenture, dated August 15, 2005, between Evergy· 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N .A. KCP&L 
(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.2 to KCP&L's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2~05). 

4.19 * Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2009, between Evergy 
Kansas City Power &Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. KCP&L 
(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.2 to KCP&L's Form 8-K filed on March 24, 2009). 

4.20 * Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2009, b_etween Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N.A. KCP&L 
(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.3 to KCP&L's Form 8-K filed on March 24, 2009). 

4.21' * Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2009, Evergy 
between Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, KCP&L 
N.A. (formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as 
trustee (Exhibit 4.4 to KCP&L's Form 8-K filed on March 24, 
2009). 

422 * Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated Jun~ 30, 2011, between Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and UMB Bank, N .A. · KCP&L 
(formerly United Missouri Bank of Kansas City, N.A.), as trustee 
(Exhibit 4.1 to KCP&L's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 
30, 2011). I 

4.23 * Indenture, dated December 1, 2000, between Kansas City Power Evergy 
& Light Company and The Bank of New York, as trustee (Exhibit KCP&L 
4(a) to KCP&L's Form 8-K filed oh December 18, 2000). 

4.24 * Indenture, dated March 1, 2002, between Kansas City Power & Evergy 
Light Company and The Bank of New York; as trustee (Exhibit KCP&L. 
4.1.b. to KCP&L's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 
2002). 
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4.25 * .Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated November 15, 2005, Evergy 
between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of KCP&L 
New York, as trustee (Exhibit 4.2.j to KCP&L's Form 10-K for the 
year ended December 31, 2005). 

4.26 * Indenture, dated May 1, 2007, between Kansas City Power & Evergy 
Light Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., . .KCP&L 
as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to KCP&L's Form-8-K filed on June 4, 
2007). 

' 4.27 * Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated June 4, 2007, between Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York KCP&L 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to KCP&L's Form 8-
K filed on June 4, 2007). 

4.28 * Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated March 11, 2008, between . Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York. KCP&L 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.2 to KCP&L's Form 8-
K filed on March 11, 2008).- · 

4.29 * Supplemental Indenture No. 3, dated September 20, 2011, Evergy. 
between Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of KCP&L 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to 
KCP&L's Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2011). 

4.30 * Supplemental Indenture No. 4, dated March 14, 2013, between. Evergy. 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York KCP&L 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to KCP&L's 
Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2013). 

4.31 * Supplemental Indenture No. 5, dated August 18, 2015, between Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York KCP&L 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to KCP&L's 
Form 8-K filed on August 18, 2015). 

4.32 * Supplemental Indenture No. 6, dated June 15, 2017, between Evergy 
KCP&L.and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, KCP&L 
N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to KCP&L's Form 8-K filed on June 
15, 2017). 

4.33 * Supplemental Indenture No. 7, dated March 1, 2018, between Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company and The Bank of New York KCP&L 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to KCP&L's 
Form 8-K filed on March 1, 2018). 

4.34 * Note Purchase Agreement, dated August 16, 2013, among KCP &L Evergy 
Greater Missouri Operations Company and the purchasers party 
thereto (Exhibit 4.1 to GreatPlains Energy's Form 8-K filed on 
August 19, 2013). 

. I 

4.35 Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated July 1, 1939, between Westar Evergy 
Energy, Inc. (formerly The Kansas Power and Light Company) Westar Energy 
and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as trustee. 
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4.36 First Supplemental Indenture, dated July 1, 1939, between Westar Evergy 
Energy, Inc. (formerly The Kansas Power and Light Company) · Westar Energy 
and Harris Trust and Savings· Bank, as trustee. 

4.37 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated April 1, 1949, between Evergy 
Westar Energy, Inc. (formerly The Kansas Power and Light Westar Energy 
Company) and Harris Trust and Savings Banlc, as trustee. 

4.38 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated October 4, 1951, between Evergy 
Westar Energy, Inc. (formerly The Kansas Power and Light Westar Energy 
Company) and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as trustee. 

4.39 Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 1, 1976, between Evergy 
Westar Energy, Inc. (formerly The Kansas Power and Light Westar Energy 
Company) and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as trustee. 

4.40 Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated July 1, 1992, Evergy 
between Westar Energy, Inc. (fomierly Western Resources, Inc.) Westar Energy 
and Harris Tru~t and Savings Bank, as trustee. 

4.41 * Thirty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated April 15, 1994, Evergy 
between Westar Energy, Inc. (formerly Western Resources, Inc.) Westar Energy 
and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as trustee (Exhibit 4(s) to 
Westar Energy's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended :Oecember 
31, 1994). 

4.42 * Thirty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 28, 2000, · Evergy 
between Westar Energy, Inc. (formerly Western Resources, Inc.) 
and Harris Trust and Savings Bank, as trustee (Exhibit 4(v) to 

Westar Energy 

Westar Energy's Form 10-K for the fiscal year end.ed December 
. 31, 2000). 

4.43 * Thirty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 1, 2004, between Evergy 
Westar Energy, Inc. and BNY Midwest Trust Company, as trustee Westar Energy 
(Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's Form 8-K filed on January 18, 
2005). 

4.44 * Thirty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated January 18, 2005, Evergy 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and BNY Midwest Trust Company, · Westar Energy 
as trustee (Exhibit 4.3 to Westar Energy's Form 8-K filed on 
January 18, 2005). · · 

4.45 * Thirty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 30, 2005, · Evergy 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and BNY Midwest Trust Company,\ Westar Energy' 
as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's Form 8-K filed on July 
1, 2005) .. 

4.46 * Forty-Second Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2012, Evergy 
between Westar Energy, inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon Westar Energy 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Fonn 8-K filed on February 29, 2012). 
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4.47 

4.48 

4.49 

4.50 

4.51 

4.52 

4.53 

4.54 

4.55 

10.1 

10.2 -

* Forty-Second Supplemental (Reopening) Indenture, dated May 
17, 2012, between Westar Energy, Inc; and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar 
Energy's Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2012). 

* Forty-Third Supplemental Indenture, dated March 28, 2013, 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Form 8-K filed on March 22, 2013): 

* Forty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 19, 2013, 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Form 8-K filed on August 14, 2013). 

* Forty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated November 13, 2015, 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Form 8-K filed on November 6, 2015). 

* Forty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 20, 2016, 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 

' Form 8-K filed on June 17, 2016). 

* Forty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated March 6, 2017, 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Form 8-K filed on March 3, 2017). 

* Forty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated June-4, 2018, 
between Westar Energy, Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon 

· Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2018). 

* Senior Indenture, dated August 1, 1998, between Westar Energy, 
Inc. and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as trustee, 
including Form of Senior Note (Exhibit 4.1 to Westar Energy's 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998). 

* Form of Subordinated Indenture between Westar Energy, Inc. and 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, 
including Form of Subordinated Note (Exhibit 4.3 to Westar 
Energy's Form S-3·filed on March 18, 2016 (No. 333-210266)). 

*+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Amended Long-Term Incentive 
Plan, as amended effective on May 3, 2016 (Exhibit 10.4 to Great 
Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016). 

*+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan 
Awards Standards and Performance Criteria Effective as of 
January 1, 2016 (Exhibit 10.3 to Great Plains Energy's Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended March 31, 2016). 
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10.3 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Evergy 
Awards Standard1? and Performance Criteria Effective as of KCP&L 
January 1, 2017 (Exhibit 10.3 to Great Plains Energy's Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended March 31, 2017). 

10.4 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan Evergy 
Awards Standards and Performance Criteria Effective as of KCP&L 
January 1, 2018 (Exhibit 10.3 to Great Plains Energy's F~rm 10-Q 
for the quarter ended March 31, 2018). 

10.5 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2016 three-year Evergy 
Performance Share Agreement (Exhibit 10 .1 to Great Plains KCP&L 
Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016). 

\ 

10.6 + Form of Amendment to Appendix A to Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated 2016 three-year Performance Share Agreement. KCP&L 

10.7 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2016 Restricted Stock .Evergy 
Agreement (Exhibit 10.2 to Great Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for. KCP&L 
the quarter ended March 31, 2016). 

10.8 *+ Form of Great :elains Energy Incorporated 2017 three-year Evergy 
Performance Share Agreement (Exhibit 10.1 to Great Plains KCP&L 
Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2017). 

10.9 + Form of Amendment to Appendix A to Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated 2017 three-year Performance Share Agreement. KCP&L 

10.10 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2017 Restricted Stock Evergy 
Agreement (Exhibit 10.2 to Great Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for· KCP&L 
the quarter ended March 31, 2017). 

10.11 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2018 three-year Evergy 
Performance Share Agreement (Exhibit 10 .1 to Great Plains . KCP&L 
Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018). 

10.12 + Form of Amendment to Appendix A to Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated 2018 three-year Performance Share Agreement. KCP&L 

10.13 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2018 Restricted Stock Evergy 
Agreement (Exhibit 10.2 to Great Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for KCP&L 
the quarter ended March 31, 2018). 

10.14 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2018 Restricted Stock Evergy 
Unit Agreement (Exhibit 10.1 to Great Plains Energy's Form 8-K KCP&L 
filed on June 4, 2018). · 

10.15 *+ .Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated 2018 Cash Retention Evergy 
Payment Agreement (Exhibit 10.2 to Great Plains Energy's Form KCP&L 
8-K filed on June 4, 2018). 
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10.16 *+ Evergy, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (formerly the Great Plains Evergy 
Energy Incorporated Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended), KCP&L 
effective as of June 4, 2018 (Exhibit 99.1 to Evergy's Registration Westar Energy 
Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 15, 2018 (File No. 
333-225673)). 

10.17 *+ Westar Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Evergy 
and Share Award Plan, effective January 1, 2016 (Appendix B to Westar Energy 
Westar Energy's Proxy Statement filed on April 1, 2016). 

10.18 *+ ·Form of Westar Energy, Inc. 2018 Restricted Share Unit Evergy 
Agreement (Exhibit 10.1 to Westar Energy's Form 8-K filed on Westar Energy 
June 4, 2018). 

10.19 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Annual Incentive Plan, effective Evergy 
January 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018 (Exhibit 10.4 to Great Plains KCP&L 
Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2018). 

10.20 *+ Evergy, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan, effective July 1, 2018 - Evergy 
December 31, 2018 (Exhibit 10.3 to Evergy's Form 10-Q for the KCP&L 
quarter ended September 30, 2018). Westar Energy 

10.21 *+ Form oflndemnification Agreement with each Great Plains Evergy 
· Energy Incorporated officer and director (Exhibit 10-f to Great KCP&L 

Plains Energy's Form 10-K for year endedDeceinber 31, 1995). 

10.22 *+ Form of Contorming Amendment to Indemnific·ation Agreement Evergy 
with each Great Plains Energy Incorporated officer and director , KCP&L 
(Exhibit 10.1.a .to Great Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended March 31, 2003). 

10.23 . *+ Form of Indemnification Agreement with each Great Plains Evergy 
Energy Incorporated director and officer (Exhibit 10.1 to Great KCP&L 
Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on.December 8, 2008). 

· 10.24 *+ Form of Indemnification Agreement with Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated officers and directors (Exhibit 10.1 :p to Great Plains KCP&L 
Energy's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005) .. 

10.25 *+ Form of Indemnification Agreement with Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated officers and directors (Exhibit 10.1 to Great Plains KCP&L 
Energy's Form 8-K filed on December 16, 2013). 

10.26 *+ Form oflndemnification Agreement with Evergy, Inc. officers and Evergy 
directors (Exhibit 10.2 to Evergy's Forni 10-Q for the quarter KCP&L 
ended September 30, 2018). · · Westar Energy 

10.27 *+ Form of Great Plains Energy Incorporated Change in Control Evergy 
.Severance Agreement (Exhibit 10.1.e .to Great Plains Energy's KCP&L 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006). 
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10.28 *+ Form of Westar Energy, Inc. Amended and Restated Change in' Evergy 
Control Agreement (Exhibit lO(g) to Westar Energy's Form 10-K Westar Energy 
for the period ended December 31, 2015). 

10.29 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Supplemental Executive Evergy 
Retirement Plan (As Amended and Restated for I.R.C. §409A) KCP&L 
(Exhibit 10.1.10 to Great Plains En·ergy's Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2007). 

10.30 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Supplemental Executive Evergy 
Retirement Plan (As Amended and Restated for I.R.C. §409A), as KCP&L 
amended February 10, · 2009 .(Exhibit 10 .1.29 to Great Plains 
Energy's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008). 

10.31 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Supplemental Executive Evergy 
Retirement Plan (As Amended and Restated for I.R.C. §409.A), as KCP&L 
amended December 8, 2009 (Exhibit 10.1.27 to Great Plains 
Energy's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009). 

10.32 *+ Amendment dated October 28, 2014, to the Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan as KCP&L 
amended and restated on December 8, 2009 (Exhibit 10.1 to Great 
Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for the quart~r ended September 30, _ 
2014). 

10.33 *+ Evergy, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, effective Evergy 
June 4, 2018 (Exhibit 10.6 to Evergy's Form 10-Q for the quarter KCP&L 
e~ded June-30, 2018). Westar Energy 

10.34 *+ We~tar Energy, Inc. Retirement Benefit Restoration Plan (Exhibit Evergy 
10:1 to Westar Energy's Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2010). Westar Energy 

10.35 + Amendment to Westar Energy, Inc. Retirement Benefit Evergy· · 
Restoration Plan. Westar Energy 

10.36 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Nonqualified Deferred _Evergy 
Compensation Plan (As Amended and Restated for I.R.C: §409A) KCP&L 

· (Exhibit 10.1.11 to Gre_at Plains Energy's Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2007). 

10.37 *+ Great Plains Energy Incorporated Nonqualified Deferred ' Evergy 
Compensation Plan (As Amended and Restated for I.R.C. §409A), KCP&L 
amended effective January 1, 2010 (Exhibit 10.1.5 to Great Plains 
Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010). 

10.38 *+ Westar Energy, Inc. Non-Employee Director Nonqualified Evergy 
Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated May 17, Westar Energy 
2018 (Exhibit 10.8 to Westar Energy's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 2018). 

10.39 + Evergy, Inc. Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan, effective Evergy 
June 4, 2018: KCP&L 

Westar Energy 
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10.40 *+ Summary ofEvergy, Inc. Non-Employee Director Compensation Evergy 
(Exhibit 10.9 to Evergy's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June r 

·1 

30, 2018). 

10.41 * Credit Agreement, dated September 18, 2018, among Evergy, Inc., Evergy 
Kansas City Power & Light Company, KCP&L Great~r Missouri KCP&L 
Operations Company, Westar Energy, Inc., the several lenders 
from time to time parties thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National 

Westar Energy 

Association, as Administrative Agent, Swingline Lender and 
Issuing Lender and the other issuing lenders and agents party 
thereto (Exhibit 10.1 to Evergy's Form 8-K filed September 18, 
2018). 

10.42 First Amendment, dated November 30, 2018, to Credit Evergy 
Agreement, dated September 18, 2018, among Evergy, Inc., . KCP&L 
Kansas City Power & Light Company, KCP&L Greater Missouri Westar Energy 
Operations Company, Westar Energy, Inc., the several lenders 
from time to time parties thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association, as Administrative Agent, Swingline· Lender and 
Issuing Lender and the other issuing lenders and agents party. 
thereto. 

10.43 * Guaranty, dated as of July 15, 2008, issued by Great Plains Energy Evergy 
Incorporated in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as 
successor trustee, and the holders of the Aquila~ Inc., 8.27% 
Senior Notes due November 15, 2021 (Exhibit 10.6 to Great 
Plains Energy's Form 8-K filed on July 18, 2008). 

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Evergy, Inc. Evergy 

21.2 List of Subsidiaries of Westar Energy, Inc. . Westar Energy 

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. Evergy 

23.2 · Co1isent oflndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm. KCP&L 

23.3 Consent oflndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm. Westar Energy 

24.1 Powers of Attorney. Evergy 

. 24.2 Powers of Attorney. Westar Energy 

24.3 Powers of Attorney. KCP&L 

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Terry Bassham. Evergy 

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Anthony D. Somma. Evergy 

31.3 Rule l3a-14(a)/15ci-I4(a) Certification of Terry Bassham. KCP&L 

31.4 Rule l3a-14(a)/15d-I4(a) Certification of Anthony D. Somma. K(P&L 
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31.5 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Terry Bassham. 

31.6 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Anthony D. Somma. 

· 32.1 ** Section 1350 Certifications. 

32.2 ** Section 1350 Certjfications. -

32.3 ** Section 1350 Certifications. 

101.INS XBRL Instance Document. 

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. 

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. 

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document. 

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Docuinent. 

Westar Energy 

Westar Energy 

Evergy 

KCP&L 

Westar Energy 

Evergy 
KCP&L 
Westar Energy 

Evergy 
KCP&L 
Westar Energy 

Evergy 
KCP&L 
Westar Energy 

Evergy 
KCP&L 
Westar Energy 

Evergy 
KCP&L 
Westar Energy 

Evergy 
KCP&L 
Westar Energy 

* Filed with the SEC as exhibits to prior SEC filings _and are incorporated herein by reference and made a part 
hereof. The SEC filings and the exhibit numb.er of the documents so filed, and incorporated herein by reference, are 
stated in parenthesis in the description of such exhibit. 

* * Furnished and shall not be deemed filed for the purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such document shall 
not be incorporated by reference into any registration statement or other document pursuant to the Exchange Act or 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, unless otherwise indicated in such registration statement or other document. 

+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 

Li Schedules have bee]J. omitted pursuant to Item 60l(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, and Evergy will furnish the omitted 
schedules to the SEC upon request. 

Copies of any of the exhibits filed with the SEC in connection with this report may be obtained from the applicable 
registrant upon written request. The registrants agree to furnish to the SEC upon request any instrument with 
respect to long-term debt as to which the total am:ount of securities authorized does not exceed I 0% of total assets 
·of such registrant and its subsidiaries on a co11solidated basis. 
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Schedule I - Parent Company Financial Statements 

EVERGY., INC. 

Statement of Income of Parent Company 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Investment earnings 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 

· NETINCOME 

l COMP1tEHENS1VE.INC()~. 
L· ·--·· ... .- .. ··.,,.·,., .· ... •. J ...... , •. · •• ,J 

NET INCOME 

Derivative hedging activity 

Income tax benefit 

$ 

Period from June 4, 2018 
through 

December 31, 2018 

26.3 

314.2 

324.9 

1.4 

C ~efJpss. ?µ -~:~~~tiv:~ed_g~!?i~;~~~:~!s : .• :.~,-- ... -~ :· ~:· .... · =··--- .. , .. L . ···==· ==================<=4=-9=): Derivative hedging activity, net of tax (4.0) 

1 Ofu~r-~0Irip;~h~t1;iv~·-iu;~Iri~--:r;;m ;;;l?sidiaries, n~t 
L: ' --"~---·· ' ·-· ' ---'--~ 

·_,·.; ... · •...• ' ' '·, .: ·.:i ',. ·1'.01 

Total other comprehensive loss (3.0) 

I 'COMPREHENSIVE)NC:OME• .. · ' • ·. . .. •. . •... ' '' .•• ' : .. : . 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements of Parent Company are an integral part of these statements. 

168 



EVERGY, INC. 

Balance Sheet of Parent Company 

ASSETS 

... C}1.sh ap.d c!!.sh equivalents .. 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Derivative instruments 

. Long-term debt, net 

$ 

December31 

2018 

107.1 

5.4 

638.1 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3.0) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND :J"'.QUITY 10,604.4 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements of Parent Company are an integral part of these statements. 

) . 
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EVERGY, INC. 

Statement of Cash Flow of Parent Company 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Period from June 4, 2018 
through 

December 31, 2018 

(millions) 
··-;·-··-·---c·--·-··-·- ----·-···-···-·······-··--y-•·---.,-,·..,--~-~-·--..,-.....,.-y7:"".:""! 

Net deferred income taxes and credits 

Changes in working capital items: 

subsidiaries 

Cash dividends from subsidiaries 

! Changes other assets 
C~,--~-- .. ,. , ... ,., ., 

Changes in other liabilities 20.0 

!-::----. c-ash.Flo;sfrom-6p~atingActivities: : -----.-. ~-.-. ,~:-~·~-~-··:-~ .~ , •. -~~.c-..,-~r:~~.-: _,....:. ,,...----..,.,---.,..1-~.,.;,-.6..,.,j 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
··-·~·-,-•;-:-·~--·-----"C~~~---·--:---c-·,-,--~~·,-·-,..,~··--··..,..,==="' 

Proceeds from interest rate swap 140.6 · 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities ' ' · : · ·. · 
' . . . . ' 

Cash dividends paid . (245.9) 

[Repur(:hase ofconpnon stock ~- •. ·_, _ ... -···· .... · _ _ > . ...,_ ... _ . ~ ·~ .. : .. ~ · :· ~,. ":;(l,O~ 
· Cash Flows used in Financing A.ctivities ' · (1,'344.3) 

!NET CHANG~ IN CASHAND CASH EQUIV:A.LE,NTS . ' ' •,• • '. >,~ ~J '. , ;· : ; ; L , J;:~07~:ij 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 

f_.Beginningofperiod ___ ·.-............ ~.-................ ~ ................ - ... "······----·-····--·-·-·····="--·-··'-~-·········-""----------------"""--
End of period · $ 

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements of Parent Company are an·integral part of these statements. 
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EVERGY, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY 

The Evergy, Inc. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 should be read in conjunction with 
the Evergy, Inc. Pare~t Company Financial Statements. 

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The Evergy, Inc. Parent Company Financial Statements have been prepared to comply with Rule 12-04 of 
Regulation S-X. 

Evergy, Inc. was incorporated in 2017 as Monarch Energy,. a wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Plains Energy. Prior 
to the closing of the merger transactions, Monarch Energy changed its name to Evergy, Inc. and did not conduct any 
business activities other than those required for its formation and matters contemplated by the Amended Merger 
Agreement. On June 4, 2018, in accordance with the Amended Merger Agreement, Great Plains Energy merged 
into Evergy, Inc., with Evergy, Inc. surviving the merger and King Energy merged into Westar Energy, with Westar 
Energy surviving the merger. These merger transactions resulted in Evergy, Inc. becoming the parent entity of 
Westar Energy and the direct subsidiaries of Great Plains Energy, including KCP&L and GMO. 

See Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding the merger. 
,· 

Evergy, Inc. operates primarily through its wholly-owned direct subsidiaries. Evergy, Inc.'s investments in 
subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity method. Fair value adjustments and goodwill related to the acquired 
assets and liabilities of Great Plains Energy and its direct subsidiaries are only reflected on Evergy's consolidated 
financial statements and as such, are not included in Evergy, lnc.'s Parent Company Financial Statements. See Note 
1 to the consolidated financial statement for additional information. 

2. LONG-TERM DEBT 

See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on Evergy, Inc.'s lo'ng-term debt. 

3. GUARANTEES 

See Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding Evergy, Inc.'s guarantees. 

4 .. DIVIDENDS 

Cash dividends paid to Evergy, Inc. by its subsidiaries were $236.0 million for the period from June 4, 2018 through 
December 31, 2018. · See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for information regarding the dividend 
restrictions of Evergy, Inc. and its subsidiaries. 
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Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifyi~g Accounts and Reserves 

Description 

Year Ended December 31,.2018 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Evergy, Inc. 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017,and 2016 · 

Balance At 

Beginning 

Of Period 

Additions 

Charged· 

To Costs 

And 

Expenses 

Charged 

To Other 

Accounts 

(millions) 

Deductions 

Balance 

AtEnd 

Of Period 

r -r ~ . , . .. .. ~. . (a) (6)'.v-. -~·-~·-.1 
},, : .• Allo:,vancet'or ~collecHbie?accounts• J· '.'',; -. '.$V . ,f7 .. : /.,$("~; J0,5,. ~:; · l ; : to : a·'. $ ,: : J7.:5 :. , ; .'.;:$ : tJ?:7' :;1 
Year Ended December 31, 2016 

Allowance for uncollectible accounts 

(a) Recoveries. 
Cbl Uncollectible accounts charged off.
Cc) Reversal of tax valuation allowance. 

$ 5.3 $ 12.2 $ 6.2 .<•l 

(dl Primarily represents the addition of Great Plains Energy's allowance as of the date of the merg~r. 

(el Recoveries and the addition of Great Plains Energy's allowance as of the date of the merger. 

Description 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Westar Energy, Inc. 

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 

Balance At 

Beginning 

Of Period 

Additions 

Charged 

To Costs 

And 

Expenses 

Charged 

To Other 

Accounts 

(millions) 

Tax valuation allowance 1. 7 

$ 17.0 (b) $ 6.7 

Balance 

At End 

Deductions Of Period 

1.7 

;YearEndedDecember31/2017 .!' . . , .. ·., <:. '· .. ·· >e. /.· ... ·:. , ..... _· • .. · '. .... . _} i •..... * : ... ····- :-· · .... · .•.. ·.·.':,·~>}:·r.•:.;'. .. >•·I 
' ~-Lw 0 - wm-cn-,.,,·-·-M_,_,.._.., · · __,,'. , ___ . '.•>" ' ' '' -_' <it'.:'20~; &..::i.:VY ,~'. __ _ -• __ --, ~ ___ ~ 

Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 6.7 $ 10.5 $ 7.0 (a) $ 17.5 (b) $ 6.7 

~,Year Ended December'3 l,·2016 . . \-·"-''-·~-~~.,:...: ______ ·-..:_· _· _ ·· _--~, ~~ , · _: . -.·· :. ·• i~ .::::cJ 
Allowance foruncollectible accounts $ 5.3 $ 12.2 $ 6.2 (al $ 17.0 (bl $ 6.7 

(a) Recoveries. 
(bl Uncollectible accounts charged off 
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Description 

Year Ended December 31, 2018 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Tax valuation allowance 

!~~"a~:JE~c1~W~~ 
....,,...,..,,,,,.""""",,...,,..,,..,,,... 

Allowance for w11.u1.,.,.,,.1u,,., 

(aJ Recoveries. 
(bJ Uncollectible accounts charged off. 
(cJ Reversal of tax valuation allowance. 

Kansas City Power & Light Co~pany: 
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 
\ 

Additions 

Charged 

Balance At To Costs Charged. 
' - Beginning And To Other 

Of Period Expenses Accounts 

(millions) 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15( d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 

. caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. · 

Date: February 21, 2019 

EVERGY, INC. 

By: Isl Terry Bassham 

Terry Bassham 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

' ' 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature 

Isl Terry Bassham 

Terry Bassham 

Isl Anthony D. Somma 

Anthony D. Somma 

Isl Steven P. Busser 

Steven P. Busser 

Mark A. Ruelle* 

Mollie Hale Carter* 

Charles Q. Chandler IV* 

Gary D. Forsee* 

· Scott D. Grimes* . 

Richard L. Hawley* 

· Thomas D. Hyde* 

B. Anthony Isaac* 

s·andra A.J. Lawrence* 

Ann D. _Murtlow* 

Sandra J. Price* 

John J. Sherman* 

S. Carl Soderstrom Jr.* 

*By Isl Terry Bassham 
Terry Bassham 
Attorney-in-Fact* 

Title 

President and Chief Executive Officer· 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer) 

Vice President - Risk Management and Controller 

(Principal Accounting Officer) -

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

_ Director 

Director 

Director 

. Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 
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SIGNATURES 
I 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15( d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: February 21, 2019 

WESTAR ENERGY, INC. 

By: Isl Terry Bassham 
Terry Bassham 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following. 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature 

Isl Terry Bassham 
Terry Bassham · 

Isl Anthony D. Somma 

Anthony D. Somma 

Isl Steven P. Busser 

Steven P. Busser 

Mark A. Ruelle* 

Mollie Hale Carter* 

Charles Q. Chandler IV* 

Gary D. Forsee* 

Scott D. Grimes* 

Richard L. Hawley* 

Thomas D. Hyde* 

B. Anthony Isaac* 

Sandra A.J. Lawrence* 

Ann D. Murtlow* 

Sandra J. Price* 

John J. Sherman* 

S. Carl Soderstrom Jr.* 

*By Isl Terry Bassham 
Terry Bassham 
Attorney-in-Fact* 

Title 
· President and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

, Vice President - Risk Management and Controller 
. (Principal Accounting Officer) 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15( d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Date: February 21, 2019 

KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

By: Isl Terry Bassham 

Terry Bassham 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. · 

Signature 

Isl Terry Bassham 

Terry Bassham 

Isl Anthony D. Somma 

Anthony D. Somma 

Isl Steven P. Busser 

Steven P. Busser 

Mark A. Ruelle* 

Mollie Hale Carter* 

Charles Q. Chandler IV* 

Gary D. Forsee* 

Scott D. Grimes* 

Richard L. Hawley* 

Thomas D. Hyde* 

B. Anthony Isaac* 

Sandra A.J. Lawrence* 

Ann D. Murtlow* 

Sandra J. Price* 

John J. Sherman* 

S. Carl Soderstrom Jr.* 

*By Isl Terry Bassham 
Terry Bassham 
Attorney-in-Fact* 

Title 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer) 

Vice President - Risk Management and Controller 

(Principal Accounting Officer) 

Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 
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Directors and Officers 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Mark A. Ruelle Gary D. Forsee 
Chairman of the Board, Former President, University 
former President of Missouri System 
and Chief Executive Officer 

Scott D. Grimes of Westar Energy 
Chief Executive Officer and 

Terry Bassham Founder of Cardlytics, Inc. 
President and 

Richard L. Hawley Chief Executive Officer 
Former Executive Vice President 

Mollie Hale Carter and Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Executive Officer of Nicor, Inc. 
and President of FirstSun 

Thomas D. Hyde Capital Bancorp 
Former Executive Vice President 

Charles Q. Chandler IV Legal, Compliance, Ethics and 
President and Chief Executive Corporate Secretary of Wal-Mart 
Officer of INTRUST Bank, N.A. Stores, Inc. 

OFFICERS 
Terry Bassham Chuck Caisley 
President and Senior Vice President, 
Chief Executive Officer Marketing, Public Affairs 

Kevin Bryant 
and Chief Customer Officer 

Executive Vice President, Heather Humphrey 
Chief Operating Officer Senior Vice President, 

Greg Greenwood 
General Counsel and 

Executive Vice President, 
Corporate Secretary 

Strategy and Chief Bruce Akin 
Administrative Officer Vice President, 

Tony Somma 
Distribution Operations 

Executive Vice President, Duane Anstaett 
Chief Financial Officer Vice President, 

Jeri Banning 
Generation Operations 

Senior Vice President, Jeff Beasley 
Chief People Officer Vice President, 

Customer Operations 

Shareholder Information 
EVERGY, INC FORM 10-K 
Evergy, lnc.'s 2018 Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission can be found at www.evergyinc.com. 
The 10-K is available at no charge upon written request to: 

Corporate Secretary 
Evergy, Inc. 
P.O. Box418679 
Kansas City, MO 64141-9679 

MARKET INFORMATION 
Evergy, Inc. common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange 
under the ticker symbol "EVRG". We had 21,140 registered shareholders 
of record as of February 26, 2019. 

WEBSITE 
We have a website at www.evergyinc.com. Information available 
includes our SEC filings, news releases, stock quotes, community and 
environmental efforts, and information of general interest to investors. 

Also located on the website are Governance Documents and Committee 
Charters for the Board of Directors. These documents are available 
at no charge upon written request to the Corporate Secretary. 

FINANCIAL COMMUNITY INQUIRIES 
Securities analyst and investment professionals seeking information 
about Evergy, Inc. may contact Investor Relations at 785-575-8227. 

8. Anthony Isaac 
Former Senior Vice President 
and Head of Select Service 
Strategy and Development at 
Hyatt Hotels Corporation 

Sandra A. J. Lawrence 
Former Executive Vice President 
and Chief Administrative Officer 
of Children's Mercy Hospital 

Ann D. Murtlow 
President and Chief Executive 
Officer of the United Way 
of Central Indiana 

John Bridson 
Vice President, 
Generation Services 

Steve Busser 
Vice President, 
Risk Management 
and Controller 

Ellen Fairchild 
Vice President, 
Chief Compliance Officer 

Deb Grunst 
Vice President, 
Information Technology 

Darrin Ives 
Vice President, 
Regulatory Affairs 

COMMON STOCK DIVIDEND 

Quarter 2018* 
Third 
Fourth 

$0.460 
$0.475 

COMMON STOCK HISTORY 

Quarter 2018* 
Third 
Fourth 

High 
$59.280 
$61.100 

Sandra J. Price 
Former Senior Vice President 
Human Resources, Sprint 
Corporation 

John J. Sherman 
Vice Chairman of the Cleveland 
Indians Baseball Club and a 
Director of Crestwood Equity 
GPLLC 

S. Carl Soderstrom Jr. 
Former Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 
for ArvinMeritor 

Maria Jenks 
Vice President, 
Supply Chain 

Charles King 
Vice President, 
Chief Information Officer 

Jeff Martin 
Vice President, Customer 
and Community Operations 

Kevin Noblet 
Vice President, 
Transmission and T&D Services 

Lori Wright 
Vice President, 
Corporate Planning, Investor 
Relations and Treasurer 

Low 
$54.170 
$54.260 

*For legacy Great Plains Energy and Westar Energy dividend 
amounts and stock prices, please visit www.evergyinc.com. 

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 
Evergy, lnc.'s annual meeting of shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m., 
May 7, 2019 at Evergy, Inc., Wichita Operations Center, 4025 N. Toben 
St., Wichita, KS, 67226. 

REGISTERED SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES & 
TRANSFER AGENT & STOCK REGISTRANT 
For account information or assistance, including change of address, 
stock transfer, dividend payments, duplicate accounts, or to report 
a lost certificate, please contact our transfer agent, Computershare at: 
Computershare Trust Company, N.A., P. 0. Box 505000, Louisville, KY 
40233-5000, Telephone: 866-239-8177. 






